

Section I
Notices of Development of Proposed Rules
and Negotiated Rulemaking

DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE

State Fire Marshal

RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
Definitions	4A-2.002
Manufacture; License Required	4A-2.004
Storage; Shortages or Thefts; Reports Required	4A-2.012
Use; General	4A-2.019
All Investigative Reports Must be Filed	4A-2.022

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: This rule is being amended to delete duplicative language. Further, language is being repealed as a result of the Section 120.536(2)(b), F.S. review.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Deletion of duplicative and unnecessary language.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 552.13 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 552.081, 552.091, 552.113, 552.12, 552.13, 552.241, 633.01(2) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY, A WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS WORKSHOP WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., Tuesday, April 24, 2001

PLACE: Room 142, Larson Building, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Gabe Mazzeo, Division of Fire Marshal, Department of Insurance, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0320

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 calendar days before the program by contacting Yvonne White, (850)413-4214.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES

Division of Agricultural Water Policy

RULE CHAPTER TITLE:	RULE CHAPTER NO.:
Indian River Area Citrus Best Management Practices	5M-1

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose and effect of the proposed rule is to adopt the Water Quality/Quantity BMPs for Indian River Area Citrus, and provide the mechanisms for the Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services to verify compliance with the Best Management Practices (BMPs) and interim measures in accordance with Chapter 403.067(7), F.S.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The purpose of this workshop is to review a draft rule that adopts the Water Quality/Quantity BMPs for Indian River Area Citrus, establishes record keeping requirements and the procedures for landowners and leaseholders to submit a notice of intent to comply with Best Management Practices (BMPs) and interim measures.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 403.067(7) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 403.067(7) FS.

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., April 27, 2001

PLACE: Indian River Research and Education Center, Institute of Food and Agricultural Sciences, 2199 South Rock Road, Ft. Pierce, FL 34945-3138, (561)468-3922

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Mark Jennings, Environmental Specialist III, Office of Agricultural Water Policy, 1203 Governor's Square Blvd., Suite 200, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1650, (850)488-6249 or Fax (850)921-2153

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

State Board of Education

RULE TITLE:	RULE NO.:
Comprehensive Management Information System	6A-1.0014

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this amendment is to revise existing requirements of the statewide comprehensive management information system which are necessary in order to implement changes recommended by school districts and to make changes in state reporting and local recordkeeping procedures for state and/or federal programs. The effect is to maintain compatibility among state and local information systems components. The statewide comprehensive management information system provides the data on which the measurement of school improvement and accountability is based.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: DOE Information Data Base Requirements 2001-2002.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 120.53(1)(b), 229.053(1), 229.555(3) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 228.093(3)(d)3., 229.555(2), 229.781 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE TO BE ADVERTISED IN A FUTURE EDITION OF THE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

Requests for the rule development workshop should be addressed to: Wayne V. Pierson, Agency Clerk, Department of Education, 325 West Gaines Street, Room 1214, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Lavan Dukes, Bureau of Education Information and Accountability Services, Division of Technology, 325 West Gaines Street, Room 852, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400, (850)487-2280

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Miscellaneous Tax

RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
Premium Tax; Rate and Computation	12B-8.001
Tax Statement; Overpayments	12B-8.003
Retaliatory Provisions	12B-8.016

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed amendments to Rule 12B-8.001, F.A.C., is to: (1) remove references to the intangible personal property tax imposed under Chapter 199, F.S., as insurers are no longer subject to that tax; (2) clarify the application of credits when an entity ceases to exist; and (3) remove obsolete provisions from the rule.

The purpose of the proposed amendments to Rule 12B-8.003, F.A.C., is to adopt the changes to forms DR-907 and DR-908 used by the Department in administering the insurance premium tax.

The purpose of the proposed amendments to Rule 12B-8.016, F.A.C., is to clarify the availability of short year Florida corporate income tax returns in the retaliatory tax computation.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The subject of this rule development workshop is the proposed changes necessary to Rule Chapter 12B-8, F.A.C., Insurance Premium Taxes, Fees and Surcharges.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 213.06(1), 220.183(6), 624.5105(6) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 175.101, 175.121, 175.141, 185.08(3), 185.10, 185.12, 213.05, 213.235, 213.37, 220.183(3), 624.4621, 624.475, 624.509, 624.5091, 624.5092, 624.510, 624.5105, 624.511, 624.518, 624.519, 624.520(2), 626.7451(11), 627.3512, 627.357(9), 628.6015, 629.5011, 634.131, 634.313(2), 634.415(2) FS.

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., April 24, 2001

PLACE: Room 116, Larson Building, 200 E. Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0100

NOTICE UNDER THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Any person requiring special accommodations to participate in any proceeding before the Technical Assistance and Dispute Resolution Office is asked to advise the

Department at least five (5) calendar days before such proceeding by contacting Jamie Phillips, (850)488-0717. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Department by calling 1(800)DOR-TDD1 (1(800)367-8331).

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Robert DuCasse, Tax Law Specialist, Technical Assistance and Dispute Resolution, Department of Revenue, Post Office Box 7443, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-7443, telephone number (850)922-4700

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

12B-8.001 Premium Tax; Rate and Computation.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Credits Against the Tax.

(a)1. ~~The intangible personal property tax (IPPT) imposed under Chapter 199, F.S., the corporate income tax imposed under Chapter 220, F.S., and the emergency excise tax imposed under Chapter 221, F.S., which are, or should have been, filed and paid by an insurer shall discharge the liability for the insurance premium tax (IPT) imposed under s. 624.509, F.S., for the annual period in which such tax payments are or should have been made, to the extent of the maximum allowed. Any insurer issuing policies insuring against loss or damage from the risks of fire, tornado, and certain casualty lines may take a credit against gross premium receipts tax for the excise tax(es) imposed by s. 175.101, F.S., and s. 185.08, F.S.~~

2.a. When an insurer is required to file a short year Florida corporate income tax return, the due date, or the extended due date when a valid extension of time is made of said Florida return, determines whether the corporate income tax and emergency excise tax paid on the short year Florida corporate income tax return is available for use on the insurer's final insurance premium tax return (DR-908). If the due date, or extended due date when a valid extension of time is made, of the short year Florida corporate income tax return is on or before December 31 of the short period year, then the insurer may include the short year Florida corporate income tax and emergency excise tax payments on that year's DR-908. Unused corporate income tax and emergency excise tax credits cannot be transferred to the insurance premium tax return (form DR-908) of another entity. Since the intangible personal property tax (IPPT) credit offsets dollar for dollar any Insurance Premium Tax (IPT) liability, changes made in the amount of IPPT due the State will result in a change in the insurer's IPT liability and also may result in a change in the insurer's salary tax credit and retaliatory tax liability. The IPPT credit should be applied against IPT for the year in which the IPPT return would have been filed, had it been timely filed, even if it was not.

b. For example, if an insurer ceased to exist on August 31, 2000, a short year Florida corporate income tax return, without extension, is due on December 1, 2000. Since the short year Florida corporate income tax return is due by December 31 of the short period year, the insurer should include the amount of tax due on the short year Florida corporate income tax return in the computation of the corporate income tax and emergency excise tax credit on its final insurance premium tax return, the 2000 DR-908, which is due March 1, 2001. If, however, the insurer extended the due date of the short year Florida corporate income tax return to June 1, 2001, the short year Florida corporate income tax return is not included in the computation of the corporate income tax and emergency excise tax credit on its final insurance premium tax return, the 2000 DR-908, which is due March 1, 2001. For example, if the insurer paid intangible personal property tax (IPPT) February 1, 1995, on intangible assets managed or controlled in Florida on January 1, 1995, the amount paid should be claimed as a credit against its 1995 insurance premium tax (IPT) which was due March 1, 1996. However, if the insurer paid IPPT February 1, 1995, on intangible assets managed or controlled in Florida on January 1, 1994, the amount paid should be claimed as a credit against its 1994 IPT which was due March 1, 1995. In this situation, an amended 1994 IPT return must be filed provided the insurer had previously filed its original 1994 IPT return.

(b) Salaries. Fifteen percent of the amount paid after June 30, 1988, in salaries by the insurer to employees located or based in Florida may be credited against the net tax imposed by s. 624.509, F.S.

1. Salaries include only amounts paid directly to employees and do not include commissions paid to employees located or based in Florida.

2. Employees are those covered under Chapter 443, F.S., Unemployment Compensation, by the insurer taking the credit, a service representative as defined in s. 626.081, F.S., a supervising or managing general agent as defined in s. 626.091, F.S., and an adjuster or claims investigator as defined in s. 626.101, F.S.

3. Salary credit shall be allowed only to the extent that:

a. The employees are not disqualified under s. 624.509(5), F.S.; and

b. The employees are located or based in Florida; and

c. The insurer claiming the credit is the employer, as defined in s. 443.036(17), F.S., of the claimed employees, and said insurer satisfies the Chapter 38B-2, F.A.C., filing requirements.

4. Employees do not include independent contractors or any persons whose duties require them to have a valid insurance license issued under the Florida Insurance Code.

5. The wages paid to an individual who is employed directly by an employment agency, such as a temporary agency or a leasing company, are not included.

6. Net tax is the tax imposed under s. 624.509(1), F.S., after deductions for the ~~intangible personal property tax imposed under Chapter 199, F.S.,~~ the corporate income tax imposed under Chapter 220, F.S., the emergency excise tax imposed under Chapter 221, F.S., and for gross premium receipts tax payable for firefighters' pension trust funds under s. 175.101, F.S., and police officers' retirement funds under s. 185.08, F.S.

(c) Assessments Credited Against the Tax.

1. Payments made by an insurance carrier, group self-insurer, or commercial self-insurance fund, for assessments made pursuant to s. 440.51, F.S., shall be allowed as a deduction against the amount of any other tax levied by the state upon the premiums, assessments, or deposits for workers' compensation insurance on contracts or policies of said insurance carrier, self-insurer, or commercial self-insurance fund.

2. Effective with the tax return filed for the 1997 taxable year, insurers who have paid an assessment to the Florida Life and Health Insurance Guaranty Association (FLHIGA) may claim a credit for part of such assessment as provided for in the Florida Statutes. Any credits not taken or utilized when available cannot be carried forward. When the insurer that paid the FLHIGA assessments and earned the future FLHIGA credits ceases to exist, all future FLHIGA credits available from payments made by the insurer are accelerated and may be claimed on the insurer's final insurance premium tax return. These future FLHIGA credits cannot be transferred or used by another insurer.

(d) Community Contribution Tax Credit.

1. Who May Claim the Credit. Any taxpayer who has received prior approval from the ~~Department of Community Affairs, through June 30, 1994, or the Governor's Office of Tourism, Trade, and Economic Development, subsequently,~~ for its community contribution to any revitalization project undertaken by an eligible sponsor, shall be allowed a credit of 50 percent of the contribution. The total annual credit under this section applied against the tax due under s. 624.509, F.S., or s. 624.510, F.S., for a calendar year, may not exceed \$200,000. The valuation of the contribution determined by the Governor's Office of Trade, Tourism, and Economic Development shall be used in the computation of the credit. In instances of fraud, the Executive Director of the Department of Revenue has the authority to redetermine the value of the contribution.

~~a. The valuation of the contribution determined by the Department of Community Affairs through June 30, 1994, or the Governor's Office of Trade, Tourism, and Economic Development, subsequently, shall be used in the computation of the credit. In instances of fraud, the Director of the Department of Revenue has the authority to redetermine the value of the contribution.~~

~~b. To qualify for the credit under the program expiring June 30, 1994, the insurer must have its community contribution approved by the Department of Community Affairs, and have completed the transfer of the asset by that date.~~

~~e. Beginning July 1, 1995, the program is reinstated pursuant to s. 624.5105, F.S., as amended, and will be administered by the Governor's Office of Trade, Tourism, and Economic Development.~~

2. through 5. No change.

(4) through (5) No change.

(6) Credits and deductions against the tax imposed by ss. 624.509 and 624.510, F.S., shall be taken in the following order:

(a) Deductions for assessments under s. 440.51, F.S.

(b) Credits for taxes paid under ss. 175.101 and 185.08, F.S.

(c) Credits for corporate income taxes paid under Chapter 220, F.S.

(d) Credits for the ~~The~~ emergency excise tax paid under Chapter 221, F.S.

(e) Salary tax credit.

~~(f) Credits for intangible personal property taxes paid under Chapter 199, F.S.~~

~~(f)(g)~~ All other available credits and deductions.

~~(g)(h)~~ A refund will not be created by credits.

(7) through (9) No change.

Specific Authority 213.06(1), 220.183(6), 624.5105(6) FS. Law Implemented 175.101, 175.121, 175.141, 185.08(3), 185.10, 185.12, 213.05, 213.235, 220.183(3), 624.4621, 624.475, 624.509, 624.5092, 624.510, 624.5105, 624.519, 624.520(2), 626.7451(11), 627.3512, 627.357(9), 628.6015, 629.5011, 634.131, 634.313(2), 634.415(2) FS. History—New 2-3-80, Formerly 12B-8.01, Amended 3-25-90, 4-10-91, 2-18-93, 6-16-94, 10-19-94, 1-2-96, 12-9-97, 6-2-98, 4-2-00, _____.

12B-8.003 Tax Statement; Overpayments.

(1) Tax returns and reports shall be made by insurers on forms prescribed by the Department. The Department prescribes Form DR-907, Florida Department of Revenue Insurance Premium Installment Payment, dated January 2001 ~~1999~~, and Form DR-908, Florida Department of Revenue Insurance Premium Taxes and Fees Tax Return, dated January 2001 ~~1999~~, and accompanying instructions as the forms to be used for the purpose of this chapter and hereby incorporates these forms by reference.

(2) through (4) No change.

Specific Authority 213.06(1) FS. Law Implemented 213.05, 213.37, 624.5092, 624.511, 624.518 FS. History—New 2-3-80, Formerly 12B-8.03, Amended 3-25-90, 3-10-91, 2-18-93, 6-16-94, 12-9-97, 3-23-98, 7-1-99, _____.

12B-8.016 Retaliatory Provisions.

(1) through (4) No change.

(5) When an insurer is required to file a short year Florida corporate income tax return, the due date, or the extended due date when a valid extension of time is made of said return,

determines whether the corporate income tax and emergency excise tax paid on the short year Florida corporate income tax return is available for use on the insurer's retaliatory tax computation of its final insurance premium tax return (DR-908). If the due date, or the extended due date when a valid extension of time is made, of the short year Florida corporate income tax return is on or before December 31 of the short period year, then the insurer may include the short year Florida corporate income tax and emergency excise tax payments on that year's retaliatory tax computation.

Specific Authority 213.06(1) FS. Law Implemented 213.05, 624.509, 624.5091, 624.5092 FS. History—New 3-25-90, Amended 4-10-91, 12-9-97, 3-23-98, _____.

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Corporate, Estate and Intangible Tax

RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
Adjusted Federal Income Defined	12C-1.013
Apportionment for Special Industries	12C-1.0151
Sales Factor for Apportionment	12C-1.0155
Returns; Filing Requirement	12C-1.022
PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed amendments to Rule 12C-1.013, F.A.C. (Adjusted Federal Income Defined), is to reflect federal changes in entity classification. The objective of this amendment is to complement Section 220.13(2)(j), F.S.	

The purpose of the proposed amendments to Rule 12C-1.0151, F.A.C. (Apportionment for Special Industries), is amended to clarify that deposit-type funds are not direct premiums written, and therefore are not included in the apportionment factor calculation of an insurance company.

The purpose of the proposed amendments to Rule 12C-1.0155, F.A.C. (Sales Factor for Apportionment), is to clarify which items of interest on loans are subject to sales factor inclusion. Further, the rule is amended to explain how sales of a partnership are to be included in the sales factor.

The purpose of the proposed amendments to Rule 12C-1.022, F.A.C. (Returns; Filing Requirements), is to conform the rule text to s. 220.22, F.S.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: This rule development workshop will address the proposed amendments to Rules 12C-1.013, 12C-1.0151, 12C-1.055, and 12C-1.022, F.A.C., that: 1) reflect the federal changes in entity classification complementing s. 220.13(2)(j), F.S.; 2) explain or define terms and concepts used in the application and administration of the corporate income tax regarding the apportionment formula for insurance companies; 3) clarify which items of interest on loans are subject to sales factor inclusion; and 4) conform the rule provisions regarding the filing of returns consistent with the provisions of s. 220.22, F.S.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 213.06(1), 220.21, 220.51 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 220.02(3), 220.03(5), 220.12, 220.13, 220.131(1), 220.15, 220.151, 220.22, 220.43(1),(3), 220.44 FS.

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., April 24, 2001

PLACE: Room 116, Larson Building, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0100

NOTICE UNDER THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Any person requiring special accommodations to participate in any proceeding before the Technical Assistance and Dispute Resolution Office is asked to advise the Department at least five (5) calendar days before such proceeding by contacting Jamie Phillips, (850)488-0717. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Department by calling 1(800)DOR-TDD1 (1(800)367-8331).

THE PERSONS TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT ARE: Robert DuCasse, Tax Law Specialist, and Suzanne C. Paul, Tax Law Specialist, Technical Assistance and Dispute Resolution, Department of Revenue, P. O. Box 7443, Tallahassee, Florida 32314-7443, telephone (850)922-4700

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

12C-1.013 Adjusted Federal Income Defined.

(1)(a) through (d) No change.

(e) For tax years ending on or after July 1, 1998, limited liability companies and foreign limited liability companies qualified to do business in Florida will be allowed to file in the same manner for Florida corporate income tax purposes as for federal tax purposes. Regardless of whether a limited liability company is treated for federal tax purposes as a corporation or a partnership, for Florida corporate income tax purposes the taxable income of a limited liability company is defined by s. 220.13(2)(j), F.S., as equal to the amount of taxable income determined as if a corporation under the Internal Revenue Code.

(2) through (13) No change.

(14) Net Operating Losses.

(a) Generally, ~~the~~ Florida law follows the Internal Revenue Code with respect to the computation and handling of a net operating loss (NOL). However, under s. 220.13(1)(b)1., F.S., a net operating loss may not be allowed as a carryback to years prior to the year of the loss. It may be allowed only as a carryover (NOLCO) and is treated in the same manner and for the same period of time as allowed in s. 172, I.R.C.

(b) through (i) No change.

(j) Under Treas. Reg. 1.1502-1(f)(2)(ii), the term "separate return limitation year" (SRLY) does not include a separate return year of any corporation which was a member of the affiliated group for each day of such year. The exception in Treas. Reg. 1.1502-1(f)(2)(ii), to the term "separate return limitation year" contemplates an affiliated group which remains in existence, and is, therefore, eligible to file a

consolidated return for each year. If the affiliated group does not elect to file a consolidated return, each corporation must file a separate federal return. The Florida Corporate Income Tax Code generally embraces concepts of law which have been developed in connection with the income tax law of the United States. Subsection 220.43(1), F.S., provides that to the extent not inconsistent with the provisions of the Florida Income Tax Code or forms or regulations developed by the Department, a taxpayer will, for Florida tax purposes, take into account the items of income, deduction, and exclusion in the same manner as they are reflected for federal purposes. The requirements to file a Florida consolidated return, as well as the benefits and costs associated with filing a Florida consolidated return, are not the same as the requirements, benefits, and costs of filing a federal consolidated return. Florida allows federal net operating loss carryovers as a subtraction pursuant to s. 220.13(1)(b)1., F.S. However, the underlying federal concepts must be applied in a manner consistent with Florida law. Where members of a federal affiliated group have not elected, or are not eligible to elect, under the provisions of s. 220.131, F.S., to file a Florida consolidated return, SRLY concepts will be applied. SRLY concepts are applicable when a NOL carryover exists from a prior taxable year for which a Florida consolidated return was not filed and Florida corporate income tax returns were not filed for all members. The NOL carryover deduction from a subsidiary included in a consolidated NOL deduction is limited to that subsidiary's taxable income included in the consolidated taxable income for that year. Where all members of the federal affiliated group filed Florida corporate income tax returns for all years from which a NOL carryover is available, SRLY concepts will not be imposed.

(k) through (o) No change.

(15) through (20) No change.

Specific Authority 213.06(1), 220.51 FS. Law Implemented 220.02(3), 220.03(5), 220.13, 220.131(1), 220.43(1),(3) FS., s. 70, Ch. 94-353 Laws of Florida: History-New 10-20-72, Amended 1-19-73, 10-20-73, 10-8-74, 4-21-75, 5-10-78, 11-13-78, 12-18-83, Formerly 12C-1.13, Amended 12-21-88, 12-7-92, 5-17-94, 10-19-94, 3-18-96, _____.

12C-1.0151 Apportionment for Special Industries.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Insurance companies.

(a)1. An insurance company may, at its election, determine the premium written for reinsurance accepted in respect to properties and risks in Florida on the basis of the proportion which premiums written for reinsurance accepted from companies resident in or having a regional home office in Florida bears to premiums written for reinsurance accepted from all sources. ~~Alternatively, the premiums written for reinsurance accepted for properties and risks in Florida can be determined on the basis of each ceding company's ratio of direct premiums written in Florida to the sum of the total direct premiums written by each ceding company for the taxable year.~~

2. For purposes of this subsection, the "principal source of premiums" is defined as the majority (greater than 50 percent) of premium dollars received.

(b) If the principal source of premiums written by an insurance company is not for premiums for reinsurance accepted by it, the adjusted federal taxable income is apportioned to Florida by multiplying it by a fraction, the numerator of which is the direct premiums written for insurance upon properties and risks in Florida and the denominator of which is the direct premiums written for insurance upon properties and risks everywhere.

(c) Deposit-type funds, as separately listed on Schedule T of the Annual Statement filed with the Department of Insurance, are not direct premiums written and therefore are not included in the apportionment factor calculation of an insurance company.

(4) No change.

Specific Authority 213.06(1), 220.51 FS. Law Implemented 220.151 FS. History—New 5-17-94, Amended 3-18-96,_____.

12C-1.0155 Sales Factor for Apportionment.

(1) through (3) No change.

(4) Sales of a partnership are included in the denominator of a taxpayer's sales factor to the extent of the taxpayer's interest in the partnership. The amount of sales in Florida is also included in the numerator of the sales factor to the extent of the taxpayer's interest in the partnership. Partnership sales should be allocated to each partner based on each partner's interest in the partnership, or as designated in the partnership agreement, for inclusion in the Florida sales factor.

Specific Authority 213.06(1), 220.51 FS. Law Implemented 220.15, 220.44 FS. History—New 5-17-94, Amended 3-18-96,_____.

12C-1.022 Returns; Filing Requirement.

(1) No change.

(2) Foreign (out-of-state) corporations.

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) The determination of whether a foreign (out-of-state) corporation is required to file a Florida corporate income/franchise tax return is dependent only on the activities of the corporation during that tax year. However, there is a continuing expectation presumption that a foreign corporation that was required to file in a previous year has a filing requirement in subsequent years. Therefore, a foreign corporation should file a return with a statement clearly explaining why there is not a continuing filing requirement. A foreign corporation must respond in writing to inquiries of the Department clearly explaining why a Florida filing is not required.

(e) No change.

(3) Foreign (non-U.S.) corporations.

(a) No change.

(b) Foreign corporations which are not considered under the Internal Revenue Code to have income effectively connected with a U.S. trade or business, ~~but are~~ for which any tax ~~is due is withheld at the source~~ under the provisions of s. 1442, I.R.C., will ~~not~~ be required to file a Florida corporate income/franchise tax return.

(c) through (d) No change.

(4) through (6) No change.

Specific Authority 213.06(1), 220.21, 220.51 FS. Law Implemented 220.22 FS. History—New 10-20-72, Amended 10-20-73, Revised 10-8-74, Amended 3-5-80, Formerly 12C-1.22, Amended 12-21-88, 4-8-92, 12-7-92, 3-18-96, _____.

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE TITLE:

RULE NO.:

ADA Provisions for Inmates

33-210.201

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed rule is to establish guidelines with regard to ADA provisions for inmates. The effect is to: provide relevant definitions; establish procedures for accommodation requests by inmates; establish procedures and guidelines for the approval or denial of accommodation requests; provide procedures relating to the approval, possession, and maintenance of health care appliances; and, establish guidelines for the maintenance of health accessible features and equipment.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: ADA provisions for inmates.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 944.09 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 944.09, 958.04 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE NOTICED IN THE NEXT AVAILABLE FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE WEEKLY.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Giselle Lysten Rivera, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

33-210.201 ADA Provisions for Inmates.

(1) Policy. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), 42 U.S.C. 12101 et. seq., the Department of Corrections does not discriminate, on the basis of a disability, against any inmate with regard to its programs, services, or activities for which the inmate is otherwise qualified. Inmates shall be provided the opportunity to identify the nature of any disability and to request an accommodation or auxiliary aids. Additional information on the ADA is available from the chief administrator or the impaired inmate coordinator of any department facility.

(2) Definitions.

(a) ADA Coordinator – the central office employee assigned to implement provisions of Title I and Title II of the ADA and Section 504 of the 1973 Rehabilitation Act.

(b) Direct threat – refers to a health or safety risk in which an inmate poses a significant likelihood of substantial harm to department staff, the public, other inmates, or herself or himself.

(c) Equally effective communication – communication with inmates with various disabilities that is equal to communication with inmates without any documented disabilities.

(d) Health care appliance – refers to devices or medical support equipment prescribed for a disabled inmate and approved by the Office of Health Services or its designee.

(e) Individual with a disability – refers to an inmate, as determined by department medical staff, who has a physical or mental impairment that substantially limits one or more major life activities.

(f) Intake officer – refers to the staff member at an institution who is designated to respond to inmate grievances alleging a violation of the ADA and to requests for accommodation.

(g) Major life activities – activities that an average person can perform with little or no difficulty, such as walking, speaking, performing manual tasks, hearing, learning, and seeing.

(h) Mental impairment – any mental or psychological disorder such as mental retardation, organic brain syndrome, emotional or mental illness and specific learning disabilities.

(i) Other permanent disability – refers to a disability other than a mobility, hearing, vision or speech impairment that may require the inmate to be placed in a designated facility due to the severity of the disability.

(j) Permanent disability – an impairment that is not expected to improve within six months.

(k) Qualified inmate with a disability – refers to a person who meets the essential eligibility requirements of the department and Title II of the ADA of 1990 and whose access to the department's programs, services, or activities is accomplished by reasonable accommodation.

(l) Reasonable accommodation – refers to any modification or adjustment that will allow a qualified individual to participate in, or benefit by, the programs, services, or activities of a department institution or facility.

(m) Substantially limited – refers to an individual who is unable to perform, or is significantly limited in the ability to perform, a major life activity compared to an average person in the general population.

(n) Undue hardship – refers to an action that is excessively costly, extensive, substantial, or disruptive to the business being conducted at a facility or that would fundamentally alter the nature or operation of the facility.

(o) Youthful offender – refers to the category of individuals set forth in Rule 33-506.101, F.A.C.

(3) Accommodation Request Procedure.

(a) The determination of whether an inmate is disabled shall be made by department medical staff, either at reception or at the institution where the inmate is assigned, based upon the inmate's record of impairment or some other qualified evaluation of the inmate's impairment.

1. The nature and extent of the disability will be assessed during the evaluation process.

2. In determining if a person's impairment substantially limits a major life activity, the following factors shall be considered:

a. The nature and severity of the impairment;

b. The length of time the impairment is expected to last; and,

c. The expected, permanent, or long-term impact of the impairment.

(b) All department and privately operated facilities shall furnish to any inmate, upon request, a Reasonable Modification or Accommodation Request, Form DC2-530. Form DC2-530 is hereby incorporated by reference. Copies of this form are available from the Forms Control Administrator, Office of the General Counsel, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500. The effective date of this form is _____.

(c) Individuals requesting an accommodation or modification shall submit a request in writing on the Reasonable Modification or Accommodation Request, Form DC2-530, specifying the type of accommodation requested and why it is necessary. Any supporting documentation must be attached to Form DC2-530.

1. The Reasonable Modification or Accommodation Request, Form DC2-530, shall be submitted to the designated intake officer. This staff member shall be:

a. The assistant warden for programs (AWP) or the assistant warden (AW) at major department institutions, in the event the institution does not have an AWP;

b. The correctional officer major at work release centers;

c. The facility chief for community facilities; or,

d. The facility supervisor for contract facilities.

2. Inmates who cannot put their requests in writing shall make their verbal requests to classification, security, or library staff or to the intake officer who shall reduce the request to writing and have the inmate sign or otherwise acknowledge it.

(d) The intake officer shall review the DC2-530 and approve, give modified approval of, or deny the inmate's request for an accommodation.

1. If the intake officer approves the request for accommodation, the inmate shall be notified by memo, with the anticipated completion date, if necessary, of the accommodation.

2. If the intake officer denies or grants a modified approval of the request, she or he shall forward the form, and any supporting documents, to the central office ADA coordinator within ten days, including a justification or reason for the denial or modification. The requesting inmate shall be notified of the action taken by memo.

(e) The central office ADA coordinator shall review the request received and note whether she or he concurs or disagrees with the intake officer's decision.

1. If the ADA coordinator disagrees with the intake officer's recommendation, she or he will consult with the central office director for the program area in which the accommodation is requested to obtain input.

2. If, after consulting with the central office director for the program area in which the accommodation is requested, the recommendation of the ADA coordinator is a reversal of the intake officer's decision, the form shall be returned to the intake officer with a memorandum stating the reasons for this action.

(f) Once the institution receives this information, it will take steps to comply with the recommendations of the ADA coordinator and notify the inmate of the actions to be taken by memo.

(g) The intake officer will complete an "Inmate Request for Accommodation Log," Form DC2-529 for each Form DC2-530 received. Form DC2-529 is hereby incorporated by reference. Copies of this form are available from the Forms Control Administrator, Office of the General Counsel, 2601 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2500. The effective date of this form is . Form DC2-259 shall include:

1. The name of the requesting inmate;
2. The inmate's Florida Department of Corrections identification number;
3. The date the request was received;
4. The disposition of the request, (approved, modified, or denied);
5. The name of the individual making the decision;
6. Whether an appeal was filed;
7. The resolution of the appeal, if any; and,
8. The date of the final decision.

(h) The intake officer will forward each Form DC2-529 to the ADA coordinator by the fifth day of each month.

(i) Copies of the requests, logs, and all other documentation shall be placed in the inmate's medical record and in the department's confidential ADA file located in the central office.

(4) Justification for Denial of Requests for Accommodation. A request for accommodation shall be denied for any of the following reasons:

- (a) A legitimate penological interest:

1. A request for accommodation shall be denied when it would pose a risk to the safety or security of the institution, staff, or the public, or when the request would adversely impact other penological interests, including deterring crime and maintaining inmate discipline.

2. In all determinations of reasonable accommodation, public safety and the health, safety, and security of all inmates and staff shall remain the overriding considerations.

(b) The department need not take an action to provide accessibility to a service, program or activity if the action would impose or require:

1. An undue financial burden on the agency where, in a cost benefit analysis, its costs would be an unjustifiable use of public funds. The ADA coordinator shall consult with the Office of the General Counsel to make a determination if an accommodation would result in an undue financial burden.

2. An administrative burden on the agency; or,

3. A fundamental alteration of the nature of the service, program, or activity. The ADA coordinator shall consult with the Office of the General Counsel to make a determination if an accommodation would constitute a fundamental alteration.

(c) Direct Threat. The ADA coordinator, in consultation with the Office of the General Counsel and the central office director for the program area in which the accommodation is requested, shall make a final determination on whether a requested accommodation poses a direct threat.

(d) Equally Effective Means. A request for accommodation shall be denied if equally effective access to a program, service, or activity can be afforded through an alternate method which is less costly or intrusive. Alternative methods that are less costly or intrusive to the existing operation or program shall be utilized to provide reasonable access in lieu of modifications requested by the inmate so long as they are equally effective.

(5) Inmates shall appeal the denial of requests for accommodation by following the guidelines set forth in Rule 33-103.001, F.A.C.

(6) Effective Communication. Reasonable accommodation shall be afforded to inmates with disabilities to ensure equally effective communication with staff, other inmates, and, where applicable, the public.

(a) Auxiliary aids which are reasonable, effective, and appropriate to the needs of the inmate, shall be provided to ensure equal access to programs, services, or activities offered by the department when simple written or oral communication is not effective.

(b) Auxiliary aids include bilingual aids or qualified interpreters, readers, sound amplification devices, captioned television or text displays, telecommunication devices for the deaf (TDD), audiotaped texts, Braille materials, large-print signs and materials, or the assignment of an inmate aid for work, training, and school.

time there have been significant changes. Therefore, during this rule development period, the District seeks to encourage participation by the contracting community in developing this rule, which will increase diversity.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: The proposed rule development concerns changes to the South Florida Water Management District's ("District") existing Chapter 40E-7 Part VI, F.A.C. Supplier Diversity & Outreach M/WBE contracting Rule.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 373.607 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 373.607 FS.

RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOPS WILL BE HELD AT THE TIMES, DATES AND PLACES SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m., Monday, April 23, 2001

PLACE: Orlando Osceola County Library, Buenaventura Lakes Branch, 405 Buenaventura Lakes Boulevard, Kissimmee, FL 34744

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m., Wednesday, April 25, 2001

PLACE: Ft. Lauderdale Field Station, 2535 Davie Road, Davie, FL 33317

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m., Thursday, April 26, 2001

PLACE: Miami/Dade Regional Service Center, 172A W. Flagler Street, Miami, FL 33130

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Sandy Hammerstein, Procurement Division, South Florida Water Management District, Post Office Box 24680, West Palm Beach, Florida 33416-4680, 1(800)432-2045, Extension 2847 or (561)682-2847 (internet: shammer@sfwmd.gov).

Although Governing Board meeting, hearings and workshops are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which any appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities or handicaps who need assistance may contact Tony Burns, District Clerk, (561)682-6206, at least two business days in advance to make appropriate arrangements.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

SUPPLIER DIVERSITY & OUTREACH ~~M/WBE~~ MBE CONTRACTING RULE

(Substantial rewording of Rule 40E-7.611 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.)

40E-7.611 Policy.

(1) The rules under this Part establish policies and procedures designed to remedy documented disparities in District contracting and the present effects of past marketplace

discrimination. The rules under this Part implement specific recommendations of the District's Minority Business Availability and Utilization Study ("Study") as developed by MGT of America, Inc., dated August, 1995 and made a part of the District's Supplier Diversity & Outreach Program ("Program").

(2) The District shall evaluate the progress of its Program to determine specific program provisions that require modification, expansion, and/or curtailment.

Specific Authority 373.607 FS. Law Implemented 373.607 FS. History--New 9-25-96, Amended _____

(Substantial rewording of Rule 40E-7.621 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.)

40E-7.621 Definitions.

(1) "Annual Contract Forecast Report" (ACFR) means a preliminary summary report estimating the number, probable dollar value and the planned solicitation date for budgeted contracts and purchases proposed for each fiscal year.

(2) "Certified Minority Business Enterprise" means a firm certified by the District pursuant to Rules 40E-7.651 and 40E-7.653, F.A.C and Section 287.0943(1) & (2), Florida Statutes.

(3) "Control" means to direct with primacy or cause the direction of all phases of the management and daily operations of the business, including, but not limited to, standard management practices and principles such as policy development, establishment of personnel reporting lines and operational procedures, problem solving, etc.

(4) "Domicile" means the state in which the business has its principal place of business and as it relates to corporations it also means the state under whose laws the corporation was formed.

(5) "Family member" means any person who is a spouse, parent, step-parent, grandparent, step-grandparent, child, step-child, grandchild, step-grandchild, sibling, half-brother, half-sister, step-sister, including adopted persons and those persons who are married to family members.

(6) "Federally recognized Indian Tribe" means an Indian Tribe, Band, Nation, Rancheria, Pueblo, Colony or other organized group or community, including any Alaskan Native Village, which is recognized by the Secretary of the Interior as having special rights and is recognized as eligible for the services provided by the United States to Indians because of their status as Native Americans.

(7) "Front" means a business concern which falsely claims to be owned and controlled by minority persons or women as defined herein.

(8) "Industry categories" mean construction, CCNA professional services, non-CCNA professional services, commodity/services procurement (manufacturing, wholesale, retail), and contractual (other) services.

(9) “Independently operated” means not dependent on the support, influence, guidance, control or not subject to restriction, modification or limitation from a non-minority, except for customary business auxiliary services, e.g., legal, banking, etc.

(10) “Joint Venture” means an association of two or more persons or businesses carrying out a single business enterprise for which purpose they combine their capital, efforts, skills, knowledge and/or property. Joint ventures must be established by written agreement.

(11) “Minority Business Enterprise” or “MBE is as defined in Section 288.703(2), Florida Statutes.

(12) “Minority” person means an individual who is a citizen or lawful permanent resident of the State of Florida who is:

(a) African American: a person having origins in any of the racial groups of the African diaspora.

(b) Asian American: a person having origins in any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian subcontinent or the Pacific Islands, including the Hawaiian Islands prior to 1778.

(c) Hispanic American: a person with origins in Spain, Portugal, Mexico, South America, Central America, or the Caribbean Islands, regardless of race.

(d) Native American: a person who is a member of federally recognized Indian tribe.

(e) An American Woman.

(13) “Non-minority” means any person who does not meet the eligibility requirements of a minority person related to ethnicity, race or gender, permanent Florida residency or origins, even though such person has self-designated to be a member of a statutorily designated ethnic, racial or gender group.

(14) “Office of the Inspector General” – The District office which provides a central point for coordination of and responsibility for activities that promote accountability, integrity, and efficiency in government as referenced in Section 20.055(2), F.S.

(15) “Origins” means the minority owner's racial or cultural and geographic derivations, as substantiated by at least one grandparent's birth.

(16) “Permanent resident” means a resident whose true, fixed and permanent home and principal establishment is within the State of Florida, who has lived in the State of Florida for at least six (6) months out of the last twelve (12) months and who does not routinely and habitually establish occupancy in a personally owned, mortgaged or leased residence outside of Florida.

(17) “Program” means a blend of business initiatives, administered by the District, which include race, ethnic and gender neutral; and race, ethnic and gender specific provisions designed to:

(a) Increase diversity in District contracting and procurement; and

(b) Remedy disparity and the present effects of past marketplace discrimination.

(18) “Relevant Market Area” means the following Florida counties: Broward; Charlotte; Collier; Dade; Glades; Hendry; Highlands; Lee; Martin; Monroe; Okeechobee; Orange; Osceola; Palm Beach; Polk; St. Lucie; Alachua; Brevard; Duval; Hillsborough; Indian River; Leon; Pinellas; Seminole; and Volusia.

(19) “Responsible” means a firm is capable in all respects to fully perform the contract requirements and has the integrity and reliability, which will assure good faith performance.

(20) “Responsive” means a firm's bid or proposal conforms in all material respects to the invitation to bid or request for proposal and shall include compliance with MBE goals or good faith efforts.

(21) “A Small Business” – means an independently owned and operated business concern that employs 200 or fewer permanent full-time employees and that, together with its affiliates, has a net worth of not more than \$5 million, or any firm based in this state which has a Small Business Administration 8(a) Certification. As applicable to sole proprietorships, the \$5 million net worth requirement shall include both personal and business investments.

(22) “Sole proprietorship” means a business concern owned by one minority person.

(23) “Supplier” means a firm that sells goods and commodities.

(24) “Third-Party Development Assistance Provider” – means local, regional, state or federal agencies, institutions and business development organizations that provide technical, management, financial and other related assistance to small, minority-owned businesses.

Specific Authority 373.607 FS. Law Implemented 373.607 FS. History–New 9-25-96, Amended _____.

40E-7.623 Policy Review & Goal Setting Committee.

Specific Authority 373.607 FS. Law Implemented 373.607 FS. History–New 9-25-96, Repealed _____.

40E-7.628 Bid Incentive Program.

Specific Authority 373.607 FS. Law Implemented 373.607 FS. History–New 9-25-96, Repealed _____.

(Substantial rewording of Rule 40E-7.631 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.)

40E-7.631 Proposal Evaluations and MBE M/WBE Criteria.

(1) For contracts awarded based on evaluation criteria, there shall be a MBE participation criterion of 10% or 20% of the total points awarded.

(2) The proposer shall identify all certified MBE firms which will be utilized as subcontractors, and delineate for each the specific elements of work each MBE firm will be responsible for performing and the dollar value of the work as a percentage of the total contract value. All proposals with MBE participation shall contain documentation, signed by both the proposer and the selected MBE subcontractors which confirms their intent to establish a business relationship and confirms the MBE participation percent. All MBE's must submit proof of certification with the proposal.

(3) All MBEs must submit proof of certification with the proposal as described in Rule 40E-7.653, F.A.C.

(4) The percentage of MBE participation will be calculated by dividing the proposer's expenditures to a MBE subcontractor for providing direct labor or a bona fide service by the total project dollars as identified in the proposal.

(5) A proposer may count toward its MBE participation the fees or commissions charged for providing direct labor or a bona fide service, such as professional, technical, consultant or managerial services.

(6) For the purposes of this rule, the District will not count toward a proposer's MBE participation any portion or portions of the MBE subcontractor's work that is subcontracted back to:

(a) The proposer, either directly to, or through any other company or firm owned and/or controlled by the proposer, or

(b) Any non-MBE firm with which the MBE firm has a present business relationship. A present business relationship is defined as both firms having some of the same owners or the sharing of space, equipment, financing or employees.

(7) For the purposes of this rule, a MBE subcontractor shall not be allowed to subcontract all or a majority of the subcontractual portion of the work to another non-MBE firm or firms. A MBE subcontractor shall be prohibited from engaging in a subcontractual agreement with the intent of collecting a broker's fee or commission, and whose employees perform none of the direct labor or service activities specified in the contract.

(8) Participation by a MBE firm shall not be considered and the MBE firm shall be disqualified if the owner or owners of the MBE firm engages in an agreement with a non-MBE firm with the intent of securing employment with that non-MBE firm during the course of performing a District contract.

Specific Authority 287.055, 373.607 FS. Law Implemented 287.055, 373.607 FS. History--New 9-25-96, Amended _____.

40E-7.633 Sheltered Markets Program.

Specific Authority 287.055, 373.607 FS. Law Implemented 287.055, 373.607 FS. History--New 9-25-96, Repealed _____.

40E-7.635 Annual Long-Term and Project-Specific Goals.

Specific Authority 287.055, 373.607 FS. Law Implemented 287.055, 373.607 FS. History--New 9-25-96, Repealed _____.

(Substantial rewording of Rule 40E-7.637 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.)

40E-7.637 District Implementation.

The District shall make affirmative efforts to ensure all businesses have the maximum opportunity to participate in the District's contracting and procurement processes. The following are examples of affirmative efforts by the District:

(1) Establish an office with sufficient staff and the necessary authority and responsibility to implement the rules established under this Part.

(2) Identify all competitive contracting opportunities within the District budget.

(3) Include MBEs on contract solicitation lists or vendor lists.

(4) Monitor and maintain records sufficient for verification of steps taken and results achieved to maximize MBE participation.

(5) Evaluate the District's efforts to achieve MBE participation.

(6) When requested by an unsuccessful bidder, conduct debriefing sessions on awarded contracts to explain why bids/proposals may have been unsuccessful.

(7) Coordinate outreach with Procurement and contracting departments to offer instructions and clarify bid/proposal specifications, procurement policy, procedures, and general bidding requirements.

(8) Divide purchases and contracts into smaller units, areas, or quantities where feasible and likely to increase MBE participation without substantial adverse fiscal impact to the District.

(9) Ensure that bid/proposals, specifications, and plans are written so as not to unreasonably limit MBE participation.

(10) Maintain a database of MBEs and encourage MBEs to participate in training programs offered by the District and/or third party development assistance providers.

(11) Encourage the development of MBEs by using services and assistance provided by the Small Business Administration and other third party development assistance providers.

(12) Refer businesses to third party development assistance providers for bonding, financial and technical assistance.

(13) Promote the District's Program internally and externally, through the use of an annual marketing and outreach plan.

(14) Collect and maintain information and reports to provide guidance to the Governing Board and staff regarding MBE participation.

(15) Schedule pre-bid or pre-proposal meetings, where appropriate, to inform potential contractors of Program requirements and other bid/proposal requirements.

(16) Maintain a file of successful bid/proposal documents from past procurement and encourage MBEs to review and evaluate such documents.

(17) Provide instructions on job performance requirements.

(18) Provide information and assistance on continued certification procedures, subcontracting practices, and bonding requirements.

(19) Provide supplier diversity training to District staff.

(20) Review multi-year contracts, amendments, and change orders for opportunities to increase MBE participation.

(21) Continue to investigate race, ethnic, and gender-neutral provisions to lessen barriers for participation by any business wishing to do business with the District.

(22) Place notices of contract opportunities and bids at District service centers, in the Dodge report, MBE trade association newsletters, major local or regional newspapers, and minority- and woman-focused media.

(23) Plan and participate in vendor training seminars for the purpose of informing potential bidders/proposers/vendors of the District's Program and the business opportunities available.

(24) Serve as liaison with economic development organizations and agencies working in support of economic development in the minority community.

(25) Provide notices of bids/business proposals to facilitate the participation of MBEs.

(26) Create and disseminate MBE directories to contractors for use in identifying subcontractors and material suppliers.

(27) Consider reducing bonding and insurance requirements for smaller projects.

Specific Authority 373.607 FS. Law Implemented 373.607 FS. History—New 9-25-96, Amended _____.

40E-7.639 Emergency Waiver of Participation Goals.

Specific Authority 373.607 FS. Law Implemented 373.607 FS. History—New 9-25-96, Repealed _____.

(Substantial rewording of Rule 40E-7.645 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.)

40E-7.645 Compliance.

(1) The District shall monitor and evaluate Program performance and compliance. Failure to comply with the MBE requirements of an awarded contract shall result in suspension or debarment of the firms or individuals involved.

(2) Suspension or debarment of firms for activity contrary to the Program, and the appeal process, shall be carried out pursuant to Rule 40E-7.664, F.A.C.

(3) Each District contract awarded with points provided for MBE participation shall contain a provision incorporating the rules under this Part by reference and a statement that failure to comply with any of the requirements by a contractor shall be considered a breach of contract.

(4) Each District contract shall contain a provision requiring the contractor, during the term of the contract, to comply with, as to tasks and proportionate dollar amounts throughout the term of the contract, all plans made in their proposal for use of MBEs.

(5) Each District contract shall contain a provision requiring maintenance of records, and information necessary to document compliance with the rules under this Part and shall include the right of the District to inspect such records.

(6) Each District contract shall contain a provision prohibiting any agreements between a contractor and a MBE in which the MBE promises not to provide subcontracting quotations to other bidders or potential bidders.

(7) The District shall ensure program compliance by a contractor or its participating subcontractors through contract provisions. Contractor compliance provisions include:

(a) Withholding from the contractor ten percent (10%) of all future payments, exclusive of any retainage, under the contract until it is determined that the contractor is in compliance;

(b) Withholding from the contractor all future payments under the contract until it is determined that the contractor is in compliance;

(c) Refusal of all future bids or offers submitted to the District by the Contractor for a period of three (3) years;

(d) Initiation of decertification action;

(e) Cancellation of the eligible project/contract for cause.

(8) Any individual who falsely represents any entity as a MBE or does not fulfill the contractual obligations is subject to the penalties under Section 287.094, F.S. To ensure that all obligations under contracts awarded to a MBE are met, the contractor's MBE efforts throughout the performance of the contract shall be reviewed. The contractor shall advise the District of any situation in which regularly scheduled progress payments are not made to MBE subcontractors.

(9)(a) After the date of contract execution, prime contractors shall make good faith efforts to maintain the level of MBE participation established in the contract by substituting a non-complying MBE subcontractor with another MBE subcontractor.

(b) Prime contractors must notify the District when the need to replace a MBE subcontractor arises.

(10) The District will not transact business with any vendor placed on the discriminatory vendor list maintained by the Department of Management Services pursuant to section 287.134, Florida Statutes.

Specific Authority 373.607 FS. Law Implemented 373.607 FS. History—New 9-25-96, Amended _____.

40E-7.647 Good Faith Efforts.

Specific Authority 373.607 FS. Law Implemented 373.607 FS. History--New 9-25-96, Repealed _____.

(Substantial rewording of Rule 40E-7.651 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.)

40E-7.651 Reciprocal Certification.

(1) Reciprocal certification shall be granted to applicant businesses which have been certified by other jurisdictions and meet the District certification standards. An applicant business shall provide an affidavit attesting that the applicant business has sought to do business within the District's relevant market area prior to the time a bid or proposal is submitted.

(2) An applicant business is not eligible for reciprocal certification if the business exceeds a net worth of \$5 million. As applicable to sole proprietorships, the \$5 million net worth requirement shall include both personal and business investments.

(3) Eligibility for reciprocal certification shall be contingent upon (1) an agreement between the District and another certifying jurisdiction within the State of Florida, and (2) any additional requirements, pursuant to this Rule. The applicant businesses seeking reciprocal certification must submit to the District a copy of the current certification from the certifying jurisdiction and a copy of the completed application submitted to the certifying jurisdiction along with affidavits of continued eligibility.

Specific Authority 373.607 FS. Law Implemented 373.607 FS. History--New 9-25-96, Amended _____.

(Substantial rewording of Rule 40E-7.653 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.)

40E-7.653 Certification Eligibility.

(1) The District shall have the authority to accept, review, approve and or deny applications for MBE certification. The District shall also have the authority to decertify, suspend and/or debar firms pursuant to Rule 40E-7.664, F.A.C.

(2) Applicant businesses shall submit applications for MBE certification using Form No. 0964, "Application for Certification", which is hereby incorporated by reference and which can be obtained from the District upon request. Mailing addresses must include the number, name of the street, suite number, if any, and correct zip code. A post office box will not be acceptable absent a street address. An applicant business shall provide an affidavit attesting that the applicant business has sought to do business within the District's relevant market area prior to the time a bid or proposal is submitted.

(3) An applicant business must satisfy subsection (4) below in order to be considered 51% owned by minority persons. The ownership exercised by minority persons shall be real, substantial, and continuing, and shall go beyond mere pro forma ownership of the firm as reflected in its ownership

documents. In its' analysis, the District may also consider the transferal of ownership percentages with no exchange of capital at fair market value.

(4) If the applicant business was obtained by transfer, the minority person on whom eligibility is based must own 51% of the applicant firm for a minimum of two (2) years, when any previous majority ownership interest in the firm was by a non-minority who is or was a relative, former employer, or current employer of the minority person on whom eligibility is based. This requirement shall not apply to minority persons who are otherwise eligible who take a 51% or greater interest in a firm that requires professional licensure to operate and who will be the qualifying licensure for the firm when certified. A transfer made within a related immediate family group from a nonminority person to a minority person in order to establish ownership by a minority person shall be deemed to have been made solely for purposes of satisfying certification criteria and shall render such ownership invalid for purposes of qualifying for such certification if the combined total net asset value of all members of such family group exceeds \$1 million. For purposes of this subparagraph, the term "related immediate family group" means one or more children under 16 years of age and a parent of such children or the spouse of such parent residing in the same house or living unit.

(a) The applicant business must satisfy either subparagraphs 1., 2., or 3. below:

1. In a corporate form of organization, the minority shareholders of the corporation must own at least 51% of all issued stock. Minority shareholders who own at least 51% of each and every class of stock will be presumed to have satisfied the conditions of this rule. Where the minority shareholders do not own at least 51% of each class of stock, the applicant shall establish that the aggregate of all stock owned by minority shareholders is equal to at least 51% of all issued shares. The applicant may establish that the aggregate of all stock owned by minority shareholders is equal to at least 51% of all issued shares by:

a. Using the par value of the stock, but only where each class of stock has a par value;

b. Using the fair market value of each class of stock;

c. Showing the numerical ratio of stock ownership where all shares, regardless of class, have the same par value or fair market value; or

2. In a partnership form of organization, the minority partners must own at least 51% of the partnership, or

3. In any other form of organization, the minority owners must own at least 51% of the business interest of the organization, including, but not limited to 51% of the ownership of assets, dividends, and intangible assets such as copyrights and patents.

(b) The minority owners must demonstrate that they share income, earnings and any other benefits from the business concern which are accorded to any other owner. The minority

owners' share of income, earnings and benefits shall be commensurate with the percentage of their ownership in the business concern, including salaries, draws, bonuses, commissions, insurance coverage, proceeds from business investments and properties, and profit-sharing.

(c) The minority owners must demonstrate that they share in all the risks assumed by the business firm. Such sharing of business risks shall be demonstrated through the minority owners' primary role in decision-making, and negotiation and execution of related transaction documents either as individuals or as officers of the business. The minority owners' sharing in business risks shall be commensurate with their percentage of ownership, including start-up costs and contributions, acquisition of additional ownership interests, third-party agreements, and bonding applications. Start-up contributions may be space, cash, equipment, real estate, inventory or services estimated at fair market value. All contributions of capital by the minority owners must be real and substantial. The following are presumed not to be real and substantial capital contributions:

1. Promises to contribute capital;
2. Notes payable to the applicant business;
3. Notes payable to the non-minority owners or to the non-minority family members of any owner; and
4. Past services rendered by the minority person as an employee, rather than as a decision-maker.

(d) The business firm cannot at any time enter into any agreement, option, scheme, or create any rights of conversion, which, when exercised, would result in less than 51% minority ownership or in the loss of the minority owners' control of the business firm.

(5) An applicant must establish that the minority owner seeking certification be the license holder, qualifying agent, and/or the professional license holder and possess the authority to control and exercise dominant control over the management and daily operations of the business.

(a) The discretion of the minority owners shall not be subject to any formal or informal restrictions (including, but not limited to, by-law provisions, purchase agreements, employment agreements, partnership agreements, trust agreements or voting rights, whether cumulative or otherwise), which would vary or usurp managerial discretion customary in the industry.

(b) The minority owners must exercise sufficient management and technical responsibilities and capabilities to maintain control of the business. If the owners of the business who are not minority persons are disproportionately responsible for the operations of the business, then the business shall not be considered to be controlled by minority owners.

(c) The control exercised by the minority owners shall be real, substantial and continuing. In instances where the applicant business is found to be a family-operated business, with duties, responsibilities and decision-making occurring

either jointly or mutually among owners and principals, or severally along managerial and operational lines between minority owners and non-minority owners or principals, the minority owners shall not be considered as controlling the business. Where the minority owners substantiate that the assumption of duties is not based on their lack of knowledge or capability to independently make decisions regarding the business' management and day-to-day operations, the minority owners' control may not be affected. The minority owners shall establish that they have dominant responsibility for the management and daily operations of the business as follows:

1. The minority owners shall control the purchase of goods, equipment, business inventory and services needed in the day-to-day operation of the business. The minority owners' control of purchasing shall be evidence of their knowledge of products, brands, manufacturers, types of equipment and products and their uses, etc., rather than merely reflective of the minority owners' ministerial execution of the ordering/acquisition of goods.

2. The minority owners shall control the hiring, firing and supervision of all employees, and the setting of employment policies, wages, benefits and other employment conditions. In instances where minority owners have delegated the hiring and firing of employees, the minority owners shall demonstrate that their knowledge and capability is sufficient to evaluate the employees' performance in the given industry.

3. The minority owners shall have knowledge and control of all financial affairs of the business. The ability of any non-minority owner or employee to sign checks and enter into financial transactions on behalf of the business shall be considered in determining financial control. The minority owners shall expressly control the investments, loans to/from stockholders, bonding, payment of general business loans, payroll and establishment of lines of credit.

4. The minority owners shall have managerial and technical capability, knowledge, training, education and experience required to make decisions regarding that particular type of work. In determining the applicant business' eligibility, the District will review the prior employment and educational requirements for the given industry, the previous and existing managerial relationship between and among all owners, especially those who are familiarly related, and the timing and purpose of management changes. If the minority owners have delegated management and technical responsibility to others, the minority owners must substantiate that they have caused the direction of the management of the business and each phase of the technical operations of the business through their demonstrable knowledge of and capability in the delegated areas.

5. The minority owners shall display independence and initiative in seeking and negotiating contracts, accepting and rejecting bids and in conducting all major aspects of the business in regard to any and all bidding and contracting. In

instances where the minority owners do not directly seek or negotiate contracts, prepare estimates, or coordinate with contracting officials, but claim to approve or reject bids and contractual agreements, the minority owners shall demonstrate that they have the knowledge and expertise to independently make contractual decisions.

6. The minority owners shall substantiate personal direction and actual involvement with all major aspects of the applicant business. The major aspects shall be defined as those tasks essential to accomplish all objectives and operations related to those services or commodities for which the applicant business requests certification.

(6) To establish that it is a small minority business concern, the applicant shall:

(a) Demonstrate that it is an independently owned and operated business concern. In assessing business independence, the District shall consider all relevant factors, including the date the firm was established, the adequacy of its resources, and the degree to which financial, managerial and/or operational relationships exist with other persons and/or business concerns. For purposes of this rule, the District's consideration of such financial relationships, managerial and/or operational relationships shall not be affected by arrangements made out of necessity or due to the business' inability to secure traditional capitalization through banks, lending institutions or others.

(b) Demonstrate that it is not an affiliate of a non-minority business nor share (on an individual or combined basis) common ownership, directors, management, employees, facilities, inventory, financial resources and expenses, equipment or business operations with a non-minority person and/or business concern which is in the same or an associated field of operation.

(c) To establish that it is a small business concern, the applicant shall demonstrate that the net worth of the business concern, together with its affiliates, does not exceed five (5) million dollars and an average net worth after federal income taxes, excluding any carryover losses, for the preceding two years of not more than two (2) million dollars. In determining the net worth of the business and its affiliates, the District shall consider the most recent annual financial statements for the business and the business owner. If no annual financial statement is available, the applicant shall submit a financial statement for any quarter during the previous six (6) months. In determining the business' income, the District shall consider the two most recent financial statements for the business and/or the most recent federal income tax returns.

(d) To establish that it is a small business concern, the applicant shall provide documentation to demonstrate that it employs two-hundred (200) or fewer permanent, full-time employees. The number of permanent, full-time employees shall be determined by adding the number of employees the applicant acknowledges to be permanent, full-time employees

to the number of permanent positions the applicant needs in order to carry out its business based upon the quantity of work performed and the annual gross receipts of the business concern. In determining whether the applicant meets the criteria for a small business, the District shall consider such documentation as:

1. Personnel records.
2. Florida Quarterly Unemployment Reports.
3. Annual Federal Unemployment Report.
4. Payroll ledgers.
5. Employee leasing agreement.

(e) The applicant must demonstrate that it is domiciled in Florida. In determining whether the applicant is domiciled in Florida, the District shall consider such documentation as:

1. Articles of Incorporation.
2. Partnership Agreement.
3. Certification required to be filed pursuant to Section 620.108, Florida Statutes.
4. Business licenses.

(7) The applicant business must demonstrate that it is at least 51% owned by minority persons who are permanent residents of Florida.

(8) The applicant business must provide evidence of the minority/women status of owners who are claiming to be minority persons, as follows:

(a) Demonstrate that the applicant business owners' ethnicity qualifies them as an eligible person pursuant to Rule 40E-7.621(8), F.A.C. In determining the ethnicity of a person, the District shall consider any of the following:

1. Birth certificate.
2. Passport.
3. Citizenship papers.
4. Drivers license.
5. Voter registration card.
6. Death certificate.
7. Membership in a federally recognized Indian tribe.
8. Tribal registration.

9. Any other documentation that tends to substantiate the person's claim of minority status.

(b) Demonstrate that the applicant business owners' gender qualifies them as an eligible person pursuant to Rule 40E-7.621(19), F.A.C. In determining the gender of a person, the District shall consider any of the following:

1. Birth certificate.
2. Passport.
3. Citizenship papers.
4. Drivers license.
5. Any other documentation that tends to substantiate the person's claim of minority status.

(c) Demonstrate that the applicant business owners' origin qualifies them as an eligible person pursuant to Rule 40E-7.621(8), F.A.C. When determining a person's origins, the District shall accept any of the following documentation in order to clearly establish a direct line of descent:

1. Marriage licenses.
2. Divorce decrees.
3. Adoption papers, to show the adopted person's original, not adopted, origins.
4. Court orders which have the effect of changing a person's name.
5. An Affidavit, except that of an official of the federal government, a state government or a municipality.
6. A "family tree" or "family chart".

(9) The applicant business shall establish that it is currently performing or seeking to perform a useful business function in each specialty area requested by the applicant. The applicant business is considered to be performing a useful business function when it is responsible for the execution of a distinct element of the work of a contract and carrying out its responsibilities in actually performing, managing and supervising the work involved. The useful business function of an applicant business shall be determined in reference to the products or services for which the applicant business requested certification. When the applicant business is required by law to hold a license, other than an occupational license, in order to undertake its business activity, the applicant business shall not be considered to be performing a useful business function unless it has the required license(s).

(a) In determining if an applicant business is acting as a regular dealer and that it is not acting as a conduit to transfer funds to a non-minority business, the District shall consider the applicant business' role as agent or negotiator between buyer and seller or contractor. Though an applicant business may sell products through a variety of means, the District shall consider the customary and usual method by which the majority of sales are made in its analysis of the applicability of the regular dealer requirements. Sales shall be made regularly from stock on a recurring basis constituting the usual operations of the applicant business. The proportions of sales from stock and the amount of stock to be maintained by the applicant business in order to satisfy the requirements of this rule will depend on the business' gross receipts, the types of commodities sold, and the nature of the business' operation. The stock maintained shall be a true inventory from which sales are made, rather than be a stock of sample, display, or surplus goods remaining from prior orders or by a stock maintained primarily for the purpose of token compliance with this rule. Consideration shall be given to the applicant's provision of dispensable services or pass-through operations which do not add economic value, except where characterized as common industry practice or customary marketing procedures for a given product. An applicant business acting as broker or packager shall not be

regarded as a regular dealer absent a showing that brokering or packaging is the normal practice in the applicant business' industry. Manufacturer's representatives, sales representatives and non-stocking distributors shall not be considered regular dealers for purposes of the rules under this Part.

(b) Documentation to substantiate a useful business function may include but not be limited to the following:

1. Executed purchase orders.
2. Paid invoices.
3. Executed contracts.

Specific Authority 373.607 FS. Law Implemented 373.607 FS. History--New 9-25-96, Amended 6-16-98,_____.

(Substantial rewording of Rule 40E-7.655 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.)

40E-7.655 Certification Review Procedures.

(1) Upon receipt, all applications for MBE certification shall be given an initial screening to ensure appropriate signature and completeness. The application must bear the original signature of the minority owner who is submitting the application for review. If the application is submitted by means of a facsimile machine, the signature page of the application, with the original signature of the minority owner, must be submitted to the District within thirty (30) days of facsimile submission.

(2) Within sixty (60) days following initial receipt of the application, the District will request the applicant business to furnish omitted items or additional information. If all requested information or items are not received by the District within thirty (30) days from the date of the request, the District will deny the applicant business certification as a MBE.

(3) The on-site verification review may be conducted by the District upon receipt of the completed application. Failure to cooperate with the scheduling of the on-site review or during the on-site review shall result in the denial of the application.

(4) Applicants determined eligible shall receive a certification letter stating the length of time for which the business has been certified, the specialty areas of the business, the minority status categories in which the business is certified, and the business' responsibilities set out in Section 287.0943(1) & (2), F.S. Once certified, an applicant shall remain certified for a period of one (1) year unless otherwise revoked for cause. The District retains the right to reevaluate the certification of any business at any time.

(5) Applicants determined ineligible shall receive a letter stating the basis for the denial of certification and citing applicable rules and shall not be eligible to submit new applications until 180 days after the date of the notice of denial of certification or the District's final agency order denying certification.

Specific Authority 120.53, 120.54(1), 120.60(2), 373.607 FS. Law Implemented 120.53, 120.54(1), 120.60(2), 373.607 FS. History--New 9-25-97, Amended _____.

(Substantial rewording of Rule 40E-7.659 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.)

40E-7.659 Graduation from MBE M/WBE Program.

(1) Participation in the District's Program will be dependent upon the MBE's need for the affirmative procurement initiatives extended to MBE's under this Part. The MBE shall be graduated and shall not be eligible for continued participation in the affirmative procurement initiatives contained in the rules under this Part as a prime contractor if the business exceeds a net worth of \$5 million. As applicable to sole proprietorships, the \$5 million net worth requirement shall include both personal and business investments.

(2) A MBE which is considered graduated under this section shall be counted towards prime contractor's goal attainment when utilized as a subcontractor or joint venture partner.

Specific Authority 373.607 FS. Law Implemented 373.607 FS. History--New 9-25-96, Amended _____.

(Substantial rewording of Rule 40E-7.661 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.)

40E-7.661 Recertification Review Procedures.

(1) Applications for recertification shall be submitted using Form No. 0958, "Application for Recertification", which is hereby incorporated by reference and available from the District upon request.

(2) The District will notify MBEs no later than sixty (60) days before the end of the certification period. If the minority owner is unable to use the recertification affidavit because changes in the applicant's business have occurred, the minority owner shall notify the District in writing. Recertification requests must be filed in the District no later than the last effective date of the current certification period. Recertification requests received by the District after the expiration of the certification period shall be given a ten (10) day grace period. Recertification requests received by the District after the ten (10) day grace period will not be processed for a period of 90 days.

(3) Upon receipt, all recertification requests shall be given an initial screening to ensure appropriate signature and completeness. Within sixty (60) days following initial receipt of the applicant's recertification request, the District will request the applicant to furnish omitted or additional information. If the requested information or items are not received by the District within thirty (30) days from the date of the request, the District will deny the applicant recertification as a MBE.

(4) The on-site verification review may be conducted by the District upon receipt and review of the recertification request. Failure to cooperate with the scheduling of the on-site review or during the on-site review shall result in the denial of recertification.

(5) Recertification shall be granted when the applicant has complied with this rule and substantiates eligibility for MBE status.

(6) Applicants deemed eligible shall receive a recertification letter stating the length of time for which the business has been certified, the specialty areas of the business, and the minority status categories in which the business is certified. Once recertified, an applicant shall remain certified for a period of one (1) year unless otherwise revoked for cause. The District retains the right to reevaluate the certification of any business at any time.

(7) Applicants determined ineligible shall receive a letter stating the basis for the denial of recertification and shall not be eligible to submit a new application for 180 days after the date of the notice of denial of recertification or the District's final agency order denying recertification.

(8) If an application for recertification is timely submitted, a MBE shall remain certified until the District has made a determination concerning eligibility.

(9) Applicant businesses failing to submit the District recertification application as required by Subsection (1) of this section, shall not be considered certified immediately subsequent to the anniversary date of the last certification. Applicant businesses shall receive written notification of the expiration of prior certification.

Specific Authority 373.607 FS. Law Implemented 373.607 FS. History--New 9-25-96, Amended _____.

(Substantial rewording of Rule 40E-7.664 follows. See Florida Administrative Code for present text.)

40E-7.664 Suspension, Debarment, Revocation or Decertification.

(1) Prior to suspending, debarring, revoking or decertifying a firm from the Program, the District shall inform the firm in writing by certified mail, return receipt requested, of the facts or conduct which warrant such action.

(2) Facts or conduct that could warrant suspension, decertification, or debarment include but are not limited to:

(a) Failure to meet qualifying criteria.

(b) Fraud, deceit, or misrepresentation for the purpose of obtaining MBE status.

(c) Refusal to permit on-site inspections.

(d) Failure to report changes in the status or activities of the business entity or its minority ownership which affects the MBE's eligibility for certification.

(3) The written notice issued by the District shall contain:

(a) The statutory provision(s) or rule(s) of the Florida Administrative Code which is alleged to have been violated;

(b) The specific facts or conduct relied upon to justify the suspension, debarment, revocation or decertification; and

PLACE: Stuart City Hall, Commission Chambers, 121 Flagler Avenue, Stuart, FL 34994

A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP FOR THE ST. LUCIE RIVER & ESTUARY WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 1:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m., April 26, 2001

PLACE: Stuart City Hall, Commission Chambers, 121 Flagler Avenue, Stuart, FL 34994

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: For technical issues contact, Scott Burns (internet: sburns@sfwmd.), or Cecile Ross (internet: cross@sfwmd.gov) at South Florida Water Management District, Post Office Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680, telephone 1(800)432-2045. For procedural issues contact: Julie Jennison, South Florida Water Management District, Post Office Box 24680, West Palm Beach, FL 33416-4680, telephone 1(800)432-2045, Extension 6294 or (561)682-6294 (internet: jjenniso@sfwmd.gov).

Although Governing Board meetings, hearings and workshops are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which any appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities or handicaps who need assistance may contact Tony Burns, District Clerk, (561)682-6206, at least two business days in advance to make appropriate arrangements.

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS NOT AVAILABLE.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION

Medicaid

RULE TITLE: Independent Laboratory Services

RULE NO.: 59G-4.190

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule amendment is to incorporate by reference the Florida Medicaid Independent Laboratory Services Coverage and Limitations Handbook, April 2001. The handbook changes include the January 2001 Independent Laboratory Services Fee Schedule, and a revision of the technical and professional components of laboratory services. The effect will be to incorporate by reference in the rule the current Florida Medicaid Independent Laboratory Services Coverage and Limitations Handbook.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Independent Laboratory Services.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 409.919 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 409.905, 409.908, 409.9081 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING BY AN AFFECTED PERSON AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW.

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., April 23, 2001

PLACE: Agency for Health Care Administration, 2728 Ft. Knox Boulevard, Building 3, Conference Room E, Tallahassee, Florida 32308

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Susan Rinaldi, Medicaid Program Development, P. O. Box 12600, Tallahassee, Florida 32317-2600, (850)922-7308

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

59G-4.190 Independent Laboratory Services.

(1) No change.

(2) All independent laboratory providers enrolled in the Medicaid program must comply with the provisions of the Florida Medicaid Independent Laboratory Coverage and Limitations Handbook, April 2001 ~~April 2000~~, incorporated by reference, and the Florida Medicaid Provider Reimbursement Handbook, HCFA-1500 and Child Health Check-Up 221, which is incorporated by reference in Chapter 59G-5.020, F.A.C. Both handbooks are available from the Medicaid fiscal agent.

Specific Authority 409.919 FS. Law Implemented 409.905(7), 409.908, 409.9081, ~~409.913~~ FS. History—New 1-1-77, Amended 10-11-81, Formerly 10C-7.41, Amended 6-30-92, Formerly 10C-7.041, Amended 9-28-94, 1-9-96, 10-20-96, 9-14-97, 3-22-00, _____.

AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION

Medicaid

RULE TITLE: Portable X-ray Services

RULE NO.: 59G-4.240

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this rule amendment is to incorporate by reference the Florida Medicaid Portable X-ray Services Coverage and Limitations Handbook, April 2001. The handbook changes include the January 2001 Portable X-ray Services Fee Schedule, clarification of the professional and technical components of portable x-ray services and a revision of the components of a request for portable x-ray services. The effect will be to incorporate by reference in the rule the current Florida Medicaid Portable X-ray Services Coverage and Limitations Handbook.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Portable X-ray Services.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 409.919 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 409.905(10), 409.908, 409.9081 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING BY AN AFFECTED PERSON AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW.

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., April 23, 2001

PLACE: Agency for Health Care Administration, 2728 Ft. Knox Boulevard, Building 3, Conference Room E, Tallahassee, Florida 32308

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS: Susan Rinaldi, Medicaid Program Development, P. O. Box 12600, Tallahassee, Florida 32317-2600, (850)922-7308

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

59G-4.240 Portable X-ray Services.

(1) No change.

(2) All portable x-ray providers enrolled in the Medicaid program must comply with the provisions of the Florida Medicaid Portable X-ray Services Coverage and Limitations Handbook, April 2001 ~~April 1999~~, incorporated by reference, and the Florida Medicaid Provider Reimbursement Handbook, HCFA-1500 and Child Health Check-Up, which is incorporated by reference in Chapter 59G-5.020, F.A.C. Both handbooks are available from the Medicaid fiscal agent.

Specific Authority 409.919 FS. Law Implemented 409.905(10), 409.908, 409.9081, 409.913 FS. History—New 10-11-81, Formerly 10C-7.411, Amended 7-1-92, Formerly 10C-7.0411, Amended 5-16-94, 1-9-96, 10-20-96, 8-27-97, 3-22-00, _____.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Family Safety and Preservation

RULE TITLES: Definitions 65C-27.001
Timeframes 65C-27.002

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: These rules are to clarify timeframes in subsection 39.407(5), F.S. The timeframes apply to all qualified evaluators that provide initial suitability assessments for children that are referred for residential treatment placement. They also apply to the 3-month independent reviews for children in residential treatment.

SUBJECT AREA TO BE ADDRESSED: Dependent Children.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 39.407(5)(i) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 39.407(5) FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING AND NOT DEEMED UNNECESSARY BY THE AGENCY HEAD, A RULE DEVELOPMENT WORKSHOP WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., April 20, 2001

PLACE: 1317 Winewood Blvd., Building 8, Room 232, Tallahassee, FL 32399

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT AND A COPY OF THE PRELIMINARY DRAFT IS: Darcy Abbott, Supervisor, 1317 Winewood Blvd., Building 8, Room 204, Tallahassee, FL 32399 or by calling (850)488-4062

THE PRELIMINARY TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT IS:

65C-27.001 Definitions.

(1) “Qualified Evaluator” means a psychiatrist or psychologist licensed in Florida who has at least 3 years of experience in the diagnosis and treatment of serious emotional disturbances in children and adolescents and who has no actual or perceived conflict of interest with any inpatient facility or residential treatment center or program.

(2) “Suitability Assessment” means assessment by a qualified evaluator that includes a personal examination and assessment of the child that includes written findings.

(3) “3-Month Independent Review” means assessment by a qualified evaluator that includes a personal examination and assessment of the child in residential treatment. The assessment includes evaluation of the child’s progress toward achieving the goals and objectives of the treatment plan, which must be submitted to the court.

Specific Authority 39.407(5)(i) FS. Law Implemented 39.407(5) FS. History—New _____.

65C-27.002 Timeframes.

(1) When the department believes that a child is in need of an initial suitability assessment for residential treatment, a request must be made to the Agency for Health Care Administration contract provider that coordinates the qualified evaluator registry.

(2) The Agency for Health Care Administration contracted provider shall refer the initial suitability assessment request to a registered qualified evaluator.

(3) The Agency for Health Care Administration contracted provider has 12 working days to coordinate an initial suitability assessment with the qualified evaluator and submit the completed assessment back to the Agency for Health Care Administration, the Department of Children and Families and the child’s guardian ad litem.

(4) For all children in the custody of the department that are residing in residential treatment, a 3 month independent review must be conducted at least every 90 days after the child’s initial placement. It is the department’s responsibility to notify the Agency for Health Care Administration contracted provider no later than the 70th day of the child’s placement in residential treatment to request a 3 month independent review. The Agency for Health Care Administration contracted provider must contact a qualified evaluator to perform the 3 month independent review and must submit the completed independent review to the Agency for Health Care Administration, the department and court at least 6 days prior to the 90th day in residential treatment. The 3-month independent review process must continue every 90 days for as long as the child resides in residential treatment.

Specific Authority 39.407(5)(i) FS. Law Implemented 39.407(5) FS. History--
New _____.

Section II
Proposed Rules

DEPARTMENT OF BANKING AND FINANCE

Division of Securities and Finance

RULE TITLES: RULE NOS.:

Registration of Issuer/Dealers, Principals
and Branch Offices 3E-600.004

Termination of Registration as Dealer,
Investment Adviser, Branch Office,
Principal or Agent 3E-600.008

Registration Renewals 3E-600.009

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Section 517.12(6), F.S., authorizes the Department to adopt rules establishing procedures for depositing fees and filing documents by electronic means. The purpose of the proposed changes is to provide for electronic filing of certain information or forms and to allow the electronic payment of registration renewal fees through the Department's website.

SUMMARY: The proposed change to Rule 3E-600.004, F.A.C., will allow a dealer or investment adviser registered with the Department to amend the branch office registration information electronically or by submitting a written request in lieu of filing Form DA-1-91. The proposed changes to Rule 3E-600.008, F.A.C., will allow electronic filing for withdrawals, cancellations, or terminations of registrations for branch offices and to authorize a registrant to terminate a branch office registration by submitting the request in writing in lieu of filing Form DA-1-91. The proposed change to Rule 3E-600.009, F.A.C., will allow non-NASD member firms, associated persons of non-NASD member firms and branch offices to electronically pay registration renewal fees through the Department's website.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: No statement of estimated regulatory cost has been prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 517.03(1), 517.12(6),(15) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 517.12, 517.161(5) FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 10:00 a.m., April 30, 2001

PLACE: Room 664, Fletcher Building, 101 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Rick White, Financial Administrator, Division of Securities and Finance, 101 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0350, (850)410-9805

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

3E-600.004 Registration of Issuer/Dealers, Principals and Branch Offices.

(1) An issuer required to be registered or who elects to be registered pursuant to Sections 517.12(1), 517.051(9), or 517.061(11), ~~F.S. Florida Statutes~~, selling its own securities exclusively through its principals or agents (as those terms are defined ~~in~~ under Section 517.021, ~~F.S. Florida Statutes~~, and Rule 3E-200.001, F.A.C., respectively) may obtain registration as an issuer/dealer by filing as required under Rules 3E-600.001(1), 3E-400.002, or 3E-500.011, F.A.C., as appropriate, provided that:

(a) The associated persons of said issuer/dealer comply with the registration requirements of Section 517.12, F.S., and Rules 3E-600.005 and 3E-600.006, F.A.C., ~~thereunder~~, provided that such person primarily performs, or is intended to perform at the end of the distribution, substantial duties for, or on behalf of, the issuer other than in connection with transactions in securities;

(b) Said issuer/dealer may register up to five (5) associated persons, which persons will be exempted from the examination requirements of Rule 3E-600.005(2), F.A.C., provided such issuer/dealer shall register no more than five (5) associated persons, and at the time of application for registration advises the Department of his intention to register no more than five (5) associated persons. Failure to so advise the Department will require all associated person applicants to fulfill the examination requirements of Rule 3E-600.005(2), F.A.C. Registration of more than five (5) such associated persons, at any one time, will void this exemption, and all such associated persons will be required to meet the examination requirements of Rule 3E-600.005(2), F.A.C.

(2) No change.

(3)(a) through (b) No change.

(c) If the information contained in any branch office registration form becomes inaccurate or incomplete for any reason before or after the branch office becomes registered, including changing the location of the branch office or the supervisory personnel thereof, the dealer or investment adviser shall amend the information by filing a complete and originally executed Form DA-1-91 (Revised 11-91) with the Department within thirty (30) days of the change and denoting thereon that the information reported is an amendment to a previous filing. In lieu of filing Form DA-1-91, a registrant may amend the branch office registration information electronically at the time of renewal by following the applicable instructions on the Department's website (www.dbf.state.fl.us) on the Internet. Also, a registrant may change the address or terminate a branch

office location by submission of the request in writing to the Department in lieu of filing Form DA-1-91. Failure to file any amendment or written notification, as provided herein, shall be considered a violation of Section 517.12(13), F.S. Florida Statutes.

(d) No change.

Specific Authority 517.03(1), 517.12(6) FS. Law Implemented 517.12(5), (6),(10) FS. History--New 12-5-79, Amended 9-20-82, Formerly 3E-600.04, Amended 10-14-90, 6-16-92, 1-11-93, 11-7-93, 11-14-93, 12-29-96, 10-20-97, 6-10-99, 8-19-99, _____.

3E-600.008 Termination of Registration as Dealer, Investment Adviser, Branch Office, Principal or Agent.

(1) through (2) No change.

(3) Any withdrawals, cancellations, or terminations of registrations for branch offices shall be filed directly with the Department as prescribed in Rule 3E-600.004(3)(c), F.A.C. on the forms prescribed by the Department.

(4) The Department may deny any request to terminate or withdraw any application or registration as provided under Section 517.161(5), F.S. Florida Statutes.

(5) through (6) No change.

Specific Authority 517.03(1) FS. Law Implemented 517.12(12)(b), 517.161(5) FS. History--New 12-5-79, Amended 9-20-82, Formerly 3E-600.08, Amended 7-29-90, 8-1-91, 6-16-92, 1-11-93, 6-22-98, 6-10-99, 5-10-00, _____.

3E-600.009 Registration Renewals.

(1) No change.

(2) In addition to verifying registration with the Department as provided in subsection (1), to renew its registration and that of its branch offices and associated persons, each dealer and investment adviser shall pay all renewal fees as required by Section 517.12(11), F.S. Renewal fees for non-NASD member firms, associated persons of non-NASD member firms and all branch offices shall be sent directly to the Department or may be paid electronically by following the applicable instructions on the Department's website (www.dbf.state.fl.us) on the Internet. The Department shall deem a fee received as payment at such time as it has been date stamped by the cashier's office of the Department of Banking and Finance or the date the renewal process has been completed on the Department's website. All renewal fees for NASD member firms and for associated persons of NASD member firms shall be submitted through the CRD. All renewal fees must be received by the Department or the CRD by the last business day prior to January 1 of the year following the year the registration expires.

(3) Failure to submit the requisite amount of fees to the Department or to the NASD as appropriate and as provided for in subsection (2) of this Rule by December 31 of the year of expiration of the registration shall result in such registration not being renewed. If December 31 falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday pursuant to Section 110.117, F.S., the renewals received on the next business day will be considered timely received. However, an expired registration may be reinstated in

accordance with the provisions of Section 517.12(11), F.S., provided that all requisite information and fees are filed with the Department on or before January 31 of the year following the year of expiration. Failure to submit the requisite amount of fees necessary to reinstate registration by January 31 of the year following the year of expiration shall result in such registration not being reinstated. If January 31 falls on a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday pursuant to Section 110.117, F.S., the reinstatement received on the next business day will be considered timely received. In the event that the renewal or reinstatement is withdrawn or not granted, any fees filed to renew or reinstate registration shall become the revenue of the state pursuant to Section 517.12(10), F.S. Florida Statutes, and shall not be returnable.

Specific Authority 517.03(1), 517.12(6),(15)) FS. Law Implemented 517.12(6),(10),(11),(15)) FS. History--New 12-5-79, Amended 9-20-82, 8-29-83, Formerly 3E-600.09, Amended 1-7-88, 6-16-92, 11-14-93, 2-5-01, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Rick White, Financial Administrator, Division of Securities and Finance

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Don B. Saxon, Director, Division of Securities and Finance

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: March 1, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: March 23, 2001

DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE

RULE TITLE: RULE NO.:

Private Passenger Motor Vehicle Insurance; 4-167.002
 Completion of Underwriting Notice of
 Incorrect Premium, Return of
 Unearned Premium

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The purpose of the proposed action is to amend the procedure for notifying insureds of additional premium and the options related thereto and for the return of unearned premium.

SUMMARY: The rule clarifies procedures for return of premium for private passenger motor vehicle insurance policies.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 624.3081(1) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 624.307(1), 626.9541(1)(o)3.a., 627.420, 627.421, 627.728, 627.7282 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., Wednesday, May 2, 2001
PLACE: Room 116, Larson Building, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Steve Roddenberry, Deputy Director, Department of Insurance, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0330, phone (850)413-3148

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 calendar days before the program by contacting Yvonne White, (850)413-4214.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

4-167.002 Private Passenger Motor Vehicle Insurance; Completion of Underwriting Notice of Incorrect Premium, Return of Unearned Premium.

(1) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 627.728, Florida Statutes, any insurer which issues a policy of private passenger motor vehicle insurance in this state shall be required to complete the underwriting of the policy and make a final determination of the correct premium for the coverage set forth in the insurance application within sixty (60) days after the effectuation of coverage. The requirements of this subsection shall not apply in the event that an incorrect premium was charged due to material misrepresentation or fraud on the part of the insured in the application for insurance. Insurers asserting a common law right of rescission or otherwise asserting rights to void insurance policies ab initio shall, within 90 days of taking such action, report to the Department of Insurance, Bureau of Property and Casualty Insurer Solvency Forms and Market Conduct Review, regarding any policies rescinded. The report shall be on Form DI4-493, "Report of Rescinded Policy," rev. 7/90, which is hereby adopted and incorporated by reference. The form may be obtained from and shall be submitted to the Bureau of Property and Casualty Insurer Solvency Forms and Market Conduct Review, Department of Insurance, Larson Building, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0300. The insurer shall retain its files on each rescinded policy for three (3) calendar years from the date of the report to the Department. Each file shall contain a copy of the initial application, a copy of the policy, copies of any claim forms filed, all documentation used by the insurer as a basis for its rescission, including the basis for any denial of coverage; and the name, business address and telephone number of any independent claims adjusting service where files may be located, if no longer in the possession of the insurer.

(2) In the event that an insurer issues a policy of private passenger motor vehicle insurance and timely determines that the policyholder has been charged an incorrect premium, the insurer shall provide notice to the policyholder as provided in section 627.7282, Florida Statutes. Such notice shall include a period of time no less than ten (10) days and no greater than forty-five (45) days within which the policyholder has the option to pay the additional amount of premium due or to cancel the policy and demand a refund of any unearned premiums. The maximum 45-day time period shall not apply in the event the amount of the additional premium due is equal to or less than five percent of the correct premium. The maximum forty-five (45) day period shall not apply in the event that the notice is sent within fifteen (15) days of the effective date of the policy. In that event, the maximum time period shall be sixty (60) days.

(3) If the policyholder fails to timely respond to the notice referred to in (2), above, the insurer shall cancel the policy as required in Section 627.7282, Florida Statutes, on a date no less than fourteen (14) days and no greater than forty-five (45) days after the date of the notice, and return any unearned premium to the insured. In the event the notice was sent within fifteen (15) days of the effective date of the policy, the cancellation date shall be no greater than sixty (60) days after the date of the notice. The unearned premium shall be returned within thirty (30) days of the effective date of cancellation. If the unearned premium is not returned within the thirty (30) day period, the insurer must pay eight (8) percent interest per annum on the amount due. If the unearned premium is not returned within forty-five (45) days of the effective date of cancellation, the insured may bring an action against the insurer pursuant to Section 624.155, Florida Statutes. ~~If the policyholder fails to timely respond to the notice referred to in (2), above, the insurer shall cancel the policy as required in section 627.7282, Florida Statutes, on a date no less than fourteen (14) days and no greater than forty five (45) days after the notice, and return any unearned premium to the insured.~~

Specific Authority 624.308(1) FS. Law Implemented 624.307(1), 626.9541(1)(o)3.a., 627.420, 627.421, 627.728, 627.7282 FS. History--New 7-23-88, Amended 9-18-90, Formerly 4-28.005, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Steve Roddenberry, Deputy Director, Division of Insurer Services, Department of Insurance

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Beth Vecchioli, Deputy Director, Division of Insurer Services, Department of Insurance

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: February 7, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: March 9, 2001

DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE

RULE TITLE: Cancellation of Subscriber Contracts
 RULE NO.: 4-191.043

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: Contingent repeal of provision regarding HMOs found to be unnecessary or lacking in delegated legislative authority during the 120.536(2)(b), F.S., analysis.

SUMMARY: Contingent repeal of provisions regarding HMOs found to be unnecessary or lacking in delegated legislative authority during the 120.536(2)(b), F.S., analysis.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative, must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 641.36 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 641.27(1), 641.3108 FS.

IF REQUESTED IN WRITING WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 9:30 a.m., May 8, 2001

PLACE: Room 142, Larson Building, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Jim Bracher, Bureau of Managed Care, Department of Insurance, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0347, phone (850)413-2500

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 calendar days before the program by contacting Yvonne White, (850)413-4214.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

4-191.043 Cancellation of Subscriber Contracts.

Specific Authority 641.36 FS. Law Implemented 641.3108, 641.27(1) FS. History—New 5-28-92, Repealed _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Jim Bracher, Bureau Chief, Bureau of Managed Care, Division of Insurer Services, Department of Insurance

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Michelle Newell, Director, Division of Insurer Services, Department of Insurance

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: January 31, 2001

DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE

Division of State Fire Marshal

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Fire Extinguishers and Pre-Engineered Systems
 RULE CHAPTER NO.: 4A-21

RULE TITLES: Dealer License
 RULE NOS.: 4A-21.102

Permit
 4A-21.103

Prescribed Certification Training Course for Portable Fire Extinguisher

Licenses and Permits
 4A-21.104

Transferring a License
 4A-21.106

Transferring a Permit
 4A-21.107

Upgrade of License
 4A-21.108

Upgrade of Permit
 4A-21.109

Duplicate License or Permit
 4A-21.110

Required Continuing Education
 4A-21.113

Insurance Requirements
 4A-21.114

Standards of National Fire Protection Association Adopted
 4A-21.203

Inspection, Maintenance and Hydrostatic Tests; Replacement While Recharging
 4A-21.238

Standard Service Tags, Requirements
 4A-21.240

Standard Service Tags, Specifications
 4A-21.241

Hydrostatic Tests
 4A-21.242

Hydrostatic Tests; Record Tag
 4A-21.245

Leak Tests; Tamper Indicators or Seals to be Replaced
 4A-21.249

Invoices
 4A-21.251

Standards of National Fire Protection Association to be Complied With
 4A-21.302

Standard Service Tag
 4A-21.303

Installation; Service
 4A-21.304

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The changes have the following purposes and effects:

1. Update NFPA and other sources previously adopted in the rules.
2. Add two additional forms to be adopted.
3. Streamline and update requirements for taking courses and examinations in conjunction with the Florida State Fire College to make them more easily accessible by the public.
4. Make technical changes such as changing the outdated name of the Section to the current name.
5. Present certain tables in more readable fashion.
6. Update rules to accommodate changes in the statutes; for example, to conform with the "two-year" recertification cycle adopted by the legislature recently, having been changed from a one-year cycle which the rules currently address.
7. Repeal unnecessary and/or outdated rule sections, subsections, and paragraphs.

SUMMARY: These changes update standards, add additional forms, conform to changes in statutes, and repeal unnecessary rules relating to Fire Extinguishers and Preengineered Systems.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost was prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 633.01(1) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 633.061, 633.161, 633.162, 633.163, 633.071, 633.171, 633.081 FS.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW.

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., April 30, 2001

PLACE: Room 116, Larson Building, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Terry Hawkins, Safety Program Manager, Regulatory Licensing Section, Bureau of Fire Prevention, Division of State Fire Marshal, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0342, (850)922-3171

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 calendar days before the program by contacting Millicent King at (850)413-3619.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

4A-21.102 Dealer License.

(1) The applicant shall submit an application on ~~form~~ forms DI4A-32, "Fire Extinguisher Dealer License" revised ~~11/99~~ 9/96 and/or ~~DI4 433 "Pre Engineered Systems Dealer License" revised 9/96~~ as adopted and incorporated herein by reference furnished by the Regulatory Licensing Section, Bureau of Fire Prevention, Division of State Fire Marshal ~~division~~ which shall conform with Section 633.061, Florida Statutes, identifying the class of license requested. Each licensee shall maintain a specific business location. A separate application and license are required for each business location. Any advertisement that the services of installing, recharging, repairing, or inspecting or other maintenance of portable fire extinguishers or pre-engineered systems are available shall

indicate that the premises, business, room, shop, store or establishment in or upon which it appears or to which it refers are a separate business location.

(2) through (4) No change.

(5) The person signing the application must meet the experience, or experience and education requirements as prescribed in Section 633.061, Florida Statutes, and shall successfully complete a prescribed certification training course offered by the Florida State Fire College or an equivalent course approved by the Bureau of Fire Standards and Training State Fire Marshal ~~pursuant to rule 4A-21.104(4)(c).~~

(6) Upon successful completion of the prescribed training course, the applicant will be administered an examination testing his or her competency and knowledge of the tasks to be performed pursuant to the class license requested.

(7) No change.

(8) When the applicant has completed the requirements in subsections (1) through (7), above, a pre-license inspection will be conducted at the facility of the applicant to determine that the equipment is functional and meets the requirements ~~have been met pursuant to the provisions~~ of subsection (11), below. The Regulatory Licensing Section ~~division~~ shall inspect vehicles, equipment, buildings, devices, premises or any area to be used in performing the activities allowed by the license. After issuance of a license, such facilities shall be inspected annually thereafter or as frequently as deemed necessary to ensure that the equipment requirements continue to be met.

(9) through (10) No change.

(11) Any fire equipment dealer, licensed pursuant to Section 633.061, Florida Statutes, who does not want to engage in servicing, inspecting, recharging, repairing or installing halon equipment must file an affidavit on form DI4-1482, (3/01) "Fire Equipment Dealer Halon Exemption Affidavit" as adopted and incorporated herein by reference furnished by the Regulatory Licensing Section.

(12) Equipment requirements.

(a) Each licensed business location shall be required to possess, at a minimum, the required equipment listed below, the equipment shall be demonstrated at the time of any inspection, to be functional to perform service as indicated by the license. All facilities must be in possession of a retester's identification number and certification in compliance with the Code of Federal Regulation Pamphlet 49, Part 173.

(b) Minimum Equipment and Facilities Requirements.

MINIMUM EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES REQUIRED PER CLASS OF LICENSE

<u>1. Hydrostatic test equipment for high pressure testing and calibrated cylinder maintained in compliance with the requirements of CGA C-1. DOT certification letter posted on or near the test apparatus identifying a current retester identification number issued to the facility.</u>	<u>A</u>			
<u>2. Equipment for test dating United States Department of Transportation specification and nonspecification cylinders. Die stamps for Class A and D facilities must be a minimum of 1/4 inch and include the retester identification number issued to the facility.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>3. Clock with sweep second hand or digital clock with second increments on or close to hydrostatic test apparatus.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>4. CO2 receiver – cascade system CO2 for proper filling of CO2 extinguishers.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>		
<u>5. Conductivity tester and tags as required by NFPA 10, as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	
<u>6. Drying method with does not exceed 150 degrees Fahrenheit for high and low pressure cylinders in accordance with NFPA 10, as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code and the manufacturer’s specifications.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>7. Proper wrenches with non-serrated jaws or valve puller, hydraulic or electric.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>8. Appropriate inspection light.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>9. Low pressure test apparatus for the licenses held, with gauges certified accurate in compliance with the requirements of CGA-C1 and maintained in accordance with the requirements of CGA-C1. United States Department of Transportation certification letter identifying a current retester identification number issued to the facility.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>10. All record tags, service, hydrotest, 6 year maintenance, as required by Rule 4A-21, as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code and CFR 49.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>11. Scales with division of not more than 1/4 ounce with adequate weighing capacity for weighing CO2 cartridges, must be certified annually or tested for accuracy annually by a service agency in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 531, Florida Statutes.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>12. Scales with adequate weighing capacity for extinguisher inspection and filling must be certified annually or tested for accuracy annually by a service agency in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 531, Florida Statutes.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>13. Vise, 6 inch minimum (chain or bench).</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>14. Supply of chemicals in accordance with manufacturer’s specifications in proper storage for all extinguishers and systems being serviced.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>

<u>15. Facilities for leak testing of pressurized extinguishers and preengineered system cylinders in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>16. Regulator and indicator in accordance with NFPA standards and manufacturer's specifications. Gauges shall be calibrated in accordance with Section 4-5.4.2, NFPA 10, as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>17. Adapters, fittings and equipment for properly servicing and/or recharging all extinguishers and preengineered systems cylinders being serviced and recharged.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>18. Safety cage or barrier for hydrostatic testing of low pressure cylinders.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>19. Scales with divisions of not more than 1/2 pound and minimum 150 pounds for weighing chemical recharging. Must be certified annually or tested for accuracy annually in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 531, Florida Statutes.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>20. Cable crimping tool (where required) for preengineered systems being installed and serviced in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications.</u>				<u>D</u>
<u>21. Cocking lever (where required) for preengineered systems being installed and serviced in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications.</u>				<u>D</u>
<u>22. Pipe vise, dies, reamer, etc. For preengineered systems being installed and serviced in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications.</u>				<u>D</u>
<u>23. Stock of supplies for extinguishers and/or preengineered systems being installed and serviced in accordance with the manufacturer's specifications.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>24. Installation, maintenance and recharge manuals for extinguishers and preengineered systems being inspected, serviced and installed.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>25. Closed recovery system for reusing dry chemical in accordance with NFPA 10, as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>26. NFPA 10 and NFPA 96, as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code, CGA C-1, C-6, C-6.1, C-6.3, CFR 49, parts 100-177, and CFR 29 parts 1900-1910, all as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	
<u>27. NFPA 12, 12A, 34, 17, 17A, 96, 2001, CGA C-1, C-6, C-6.1, C-6.3, CFR 49 parts 100-177, and CFR 29 parts 1900-1910, all as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code.</u>				<u>D</u>
<u>28. Closed recovery system for removal and recharge of halon as required in NFPA 10, as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code, or an exemption from the State Fire Marshal.</u>				
<u>29. Printed invoices properly completed.</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>30. System inspection reports.</u>				<u>D</u>

~~(11) Equipment requirements.~~

~~(a) Each licensed business location shall be required to possess, at a minimum the equipment listed below in accordance with the class of license requested. Facilities engaged in high pressure hydrostatic testing shall be properly certified by the U.S. Department of Transportation.~~

~~(b) Minimum Equipment and Facilities Requirements.~~~~REQUIRED FOR CLASS MINIMUM EQUIPMENT AND FACILITIES REQUIRED~~

~~A 1. ADEQUATE HYDROSTATIC TEST EQUIPMENT FOR HIGH PRESSURE TESTING AND CALIBRATED CYLINDER DOT CERTIFICATION LETTER POSTED ON OR NEAR THE TEST APPARATUS.~~

~~A 2. ADEQUATE EQUIPMENT FOR TEST DATING HIGH PRESSURE CYLINDERS. DIE STAMPS MUST BE MINIMUM OF 1/4 INCH~~

~~A 3. CLOCK WITH SWEEP SECOND HAND ON OR CLOSE TO HYDROSTATIC TEST APPARATUS.~~

~~A B 4. CO2 RECEIVER — CASCADE SYSTEM CO2, FOR PROPER FILLING OF CO2 EXTINGUISHERS.~~

~~A B C 5. CONDUCTIVITY TESTER AND TAGS AS REQUIRED BY NFPA 10, 1994 EDITION.~~

~~ABCD 6. DRYING METHOD FAHRENHEIT FOR HIGH AND LOW PRESSURE CYLINDERS, MEETING THE GUIDELINES OF NFPA 10, 1994 EDITION.~~

~~ABCD 7. PROPER WRENCHES WITH NON-SERRATED JAWS OR VALVE PULLER, HYDRAULIC OR ELECTRIC.~~

~~ABCD 8. ADEQUATE INSPECTION LIGHT.~~

~~ABCD 9. LOW PRESSURE TEST APPARATUS WITH DUAL GAUGES OR SINGLE GAUGE CERTIFIED ACCURATE ANNUALLY (DEALER MUST PROVIDE EVIDENCE OF CERTIFICATION DURING INSPECTION.)~~

~~ABCD 10. ALL RECORD TAGS, SERVICE, HYDROTEST, 6 YEAR MAINTENANCE, INTERNAL, ETC. AS REQUIRED BY RULE CHAPTER 4A 21.~~

~~ABCD 11. SCALES WITH DIVISIONS OF NOT MORE THAN 1/4 OUNCE FOR WEIGHING CO2 CARTRIDGES. MUST BE CERTIFIED ANNUALLY OR TESTED FOR ACCURACY ANNUALLY BY A SERVICE AGENCY AS DEFINED IN CHAPTER 5F 4, FLA. ADMIN. CODE.~~

~~ABCD 12. ACCURATE WEIGHING SCALES FOR EXTINGUISHER INSPECTION AND FILLING. MUST BE CERTIFIED ANNUALLY OR TESTED FOR ACCURACY ANNUALLY BY A SERVICE AGENCY AS DEFINED IN CHAPTER 5F 4, FLA. ADMIN. CODE.~~

~~ABCD 13. VISE, 6 INCH MINIMUM (CHAIN OR BENCH).~~

~~ABCD 14. SUPPLY OF DRY CHEMICALS IN PROPER STORAGE FOR ALL EXTINGUISHERS AND SYSTEMS BEING SERVICED.~~

~~ABCD 15. FACILITIES FOR LEAK TESTING OF PRESSURIZED EXTINGUISHERS.~~

~~ABCD 16. NITROGEN WITH REGULATOR AND INDICATOR. REGULATOR NOT TO EXCEED 1500 PSI — MINIMUM 500 PSI. THE INDICATING GAUGE FOR THE REGULATOR SHALL HAVE A SECOND GAUGE OF THE SAME TYPE AND RANGE FOR THE PURPOSE OF MONITORING ACCURACY.~~

~~ABCD 17. ADAPTERS, FITTINGS AND SUFFICIENT TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT FOR PROPERLY SERVICING AND/OR RECHARGING ALL EXTINGUISHERS AND PRE-ENGINEERED SYSTEMS BEING SERVICED AND RECHARGED.~~

~~ABCD 18. SAFETY CAGE FOR HYDROSTATIC TESTING OF LOW PRESSURE CYLINDERS.~~

~~D 19. SCALES WITH DIVISIONS OF NOT MORE THAN 1/2 POUND AND MINIMUM 150 POUNDS FOR WEIGHING CHEMICAL RECHARGING. MUST BE CERTIFIED ANNUALLY OR TESTED FOR ACCURACY CHAPTER 5F 4, FLA. ADMIN. CODE.~~

~~D 20. CABLE CRIMPING TOOL (WHERE REQUIRED).~~

~~D 21. COCKING LEVER (WHERE REQUIRED).~~

~~D 22. PIPE VISE, DIES, REAMER, ETC.~~

~~D 23. STOCK OF SUPPLIES FOR SYSTEMS WHICH ARE BEING INSTALLED AND SERVICED.~~

~~ABCD 24. INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE AND RECHARGE MANUALS FOR EXTINGUISHERS AND SYSTEMS BEING SERVICED AND INSTALLED.~~

~~ABCD 25. CLOSED RECOVERY SYSTEM FOR REUSING DRY CHEMICAL.~~

~~ABC 26. NFPA 10, AS ADOPTED IN 4A 21.202, NFPA 96 AS ADOPTED IN 4A 21.302, CGA, C 6, C 6.1, CFR 49, PARTS 100-177, AND 29 FOR CLASS "A" ONLY CGC C 1.~~

~~D 27. NFPA 12, 2000, 12A, 12B, 34, 17, 17A, 96, 2001, CFR PARTS 100-177, AND 29, AS ADOPTED IN RULE 4A 21.302.~~

~~ABCD 28. CLOSED RECOVERY SYSTEM FOR REMOVAL AND RECHARGE OF HALON AS REQUIRED IN NFPA 10, 1994 EDITION.~~

~~ABCD 29. INVOICES PROPERLY KEPT AND PRINTED.~~

~~D 30. SYSTEM INSPECTION REPORTS.~~

~~(13)(12) Any change of corporate officers must be reported in writing to the Regulatory Licensing Section division within 14 days. This change does not require a revised application.~~

~~(14)(13) All requirements set forth in this rule, except the dealer training and examination requirements, shall be met by any corporation, firm, association, state agency, or its subdivision, if the license requested is for work to be performed by that corporation, firm, association, state agency or its subdivision upon its own properties and for its own use, pursuant to the provisions of Section 633.061, Florida Statutes.~~

~~(15)(14) Revised license and permit.~~

(a) through (e) No change.

(f) No licensee shall conduct his or her licensed business under a name other than the name which appears on his or her license.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.061 FS. History—New 2-7-89, Amended 10-20-93, 10-2-96, 6-8-98,_____.

4A-21.103 Permit.

(1) The applicant shall submit an application on a form furnished by the Regulatory Licensing Section ~~division~~ which shall conform with Section 633.061, Florida Statutes, Form DI4-31, "Application for Fire Equipment Permit," revised and dated 11/99 ~~1/93~~, which is incorporated herein by reference, which is available from the Bureau of Fire Prevention, Regulatory Licensing ~~and Statistics~~, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0342 ~~0300~~, identifying the class permit requested.

(2) No change.

(3) The application shall be accompanied by two current full-face color passport size photographs, along with a photocopy of the applicant's drivers license or identification card issued by the Florida Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles. Each photograph shall have the name of the applicant printed legibly on the back of the photographs at least 2" x 2" in size, which shall be of sufficient quality to allow the applicant to be recognized from it.

(4) No change.

(5) The applicant shall successfully complete a prescribed certification training course offered by the Florida State Fire College or an equivalent course approved by the Bureau of Fire Standards and Training ~~State Fire Marshal~~.

(6) Upon successful completion of the prescribed certification training course, the applicant will be administered an examination testing his or her competency and knowledge of the tasks to be performed pursuant to the class permit requested.

(7) Upon successful completion of the application and examination, a permit and photo identification card will be issued.

(8) No change.

(9) A permit shall be valid solely for use by the holder thereof in his or her employment by the licensee under whose license the permit was issued. A permittee changing his or her place of employment shall obtain a new permit under the license of the licenseholder at the new place of employment. The licensee shall notify the Regulatory Licensing Section, in writing, of an individual leaving his or her employment within fifteen days of the termination ~~retain the permit of an individual leaving his employ and shall forward it to the division with notification that the individual is no longer employed. The Regulatory Licensing Section division~~ will then change the records to reflect the status of the permit. A permit

and photo identification card of an individual leaving the employment of a licensee becomes void and inoperative the date of departure.

(10) Any fire equipment permittee employed by a licensed dealer holding a Halon Exemption, must file an affidavit as required by Section 633.061(1)(e), (3/01) Florida Statutes, on form DI4-1483, (3/01) "Fire Equipment Permit Halon Exemption Affidavit" as adopted and incorporated herein by reference furnished by the Regulatory Licensing Section.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.061 FS. History—New 2-7-89, Amended 10-20-93,_____.

4A-21.104 Prescribed Certification Training Course for Portable Fire Extinguisher Licenses and Permits.

(1) The prescribed certification training course ~~shall~~ may be taken at the Florida State Fire College in Ocala or at another facility approved as provided in subsection (3) by the State Fire Marshal in accordance with the procedures in subsection (4), below.

(2) The procedure regarding the course at the Florida State Fire College is as follows:

(a) All applicants for licenses and permits shall apply to the Regulatory Licensing ~~and Statistics~~ Section, Bureau of Fire Prevention in Tallahassee.

(b) Both the application fee and the exam fee shall be submitted to the Regulatory Licensing Section ~~Bureau~~.

(c) Once an application is complete and acceptable, the applicant will be scheduled for the next available course at the Florida State Fire College. The Regulatory Licensing Section ~~Bureau~~ will send a roster to the Florida State Fire College notifying ~~telling~~ the Florida State Fire College of the identity of the persons who to expect for each offering of the course.

(d) No applications for licensure shall be sent to the Florida State Fire College. No one whose name is not on the roster prepared by the Regulatory Licensing Section ~~Bureau~~ in Tallahassee will be admitted to the course at the Florida State Fire College.

(e) The charge for the course is \$150.00 and is a nonrefundable fee. This fee must be paid directly to the Florida State Fire College 15 calendar days prior to the date of the scheduled course at the beginning of the course.

(f) The Florida State Fire College will stock all the required study materials. Copies of the required Florida Statutes and of the required State Fire Marshal's Rules will be free. All other material will be available at cost. If the required study material is purchased directly from the Florida State Fire College, then the Florida State Fire College must be paid directly. The application packet will contain a list of study material.

(g) No change.

(h) Applicants will be tested daily on course materials. A passing score will be 70%. Each applicant will be tested on material related to the class of license or permit for which he or she has applied.

(i) At the conclusion of the 40 hour certification course of instruction at the Florida State Fire College, those applicants who have successfully completed the course, receiving an average score of 70% on the daily examinations, will be given the State Certification Examination for the license or permit for which she or he has applied. Those individuals taking the certification course at an approved training facility will be scheduled for testing at regional testing sites on regularly scheduled testing dates by the Regulatory Licensing Section after the individual has met and complied with the requirements set forth in Section 633.061, Florida Statutes. Those persons attending a certification course for purposes of continuing education shall receive 20 hours of continuing education credit upon successful completion of the course, regardless of the location the course was taken.

(j) A passing score for the state certification exam is 70%. Scores on the examination test will be mailed by the Florida State Fire College to the Regulatory Licensing Section Bureau in Tallahassee. The Regulatory Licensing Section Bureau will then notify each applicant of the score by mail within five working days from the date of receipt in the Regulatory Licensing Section and will proceed to issue the license or permit to those who have passed. No results will be given by telephone.

(k) Anyone failing to successfully complete a certification course shall be rescheduled at no fewer than 30 day intervals.

(l) Anyone failing the exam will be permitted to take the exam at intervals of no fewer than thirty (30) day days intervals.

(3) The 40 hour certification training course may be offered at a community college, a vocational technical center, or at any of the training centers certified by the Bureau of Fire Standards and Training. The course must be equivalent to that offered by the Florida State Fire College (Course Number FSFC-708).

(a) The course must be approved in advance by the Chief of the Bureau of Fire Standards and Training or his designee. A copy of the course outline, lesson plan or plans, instructor or instructors, and proposed facility with appropriate props for performing extinguisher training evolutions must be submitted.

(b) Each instructor for the course must be certified at a minimum of Fire Instructor I by the Bureau of Fire Standards and Training or must qualify for a Single Course Exemption as specified in Rule Chapter 4A-39, Florida Administrative Code.

(c) At the conclusion of any course of instruction the community college, vocational technical center, or other approved training center must provide to the Regulatory Licensing Section a roster of students, daily examination results, and cumulative scores on the approved course.

(k) Persons interested in taking the course but not wishing to be licensed as a fire equipment dealer or permittee may take the course. These persons shall apply to the Bureau in Tallahassee and will be scheduled for the next available course. Persons not wishing licensure shall pay the course fee to the Fire College. In addition, persons not wishing licensure but wishing to take the test at the end of the course shall pay the exam fee in advance to the Bureau in Tallahassee.

(l) All persons taking the course and passing the exams shall be issued a Certificate of Training by the Fire College. The successful completion of this training shall be good for one year for testing purposes.

(d) ~~(m)~~ Anyone wishing to upgrade a license or permit must meet the requirements of Section 633.061, Florida Statutes may do so by complying with requirements of Section 4A-21.108 or 4A-21.109.

(3) An applicant must submit an examination filing fee for each examination administered by the division pursuant to Sections 633.061(3)(e)5. and (3)(d)1., Florida Statutes.

(4) Persons wishing to offer the portable extinguisher course as an approved equivalent to the course offered at the Fire College in Ocala shall take the following steps and upon the successful completion of those steps shall be approved to offer the course:

(a) Inform the Regulatory Licensing and Statistics Section, Bureau of Fire Prevention, by letter, of his desire to offer the course;

(b) Contact the Chief of the Bureau of Fire Standards and Training (Fire College) in Ocala and receive approval of the person who will be teaching the course and of the facilities at which the course will be taught;

(c) Submit a proposed curriculum to the Regulatory Licensing and Statistics Section, Bureau of Fire Prevention which curriculum shall, at a minimum, cover all the material in the curriculum taught at the Fire College, and shall also submit a proposed schedule for offering the course, which shall, at a minimum, be at least 40 hours in duration; and

(d) Receive a letter from the Regulatory Licensing and Statistics Section, Bureau of Fire Prevention approving offering the course.

(5) Persons wishing to offer the portable extinguisher course as an approved equivalent to the course offered at the Fire College need not be licensed as a fire equipment dealer nor is a presently or previously licensed dealer precluded from offering the course, except under the circumstances described in the next sentences. Any person licensed or permitted to engage in the fire equipment business under the provisions of Section 633.061, F.S., who has had administrative action taken against him for violations of the statutes, rules, codes, or standards regulating his activities under that license or permit, regardless of whether or not a formal administrative complaint was filed, shall be ineligible to apply to offer nor shall be in any way associated with offering the course until two years

after any fine imposed has been paid or after any period of probation, suspension, or revocation has been completed satisfactorily. Any licensed or permitted person who, during the two year period following the completion of any punishment imposed, commits other violations of the statutes, rules, codes or standards regulating his activities under that license or permit shall be deemed not to have completed the two year period satisfactorily and a new two year period will start to run from the discovery of the violation.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.061 FS. History--New 2-7-89, Amended 10-20-93,_____.

4A-21.106 Transferring a License.

A fire equipment dealer license is not transferable to another person or business organization. Any individual who wishes to change company affiliation must comply with Section 633.061, Florida Statutes ~~4A-21.102~~.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.061 FS. History--New 2-7-89, Amended 10-20-93,_____.

4A-21.107 Transferring a Permit.

A fire equipment permit is not transferable to another person or business organization. Any individual who wishes to change company affiliation must comply with Section 633.061, Florida Statutes ~~4A-21.103~~.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.061 FS. History--New 2-7-89, Amended 10-20-93,_____.

4A-21.108 Upgrade of License.

(1) ~~The applicant shall submit an application on a form furnished by the division which shall conform to Section 633.061, Florida Statutes, identifying the class license requested.~~

(2) ~~The application shall be accompanied by a fee as prescribed in Section 633.061(1), Florida Statutes, for the type license requested.~~

(3) ~~A non-refundable fee as prescribed in Section 633.061(3)(e)5., Florida Statutes, shall accompany each application requiring an examination.~~

(4) ~~The person signing the application shall submit evidence of experience as a permitholder or a combination of experience and education as prescribed in Section 633.061, Florida Statutes. The person signing the application shall successfully complete an examination testing competency and knowledge of the task to be performed pursuant to the class of license requested. An individual who has not attended a 40 hour training course within five years from the date of request to upgrade, must comply with the training requirements of Section 4A-21.104. The applicant must submit a Certificate of Completion of the 40 hour course with the upgrade request.~~

(5) ~~The applicant shall successfully complete an examination testing his competency and knowledge of the tasks to be performed pursuant to the class of license requested.~~

(6) ~~Upon successful completion of the competency examination, the applicant must provide evidence of insurance coverage as required by Section 633.061(3)(e)3., Florida Statutes.~~

(7) ~~When the applicant has completed the requirements in subsections (1) through (6), above, a pre license inspection will be conducted to determine that the equipment requirements have been met as required in Rule 4A-21.102(11).~~

(8) ~~Each license application shall be accompanied by at least one application for an individual to obtain a permit pursuant to the provisions of Rule 4A-21.103.~~

(9) ~~Upon satisfactory completion of the application, examination, insurance and equipment requirements, a license will be issued.~~

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.061 FS. History--New 2-7-89, Amended 10-20-93, Repealed _____.

4A-21.109 Upgrade of Permit.

(1) ~~The applicant shall submit an application on Form DI4-31, Application for Fire Equipment Permit, adopted as in 4A-21.103, furnished by the division which shall conform to Section 633.061, Florida Statutes, identifying the class permit requested.~~

(2) ~~The application shall be accompanied by a fee as prescribed in Section 633.061(2), Florida Statutes, for the type permit requested.~~

(3) ~~A non refundable fee as prescribed in Section 633.061(3)(d)1., Florida Statutes, shall accompany each application requiring an examination.~~

(4) ~~The person signing the application shall successfully complete an examination testing competency and knowledge of the tasks to be performed pursuant to the class of permit requested. An individual who has not attended a 40 hour training course within five years from the date of request to upgrade, must comply with the training requirements of Section 4A-21.104. The applicant must submit a Certificate of Completion of the 40 hour course with the upgrade request.~~

(5) ~~Upon satisfactory completion of the application and examination requirements, a permit will be issued.~~

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.061 FS. History--New 2-7-89, Amended 10-20-93, 10-2-96, Repealed _____.

4A-21.110 Duplicate License or Permit.

~~A duplicate license or permit must be obtained to replace a lost or destroyed license or permit. A written request must be submitted to the division stating that the license or permit has been lost or destroyed along with a fee as prescribed in Sections 633.061(1)(e) and (2)(e), Florida Statutes, and requesting the duplicate.~~

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.061 FS. History--New 2-7-89, Amended 10-20-93, Repealed _____.

4A-21.113 Required Continuing Education.

(1) Licenseholders and permitholders shall complete a continuing education course or combination of courses in compliance with Section 633.061, Florida Statutes ~~this rule~~ within 5 years following initial licensure or within 5 years of the completion of the required continuing education. If a licenseholder or permitholder loses his license or permit through administrative action or for failure to renew, and subsequently becomes licensed or permitted again, the date of the subsequent licensure or permitting shall start a new 5-year period during which continuing education will be required.

(2) The continuing education course or combination of courses shall be related to the scope of license or permit held fire equipment business. All licensed fire equipment dealers are required to complete at least one hour of a workplace safety class, one hour of a business practices class, and one hour of a workers' compensation class as part of the 32 hours or required continuing education of license renewal each four year period. ~~This course or combination of courses shall be a total of 40 contact hours in duration.~~

(3) The course or combination of courses shall be conducted by persons approved by the Regulatory Licensing Section Division. Approval of such persons shall be based on the person's training, experience, and expertise in the subject of the course. The instructor must be qualified, by education or experience, to teach the course, or parts of a course to which the instructor is assigned. Any person with a four year college or graduate degree is qualified to teach any course in their field of study. Any state certified fire equipment dealer with at least fire years' experience may teach any technical course within the scope of the dealer's license; however, no dealer whose license is suspended or revoked as a result of administrative action shall teach any course or serve as a continuing education course instructor. The Regulatory Licensing Section is not permitted to reject a course based upon the proposed instructor, but is permitted to approve a course contingent on certification that all instructors meet those minimum requirements before conducting the course and before advertising that the course is approved for continuing education credit.

(4) ~~The course or combination of courses shall be conducted at facilities approved by the Division. Approval of such facilities shall be based on the requirements necessary to assure that the subject of the course is properly and adequately presented. To the extent applicable to the subject of the course, the factors to be taken into consideration shall include, but shall not be limited to:~~

(a) ~~The physical condition of the classroom with regard to seating capacity, adequacy of lighting, heating, and ventilation; and~~

(b) ~~Adequacy of written instructional materials and any audio-visual aids.~~

~~(4)(5) The course or combination of courses shall be approved by the Regulatory Licensing Section Division. The number of contact hours assigned to any course shall be determined by the Regulatory Licensing Section Division based on course content; and length, degree of difficulty, and any other factors which will result in an informed and appropriate decision. No contact hour credit will be assigned for registration periods; coffee breaks; meals; keynote speakers; and similar non-substantive time periods.~~

(5) Requests for approval of a course shall be submitted on Form DI4-394, Revised 03/00 "Request for Approval of Fire Equipment Continuing Education Course Work" as adopted and incorporated herein by reference. Forms are available from and submission shall be sent to: Regulatory Licensing Section, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0342. The application shall include the total number of classroom or interactive distance learning hours, the course syllabus, a detailed outline of the contents of the course, and the name and qualifications of all instructors. The Regulatory Licensing Section shall approve each continuing education course which appropriately relates to the technical skills required of fire equipment licensees and permittees and contain sufficient educational content to improve the quality of the licensee's or permittee's performance and are taught by qualified instructors. Continuing education coursework approval is valid for two years from the date of issue, provided no substantial change is made in the approved course. The number of classroom hours must be devoted to course content and does not include registration periods, meals and keynote speakers or any similar nonsubstantive time periods.

(6) The Regulatory Licensing Section shall approve continuing education courses within 90 days from the date of receipt. Such approval shall be based upon the submission of coursework which relates to the technical fire protection skills of fire equipment dealers and permittees which contain educational content to improve the quality of work being performed. Courses not offered by the State Fire Marshal shall be submitted by an interested person for approval for credit toward the continuing education requirement either before or after the course has occurred. Anyone submitting a course for approval after the course has occurred is cautioned that no assumptions can be made as to the number of contact hour credits which will be assigned to the course by the Division. Submissions shall be on Form DI4-394, "Request for Approval of Fire Equipment Continuing Education Coursework," as adopted and incorporated herein by reference, and shall include sufficient information on which to base a decision. Forms are available from and submissions shall be sent to: Regulatory Licensing and Statistics Section, Bureau of Fire Prevention, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0300. Examples of courses which may be approved include, but are not limited to: NAFED meetings; Florida Fire Equipment Dealer Association meetings; NFPA meetings and seminars; and training sessions conducted by fire equipment systems

manufacturers. At the conclusion of each approved course, the organization or company offering the course shall inform the Bureau that the course was completed and of any deviations from the outline as approved and shall supply the Bureau with a sign-in sheet or roster check-off sheet to confirm attendance.

(7) Each approved course will be assigned a course number and the course will be identified by course title as submitted and the number of continuing education hours awarded. The course provider shall use the course number in the course syllabus, in all other course materials used in connection with the course, and in all written advertising materials used in connection with the course. A listing of approved courses will be available from the Regulatory License Section, the course list will include the course number, the course title, the course submitter, and the type course (portable or preengineered systems).

(8) Within 30 days of the conclusion of each approved course, the organization or person offering the course shall inform the Regulatory Licensing Section that the course was completed and shall supply the Regulatory Licensing Section with a sign in sheet or roster. The sign-in sheet or roster shall identify:

- (a) The course name;
- (b) The course number;
- (c) The course provider;
- (d) The date the course was offered;
- (e) The duration of the course;
- (f) The licensee's or permittee's name;
- (g) The license or permit number; and
- (h) The licensee's or permittee's signature.

For interactive distance learning courses, in lieu of the original sign-in sheet required above, the course provider shall maintain and provide a records of the registration log-in, course access log, and course completion, which shall contain the information required above. In lieu of providing a document bearing the licensee's or permittee's signature, the course provider shall provide the licensee's or permittee's identity verification data which shall include the licensee's or permittee's password and the licensee's or permittee's mother's maiden name.

(9) Each person who completes an approved course shall be issued a certificate of completion by the course provider. The certificate of completion shall contain the name of the person who completed the course, the course provider's name, the course name as approved by the Regulatory Licensing Section, the course number, the date the course was taken, and the number of continuing education hours awarded for the course as approved for the course by the Regulatory Licensing Section. The course provider shall maintain a list of the names and license or permit numbers of each person who completes each course conducted by the course provider for four years from the date of the course.

~~(10)(7)~~ Each licenseholder or permittholder is responsible for attending the appropriate course or courses and for maintaining proof of completion of the course or courses. ~~Such proof shall be in the form of copies of certificates awarded; transcripts; or similar material.~~ The Bureau will not accept any proof of completion except that submitted in accordance with subsection ~~(11)(8)~~, below.

~~(11)(8)~~ At least 30 days before the expiration of a 5-year period, ~~The~~ the licenseholder or permittholder shall submit proof of completion of the required course or courses to the ~~Regulatory Licensing Section Bureau~~ on Form DI4-393, "Fire Equipment Continuing Education Coursework," revised and dated ~~03/00~~ ~~8/93~~, as adopted and incorporated herein by reference. Form DI4-393 may be obtained by writing Bureau of Fire Prevention, Regulatory Licensing ~~and~~ ~~Statistics~~ Section, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-~~0342~~~~0300~~. Each licenseholder or permittholder will be notified by the ~~Regulatory Licensing Section Bureau~~, in writing, ~~if the continuing education course work submitted does not satisfy as to whether or not the coursework satisfies the continuing education requirement in Section 633.061(3)(a), Florida Statutes.~~ No notification will be given over the telephone.

~~(12)(9)~~ Any licenseholder or permittholder who does not complete the continuing education requirements of Section 633.061, Florida Statutes requirement during the 5-year period shall not have his or her license or permit renewed. If the license or permit is not renewed, the former licenseholder or permittholder shall perform no work for which a license or permit is required. A former licenseholder or permittholder wishing to become licensed again shall meet the requirements of ~~Section 633.061, Florida Statutes Rules 4A-21.102 and 4A-21.103.~~

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.061 FS. History--New 2-7-89, Amended 10-20-93, _____.

4A-21.114 Insurance Requirements.

(1) The Fire Equipment Dealer A, B, C and D licensed pursuant to Section 633.061, Florida Statutes, shall provide evidence of current and subsisting insurance coverage meeting the requirements of Section 633.061, Florida Statutes, to the ~~Regulatory Licensing Section State Fire Marshal~~ on a Form DI4-28, "Insurance Certificate Fire Equipment Dealer", revised and dated ~~10/99~~ ~~9/93~~, as adopted and incorporated herein by reference. This form is available from the Regulatory Licensing ~~and~~ ~~Statistics~~ Section, Bureau of Fire Prevention, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0300.

(2) through (3) No change.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.061 FS. History--New 10-20-93, Amended _____.

4A-21.203 Standards of National Fire Protection Association Adopted.

Licensed fire equipment dealers are required to install, inspect, maintain, or recharge portable fire extinguishers in accordance with NFPA 10, Standard for Portable Fire Extinguishers, ~~1994 the edition as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code, which is hereby adopted and incorporated herein by reference.~~ The provisions of NFPA 10, ~~1994 the edition as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code,~~ are mandatory. Copies of NFPA 10, ~~the 1994 edition as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code,~~ may be obtained from: National Fire Protection Association, Batterymarch Park, Quincy, Massachusetts 02269.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.01, 633.065, 633.071, 633.081, 633.083 FS. History—New 2-7-89, Amended 10-20-93, 10-2-96, 6-8-98, _____.

4A-21.238 Inspection, Maintenance and Hydrostatic Tests; Replacement While Recharging.

No licenseholder shall remove or permit any of his or her employees to remove any in-service fire extinguisher from its designed location for maintenance purposes without first meeting the requirements of ~~NFPA 10, the edition as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code Section 4-4.1.4 of NFPA 10, 1988 edition.~~

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.01, 633.061, 633.081 FS. History—New 10-18-67, Formerly 4A-21.38, 4A-21.038, Amended 2-7-89, _____.

4A-21.240 Standard Service Tags, Requirements.

Each portable extinguisher which has been subjected to any type of service shall have an approved standard record tag securely attached thereto, before being placed into service. ~~Standard service tags shall not be attached to fire extinguishers which do not comply with this rule or the standards adopted herein, until the violation is corrected in accordance with Section 633.071, Florida Statutes.~~ The standard service tag on a fire extinguisher shall indicate that the person, whose name and permit number appear on the tag, has serviced the fire extinguisher in compliance with these rules and the standards adopted herein. Only the person performing the service shall prepare and affix the appropriate service tag as provided by this rule chapter.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.01, 633.061, 633.081 FS. History—New 10-18-67, Formerly 4A-21.40, 4A-21.040, Amended 8-15-85, 2-7-89, 10-20-93, _____.

4A-21.241 Standard Service Tags, Specifications.

(1) Service Tags, Annual Maintenance.

(a) through (c) No change.

(d) The size of the standard service tags, pressure sensitive labels or decals shall be a minimum size of no less than 2 1/2" and no greater than 3" by no less than 5 1/4" and no greater than 5 3/4" approximately 2 1/2" x 5 1/4".

(e) No change.

(f) The name, street address and telephone number of the company or organization performing said service must be printed on the front center section of the service tag, pressure sensitive label or decal.

(g) No change.

(2) ~~Internal Record Tags, 6-year Maintenance, Record Tags.~~

~~(a) A verification of service collar meeting the requirements of NFPA 10, the edition as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code An internal record tag shall be provided each time an extinguisher is opened for any type of service or for any purpose. Verification service collars shall be of durable material and shall not have a center opening greater than 1/4 inch larger than the cylinder neck opening and shall include only the month and year the service was performed and the permit number of the person performing the service. A new verification service collar shall be provided for an extinguisher each time an extinguisher is opened for any type of internal service or for any other purpose. No advertisement or any other information shall be included on the verification service collar.~~ The following types of extinguishers are excepted from this requirement: carbon dioxide extinguishers; halogenated vaporizing liquid fire extinguishers; external cartridge operated extinguishers; and extinguishers containing water.

~~(b) The approved standard internal record tag shall be at least 1/2" x 3" on durable material either white or yellow in color with a pressure sensitive adhesive backing conforming to the standards of U. L. No. 969.~~

~~(c) Internal record tags shall bear the following information:~~

1. Permit number of the person who performed the service.
2. Day, month and year that the service was performed.

~~(d) A new internal record tag shall be provided for an extinguisher each time internal service is performed for any purpose.~~

~~(e) Internal record tags shall be affixed in the following manner:~~

~~1. Any tag previously attached shall be removed prior to affixing a new tag.~~

~~2. The area to which the tag is to be adhered shall be cleaned to remove all residue of any kind, including old adhesive from a previously attached tag.~~

~~3. The tag shall be placed within 1" of the top of the siphon tube below the valve assembly.~~

~~4. The adhesive side of the tag shall be tightly adhered against the tube, in accordance with the manufacturer's recommended procedures.~~

~~5. The tag shall be pressed and adhered solidly around the tube and the information must remain accessible and legible at all times. Under no circumstances shall the required information be written directly on the siphon tube.~~

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.01, 633.071, 633.081 FS. History—New 10-18-67, Amended 12-30-70, 8-15-85, Formerly 4A-21.41, 4A-21.041, Amended 2-7-89, 10-20-93,_____.

4A-21.242 Hydrostatic Tests.

(1) Hydrostatic tests shall be conducted in accordance with the procedures in NFPA 10, as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code and CFR 49 AND CGA C-1, C-6, C-6.1 and C-6.3 ~~4A-21.203~~.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.01, 633.071, 633.081 FS. History—New 10-18-67, Amended 8-15-85, Formerly 4A-21.42, 4A-21.042, Amended 2-7-89, 10-20-93,_____.

4A-21.245 Hydrostatic Tests; Record Tag.

The hydrostatic test record tag shall comply with the requirements of NFPA 10 as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code and CFR 49 AND CGA C-1, C-6, C-6.1 and C-6.3 ~~4A-21.203~~. It shall remain adhered to the extinguisher for the required period of time. It shall not corrode. It shall remain legible for the duration of the performed hydrotest interval ~~not fade, wash away, or otherwise become illegible~~.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.01, 633.071, 633.081 FS. History—New 10-18-67, Formerly 4A-21.45, 4A-21.045, Amended 2-7-89, 10-20-93,_____.

4A-21.249 Leak Tests; Tamper Indicators or Seals to be Replaced.

The leak test shall be performed ~~either~~ by following the manufacturer's recommendations ~~or by totally immersing the extinguisher in water horizontally~~. Any tamper indicators or seals shall be replaced each year or after recharging a portable fire extinguisher. Tamper indicator pull pressure or break pressure shall not exceed 15 pounds.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.01, 633.061, 633.071, 633.081 FS. History—New 10-18-67, Formerly 4A-21.49, 4A-21.049, Amended 2-7-89, 10-20-93,_____.

4A-21.251 Invoices.

Invoices shall include the business name, physical business address and license number of the fire equipment dealer. The license number on the invoice shall coincide with the permit number on the tags which are attached to the extinguishers being invoiced for service. Invoices for servicing fire extinguishers shall include serial numbers of each extinguisher and identify, per serial number, along with the services performed and any parts replaced for each extinguisher. This information is permitted to ~~may~~ be on a separate equable sheet attached to the invoice.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.01, 633.061, 633.065, 633.071 FS. History—New 2-7-89, Amended 10-20-93,_____.

4A-21.302 Standards of National Fire Protection Association to be Complied With.

The following standards of the National Fire Protection Association as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code are applicable to Part III of this rule chapter and shall be complied with and are hereby adopted and incorporated by reference:

(1) NFPA 12 ~~—1993~~, Standard on Carbon Dioxide Extinguishing Systems.

(2) NFPA 12A ~~—1992~~, Standard on Halon 1301 Fire Extinguishing Systems.

~~(3) NFPA 12B —1990, Standard on Halon 1211 Fire Extinguishing Systems.~~

~~(3)(4)~~ NFPA 17 ~~—1994~~, Standard for Dry Chemical Extinguishing Systems.

~~(4)(5)~~ NFPA 17A ~~—1994~~, Standard for Wet Chemical Extinguishing Systems.

~~(5)(6)~~ NFPA 96 ~~—1994~~, Standard for Ventilation Control and Fire Protection of Commercial Cooking Operations. Section 7-2.2 of NFPA 96 applies prospectively only. Existing installations are permitted to remain in place subject to the approval of the authority having jurisdiction.

~~(6)(7)~~ NFPA 2001 ~~—1996~~, Standard on Clean Agent Fire Extinguishing Systems.

(7) NFPA 34 – Standard for Dipping and Coating Processes Using Flammable or Combustible Liquids.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.01, 633.061, 633.081 FS. History—New 10-18-67, Amended 8-15-85, Formerly 4A-21.57, 4A-21.057, Amended 2-7-89, 10-20-93, 10-2-96, 6-8-98,_____.

4A-21.303 Standard Service Tag.

(1) A standard service tag shall be affixed to pre-engineered fire protection systems when the system is found to be in compliance with Chapter 633, F.S., this rule and the standards adopted pursuant to Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code herein. The standard service tag on a pre-engineered fire protection system shall indicate that the person, whose name and permit number appear on the tag, has serviced the system in compliance with this rule and the standards adopted herein.

(2) through (3) No change.

(4) The verification service collar requirements ~~internal tag requirements~~ of Rule 4A-21.241(2) shall be applicable to pre-engineered fire protection systems.

(5) through (6) No change.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.01, 633.071, 633.081 FS. History—New 8-15-85, Formerly 4A-21.58, 4A-21.058, Amended 2-7-89, 10-20-93,_____.

4A-21.304 Installation; Service.

(1) No change.

(2) Whenever a pre-engineered system is installed, inspected, repaired, maintained or otherwise serviced, the permittee shall complete an inspection report containing, at a

minimum, the information in paragraphs (a) through (o), in this subsection. One copy shall be signed by and delivered to the owner or the representative of the owner of the facility in which the system was installed. The other copy shall be retained in the fire equipment dealer's files for a period of not less than three years after the last inspection.

- (a) through (d) No change.
- (e) Method, style and degree of actuation;
- (f) Reference to drawing number ~~or, and~~ page number, and date of ~~in~~ the manufacturer's manual;

(g) through (j) No change.

(k) A drawing of a new installation; a first inspection; or whenever changes are made. The drawing shall include the following as a minimum:

- 1. Sizes of the hood, plenum, and ducts.
- 2. Sizes, types and locations of cooking appliances.
- 3. Positions of all nozzles, identification of nozzles, their distances from the hazards that they protect.
- 4. Positions of all detectors.
- 5. Diagram of the entire piping installation.

6. ~~(The drawing shall include the size of the hood and the size of the ducts); and the size and type of all appliances protected;~~

(l) through (n) No change.

(o) The permittee's name, signature and permit number; the date and time of inspection; and the customer's signature.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.01, 633.071, 633.081 FS. History—New 2-7-89, Amended 10-20-93, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: James Goodloe, Chief, Bureau of Fire Prevention, Division of State Fire Marshal

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Charles D. Clark, Director, Division of State Fire Marshal, Department of Insurance

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: March 8, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 26, 2001

DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE

Division of State Fire Marshal

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Fire Protection System Contractors and Systems

RULE CHAPTER NO.: 4A-46

RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
Testing	4A-46.015
Insurance Requirements	4A-46.016
Required Continuing Education	4A-46.017

Standards of the National Fire Protection Association to be Complied With 4A-46.035

Installation Requirements for Automatic Sprinkler Systems Employing Water as the Extinguishing Agent 4A-46.040

Inspection, Testing and Maintenance Requirements for Fire Protection Systems 4A-46.041

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The changes have the following purposes and effects:

1. Update editions of National Fire Protection Association, Code of Federal Regulations, and other sources previously adopted.
2. Streamline and update requirements for taking courses and examinations in conjunction with the Florida State Fire College to make them more easily accessible by the public.
3. Make technical changes such as changing the outdated name of the Section to the current name.
4. Update rules to accommodate changes in the statutes.
5. Repeal unnecessary and/or outdated rule sections, subsections, and paragraphs.

SUMMARY: These rules update standards, accommodate changes in statutes, and streamline and update requirements for taking courses for Fire Protection System Contractors and Systems.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: No Statement of Estimated Regulatory Costs has been prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 633.01(1), 633.517 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 471.025, 553.79, 633.051, 633.065, 633.082, 633.521, 633.539, 633.547 FS.

A RULE HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW.

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., April 30, 2001

PLACE: Room 116, Larson Building, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Terry Hawkins, Safety Program Manager, Regulatory Licensing Section, Bureau of Fire Prevention, Division of State Fire Marshal, Bureau of Fire Prevention, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0342, (850)413-3644

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this program, please advise the Department at least 5 calendar days before the program by contacting Millicent King, (850)413-3619.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

4A-46.015 Testing.

(1) An applicant who has been qualified to challenge an examination will be notified in writing of available examination dates and examination locations at a division district office. Upon receipt of a written request for a specific examination date, the applicant will be sent a notice of exam date, time and location at least seven days prior to the scheduled exam. The applicant will be expected to challenge the exam on that day unless he or she submits a written waiver of his or her right to challenge the exam on that day and requests a later date. The Regulatory Licensing License and Statistics Section will schedule an applicant for a later day upon receipt of a written request. The applicant will also be permitted to challenge the examination at the Regulatory Licensing License and Statistics Section's offices in Tallahassee if the applicant makes a request for such testing in writing and receives written notification when the next available scheduled examination will be held in Tallahassee.

Specific Authority 633.01, 633.517(1) FS. Law Implemented 633.521 FS. History—New 10-14-86, Amended 12-21-88, 8-1-90, 10-20-93, 10-2-96, 6-8-98,_____

4A-46.016 Insurance Requirements.

(1) The Fire Protection System Contractor I, II, III, IV, or V licensed pursuant to Section 633.521, Florida Statutes, shall provide evidence of current and subsisting insurance coverage meeting the requirements of Section 633.521, Florida Statutes, to the Regulatory Licensing Section State Fire Marshal on Form DI4A-25, Certificate of Insurance Fire Protection System Contractor, revised and dated 10/99 8/93, as adopted and incorporated herein by reference. This form is available from the Regulatory Licensing and Statistics Section, Bureau of Fire Prevention, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0342 32399-0300.

(2) The licensed Fire Protection System Contractor I, II, III, IV, or V shall be responsible to ensure current and subsisting insurance coverage meeting the requirements of Section 633.521, Florida Statutes, is on file with the Regulatory Licensing Section State Fire Marshal.

(3) Failure to provide evidence of insurance coverage within 30 days of the expiration date of the policy or within 30 days of a notice to provide evidence of coverage shall result in administrative proceedings pursuant to Section 633.547, Florida Statutes.

Specific Authority 633.01, 633.517(1) FS. Law Implemented 633.521, 633.521(4) FS. History—New 10-20-93, Amended_____.

4A-46.017 Required Continuing Education.

(1) Certificateholders shall complete a continuing education course or combination of courses in compliance with Section 633.537, Florida Statutes, within each license period year which begins July 1 and expires June 30.

(2) The continuing education course or combination of courses shall be in a fire protection discipline related to the Certificate of Competency held by the Fire Protection System Contractor. All licensed Fire Protection System Contractors are required to complete at least one hour of workplace safety class, one hour of business practices class, and one hour of a worker's compensation class as part of the required continuing education for each biennial renewal period. This course or combination of courses shall be a total of 24 contact hours in duration.

(3) The course or combination of courses shall be conducted by persons approved by the Regulatory Licensing Section Division. Approval of such persons shall be based on the person's training, experience and expertise in fire protection under Florida law. The instructor must be qualified by education or experience to teach the course, or parts of a course to which the instructor is assigned. Any person with a four year college or graduate degree is qualified to teach any course in his or her field of study. Any state certified fire protection system contractor with at least five years' experience may teach any technical course within the scope of the contractor license held; however, no contractor whose license is suspended or revoked as a result of administrative action shall teach or serve as a continuing education instructor. The Regulatory Licensing Section is not permitted to reject a course based upon the proposed instructor, but is permitted to approve a course contingent on certification that all instructors meet those minimum requirements before conducting the course and before advertising that the course is approved for continuing education credit.

(4) Written instructional materials and any audio-visual aids must provide instruction relevant to fire protection under Florida law.

(5) The course or combination of courses shall be approved by the Regulatory Licensing Section Division. The Regulatory Licensing Section Division shall approve any course, seminar, or conference in the technical areas provided by any university, community college, vocational-technical center, public or private school, firm, association, person, corporation or entity which meets the criteria provided in this rule.

(6) The course or combination of courses shall be approved by the Regulatory Licensing Section. The number of contact hours assigned to any course shall be determined by the Regulatory Licensing Section based on the course content and length of the course. Courses shall be submitted for approval for credit toward the continuing education requirement.

(a) Requests for approval shall be submitted on Form DI4-1239 03/00 (6/97), "Request for Approval of Fire Protection System Contractor Continuing Education Coursework" as adopted and incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Forms are available from and submissions shall be sent to: Regulatory Licensing and Statistics Section, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0342.

(c) Each certificateholder shall be notified by the Regulatory Licensing and Statistics Section, in writing if the coursework does not satisfy the continuing education requirement in Section 633.537, Florida Statutes. No notification will be given over the telephone.

(d) The application shall include the total number of classroom or interactive distance learning hours, the course syllabus, a detailed outline of the contents of the course, the name and qualifications of all instructors. The Regulatory Licensing Section shall approve continuing education courses which appropriately relate to the technical skills required of fire protection contractors and contain sufficient educational content to improve the quality of the contractor's performance and are taught by qualified instructors. Continuing education coursework approval shall be valid for two years from the date of issue, provided that no substantial change is made in the approved coursework.

1. The total number of classroom hours,
 2. The course outline of the contents of the course,
 3. The name and qualifications of instructors,
 4. A written description of any audio-visual aids, and
 5. A copy of any instructional materials or handouts must be attached.

(e) The number of classroom hours must be devoted to course content and does not include registration periods, meals, and keynote speakers or similar nonsubstantive time periods.

(f) Examples of courses which will be approved if the criteria and procedures of this rule are met:

1. Florida Fire Sprinkler Association meetings;
2. American Fire Sprinkler Association meetings;
3. NFPA meetings and seminars; and
4. training sessions conducted by manufacturers.

(g) The Regulatory Licensing Section Division shall approve continuing education courses within 90 days from the date of receipt. Such approval will be based upon the submission of coursework which related to the technical skills of the fire protection system contractors which contain educational content to improve the quality of work being performed which relate to the technical fire protection skills of certificateholders which contain educational content to improve the quality of a contractor's fire protection performance.

(h) Each approved course will be assigned a course number and the course will be identified by course title as submitted and the number of continuing education hours awarded. A listing of approved courses will be available from the Regulatory Licensing Section, the course list will include the course number, the course title, the course submitter and the type course.

~~(i)(h)~~ Within 90 days of At the conclusion of each approved course, the organization or person offering the course shall inform the Regulatory Licensing Section division that the course was completed and shall supply the Regulatory Licensing Section Division with a sign-in sheet or roster. The sign-in sheet or roster shall contain: require every person to print their name, list their contractor's certificate number and sign their name.

1. The course name;
2. The course number;
3. The course provider;
4. The date the course was offered;
5. The duration of the course;
6. The contractor's name;
7. The contractor's license number;
8. The contractor's signature.

For interactive distance learning courses, in lieu of the original sign-in sheet required above, the course provider shall maintain and provide a record of the registration login, course access log, and course completion, which shall include the information required in subparagraphs 1. through 7., above. In lieu of providing a document bearing the contractor's signature, the course provider shall provide the contractor's identity verification data which shall include the contractor's password and the contractor's mother's maiden name.

~~(j)(i)~~ Each person who completes an approved course shall be issued a certificate of completion by the course provider. The certificate of completion shall contain the name of the person who completed the course, the course provider's name, the course name as approved by the Regulatory Licensing Section, the course number, the date the course was taken, the number of continuing education hours awarded for the course as approved for the course by the Regulatory Licensing Section. The course provider shall maintain a list of the names and license number of each person who completes each course conducted by the course provider for four years from the date of the course. Each person who completes an approved course shall be issued a certificate of completion. The certificate of completion shall contain the name and license number of the person who completed the course. The certificate shall include the name of the course and the course number assigned by the Division.

(7) Each certificateholder is responsible for attending the appropriate course or courses and for maintaining proof of completion of the course or courses. Such proof shall be in the form of copies of certificates of completion awarded. The Regulatory Licensing and Statistics Section will not accept any proof of completion except that submitted in accordance with subsection (8) below.

(8) Prior to the annual expiration of the Certificate of Competency, the certificateholder shall submit proof of completion of the required course or courses to the Regulatory Licensing and Statistics Section. Submissions shall be

submitted on a "Fire Protection System Contractor Continuing Education Coursework" form, DI4-1240 (03/00) ~~(8/96)~~ as adopted and incorporated herein by reference. Forms are available from and submissions shall be sent to: Regulatory Licensing and Statistics Section, 200 East Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0342. Each certificateholder will be notified by the Regulatory Licensing and Statistics Section, in writing, if the coursework does not satisfy the continuing education requirement in Section 633.537, Florida Statutes. No notification will be given over the telephone.

(9) No change.

Specific Authority 633.01, 633.517(1) FS. Law Implemented 633.521, 633.537 FS. History—New 10-2-96, Amended 6-18-97, 6-8-98, _____.

4A-46.035 Standards of the National Fire Protection Association to be Complied With.

(1) The following standards of the National Fire Protection Association which are hereby adopted in rule chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code, including the editions as adopted therein, and incorporated herein by reference shall be complied with by all those holding certificates of competency as fire protection system contractors pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 633, Florida Statutes:

(a) NFPA 11, ~~1994 Edition~~, Standard for Low Expansion Foam and Combined Agent Systems.

(b) NFPA 11A, ~~1994 Edition~~, Standard for Medium and High Expansion Foam Systems.

(c) NFPA 12, ~~1993 Edition~~, Standard on Carbon Dioxide Extinguishing Systems.

(d) NFPA 12A, ~~1992 Edition~~, Standard on Halon 1301 Fire Extinguishing Systems.

~~(e) NFPA 12B, 1990 Edition, Standard on Halon 1211 Fire Extinguishing Systems.~~

~~(e)(f) NFPA 13, 1994 Edition, Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems.~~

~~(f)(g) NFPA 13D, 1991 Edition, Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in One- and Two-Family Dwellings and Manufactured Mobile Homes.~~

~~(g)(h) NFPA 14, 1996 Edition, Standard for the Installation of Standpipe and Hose Systems.~~

~~(h)(i) NFPA 15, 1990 Edition, Standard for Water Spray Fixed Systems for Fire Protection.~~

~~(i)(j) NFPA 16, 1995 Edition, Standard for the Installation of for Deluge Foam-Water Sprinkler Systems and Foam-Water Spray Systems.~~

~~(j)(k) NFPA 17, 1994 Edition, Standard for Dry Chemical Extinguishing Systems.~~

~~(k)(l) NFPA 17A, 1994 Edition, Standard on Wet Chemical Extinguishing Systems.~~

~~(l)(m) NFPA 20, 1993 Edition, Standard for the Installation of Centrifugal Fire Pumps.~~

~~(m)(n) NFPA 22, 1996 Edition, Standard for Water Tanks for Private Fire Protection.~~

~~(n)(o) NFPA 24, 1995 Edition, Standard for the Installation of Private Fire Service Mains and Their Appurtenances.~~

~~(o)(p) NFPA 72, 1993 Edition, National Fire Alarm Code Standard for the Installation, Maintenance and Use of Protective Signalling Systems.~~

~~(p)(q) NFPA 96, 1994 Edition, Standard for Ventilation Control and Fire Protection of Commercial Cooking Operations. Section 7-2.2 of NFPA 96 applies prospectively only. Existing installations are permitted to remain in place subject to the approval of the authority having jurisdiction.~~

~~(q)(r) NFPA 214, 1992 Edition, Standard for Water Cooling Towers.~~

~~(s) NFPA 231, 1995 Edition, Standard for General Storage Indoor.~~

~~(t) NFPA 231C, 1995 Edition, Standard for Rack Storage of Materials.~~

~~(r)(u) NFPA 231D, 1994 Edition, Standard for Storage of Rubber Tires.~~

~~(s)(v) NFPA 232, 1995 Edition, Standard for Protection of Records Record Protection.~~

~~(t)(w) NFPA 409, 1995 Edition, Standard on Aircraft Hangars for Protection of Aircraft Hangars.~~

~~(u)(x) NFPA 13R, 1994 Edition, Standard for the Installation of Sprinkler Systems in Residential Occupancies up to and including four Stories in Height.~~

~~(v)(y) NFPA 25, 1995 Edition, Standard for the inspection, testing, and maintenance of Water-based Fire Protection Systems, except that quarterly flow tests will be required for those systems supplied by a municipal water supply.~~

~~(w)(z) NFPA 2001, 1996 Edition, Standard on Clean Agent Fire Extinguishing Systems.~~

(x) NFPA 230, Standard on Fire Protection of Storage.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 633.01, 633.051, 633.065, 633.082 FS. History—New 12-21-88, Amended 7-19-89, 8-1-90, 10-20-93, 10-2-96, 6-8-98, _____.

4A-46.040 Installation Requirements for Automatic Sprinkler Systems Employing Water as the Extinguishing Agent.

(1) Fire protection system contractors installing an automatic sprinkler system employing water as the extinguishing agent shall supervise and be responsible for the complete system, except that a contractor installing the underground pipe shall supervise and be responsible only for the portion he or she installs and the contractor installing the remaining portion of the system shall be responsible only for his or her portion of the work. The contractor shall be responsible to install the complete system in compliance with the National Fire Protection Association standards adopted pursuant to Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code Rule 4A 46.035, except that if a contractor installs the

underground pipe he or she shall be responsible for that portion of the system, and the contractor installing the remaining portion shall be responsible for the system from the point of connection to the underground throughout the remainder of the system.

(2) No change.

(3) In order to ensure that sufficient water is available at the point-of-service to provide the water inside the facility as required by the plans, the contractor who installs the underground portion shall be responsible for conducting the acceptance tests required by ~~Section 1-11~~, NFPA 13 and shall personally, sign and maintain on file the Contractor's Material and Test Certificate for Underground Piping as specified in NFPA 13, as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code 4A-46.035.

(a) If the above ground pipe is installed by a contractor other than the one who installed the underground, the contractor shall be responsible to obtain a copy of the underground certificate from the underground contractor and maintain it on file before connection to the underground is made. If the contractor is unable to obtain the certificate, the contractor ~~he~~ shall notify the Regulatory Licensing Section State Fire Marshal.

(4) through (5) No change.

(6) The contractor whose name appears on the application for the building permit shall be responsible for the acceptance tests which are required in NFPA 13, ~~Section 1-11~~. The contractor shall complete all portions of the Contractor's Material and Test Certificate(s) that are related to the system being tested. The contractor shall sign and date the test certificates. In cases where there is no ~~may not be~~ a building permit, the contractor that supervised the installation shall be responsible for the performance of these duties.

(7) through (8) No change.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 471.025, 553.79(6), 633.065, 633.547(2)(e), 633.539 FS. History--New 12-21-88, Amended 8-1-90, 10-20-93, _____.

4A-46.041 Inspection, Testing and Maintenance Requirements for Fire Protection Systems.

The contractor I or II shall submit in writing to the Regulatory Licensing Section State Fire Marshal the names, addresses, and evidence of NFPA 25 training and addresses of all individuals in his or her employ that are performing inspections of fire protection systems. In addition, the licensed contractor I or II shall submit a full face current color passport photograph of each inspector along with a copy of the inspector's current driver's license or identification card issued by the Florida Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles. The contractor shall not allow any individual to perform inspections under his or her certificate until that individual has been listed with the Regulatory Licensing Section State Fire Marshal. The Regulatory Licensing Section shall issue a identification card to each inspector. The identification card is

not a license. The contractor shall be responsible for each listed individual's inspections until he or she has requested in writing that the Regulatory Licensing Section State Fire Marshal delete the individual from his or her list of inspectors. The licensed fire protection system contractor shall notify the Regulatory Licensing Section, in writing, of an inspector leaving his or her employ within fifteen days of the termination. An inspector photo identification card of an individual leaving the employ of a contractor becomes void and inoperative on the date of departure.

(1) A Fire Protection Contractor contracting to perform inspecting, testing, and maintenance service on a fire protection system shall comply with the requirements of the applicable NFPA standard as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code 4A-46.035.

(2) Each system that has been inspected, tested, or maintained by a fire protection contractor, or his or her designated inspector, shall have a record tag of durable and weather resistant material placed on the riser or control device. The tag at "Figure A" shall include the following:

(a) Name, address and contractor license number ~~and address~~ of company.

(b) through (f) No change.

(3) The contractor shall maintain in his or her file all records of any fire protection system having been serviced.

(4) No change.

(5) The contractor or the his designated inspector shall complete in detail the an inspection reports as required in NFPA 25, as adopted in Rule Chapter 4A-3, Florida Administrative Code ~~report~~ that outlines all points of the inspection, test, and maintenance as required by the applicable NFPA standards. A copy of which shall be provided to given to the owner at the completion of each inspection performed.

(6) The inspection report shall include detailed explanation of any deficiencies. The report shall indicate if the inspection is a weekly, monthly, quarterly or annual inspection. The inspection report shall include the name of the registered inspector, the inspector registration number, signature, the date and time of inspection, and the signature of the owner or the owner's representative.

Specific Authority 633.01 FS. Law Implemented 471.025, 553.79(6), 633.065, 633.547(2)(e) FS. History--New 10-20-93, Amended _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
James Goodloe, Chief, Bureau of Fire Prevention, Division of State Fire Marshal

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Charles D. Clark, Director, Division of State Fire Marshal, Department of Insurance

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: March 8, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: January 26, 2001

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

Florida Communities Trust

RULE CHAPTER TITLE:	RULE CHAPTER NO.:
Florida Forever Program	9K-7
RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
Purpose	9K-7.001
Definitions	9K-7.002
General Requirements and Eligibility Standards	9K-7.003
Submission of Application and Application Materials	9K-7.004
Communications to the Governing Board	9K-7.005
Determination of Application Completeness	9K-7.006
Project Evaluation Criteria	9K-7.007
Ranking and Selection of Applications	9K-7.008
Conceptual Approval of Projects	9K-7.009
Modification to the Project Boundary	9K-7.010
Preparation and Acceptance of the Management Plan	9K-7.011
Title, Acquisition Procedures, Project Plans, Lease Agreements and Transfer of Title	9K-7.012
Annual Stewardship Report Requirement	9K-7.013

PURPOSE, EFFECT AND SUMMARY: The purpose of this rule is to establish Florida Communities Trust grant application procedures using Florida Forever funds. The purpose of the program described in this rule chapter is to provide grants to Local Governments and Nonprofit Environmental Organizations for the acquisition of community-based projects, urban open spaces, natural resource conservation areas, parks, greenways, and outdoor recreation areas to implement Local Comprehensive Plans.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 380.507(11) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 120.55(1)(a)4., 259.105, 380.501-.515 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 1:00 p.m., Monday, April 30, 2001

PLACE: Randall Kelley Training Center, Room 305, Sadowski Building, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100

Any person requiring special accommodation at the hearing because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Janice Browning, Executive Director, Florida Communities Trust, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100, (850)922-2207, Suncom 292-2207, at least seven days before the date of the hearing. If you are hearing or

speech impaired, please contact the Department of Community Affairs using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) or 1(800)955-8771 (TDD)

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Janice Browning, Executive Director, Florida Communities Trust, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100 (850)922-2207, Suncom 292-2207

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

9K-7.001 Purpose.

This rule chapter sets forth the procedures that must be followed for grant applications for Florida Forever funds awarded by Florida Communities Trust.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.501-.515 FS. History—New _____.

9K-7.002 Definitions.

(1) “Acquisition” means the act of obtaining real property or interests and rights therein by appropriate legal means in furtherance of The Florida Forever Act and this rule chapter.

(2) “Acquisition Plan” applies to Project Sites with multiple parcels or multiple owners and means a written description of the priority parcels and the general order in which the parcels will be acquired to assure that, in the event that all parcels cannot be acquired, the purposes of the project can be achieved.

(3) “Applicant” means an entity(ies) eligible pursuant to this rule chapter to submit an Application for Florida Forever funds through the Trust. Eligible entities are limited to Local Governments, Nonprofit Environmental Organizations, and partnerships between or among Local Governments and Nonprofit Environmental Organizations. An Applicant who has been approved for funding by the Trust and who has executed a Conceptual Approval Agreement with the Trust shall also be referred to as a Recipient.

(4) “Application” means a formal request by an Applicant on an approved form for Florida Forever funds from the Florida Trust, and consisting of a project proposal together with required documentation submitted pursuant to this rule chapter.

(5) “Award” means a grant from the Trust pursuant to the procedures developed in this rule chapter.

(6) “Board of Trustees” means the Governor and Cabinet sitting as the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund.

(7) “Conceptual Approval Agreement” means a written contract between the Trust and the Recipient setting forth the requirements and responsibilities for Acquisition and management of the Project Site.

(8) “Department” means the Florida Department of Community Affairs.

(9) “Donation” means a voluntary transfer of title and possession of cash or real property without consideration; the conveyance of land by the owner at a purchase price below its market value can be considered a donation of a portion of the purchase price only when the owner expresses the intent, in advance of purchase and sale negotiations, to make a bargain sale, with no conditions placed on the bargain sale or donation.

(10) “Florida Forever Funds” means proceeds from the Florida Forever Trust Fund created by Section 259.1051, F.S., and distributed to the Department of Community Affairs pursuant to Sections 259.105(3)(c) and 380.5115, F.S., for the purpose of providing Acquisition Awards through the Florida Communities Trust Florida Forever Program.

(11) “Future Land Use Map” means a map or map series included within the future land use element of a local comprehensive plan that meets the requirements of Rule 9J-5.006(4), F.A.C.

(12) “Governing Board” means that six-member governing body described in Sections 380.504 and 380.505, F.S.; the powers of the Trust are vested in its Governing Board members, pursuant to Section 380.505, F.S.

(13) “Grant Award Agreement” means a recordable document that states all conditions to be placed on the Project Site upon its conveyance to the Recipient using Trust Funds.

(14) “Greenway” means a linear open space protected and managed as part of linked conservation lands or recreation opportunities. Greenways typically follow natural landscape features such as rivers, streams, shorelines, man-made corridors such as utility and abandoned railroad right-of-ways, and scenic roadways or any area defined in Section 260.13, F.S. Greenways may protect the habitat of native plants and wildlife, maintain wildlife movement routes and natural connections, or provide opportunities for outdoor recreation.

(15) “Habitat” means a natural community or communities composed of physical and biological elements that typically support populations of plants and animals.

(16) “Listed Animal Species” means animal species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission in Chapter 68A-27, F.A.C.

(17) “Local Comprehensive Plan” means a plan that meets the requirements of Sections 163.3177, 163.3178, and 163.3191, F.S., and has been found to be in compliance in accordance with Section 163.3184, F.S.

(18) “Local Government” means a county or a municipality within the State.

(19) “Low-income Community” means a U.S. Census tract where 51 percent of the residents are low-income families with an annual income that does not exceed 80 percent of the median income for the area or that does not exceed 80 percent of the median income for the State, whichever is higher, as most recently determined by U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development.

(20) “Management Plan” means a plan prepared by the Recipient under this rule chapter and approved by the Trust regarding the long-term care and management of the Project Site.

(21) “Match” means the provision of cash, eligible Project Costs, value of real property donated by a party(ies) other than the Applicant, or real property owned by the Applicant, provided the Match is from an eligible source as set forth in Section 259.105(3)(c), F.S.

(22) “Natural Community” means a community that is dominated by native plant species as described in the Florida Natural Areas Inventory publication, “Guide to the Natural Communities of Florida.” A Natural Community generally possesses the following characteristics: the plant species composition includes most of the more common species typical of that natural community type; the community may contain small areas of exotic or invasive plants that could be easily controlled by prescribed burning or other forms of management; evidence of historical disturbance may be present but disturbance has not destroyed or prevented the re-establishment of a mature natural community type; and, the community is not substantially disturbed by recent human activities, except for such disturbance as low intensity forestry activities that allow the natural community to recover to previous conditions.

(23) “Nonprofit Environmental Organization” means any private nonprofit organization, existing under the provisions of Section 501(c)(3) of the United States Internal Revenue Code which has and can demonstrate that the conservation of natural resources or protection of the environment are among its principal purposes and goals.

(24) “Outdoor Recreation” means the pursuit of leisure-time activities that occur in an outdoor setting and that are dependent on some particular element or combination of elements in the natural environment. Examples of such activities include bicycling, walking, hiking, skating, swimming, horseback riding, boating, camping, fishing, hunting, picnicking, studying nature, and visiting archaeological and historical sites.

(25) “Partnership Application” means an Application for an Award submitted to the Trust by two or more eligible Applicants.

(26) “Phased Project” means the phased continuation of a project which has been approved for funding by the Trust in a prior funding cycle. A Phased Project is generally characterized as a unified project but which, as a result of numerous owners, unique or linear configuration, or funding limitations, causes the project to be difficult or burdensome to develop and complete during a single funding cycle of the Trust and is instead developed as part of two or more Trust funding cycles.

(27) “Pre-acquired” means the Project Site or a portion of the Project Site has been or will be acquired by the Applicant through a voluntarily-negotiated transaction within 24 months prior to or 18 months after the Application deadline.

(28) “Project Cost” means the total of all eligible costs associated with the Acquisition of the Project Site in accordance with this rule chapter and Chapter 9K-8, F.A.C., and may include the cost of the following items: purchase price for Acquisition of all or a portion of the Project Site; Certified Survey containing an adequate legal description of the Project Site; any assessment or examination essential and necessary to determine Project Site boundary, if any; appraisal report(s) and appraisal review of the Project Site; title report and title insurance premium; reasonable real estate fees or commissions paid by the Recipient for Acquisition and environmental site assessment(s) performed pursuant to Rule 9K-8.012, F.A.C.

(29) “Project Plan” means the compilation of items to be approved by the Trust that when taken together provide a detailed description of a proposed project that has received conceptual approval for an Award from the Trust; a Project Plan shall be prepared by the Recipient pursuant to the requirements of this rule chapter and Chapter 9K-8, F.A.C., and shall be approved by the Trust prior to disbursement of Florida Forever Funds.

(30) “Project Site” means the specific area(s), defined by a boundary map or legal description and Certified Survey, where Trust funds are proposed in an Application to be used for all or a portion of the Acquisition. Project Site may include non-contiguous areas, so long as connectivity through other public ownership (excluding road right-of-ways and water bodies unless parcels are directly across from each other) is demonstrated, and the non-contiguous areas are part of a unified scheme of development and management.

(31) “Reasonable Assurance” means the Applicant’s ability to demonstrate to the Trust that there is a substantial likelihood that the project will be successfully implemented and managed in accordance with the Application and the Conceptual Approval Agreement, and may include the Trust’s inquiry into: the Applicant’s current and prospective financial condition; the Applicant’s history in acquiring, developing and managing similar projects; the Applicant’s financial commitment to the subject project as evidenced by the amount and type of any Match in the form of monies or real estate; and the character and background of the Applicant’s partners, directors, officers, managers, project administrators, controlling shareholders (if applicable), and appointed or elected officials.

(32) “Recipient” means an Applicant that has been approved for funding by the Trust and who has executed a Conceptual Approval Agreement with the Trust for an Award.

(33) “Recreational Trail System” means a linear corridor and any adjacent support parcels connecting parks, schools, residential, commercial, or retail areas on land providing

public access for recreation and authorized alternative modes of transportation such as bicycling, walking, hiking, skating, and horseback riding.

(34) “Reimbursement” means recognition of those eligible Project Costs incurred for Pre-acquired parcel(s) either for a one parcel Project Site or at the Acquisition of additional parcels. Project Site.

(35) “Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area” or “Metropolitan Statistical Area” means an area that has been defined or designated by the United States Census Bureau or by the Office of Management and Budget of the Executive Office of the President.

(36) “Trust” means the Florida Communities Trust, a nonregulatory agency and instrumentality, which is a public body corporate and politic, created within the Department of Community Affairs pursuant to Chapter 380, Part III, F.S., or the Governing Board of the Florida Communities Trust.

(37) “Urban Area” means an area of or for development characterized by social, economic and institutional activities which are predominantly based on the manufacture, production, distribution, or provision of goods and services in a setting which typically includes residential and nonresidential development uses other than those which are characteristic of rural areas.

(38) “Urban Service Area” means built-up areas where public facilities and services such as sewage treatment systems, roads, schools, and recreation areas, are already in place. For the purpose of this rule, it may also include other similar designations that have been formally adopted by a local government on its Future Land Use Map, or it may be an area that is currently provided services such as those listed above.

(39) “Voluntarily-Negotiated Transaction” means an arm’s length market value transaction between a willing seller and a willing buyer. The use of condemnation or the threat of condemnation is not considered a Voluntarily-Negotiated Transaction.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.501-.515 FS. History–New _____.

9K-7.003 General Requirements and Eligibility Standards. The following constitutes the general procedures for the Florida Forever Program of the Florida Communities Trust.

(1) Application Form. Application Form FF-1 (eff. 5-1-01) is prescribed for use with these rules and is incorporated by reference. Applications for funding must be submitted on Application Form FF-1. A copy, or instructions for receiving the Application Form in an electronic format, may be obtained by writing to the Executive Director, Florida Communities Trust, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399-2100, or by calling 850-922-2207 (SunCom 292-2207). As a part of the Application process the Trust may request supplementary information from Applicants.

(2) Notice of Application Period. The Trust shall announce the amount of Florida Forever bond funds available for Awards, the limitation on Award amounts, and applicable deadlines in the Notice of Application Period published in the Florida Administrative Weekly.

(3) Limitation of Awards. The amount of any Award or combination of Awards applied for by any Applicant under any Application(s) or Partnership Application(s) for a project or projects shall not exceed ten percent of the total Florida Forever Funds as advertised available for Awards in the Notice of Application Period announcing the cycle.

(4) Match Requirement. All Local Governments shall provide a minimum of 25 percent match toward the Project Costs, including:

(a) Partnership Applications between Local Governments (other than a small Local Government as defined in Rule 9K-7.003(4)(c)1., F.A.C., below) and Nonprofit Environmental Organizations shall be required to provide a Match.

(b) Partnership Applications between two or more Local Governments shall be required to provide a Match unless all of the Local Governments are small Local Governments as defined in Rule 9K-7.003(4)(c)1., F.A.C., below.

(c) A minimum Match shall not be required under the following circumstances:

1. The Trust shall award a portion of the Florida Forever funds for Awards, for which no Match is required, for the benefit of small Local Governments, as follows: county governments with populations of 75,000 or fewer and municipal governments with populations of 10,000 or fewer.

2. The Trust shall award a portion of the Florida Forever funds for Awards, for which no Match is required, for the benefit of Nonprofit Environmental Organizations that have provided the Trust with Reasonable Assurance that they can develop and manage the Project Site in a qualified, competent and professional manner.

(5) Eligible Sources of Match. For any Match, Applicant may use funds generated by a Local Government, Nonprofit Environmental Organization, state or federal grants or loans, private cash donations, or the commitment by the Owner(s) in advance of negotiations of the value of a bargain sale or donation of all or part of the purchase price of the Project Site. Applicants may not use funds from the Florida Forever Trust Fund for any part of any local Match. Real property owned by the Applicant or donated by a party other than the Applicant may be an eligible source for a Match, provided that any real property owned by the Applicant has been acquired, by the Applicant through a Voluntarily-Negotiated Transaction, within 24 months prior to or 18 months after the Application deadline. Further, any real property utilized by an Applicant as a Match must be included in the Application, shall be

considered part of the Project Site and shall be subject to the same conditions that placed on the remainder of the Project Site.

(6) Site Acquisition. The Acquisition of a Project Site shall take place under one of the following procedures:

(a) For a Project Site that consists of five or fewer ownerships, the Recipient can request that the Trust or the Recipient act as the party responsible for the Acquisition activities.

(b) For a Project Site that consists of six or more ownerships, the Recipient will be required to act as the party responsible for the Acquisition activities.

(7) Site Management. Each Applicant is required to provide a Management Plan as outlined in this rule chapter. To ensure that future management funds will be available for the management of the site in perpetuity pursuant to Section 259.105, F.S., and Chapter 380, Part III, F.S., the Applicant shall be required to provide the Trust with Reasonable Assurance that they have the financial resources, background, qualifications and competence to manage the Project Site in perpetuity in a reasonable and professional manner. Where the Application or Partnership Application does not include at least one Local Government, the Trust shall: require the Recipient to post a performance or other bond in an amount sufficient to insure performance by the Recipient that the Project Site shall be reasonably and professionally managed in perpetuity; require the Recipient to establish an endowment or other fund in an amount sufficient to insure performance; require a guaranty or pledge by the Local Government, in whose jurisdiction the Project Site is located, which shall require the Local Government to take over the responsibility for management of the Project Site in the event the Nonprofit Environmental Organization is unable to; require the Local Government to be a named co-signer on the Grant Award Agreement; or require such other assurances as the governing board may deem necessary to adequately protect the public interest.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 720.55(1)(a)4., 259.105, 380.501-.515 FS. History—New _____.

9K-7.004 Submission of Application and Application Materials.

(1) Applications must be submitted by mail or delivery to the Executive Director, Florida Communities Trust, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399-2100. To be timely submitted, Applications must be received on or before the published Application deadline.

(2) Deadlines for submitting Applications shall be announced in the Florida Administrative Weekly at least 75 days prior to each deadline.

(3) Applications must be transmitted with an original signature cover letter on Applicant's letterhead, signed by the appropriate representative, official or administrator, binding the Applicant to fulfill the commitments made in the

Application, and identifying the employee or representative that will act as the key contact between the Trust and the Applicant(s).

(4) Applicants must submit six complete sets of Application materials. One set shall contain original text and non-text items. The remaining five sets shall contain legible copies of text and non-text items, unless otherwise specified in the Application form.

(5) Applications received after the published deadline shall not be considered by the Trust unless an exception for good cause is made by the Executive Director of the Trust. Good cause shall be based on whether the Applicant made diligent effort to provide the Application on or before the published deadline, but due to the failure of the delivery service the Application was not timely received.

(6) To receive consideration by the Trust, all Applicants must submit a completed Application Form FF-1, and provide the following information as exhibits to the Application:

(a) Copy of each Local Comprehensive Plan objective and policy cited or relied upon in the Application.

(b) All proposed text and map amendments to the Local Comprehensive Plan cited or relied upon in the Application as pertaining to the Project Site.

(c) United States Geological Survey 7 1/2 minute quadrangle map with the boundary of the Project Site clearly delineated.

(d) County Tax Appraiser's map clearly delineating property boundaries, access points, names of the property owners, and parcel tax identification numbers, and ownership boundaries using an appropriate scale.

(e) Aerial photograph (1 inch = 2,000 feet or greater detail) with the Project Site boundary clearly delineated.

(f) Natural Communities map of an appropriate scale that depicts the Natural Communities on the Project Site, utilizing the Florida Natural Areas Inventory classification system and providing the approximate acreage of the various Natural Communities.

(g) Physical improvements map of an appropriate scale that clearly delineates all existing physical improvements, alterations, or disturbances occurring on the Project Site, and including all cleared areas, buildings, roads, fences, docks, power lines, billboards, borrow pits, manmade lakes and excavations, and known easements and rights-of-ways, and the approximate acreage of the foregoing.

(h) Future Land Use Map covering the Project Site and surrounding area that indicates future land use designations and which clearly delineates the Project Site boundaries.

(i) Resource conservation, open space, and outdoor recreation map that identifies the Project Site and surrounding lands in a five-mile radius that are used for natural resource conservation and outdoor recreation and including all parks, preserves, wildlife management areas, greenways, trails, linkages and designated outdoor recreation areas.

(j) Map depicting any applicable 100-year floodplain, coastal high-hazard area, or wellfield protection zone with the boundary of the Project Site clearly delineated.

(k) Conceptual site plan that clearly delineates the project site boundary and shows the approximate location of all proposed site improvements.

(l) One set of labeled photographs of the Project Site which depict all on-site features on the Project Site and including Natural Communities, waterbodies, shorelines, plants, Habitat, unique biological or geological features, and historical or archaeological features. Each photograph submitted shall include a legend that identifies the photograph location and key features that the photograph is intended to depict.

(m) If applicable, evidence of status as a Nonprofit Environmental Organization as defined in Rule 9K-7.002(23), F.A.C.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.510 FS. History—New.

9K-7.005 Communications to the Governing Board.

After an Application has been submitted for funding under the conditions described herein, all communications to the Governing Board of the Trust regarding any Application under consideration shall be in writing and mailed or delivered to the Executive Director for distribution to all members of the Governing Board or be presented in writing or orally to the Governing Board at the ranking and selection meeting.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.508 FS. History—New.

9K-7.006 Determination of Application Completeness.

(1) Following closure of an Application submission period, Trust staff will review all Applications for completeness. A Notice of Completeness will be sent to Applicants by first-class mail within 30 days following the Application deadline. The notice will state whether or not the Application was timely received and whether or not the Application was found to be complete.

(2) A determination of completeness will be based on the inclusion of all items listed in this rule chapter. Failure to timely provide the information required shall be deemed to be a request to withdraw the Application unless the Executive Director determines from a review of the Application that the Application meets the minimum requirements and intent of this rule chapter and is sufficiently complete and adequate for staff review.

(3) If an Application is found to be incomplete, the Applicant will be notified of the deficiency in the Notice of Completeness and provided an opportunity to complete the Application. Materials requested in the Notice of Completeness must be received by the Trust within 21 days following the date that the Notice of Completeness is mailed to the Applicant. Failure to timely provide the information

required in the Notice of Completeness shall be deemed to be a request to withdraw the Application unless the Executive Director determines from a review of the Application that the Application meets the minimum requirements and intent of this rule chapter and is sufficiently complete and proper for staff review.

(4) No additional information shall be accepted after the deadline stated in the Notice of Completeness, unless specifically requested by the Trust staff for clarification purposes. Without exception any clarification information requested by the Trust shall be received by the Trust no later than 30 days prior to the ranking and selection meeting. Information that by the due diligence of the Applicant could not have been discovered and submitted with the Application will be considered new information. The Trust may accept new information subsequent to the Application deadline but all new information must be received by to the Trust no later than seven days prior to the ranking and selection meeting.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.508 FS. History—New _____.

9K-7.007 Project Evaluation Criteria.

The evaluation of complete Applications shall be based on the criteria set forth in this rule chapter and in Application Form FF-1. Trust staff will be responsible for evaluating Applications and recommending point scores to the Governing Board. Trust staff shall utilize the information contained in the Application (including all required exhibits) and all information obtained during its review of the Application for scoring recommendations to the Governing Board. Personnel from other state agencies, regional planning councils, water management districts, and other public and private groups may assist the Trust staff in project evaluation as requested by Trust Staff on an application-by-application basis. Unless otherwise noted, an Application shall receive all the points assigned to a particular criterion if the criterion is met; no partial scores will be given for a criterion. If a criterion does not apply to the proposed Project Site, the Applicant should state "No" in the response to the criterion. Criterion that are missing or not answered will not be evaluated, will not be considered incomplete in the Notice of Completeness, and will not be awarded points.

(1) Furtherance of specified general standards (up to 50 points) based on the following criteria:

(a) Pre-acquired. The entire Project Site has been acquired by the Applicant through a voluntarily-negotiated transaction within 24 months prior to the Application deadline (5 points).

(b) Phased Project. The proposed project is a continuation of a previous project that was selected for FCT funding such that it constitutes a Phased Project (5 points).

(c) Providing a greater share of the Match. The Applicant is committed to providing a greater percentage of the Match for an Award. Up to 25 points based on whether:

1. The Applicant provides a Match between 40 percent to 49 percent of the Project Costs (10 points); or

2. The Applicant provides a Match between 50 percent to 59 percent of the Project Costs (20 points); or

3. The Applicant provides a Match for 60 percent or more of the Project Costs (25 points).

(d) No prior funding. This is the Applicant's first Application to FCT, or the Applicant has previously submitted an Application but was not funded (5 points).

(e) Innovative Acquisition. The proposed project provides for alternatives to the Acquisition of fee interests in land, such as Acquisition of less than fee interest of the Project Site through conservation easements (5 points).

(f) Multiple benefits. The Acquisition of the Project Site furthers the purpose(s) of a recent or proposed purchase of adjacent conservation or Outdoor Recreation lands by other federal, state, local, or nonprofit agencies (5 points).

(2) Furtherance of Outdoor Recreation, natural and cultural resources (up to 135 points) based on the following criteria:

(a) Providing Outdoor Recreation or open space. The Project Site provides for Outdoor Recreation or open space. Up to 35 points, based on whether the proposed project:

1. Provides Outdoor Recreation areas or open space adjacent to other publicly-owned areas or facilities, such as existing parks, museums, schools, libraries, affordable housing, Recreational Trail Systems, or Greenways (5 points);

2. Provides two or more resource-based Outdoor Recreation facilities, such as nature trail, picnic pavilion, fishing pier, wildlife observation area, canoe launch, boardwalk or camping area (5 points).

3. Provides two or more user-oriented Outdoor Recreation facilities, such as playgrounds, basketball courts, tennis courts, bocci ball courts, shuffleboard courts, volleyball courts or swimming areas (5 points);

4. Provides access to a shoreline or beach and managed for recreation uses (5 points);

5. The proposed project furthers Outdoor Recreation or open space within an Urban Area (up to 15 points) based on whether the Project Site is located:

a. Within an Urban Service Area (5 points);

b. Within an Urban Service Area and is also within one-half mile of a built-up commercial, industrial or mixed-use Urban Area (5 points);

c. Within an Urban Service Area and is also within a built-up commercial, industrial, or mixed-use Urban Area (5 points).

(b) Providing Greenways and Recreational Trail Systems. The Project Site provides for new or enhanced Greenways and Recreational Trail Systems. Up to 20 points, based on whether the proposed project:

1. Provides new or enhanced nature, waterway, bike or equestrian trails that are at least one-quarter mile in length (5 points);

2. Enhances existing local, regional or statewide Recreational Trail Systems by connecting, extending or closing gaps in existing Recreational Trail Systems or by providing trailhead or trailside facilities (5 points);

3. Enhances existing local, regional or statewide network of linked Greenways by connecting, extending or closing gaps in an existing network of linked Greenways (5 points);

4. Furthers a locally-adopted Greenway or Recreational Trail System plan (5 points).

(c) Providing educational opportunities. The Project Site provides for environmental or historical educational opportunities. Up to 15 points, based on whether the proposed project:

1. Provides interpretive signs which educate visitors about the natural environment or unique history of the Project Site (5 points);

2. Provides at least 24 environmental or historical education classes or programs per year at the Project Site conducted by trained educators or resource professionals (5 points);

3. Includes a nature center or museum which provides, through adequate staffing, year-round educational classes or programming concerning the natural environment or unique history of the area (5 points).

(d) Protecting natural and biological resources. The Project Site protects natural and biological resources. Up to 20 points, based on whether the Project Site:

1. Consists of predominantly Natural Communities that have not been impacted by human disturbance or alteration (5 points);

2. Contains one or more Natural Communities identified by the Florida Natural Areas Inventory as "imperiled" or "critically imperiled" (5 points);

3. Contains Habitat recognized as typically suitable for one or more Listed Animal Species (5 points);

4. Contains Habitat recognized as typically suitable for one or more Listed Animal Species and said Habitat is located in a Strategic Habitat Conservation Area, as identified by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (5 points).

(e) Landscaping or restoration. The Project Site provides for new or enhanced landscaping or restoration. Up to 15 points, based on the following criteria:

1. Degraded or altered areas on the Project Site will be landscaped with native vegetation (5 points);

2. Degraded or altered upland communities on the Project Site will be restored as a Natural Community (5 points);

3. Degraded or altered wetland communities on the Project Site will be restored as a Natural Community (5 points).

(f) Water quality. The Project Site provides for the protection or enhancement of water quality. Up to 15 points, based on the following criteria:

1. The proposed project will improve the quality of surface waters occurring on or adjacent to the Project Site by the elimination of pollution sources, removal of impervious surfaces, or other means (5 points);

2. The Project Site is adjacent to and will protect an Outstanding Florida Waters as designated by the Department of Environmental Protection (5 points);

3. The proposed Project Site will protect Class I waters as identified by the Department of Environmental Protection, or the Project Site is located within a locally-designated wellfield protection zone (5 points).

(g) Historical resources. The Project Site provides new or enhanced historic resources. Up to 15 points, based on whether the Project Site:

1. Contains, or is within one-quarter mile of, a site listed in the Florida Master Site File with the Division of Historical Resources (5 points);

2. Is listed on the Florida Master Site File and is also recognized by a local historic board or the Division of Historical Resources as being historically significant at the local, regional or state level (5 points);

3. Is listed on the National Register of Historic Places by the National Park Service (5 points).

(3) Furtherance of Community Planning (up to 110 points), based on the following criteria:

(a) Local Comprehensive Plan. Acquisition of the Project Site will assist the Local Government in furthering the Local Comprehensive Plan directives. When used in this part, the term "furthered" means that proposed project(s) will assist the Local Government in realizing the objectives or policies of the Local Comprehensive Plan. For each criterion that is furthered by an objective or policy of the Local Government Plan, the objective or policy number is to be cited in the response to the criterion and a copy of the objective or policy, and any associated exhibits or documents, shall be included as an exhibit as provided in this rule chapter. If a copy of the entire objective or policy that is cited in response to a criterion is not included in the exhibit, that objective or policy will not be evaluated as to whether it furthers that criterion. If a criterion addresses specific resources or facilities, these must be present on the Project Site in order for points to be awarded.

If the Project Site is located entirely in one jurisdiction, the Local Comprehensive Plan of the jurisdiction shall be evaluated for scoring purposes. If the Project Site is located in two or more jurisdictions, the Local Comprehensive Plan of each jurisdiction shall be compared for compatibility and evaluated for scoring purposes. Up to 50 points, based on the following criteria:

1. Provides acreage or outdoor recreational facilities necessary to maintain or improve adopted levels of service standards for recreation (5 points).

2. Ensures acquisition of natural areas or open space through public acquisition (5 points).

3. Provides new or enhanced public access to water bodies and saltwater beaches (5 points).

4. Provides for new or enhanced Greenways or Recreational Trail Systems (5 points).

5. Ensures the preservation of Natural Communities or Listed Animal Species Habitat (5 points).

6. Provides for coordination among federal, state and local agencies or non-profit organizations acquiring or managing natural areas or open space for outdoor recreation (5 points).

7. Provides for restoration or enhancement of degraded natural areas, such as restoration of Natural Communities, restoration of natural hydrology, or removal of non-native vegetation (5 points).

8. Ensures the protection or enhancement of surface or groundwater quality (5 points).

9. Ensures the preservation of historical, cultural or archaeological features on the Project Site (5 points).

10. Directs development to a locally designated urban infill, urban redevelopment or downtown revitalization area as defined in Section 163.3164, F.S. (5 points).

(b) Hazard Mitigation. The proposed project furthers hazard mitigation. Up to 15 points, based on whether the proposed project:

1. Provides recreational opportunities and open space areas that direct residential and commercial development away from a Coastal High Hazard Area or a 100-year flood plain (5 points).

2. Is located within an area identified in the Local Government's Local Mitigation Strategy as a mitigation priority (5 points).

3. Provides recreation or open space opportunities within a state-designated "brownfield" area (5 points).

(c) Priority investment areas and special state-designated areas. The Project Site will provide new or enhanced Outdoor Recreation or open space within an identified priority investment area or other special state-designated area targeted for investment or redevelopment. Up to 45 points, based on whether the proposed project is:

1. Within an area designated as a "Front Porch Community" (5 points).

2. Within an area designated as a "Florida Main Street Community" (5 points).

3. Within an area designated as an "Eastward Ho! Corridor" under Executive Order 94-54 (5 points).

4. Within an area designated as a "Waterfront Florida Community" (5 points).

5. Within an area defined as a "Low-Income Community" under Rule 9K-7.002, F.A.C. (5 points).

6. Within an area designated as a "Rural Area of Critical Economic Concern" (5 points).

7. Within the boundary of a locally designated urban infill, urban redevelopment or downtown revitalization area as defined in Section 163.3164, F.S. (5 points).

8. Within a designated "Area of Critical State Concern" under Section 380.05, F.S. (5 points).

9. Within or adjacent to a state or federally designated area, not identified elsewhere in the Application criteria, that is intended to protect or restore natural resources, such as the Aquatic Preserve, the National Estuarine Research Reserve, the Marine Sanctuary, and the American Heritage River boundaries (5 points).

(4) The proposed project furthers and exemplifies "project excellence." Up to 10 points, based on whether the proposed project exhibits strong community-based support, possesses exemplary characteristics, or assists an otherwise disadvantaged community in a manner that was not adequately addressed by the criteria established in this rule chapter.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.510 FS. History—New _____.

9K-7.008 Ranking and Selection of Applications.

(1) Evaluation Report. After a period for review, not to exceed 120 days from the Application deadline, the Trust staff shall prepare a written evaluation report for consideration by the Governing Board.

(2) The Governing Board shall meet for the purpose of ranking and selecting Applications for funding at a publicly noticed meeting for this purpose.

(a) The Governing Board shall consider each Application and approve or modify the point scoring totals assigned in the Trust staff evaluation report. Decisions to modify point totals shall be based on review of Applications by the Governing Board, and public presentations to the Governing Board by Trust staff, Applicants and other members of the general public.

(b) All proposed amendments to the Local Comprehensive Plan that are included with the Application, and submitted within the Application deadline established by the Trust, will be considered in the preliminary Application scoring. Proposed amendments cited in the Application must be adopted by the Local Government prior to the date of the Governing Board ranking and selection meeting in order for points to be awarded in the final score.

(c) After a final determination of the scoring of each Application, the Governing Board shall consider the point totals, as well as any other relevant factors not considered directly in the assignment of point totals, including the

statutory requirements of this rule chapter, and rank the Applications in descending order, with the highest ranking Application being given highest funding priority.

1. At least 75 percent of the funds available shall be matched by Local Governments on a dollar-for-dollar basis.

2. At least 30 percent of the total allocation shall be used within Metropolitan Statistical Areas and one-half of that amount shall be used within localities where the Project Site is located in built-up commercial, industrial, or mixed-use areas and functions to intersperse open spaces within congested urban core areas.

3. No less than five percent of the total allocation shall be used to acquire lands for Recreational Trail Systems, provided that in the event these funds are not needed for such projects, they will be available for other Trust projects.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.510 FS. History—New .

9K-7.009 Conceptual Approval of Projects.

(1) Following the ranking and selection of Applications described above but prior to the conceptual approval meeting, the Trust staff shall conduct site visits or other investigations. If such visits or investigations reveal undisclosed facts or erroneous evaluation conclusions, the Trust staff shall report such findings to the Governing Board. The Trust shall impose conditions relevant to these findings, or any other conditions deemed necessary to protect the interests of the State. Such conditions will be imposed on the Applicant by the Conceptual Approval Agreement at the conceptual approval meeting. Applicants will be advised of the conditions prior to the conceptual approval meeting. Any such conditions must be met by the Applicant prior to receiving Project Plan approval. Further, the Trust shall have the right to alter the ranking of Applications based on the site visit or investigation findings.

(2) At the conclusion of the conceptual approval meeting, those projects selected will be considered to have received conceptual approval for funding. The Trust shall publish a Notice of Conceptual Approval in the Florida Administrative Weekly that shall list all Applications considered, whether the Application has received conceptual approval, and the amount of funding conceptually approved for each selected project.

(3) Any person with substantial interests that are or may be determined by the conceptual approval of funds for projects by the Trust may request an administrative proceeding pursuant to Section 120.57, F.S., within 21 days of publication of the Notice of Conceptual Approval.

(4) If for any reason funds awarded to a conceptually approved project become available prior to the ranking and selection meeting for the next Application cycle, those funds may be committed to project(s) for the same series funding cycle based upon available funds.

(5) The established time frame for conceptual approval for funding shall be for a period not to exceed 12 months from the conceptual approval meeting. Conceptual approval shall be evidenced by an executed Conceptual Approval Agreement between the Trust and the Recipient. When the established time frame has expired and a conceptually approved project has not received Project Plan approval, conceptual approval shall be terminated and Trust funds committed to the project shall then be committed to Applications that are conceptually approved in subsequent funding cycles. The Trust may extend the Conceptual Approval Agreement beyond the established time frame if the Recipient demonstrates that significant progress is being made toward Project Plan approval or that extenuating circumstances warrant an extension of time. All requests for extensions shall be made in writing to the Executive Director, fully explaining the reason for the delay and why the extension is necessary.

(5) Pursuant to Section 380.510(3)(f), F.S., the time period of the Conceptual Approval Agreement and extensions shall not exceed a total of 24 months; unless, however, the Trust extends an Award beyond 24 months when the Recipient demonstrates that significant progress is being made toward closing the project or that extenuating circumstances warrant an extension of time.

(6) The Trust may unilaterally terminate the Conceptual Approval Agreement prior to the established time frame, if it is determined by the Trust that no significant progress is being made toward the Acquisition of the Project Site or other circumstances are present which would, in all likelihood, preclude or prevent the successful Acquisition of the Project Site within the established time frame.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.510 FS. History—New .

9K-7.010 Modification to the Project Boundary.

Modifications to the boundary of a Project Site selected for conceptual approval will be considered by the Trust on a case-by-case basis. Requests to modify the project boundary shall be submitted to the Trust within 12 months of the approval of the Conceptual Approval Agreement. Requests for boundary amendments received after said deadline shall not be considered unless an exception is granted by the Executive Director based upon the demonstration of good cause. Good cause shall be based on whether the boundary modification is necessary to the successful development and management of the Project Site. The following procedures are established to guide the submission and review of boundary modification requests.

(1) A written request for boundary modification must be submitted and contain the items listed below. The request must be transmitted with an original signature cover letter on the Recipient's letterhead, signed by the appropriate authorized

representative named in the Conceptual Approval Agreement, and include a statement binding the Recipient to fulfill the commitments made in the request for boundary modification.

(a) An explanation of how the proposed modification complies with the intent and purpose of the project as stated in the original Application;

(b) An explanation of why the requested boundary change was not contained in the original Application;

(c) An explanation of the effect on the overall project if the requested modification is not approved;

(d) A written statement signed by the Recipient detailing any and all changes to the original Application which result from the boundary modification being proposed; and

(e) An amended acquisition plan.

(2) Following receipt of a request for boundary modification, Trust staff shall conduct a preliminary review to determine if the information provided includes the required items listed in this rule chapter. Trust staff shall notify the Recipient's key contact of any additional information or clarification that is needed to complete the review.

(3) Trust staff shall prepare a recommendation for consideration and approval by the Trust following the same review procedures used to evaluate the original Application. The report will contain the following:

(a) Whether the proposed boundary modification is consistent with the purpose and intent of the original Application;

(b) Whether the proposed boundary modification would facilitate the Acquisition of the overall Project Site;

(c) Whether the proposed boundary modification would change the final project score if it had been part of the original Application and whether the revised score would result in any change in the funding status of the project;

(d) Whether the Trust has funds available to cover the additional Project Costs and that the increase in the Trust Award would not exceed the Award limit contained in this rule chapter.

(4) Trust staff may conduct a site visit to verify representations made in the boundary modification request before final approval of the boundary change.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS, Law Implemented 259.105, 380.510 FS, History--New _____.

9K-7.011 Preparation and Acceptance of the Management Plan.

(1) Prior to release of Florida Forever Funds for a project, the Recipients shall submit a Management Plan for approval by the Trust. Phased Projects or additions to Trust funded projects can be combined into existing Management Plans. The Management Plan, which is intended to explain how the Project Site will be managed to further the purposes of the project and meet the terms and conditions of the Conceptual Approval Agreement, shall include the following:

(a) An introduction containing the project name, location and other background information relevant to management.

(b) The stated purpose for acquiring the Project Site as proposed in the Application and a prioritized list of management objectives.

(c) The identification of known natural resources including natural communities, listed animal species, soil types, surface and groundwater characteristics and a plan to inventory all unknown resources.

(d) A detailed description of all proposed uses including existing and proposed physical and access improvements.

(e) A detailed description of proposed restoration or enhancement activities, if any, including the objective of the effort and the techniques to be used.

(f) A scaled site plan drawing showing the project site boundary, existing and proposed physical improvements and any natural resource restoration or enhancement areas.

(g) A description of management needs and problems associated with implementing the Management Plan.

(h) The identification and protection of known cultural or historical resources and a commitment to conduct surveys prior to any ground disturbing activity, if applicable.

(i) A description of proposed educational displays and programs to be offered, if applicable.

(j) A description of how the management will be coordinated with other agencies and public lands, if applicable.

(k) Cost estimates based on categories established by the Land Management Uniform Accounting Council.

(l) A schedule for implementing the development and management activities of the Management Plan.

(m) Funding sources to implement the Management Plan.

(2) If the Recipient is not the proposed managing entity, the Management Plan must include a signed agreement between the Recipient and the managing entity stating the managing entity's willingness to manage the site, the manner in which the site will be managed to further the purpose(s) of the project, and identification of the source of funding for management.

(3) The Trust shall approve the Management Plan upon confirmation that it is consistent with the purposes of the Application and the terms and conditions of the Conceptual Approval Agreement.

(4) Any revision or modification to the approved Management Plan will require review and approval by the Trust. The Recipient shall provide a written request for any Management Plan change including all appropriate supporting materials.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS, Law Implemented 259.105, 380.510 FS, History--New _____.

9K-7.012 Title, Acquisition Procedures, Project Plans, Lease Agreements and Transfer of Title.

This rule chapter and Chapter 9K-8, F.A.C., shall govern in all matters of title, acquisition procedures, Project Plans, lease agreements and transfer of title for lands acquired with Florida Forever funds received under the Florida Forever Program.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.510 FS. History--New _____.

9K-7.013 Annual Stewardship Report Requirement.

(1) Each award to a Recipient shall include a condition that, after Acquisition of the Project Site, a stewardship report is required from the Recipient for a period lasting at least five years from completion of all site improvements and restoration activities identified in the approved Management Plan. The stewardship report is intended to verify that conditions imposed at the time the award was made are being followed and to monitor the stewardship and use of the property. The stewardship report shall be due on January 30 of each year and include discussion of the following items for the year being reported:

- (a) All work completed;
- (b) All program activities conducted;
- (c) Description of how the project protects and maintains natural resources and the results of all monitoring reports;
- (d) Listing of gross revenues for the year, such as all fees, concessions, sales and other revenues received;
- (e) Description of all easements, concessions and leases in effect for all or any portion of the year;
- (f) Description of all physical improvements and activities that are behind schedule and a listing of revised start and completion dates for each improvement and activity;
- (g) Listing of all funding sources allocated or received for management activities;
- (h) Listing of all development and management costs expended for the year; and
- (i) Listing of all revisions needed to the approved Management Plan and including all appropriated supporting materials as attachments.

(2) The stewardship report requirement may be phased out as follows:

- (a) To initiate the five year phase-out of the stewardship report requirement, the Recipient shall provide the following:
 1. Written statement of completion certifying that the project site was developed in accordance with the approved Management Plan;
 2. As-built master site plan drawing;
 3. Photographic record of all completed site improvements and restoration activities; and
 4. Updated Management Plan, if appropriate.

(b) Upon the Trust's acceptance of the Recipient's statement of completion, and timely submission of five consecutive stewardship reports that have met the requirements

of this rule chapter, the Trust may suspend the stewardship report requirement if the Recipient has demonstrated that the terms and conditions of the Grant Award Agreement and the approved Management Plan made are being followed. After suspension of the stewardship report requirement, if the Trust finds that the terms and conditions of the Grant Award Agreement are not being followed, the stewardship report requirement shall be reimposed for an additional two years.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.510 FS. History--New _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Janice Browning, Executive Director, Florida Communities Trust

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Janice Browning, Executive Director, Florida Communities Trust

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: March 20, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: November 9, 2000

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

Florida Communities Trust

RULE CHAPTER TITLE:	RULE CHAPTER NO.:
Land Acquisition Procedures With Florida Forever Program	9K-8
RULE TITLES:	RULE NOS.:
Purpose	9K-8.001
Definitions	9K-8.002
General Information	9K-8.003
Election by Recipient of Titleholder and Negotiating Entity; Rules Governing Acquisitions; Title	9K-8.004
Title Report and Evidence of Marketable Title	9K-8.005
Certified Survey	9K-8.006
Appraisal Procedures, Appraisal Report Requirements and Determination of Maximum Approved Purchase Price	9K-8.007
Confidentiality of Appraisals, Other Reports Relating to Value, Offers and Counteroffers	9K-8.008
Negotiation of Offers and Counteroffers	9K-8.009
Purchase Agreements	9K-8.010
Preparation and Acceptance of Project Plans	9K-8.011
Examination for Hazardous Materials Contamination	9K-8.012
Trust Governing Board Action	9K-8.013
Closing	9K-8.014

PURPOSE, EFFECT AND SUMMARY: The purpose of this rule is to establish Florida Communities Trust land acquisition procedures using Florida Forever funds. The purpose of the program described in this rule chapter is to provide grants to Local Governments and Nonprofit Environmental Organizations for the acquisition of community-based projects,

urban open spaces, natural resource conservation areas, parks, greenways, and outdoor recreation areas to implement Local Comprehensive Plans.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: None.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 380.507(11) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 259.105, 380.501-.515, 380.507(11), 380.508, 380.510 FS.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 1:00 p.m., Monday, April 30, 2001

PLACE: Randall Kelley Training Center, Room 305, Sadowski Building, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100

Any person requiring special accommodation at the hearing because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Janice Browning, Executive Director, Florida Communities Trust, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100, (850)922-2207, Suncom 292-2207, at least seven days before the date of the hearing. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Department of Community Affairs using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) or 1(800)955-9771 (TDD)

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULES IS: Janice Browning, Executive Director, Florida Communities Trust, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100 (850)922-2207, Suncom 292-2207

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

9K-8.001 Purpose.

This rule chapter sets forth the procedures that must be followed for land acquisitions using Florida Forever funds awarded by Florida Communities Trust.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.501-.515 FS. History—New

9K-8.002 Definitions.

The definitions set forth in Rule 9K-7.002, F.A.C., shall apply as used in this rule chapter and are incorporated herein by reference. Additionally, the following definitions shall apply as used in this rule chapter:

(1) “Agent” means an authorized representative assisting the Applicant, Recipient, or Trust to negotiate and acquire real property, such as attorneys, real estate brokers, and cooperating governmental agencies. As required under Chapter 475, F.S.,

when real estate services are performed for compensation or other valuable consideration in connection with any acquisition, sale, lease, or exchange under this chapter, the Agent shall have a current, valid and active Florida real estate license.

(2) “Appraisal” or “Appraisal Services” means the services provided by Florida certified or licensed Appraisers pursuant to Section 475.611(1), F.S.

(3) “Appraisal Report” means the written analyses, opinions, and conclusions issued by an Approved Appraiser in connection with the Acquisition of any interest in real property under this rule chapter or Chapter 9K-7, F.A.C.

(4) “Appraiser” means any person who is certified or licensed by the State pursuant to Chapter 475, Part II, F.S., and whose certification or license is current, valid and active.

(5) “Approved Appraisal” means an Appraisal that has been reviewed and approved by the Trust for use in determining the Maximum Approved Purchase Price that the Trust and the Recipient will pay for property.

(6) “Approved Appraiser” means an Appraiser who has the necessary background, qualifications and experience to appraise the interest in real estate being acquired under this Chapter and whose name is on the current list of approved appraisers on file with the Division of State Lands, Department of Environmental Protection. A copy of the list of Approved Appraisers shall be maintained for public examination in the offices of the Trust.

(7) “Approved Survey” means a Certified Survey that has been reviewed and approved by the Trust.

(8) “Certified Survey” means a survey, as further defined in Rule 9K-8.006, F.A.C., that is certified, signed and sealed by a registered land surveyor authorized to practice surveying in the State pursuant to Chapter 472, F.S.

(9) “Confidential” refers to information that shall not be available for public disclosure or inspection and is exempt from the provisions of Section 119.07, F.S.

(10) “Florida Forever Funds” means proceeds from the Florida Forever Trust Fund created by Section 380.5115, F.S., and distributed to the Department pursuant to Section 295.105(3)(c), F.S., for the purpose of providing Acquisition grants through the Florida Communities Trust.

(11) “Hazardous Materials Contamination” means radon, PCBs, oil or other petroleum based products, chemicals, any noxious, hazardous, offensive, explosive or toxic substances or waste, or any hazardous materials or toxic substances as such terms are defined in the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq. (CERCLA), the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. § 1801 et seq. (HMTA), the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, 42 U.S.C. § 5101 et seq. (RCRA), and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto.

(12) “Market Value”, as defined in the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (as promulgated by the Appraisal Standards Board of The Appraisal Foundation), means the most probable price which a property should bring in a competitive and open market under all conditions requisite to a fair sale, the buyer and seller each acting prudently and knowledgeably, and assuming that the price is not affected by undue stimulus.

(13) “Maximum Approved Purchase Price” means the maximum purchase price that the Trust can participate in as determined by Appraisals performed on a Project Site that have been reviewed and approved by the Trust.

(14) “Minimum Technical Standards” means the Minimum Technical Standards for Surveyors as set forth by the Florida Board of Professional Surveyors and Mappers pursuant to Chapter 472, F.S., and Chapter 61G17-6, F.A.C.

(15) “Option Agreement” or “Option Contract” means a proposed written agreement between the Recipient and the Trust to purchase all or a portion of the property lying within the Project Site, subject to the approval of the Recipient’s governing body and the Trust after appropriate notice and hearing (as may be required).

(16) “Owner(s)” or “Seller(s)” means the fee simple title owner(s) of the Project Site.

(17) “Purchase Agreement” means the various types of written contracts to purchase real property, including purchase agreements, Option Agreements, exchange agreements and other forms of such agreements, that become binding on all parties to the contract at the time the Purchase Agreement is duly executed.

(18) “Safe Upland Line” means a line at or above the mean or ordinary high water line used to calculate the acreage of a parcel of land.

(19) “Title Insurance Commitment” means a written agreement issued by a Florida licensed title insurer agreeing to issue to the Recipient, the Trust, or the Board of Trustees, individually or as co-insureds, upon the recording of the deed, an owner’s policy of title insurance in the amount of the Project Site’s purchase price insuring marketability of title to the Project Site, subject only to liens, encumbrances, exceptions or qualifications that are acceptable to the Trust and the Recipient, and those which will be discharged by the Owner(s) at closing.

(20) “Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice” means the most recent standards approved and adopted by the Appraisals Standards Board of The Appraisal Foundation.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.501-.515 FS. History–New _____.

9K-8.003 General Information.

(1) This rule chapter shall govern the activities for Acquisition of real property using proceeds from the Florida Forever Trust Fund, when title to such real property vests in the Recipient or the Board of Trustees.

(2) The disbursement of Florida Forever Funds from the Trust shall be subject to the following conditions: The administration and use of any funds received by the Trust from the Florida Forever Trust Fund shall be subject to such terms and conditions imposed thereon by the agency of the state responsible for the revenue bonds, the proceeds of which are deposited in the Florida Forever Trust Fund, including restrictions imposed to ensure that the interest on any such revenue bonds issued by the state as tax-exempt revenue bonds will not be included in the gross income of the holders of such bonds for federal income tax purposes.

(3) The Recipient shall designate an employee or officer who shall serve as the key contact for the exchange of information regarding the Acquisition activities and who shall be responsible for ensuring compliance with the provisions of all applicable statutes, the Conceptual Approval Agreement, rules of the Trust and any local land acquisition ordinances that may apply.

(4) Funds awarded through any program of the Trust that derive from the Florida Forever Trust Fund may only be used to pay the eligible Project Costs associated with Voluntarily Negotiated Transactions.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.501-.515 FS. History–New _____.

9K-8.004 Election by Recipient of Titleholder and Negotiating Entity; Rules Governing Acquisitions; Title.

(1) Section 259.105(3)(c), F.S., allocates proceeds deposited into the Forever Florida Trust Fund to the Department to provide land Acquisition grants through the Florida Communities Trust pursuant to Chapter 380, Part III, F.S. Title to real property purchased with these funds may be vested in the Recipient or the Board of Trustees.

(2) At the time the Recipient executes the Conceptual Approval Agreement, the Recipient shall elect one of the following options; either

(a) Title to the Project Site will vest in the Recipient, or

(b) Title to the Project Site will vest permanently in the Board of Trustees.

(3) If the Recipient elects to hold title, then the following applies:

(a) The election is subject to approval by the Trust, such approval indicated when the Conceptual Approval Agreement governing the grant funds is executed between the Recipient and the Trust;

(b) The Trust shall not withhold approval of the Recipient’s election to take title unless the Trust specifically finds on the record of a public meeting that the Recipient is not

capable of holding title or has failed to provide the Trust with reasonable and adequate assurances that the public interests will be protected;

(c) The Acquisition of a Project Site shall take place under one of the following procedures:

1. For a Project Site that consists of five or fewer ownerships, the Recipient can request that the Trust or the Recipient act as the party responsible for the Acquisition activities.

2. For a Project Site that consists of six or more ownerships, the Recipient will be required to act as the party responsible for the Acquisition activities.

(d) When the Recipient is the party responsible for Acquisition activities, the Recipient will follow the Acquisition procedures outlined in this rule chapter. If the Recipient contracts with an Agent to act on the Recipient's behalf in pursuing the Acquisition in accordance with this rule chapter, the Agent's fee may be recognized as an eligible Project Cost only if the Acquisition closes.

(4) If the Recipient elects that title vest in the Board of Trustees, the following applies:

(a) The election must be approved by the Trust and the Board of Trustees; and

(b) The Acquisition activities and negotiations shall be conducted by the Trust following the requirements of Section 253.025, F.S., and Chapter 18-1, F.A.C., the applicable statutes and rules for all Acquisitions of the Board of Trustees.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.501-.515 FS. History-New _____.

9K-8.005 Title Report and Evidence of Marketable Title.

(1) To obtain Appraisals, the party responsible for Acquisition activities may obtain a title report or title commitment which shall include a legal description of the Project Site to be acquired that is sufficient to inform the Trust, the Recipient and the Appraisers of the status of ownership, encumbrances, exceptions, reservations, and previous ownership history.

(2) Evidence of Owner(s)' marketable title shall be provided to the Recipient(s) and the Trust prior to the conveyance of title. The Trust shall further be provided a Title Insurance Commitment in accordance with the Purchase Agreement. The Title Insurance Commitment shall be followed after conveyance by an owner's marketable title insurance policy (ALTA Form B) in favor of the Recipient or the Board of Trustees in accordance with the Recipient's election under Rule 9K-8.004, Florida Administrative Code. The Trust shall be listed as a co-insured on the Title Insurance Commitment and title insurance policy.

The Trust and Recipient may mutually agree to waive the requirement of evidence of marketable title for Acquisition of property assessed by the county property appraiser at \$10,000 or less. Such waiver shall be based on such review of the title

records as is reasonable under the circumstances that shows no apparent impediment to marketability or to management of the Project Site by the Recipient.

(3) The standard for examination of condition of title shall be The Uniform Title Standards of the Real Property, Probate & Trust Law Section of The Florida Bar, 1981 edition together with all updates.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.501-.515 FS. History-New _____.

9K-8.006 Certified Survey.

(1) At least 30 days prior to closing, a Certified Survey must be submitted to the Trust for final approval to rectify acreage and title issues against the title commitment, the negotiated Purchase Agreement and the Appraisal(s) used to determine the Maximum Approved Purchase Price.

(2) In cases where a Certified Survey cannot be practically completed or where the cost of the Certified Survey would be prohibited relative to the expected value of the real property, the requirement for such Certified Survey may, in whole or in part, be waived by the Recipient and the Trust. Such a waiver shall be requested by the Recipient at the time of Project Plan approval.

(3) The Certified Survey shall be prepared according to the Minimum Technical Standards for Land Surveying and such additional requirements as may be determined by the Trust and the Recipient to be necessary to meet the intent of the statute and this rule chapter. The Certified Survey shall accurately portray to the greatest extent practicable the condition of the real property as it currently exists. The survey must have been certified within 90 days of the closing on the property unless this requirement is waived by the title insurer for the purpose of deleting the standard survey exception from the owner's title insurance policy.

(4) If a Project Site includes associated water bodies, a Safe Upland Line, as opposed to a surveyed mean or ordinary high water line, shall be an acceptable line for determining the acreage upon which the purchase price of the site to be acquired is based.

(5) The Certified Survey shall be approved by the Trust as being in compliance with the requirements of this rule chapter.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.501-.515 FS. History-New _____.

9K-8.007 Appraisal Procedures, Appraisal Report Requirements and Determination of Maximum Approved Purchase Price.

(1) The party responsible for Acquisition activities shall contract with the Approved Appraiser(s) according to contract requirements of the Recipient or the Trust, whichever is responsible for Acquisition activities.

(2) Techniques and methods used by the Appraiser shall substantially conform to the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP), as defined in Chapter 475, Part II, F.S., as well as Trust appraisal instructions and format.

(3) The party responsible for Acquisition activities shall provide to the Appraiser all pertinent title information developed in the title report, a specification of the rights to be acquired, a list of items, if any, considered to be noncompensable, required appraisal forms or formats, and the most recent survey, if available.

(4) The party responsible for Acquisition activities shall obtain at least one Appraisal by an Approved Appraiser for each ownership in a Project Site estimated to be valued less than \$500,000. For each ownership in a Project Site estimated to be valued at or greater than \$500,000, the party responsible for Acquisition activities shall obtain at least two Appraisals by Approved Appraisers.

(5) Determination of Maximum Approved Purchase Price.

(a) For purposes of calculating the Trust and the Recipient shares of the purchase price paid for real property, a Maximum Approved Purchase Price shall be determined. The Conceptual Approval Agreement will describe financial participation by the Trust and the Recipient on a percentage basis. The Trust considers that the maximum purchase price in which it will participate shall be the Maximum Approved Purchase Price. If the Recipient or its Agent negotiates a purchase price higher than the Maximum Approved Purchase Price, the Recipient shall pay all the purchase price amount over the Maximum Approved Purchase Price, in addition to the Match percentage share of the Maximum Approved Purchase Price.

(b) Appraisals of properties valued at or greater than \$100,000 shall be reviewed by a review Appraiser who is employed by or under contract to the Trust. The review Appraiser must certify to the Trust that the Appraisals have been conducted substantially in accordance with this rule chapter and with correct Appraisal standards and methods, and must certify the appraised value(s) of the subject real property. This certified value shall also be referred to as "the Maximum Approved Purchase Price." Appraisals of properties valued at less than \$100,000 may be approved and certified by the Trust.

(c) The Maximum Approved Purchase Price shall be the value indicated in a single reviewed and approved Appraisal if only one Appraisal is required. If two Appraisals are obtained and approved when only one is required by this rule chapter, the Maximum Approved Purchase Price shall be the higher of the two values indicated in the Appraisals.

(d) If two Appraisals are required and their values do not differ significantly, the Maximum Approved Purchase Price shall be the higher value indicated in the two Appraisals. The two Appraisals shall be considered to differ significantly if the higher of the two values exceeds 120 percent of the lower value.

(e) When two Appraisals required under paragraph (6) above differ significantly, the following steps shall be taken:

1. The review Appraiser shall request that the two Appraisers review the differences in their respective reports to attempt to rectify their value conclusions so that the two value conclusions are not significantly different;

2. A third Appraisal shall be obtained if the two Appraisals differ significantly and cannot be rectified as in the above paragraph unless a decision is made by the party responsible for Acquisition activities to negotiate an Acquisition price of no more than 120 percent of the lower of the two reviewed and approved Appraisals.

3. If a third Appraisal is obtained and reviewed and approved, the Maximum Approved Purchase Price shall be the value contained in the higher of the two closest Appraisals, so long as the two closest Appraisals do not differ significantly. If the two closest Appraisals differ significantly, 120 percent of the lower of the two Appraisals shall be the Maximum Approved Purchase Price.

(7) The Trust shall compare the Maximum Approved Purchase Price with the cost to purchase the land as estimated in the Application. If that estimated cost is greater than the Maximum Approved Purchase Price, the Trust shall reduce the amount of the Award by an amendment to the Conceptual Approval Agreement.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.501-.515 FS. History--New

9K-8.008 Confidentiality of Appraisals, Other Reports Relating to Value, Offers and Counteroffers.

(1) The Trust, the Recipient, and the Recipient's Agent(s) shall maintain confidentiality of all Appraisals, and any other reports relating to value, offers and counter-offers. Appraisals, and any other reports relating to value, offers and counteroffers are not available for public disclosure or inspection and are exempt from the provisions of Section 119.07(1), F.S., until a Purchase Agreement is executed by the Owner(s) and Recipient and conditionally accepted by the Trust, or if no Purchase Agreement is executed, then as provided for in Sections 125.355(1)(a) and 166.045(1)(a), F.S.

(2) If a Purchase Agreement is not submitted to the Trust for approval, the exemption from Section 119.07(1), F.S., will expire 30 days after the termination of negotiations. The date of termination of negotiations may be based on a written statement from a party to the negotiations that good faith efforts at negotiating a Purchase Agreement have failed and that the party desires to cease negotiations. Reinitiation of negotiations shall require approval of the Trust.

(3) The Trust and the Recipient, and the Recipient's Agent(s) if any, shall execute an agreement to maintain confidentiality of all Appraisals, reports relating to value, written offers and written counteroffers until such time as the information is no longer exempt from Section 119.07(1), F.S. This agreement of confidentiality shall expressly name the

individuals to whom the information may be disclosed during the period that the information is exempt from the requirements of Section 119.07(1), F.S. The exemptions from Section 119.07(1), F.S., that are provided in this paragraph are subject to the Open Government Sunset Review Act in accordance with Section 119.15, F.S.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.501-.515 FS. History–New _____.

9K-8.009 Negotiation of Offers and Counteroffers.

(1) It shall be the goal of the Trust and the Recipient that the Acquisition of the real property be negotiated at the best price and terms that can be negotiated in the interest of the project's public purpose. The objective of all purchase negotiations shall be to obtain, at the lowest possible price, the appropriate interest in real property free of encumbrances, conditions, restrictions and reservations that would impede the purposes or management of the Project Site. In the course of negotiations the party responsible for negotiations may discuss the advantages of a Donation and bargain sale. If the real property to be acquired is not already surveyed and the acreage of the site is not known, the Owner(s) shall be advised of the benefits of obtaining a Safe Upland Line survey, as opposed to a mean high water or ordinary high water survey, for calculating the acreage of the site. In making an offer, the party responsible for negotiations shall consider the benefit to the Owner(s) of a single cash payment in relation to the maximum offer allowed by law.

(2) All offers and counteroffers shall be in writing.

(3) The Trust desires that the party responsible for negotiations negotiate the purchase price at or below the Maximum Approved Purchase Price.

(4) The party responsible for negotiations may negotiate and enter into a Purchase Agreement prior to or after the receipt and approval of Appraisals. However, such negotiations and agreements are subject to the conditions established in this rule chapter. The party responsible for conducting negotiations shall maintain appropriate records regarding any and all contact(s) the party had with the Owner(s).

(5) When the party responsible for negotiations initiates Acquisition negotiations prior to the receipt of the required number of Appraisal reports reviewed and approved in accordance with this rule chapter, that party assumes all risk and responsibility that may arise out of a negotiated purchase price that exceeds the Maximum Approved Purchase Price or other review standards set forth in this rule chapter.

(6) Initial contact with the Owner(s) by the party responsible for negotiations may be established prior to negotiations. When initiated, such contact should be limited to the following:

(a) To inform the Owner(s) about the Trust's land Acquisition program.

(b) To explain in general terms the possible tax advantages of land Donations and bargain sales.

(c) To request permission from the Owner(s) in order to have his property appraised and surveyed.

(d) To discuss the timing of possible future Acquisitions, and the competition for funds under the various Trust Acquisition programs.

(e) To discuss the matter of representation of the Owner(s) by an Agent in any future negotiations, and the necessary confirmation by the Owner(s) of the Agent's status.

(f) To request available title data.

(g) To advise of disclosure requirements.

(h) To request available property survey data.

(i) To discuss other information pertinent to the Acquisition process in general.

(7) Upon the initiation of negotiations, the Owner(s) shall be notified in writing that the terms of the final Purchase Agreement are subject to affirmative action by the Recipient and the Trust, if title is to be conveyed to the Recipient, and also the Board of Trustees, if title is to be conveyed to the Board of Trustees.

(8) Recipient shall maintain complete and accurate records of every such offer and counteroffer.

(9) When the Owner(s) is represented by an Agent, negotiations may not be initiated or continued with the Agent until a written statement signed by the Owner(s) verifying the Agent's legal or fiduciary relationship with the Owner(s) has been received by the party responsible for negotiations and a copy has been provided to the Trust.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.501-.515 FS. History–New _____.

9K-8.010 Purchase Agreements.

(1) The form of the final negotiated purchase shall be a written Purchase Agreement that is signed by the Owner(s), the Recipient and the Trust.

(2) The Trust or Recipient may prepare and use any form of Purchase Agreement approved by the Trust as meeting the intent of all applicable laws and this rule chapter.

(3) The Trust shall develop a model standard Purchase Agreement that may be used by the party conducting the negotiations.

(4) The party responsible for negotiations shall obtain all disclosures of beneficial interest required in Section 286.23, F.S., before entering into a Purchase Agreement.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.501-.515 FS. History–New _____.

9K-8.011 Preparation and Acceptance of Project Plans.

(1) Prior to release of Florida Forever Funds for a project, the Recipient shall submit a Project Plan for approval by the Trust. The Project Plan shall include the following:

(a) A Purchase Agreement as defined in this rule chapter for Acquisition of the Project Site, executed by the Owner(s) and the Recipient, that is based on an Appraisal(s) prepared consistent with the requirements of this rule chapter.

(b) A letter from the Trust indicating approval of the Management Plan prepared in accordance with Chapter 9K-7, F.A.C.

(c) A statement of the total Project Cost as defined in Chapter 9K-7, F.A.C.

(d) A statement of the amount of the Award being requested.

(e) Supporting documentation that the conditions imposed as part of the Conceptual Approval Agreement have been satisfied.

(f) A signed statement by the Recipient that the Recipient is not aware of any pending criminal, civil or regulatory violations imposed on the Project Site by any governmental agency or body.

(g) Additional documentation as may be requested by the Trust as Reasonable Assurance that the Recipient will be able to fulfill its obligations under the Conceptual Approval Agreement, the Grant Award Agreement, and Chapter 9K-7, F.A.C.

(2) The Trust shall review Project Plans for completeness of all items required under this rule chapter, Chapter 9K-7, F.A.C., and the Conceptual Approval Agreement.

(3) The Trust shall approve the Project Plan based upon the Recipient's compliance with this rule chapter, Chapter 9K-7, F.A.C., and the Conceptual Approval Agreement. The Trust shall reject any Project Plan if any portion is insufficient to carry out the purpose of the project or is inconsistent with statutory or administrative requirements.

(4) The Trust shall publish a Notice of Approval for Florida Forever Funds in the Florida Administrative Weekly that shall list each approved Project Plan and the amount of funding to be released. Any person with substantial interests that are or may be determined by the decision of the Trust to reject or approve the Project Plan may request an administrative proceeding pursuant to Section 120.57, F.S., within 21 days from publication of the Notice of Approval for Florida Forever Funds.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.507(11), 380.508, 380.510 FS. History—New _____.

9K-8.012 Examination for Hazardous Materials Contamination.

(1) All sites acquired with funds from the Florida Forever Trust Fund shall be examined for hazardous materials contamination within 45 days before closing.

(2) The examination for hazardous materials contamination shall be performed by an individual who is experienced in performing such an environmental site assessment and shall be documented in writing to the Trust and the Recipient.

(3) The examination for hazardous materials contamination shall be performed to the standard of practice of the American Society of Testing Materials (ASTM). For Phase I environmental site assessment, such standard of practice shall be the ASTM Practice E 1527. If the findings and conclusions section of the assessment reports evidence of recognized environmental conditions, then a Phase II Environmental Site Assessment shall be performed to address any suspicions raised in the Phase I environmental site assessment and to confirm the presence of contaminants on site.

(4) Prior to closing the Recipient shall examine the written assessment and advise the Trust in writing of its understanding that by accepting title, it may be assuming liability for future adverse action or cleanup associated with the lands covered by the assessment.

(5) In the event an adverse environmental assessment is reported on a site after approval of the Project Plan for the site, the Trust shall confer with the appropriate staff of the Department of Environmental Protection for assistance in assessing the risk to the State. Because the Board of Trustees will have an executory interest in the Project Site, the Trust shall have the right to refuse to deliver funds for closing if the Trust and the Department of Environmental Protection determine the hazardous materials contamination presents a liability to the State that outweighs the benefits to be derived from the Acquisition of the Project Site. If it is determined by the Trust and the Department of Environmental Protection that a delay in, or termination of the Acquisition is necessary, the Trust shall immediately notify the Recipient. The party responsible for negotiations shall immediately notify all other parties to the Purchase Agreement of the action taken and the basis for the action.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.501-.515 FS. History—New _____.

9K-8.013 Trust Governing Board Action.

The Trust shall approve the terms under which the interest in land is acquired. Such approval shall be evidenced by the Trust execution of the Purchase Agreement. Notice of approval shall be published in the Florida Administrative Weekly, which shall notify the public that any person with substantial interests that are or may be determined by the approval or denial of funds for projects by the Trust may request an administrative proceeding pursuant to Section 120.57, F.S., within 21 days from publication of the Notice of Approval for Florida Forever Funds.

Specific Authority 380.507(11) FS. Law Implemented 259.105, 380.501-.515 FS. History—New _____.

(2) The provisions of Rule 28-106.103, F.A.C., will be used in computing any period of time prescribed by this rule chapter.

(3) Application for Qualification.

(a) ~~A Professional Consultants or their related firms who desires to qualify obtain qualifications with the Department shall submit a Request for Qualification Package for Professional Consultants, Form No. 375-030-01, Rev. 05/01 05/96. A Request for Qualification Package for Professional Consultants, Form No. 375-030-01, Rev. 05/96, incorporated herein, which may be obtained from the Procurement Contractual Services Office, MS 20, Haydon Burns Building, 605 Suwannee Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450, or from the Department's web page at www.dot.state.fl.us or from the Office of Right of Way, MS 22, Haydon Burns Building, 605 Suwannee Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450.~~

(b) ~~Professional Consultants Complete applications for qualifications for those consultants who are not prequalified at the time of advertisement for a consultant project must file with be received by the Department a complete Request for Qualification Package on or before the project's advertised letter of response date. Prequalified consultants who lack technical qualification in a project's advertised major types of work may supplement their technical qualifications by relying on the services of other consultants who are technically qualified in the subject type of work, and have an approved accounting system. The cost of such services may not exceed \$250,000, unless the other consultant is fully prequalified. The Department is will not be obligated to delay any part of the consultant selection process or the execution of a contract, for a consultant who has not been qualified.~~

(4) Procedure.

(a) Within 30 days after receipt of a completed Request for Qualification Package, the Department shall examine the application and notify the applicant in writing of any apparent errors or omissions, and request any additional information required by the Department to properly evaluate the application. The applicant shall submit any requested information to the Department within 30 days of receipt of the Department's request for such information. The Department shall process the application within 30 days after receipt of the requested additional information or correction of apparent errors or omissions. If the information is not provided within 30 days after receipt of the request, the application shall be processed with the information provided available.

(b) Upon receipt of a complete application, ~~t~~The Department shall ~~will~~ make such inquiries and investigations as deemed necessary to verify and evaluate the applicant's statements and determine competency for qualification.

(c) Information Factors which the Department shall consider in determining whether a consultant is qualified to perform the technical qualifications by types of work shall include:

1. Current license or registration as regulated by the State of Florida or national organizations, as appropriate;-

2. Personnel with appropriate experience and training as detailed in the type of work qualifications;-

3. Registration with the Florida Secretary of State, if the applicant is a corporation or limited partnership;

~~4.3-~~ History of ~~current~~ suspension for failure to maintain adequate due to Department's type of work performance grades with the Department in specified types of work;-

5.4. Integrity and responsibility, which shall include including but not limited to history of debarment or suspension from consideration for work with any other governmental entity.

~~6.5-~~ History of conviction for contract crime pursuant to Section 337.165, Florida Statutes, and Rule 14-75.0071, F.A.C., by the applicant or its affiliate, including reapplication or reinstatement under Rule 14-75.0071.

~~7.6-~~ Employment of, or otherwise providing compensation to, any employee or officer of the Department.

~~8.7-~~ Willfully offering an employee or officer of the Department any pecuniary or other benefit with the intent to influence the employee or officer's official action or judgment.

~~(d) Factors which the Department shall consider in determining consultant administrative qualifications shall include the above technical factors and the following:~~

9. An audit report prepared by an independent Certified Public Accountant or governmental agency. The audit report will be no more than six months old and will include the following:

~~a.1-~~ A statement indicating the eExistence of an adequate accounting system that meets the Department's audit requirements, as evidenced by certification by an independent Certified Public Accountant or governmental agency. The system must be adequate to support all billings made to the Department and other clients. ~~The requirement for having an accounting system meeting the Department's audit standards becomes effective at the beginning of each consultant's fiscal year which begins on or after July 1, 1997, for the following types of work: 20.1 Appraisal, 20.2 Appraisal Review, 22 Acquisition Business Damage Estimating and Review, 24 Acquisition Relocation Assistance, and 25 Right of Way Clearing and Leasing.~~

b. An overhead statement and overhead rate for the most recently completed fiscal year.

c. A statement that the consultant's method of estimating costs for proposals is consistent with the accounting system.

d. A statement that the audit was performed in accordance with the criteria required by the Department and applicable generally accepted governmental auditing standards. Criteria will include compliance with the Department's Overhead Audit Guidelines, 2000, and the Government Audit Guidelines, Rev. July 1999, published by the U.S. Government Printing Office.

2. ~~Submittal of an annual overhead audit for the most recently completed fiscal year performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant or governmental agency.~~

10. Consultants who have been in business for less than one complete fiscal year, consultants who have reorganized to the extent that the most recent overhead audit does not reflect a currently valid overhead rate, and consultants who have established and operated an accounting system in accordance with the minimum standards provided in the Department's *Overhead Audit Guidelines* ~~*Auditing Standards, 2000-1995*~~, for a period of less than one year, will prepare a projected overhead rate which will be supported by estimated revenues and expenditures for the first fiscal year's operations since organization, reorganization, or implementation of the acceptable accounting system. The Department's Office of Inspector General Internal Audit Section shall review the estimate and establish a provisional combined overhead rate, which may be used in Department contracts until the firm has completed its first fiscal year of operation, at which time the firm shall submit an annual overhead audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant or governmental agency. ~~The requirement for the submittal of an annual overhead audit becomes effective at the end of each consultant's fiscal year which begins on or after July 1, 1997, for the following types of work: 20.1 Appraisal, 20.2 Appraisal Review, 22 Acquisition Business Damage Estimating and Review, 24 Acquisition Relocation Assistance, 25 Right of Way Clearing and Leasing. For consultants qualifying solely in type of work 22 Acquisition Business Damage Estimating and Review, an overhead statement certified by a principal will be accepted in lieu of an independent audit.~~

a. ~~The audit report shall include statements that the audit was performed in accordance with the criteria required by the Department and applicable generally accepted governmental auditing standards. Criteria shall include compliance with the Department's *Overhead Audit Guidelines, 1995*, and the *Government Auditing Standards, 1994* [GAO/OCG 94-4] published by the U.S. General Accounting Office, which are incorporated herein by reference.~~

b. ~~The audit report shall describe the consultant's estimating system and state whether estimates are prepared in accordance with the accounting system.~~

e. ~~The Department reserves the right to perform overhead audits of any consultant under contract to, or desiring to do business with, the Department. These audits will be conducted consistent with the criteria outlined above.~~

11. Consultants requesting qualification for minor projects only, with contract fees under \$250,000, or consultants qualifying solely as certified public accountants, may submit a self-certified overhead report and statement describing their accounting system, certified by a principal, in lieu of an audit report and accounting system certification prepared by an independent CPA or governmental agency. Such a report will

be in a format prescribed by the Department. The requirements for an overhead audit and accounting system report will be waived for consultants requesting qualification for projects with contract fees under \$250,000 only, and who are individuals or sole proprietorships without employees.

~~12.3. Submittal of Proof of professional liability insurance by one of the following methods:~~

a. Submittal of a current certificate of professional liability insurance from a company or companies authorized to do business in Florida; or an unequivocal commitment letter from such an insurance company stating that professional liability insurance would be provided to the applicant; or

b. Submittal of a commitment letter from a financial institution meeting the requirements of Section 337.106, Florida Statutes, stating that a nonassignable and nontransferable irrevocable letter of credit, established pursuant to Chapter 675 and Section 337.106, Florida Statutes, and Rule Chapter 14-116, F.A.C., can be provided to the applicant in a minimum amount of \$250,000.

~~4. Approval of the consultant's annual overhead audit, accounting system, and professional liability insurance in addition to all other technical and administrative requirements enables the consultant to contract with the Department in any amount. The Department may contract with a consultant lacking an approved overhead audit if:~~

a. ~~The value of the contract is less than \$250,000;~~

b. ~~The consultant can adequately document and support all proposed costs;~~

e. ~~All other qualification requirements are met.~~

(d)(e) If the Department intends to deny the application, or deny qualification for any type of work, the Department shall state in writing and with particularity the grounds or reasons for the denial, and shall inform the applicant of the right to a hearing pursuant to Section 120.57, Florida Statutes notice of the Department's intended action will be provided in accordance with Rule 28-106.111, F.A.C. Delivery of the Notice of Intent to Deny shall be made by certified mail or express delivery, return receipt, to the address listed in the applicant's application for qualification. The Department's action will become final unless a timely petition for a hearing is filed in accordance with Rules 28-106.104, 28-106.201, and 28-106.301, F.A.C. In order to be timely, the petition must be filed with the Department's Clerk of Agency Proceedings within 21 days after receipt of the Department's notice, in accordance with Rule 28-106.111, F.A.C.

(5) Period of Validity of Qualification. Should the applicant be found to possess the prescribed qualification, the consultant will be randomly assigned an expiration date, by which qualification must be renewed annually. The Notice of Qualification shall be valid for a period not to exceed 12 months from the date of issuance of the Notice of Qualification. The qualification anniversary date shall be within 180 days after the Consultant's Fiscal Year ends.

(6) Changes in Qualification Status.

(a) A consultant shall submit a revised application in the event a ~~significant~~ change in the status of its firm occurs; including a change of ownership, a change in the form of the business entity under which the firm operates, a substantial change in manpower which affects the firm's qualifications to perform any type of work, or any other change which ~~adversely~~ affects an element the Department considers under Rule 14-75.0022 when initially qualifying consultants. A revised application may be the basis for notice of agency action under Rule 14-75.0051.

(b) A consultant need not submit a revised application solely because of any change in the officers or the name of a corporation, but such information shall be certified to the Department within ten days of its occurrence.

~~(7) A consultant may apply for qualification up to three months prior to the expiration of an existing qualification. Annual Renewals. To remain qualified, a consultant must apply for annual renewal between the 60th calendar day and the 30th calendar day prior to its qualification anniversary date. A complete application for qualification shall not be submitted unless changes as indicated in paragraph 14-75.0022(4)(a) have occurred. In lieu of a complete application for qualification, the consultant shall submit the following:~~

~~(a) A statement that the employees who were used to qualify the firm for the previous year are still employed by the firm;~~

~~(b) A current overhead audit covering the consultant's most recently completed fiscal year. Such fiscal year shall have been closed not more than 150 calendar days prior to submission. The audit must be approved prior to renewal; and~~

~~(c) Proof of current professional liability insurance (as described in paragraph 14-75.0022(2)(b)10.).~~

Specific Authority 287.055, 334.044(2), 337.105(4), ~~337.107, 337.1075~~ FS. Law Implemented 287.055, 337.167 FS. History--New 3-29-89, Amended 1-2-91, 9-29-92, 2-22-94, 8-5-96, 1-17-99, _____.

14-75.003 Minimum Technical Qualification Standards by Type of Work.

The following criteria apply to the qualification of professional consultants:

~~(1) Any corporation or limited partnership requesting qualification with the Department must be duly authorized to conduct business in the State of Florida and registered accordingly with the Secretary of State.~~

~~(2) If the practice of work described by a type of work is governed by the Department of Business and Professional Regulation, the individual, firm, and employees thereof whose credentials are presented to establish qualification to perform such work on Department projects must be registered with the governing board designated for the profession by the State and shall have all appropriate licenses and registrations required by Florida law.~~

~~(1)(3)~~ No professional or key personnel may be listed as employees of more than one consultant currently qualified with the Department. If a newly listed employee has been employed by a consultant currently qualified with the Department, within the 12 months immediately preceding the application, the application must so indicate and provide the date that such employee was hired by the consultant. The employee shall be deleted from the personnel list of the previous employer's firm, and if such deletion affects the qualification status of the previous employer, notice shall be given to said previous employer pursuant to Rule 14-75.0051.

~~(2)(4)~~ The Department shall not recognize joint ventures for purposes of ~~annually~~ qualifying consultants to ~~do~~ work for the Department. Each individual or firm will be annually qualified based upon individual or firm capability.

~~(3)(5)~~ Appropriate type of work codes will be included in each public notice regarding needed professional services ~~in the Florida Administrative Weekly~~. Persons or firms responding to such notices must be qualified with the Department in the advertised types of work, meet the minimum experience and personnel requirements listed herein unless otherwise specified in the notice. Subconsultants qualified with the Department may be used to meet these requirements, where appropriate, so long as the responding consultant is also qualified with the Department in some standard type of work.

~~(4)(6)~~ All personnel listed by the consultant in order to qualify for any type of work or sub-category must be bona fide employees of the firm, or under exclusive contract to the firm, must be actively engaged in the type of work for which they are listed, and must have work experience ~~clearly~~ demonstrating an ability to perform the activities normally associated with the particular type of work or sub-category for which qualification is sought. The Department must be notified within 10 days of the departure from the firm of personnel used to prequalify the firm in any type of work.

~~(5)(7) Qualification may be sought in any of the following categories or sub-categories.~~ A determination of qualification will be based on information submitted with the application, including résumés; verification of professional registration, certification, and degree requirements where appropriate; and a check of references as needed. Additionally, the Department may require the consultant to submit examples of recently completed work performed by the personnel listed in the application to qualify the applicant to perform the indicated activities. Qualification may be sought in any of the following categories or sub-categories:

~~(a) Group 1. Reserved.~~

~~(a)(b)~~ Group 2. Project Development and Environmental (PD&E) Studies.

1. Type of Work. This ~~type of~~ work group involves the study and evaluation of the social, economic, and environmental effects on the human and natural environment by transportation systems and alternate transportation modes in

meeting identified community transportation and growth needs. Such work also includes the evaluation of alternate transportation corridors, and location/design alternatives within viable corridors. The work involves preparing engineering studies to address the economic and engineering feasibility of alternatives, level of service, traffic capacity, geometrics, soils, structures, intersection and interchange improvements, etc., to accommodate travel demand at an acceptable level of service. Additionally, the work entails the detailed study and preparation of environmental reports and documents which evaluate the physical, natural, social, cultural, economic, and human impacts of the alternatives under consideration upon the adjacent community. Public involvement and interagency coordination are integral parts of the assessment process. Potential mitigations identified based on the studies and public involvement are evaluated and incorporated into the alternatives as appropriate.

2. Qualification Requirements. Group 2: Project Development and Environmental (PD&E) Studies. This ~~type of work group~~ requires a professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having a background or experience in civil engineering, including roadway design, proficiency in environmental engineering and experience ~~in or education in social, economic or environmental impact assessment of transportation projects, involving especially highway projects including experience with public involvement issues;~~ a natural scientist person with a four-year university or college degree and experience in a natural science such as ecology, biology, environmental science, or wildlife management, or geology; and a social scientist person with a four-year university or college degree and experience in a social science such as psychology, sociology, statistics, political science, geography, urban planning demographics, archeology, or economics.

~~(b)(e)~~ Group 3. Highway Design – Roadway. This ~~type of work group involves is defined as~~ the production and/or review of ~~competently engineered~~ highway plans, related design studies, creative utilization of roadsides, and the accommodation of utilities and utility crossings (where appropriate), which conform with acceptable design standards and which meet the specific requirements of the Florida Department of Transportation or the Federal Highway Administration. ~~Due to the broad nature of this type of work, the Department has developed the following sub-categories. Consultants may be restricted to certain of these sub-categories based on the consultant's level of experience.~~

1. This group includes the following sub-categories of qualification:

~~a.1. Type of Work 3.1: Group 3.1: Minor Highway Design.~~ This ~~type of work group~~ includes roadway design for small and/or rural projects; repair, resurfacing, and rehabilitation projects which do not involve major reconstruction or substantial capacity improvements; and as

~~well as~~ associated activities, such as drainage, utility relocation, minor traffic operations improvements, miscellaneous minor design services, etc.

~~b.2. Type of Work 3.2: Group 3.2: Major Highway Design.~~ This ~~type of work group~~ includes roadway design for urban arterial highways with curb and gutter, including the design of enclosed drainage systems. This type of work may include utility relocation plans, stormwater permits, maintenance of traffic plans, traffic engineering applications, etc.

~~c.3. Type of Work 3.3: Group 3.3: Complex Highway Design.~~ This ~~type of work group~~ is applicable to expressways, limited access facilities, interchanges, and interstate highways. This type of work includes all types of new roadway and reconstruction work on complex projects, including the use of complex geometrics, substantial drainage evaluation and design features, traffic engineering applications, utility relocation plans, ~~and~~ maintenance of traffic plans, etc.

2.4. Qualification Requirements.

~~a. Type of Work 3.1: Group 3.1: Minor Highway Design.~~ This ~~type of work group~~ requires at least one professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having proficiency in civil engineering and demonstrated plans, production, and design experience in the activities normally associated with this category. ~~Sufficient production staff to perform these activities must also be shown.~~

~~b. Types of Work 3.2 and 3.3: Groups 3.2 and 3.3: Major Highway Design and Complex Highway Design.~~ These ~~types of work groups~~ require at least two professional engineers, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having proficiency in civil engineering and demonstrated plans, production, and design experience in the activities normally associated with the category. ~~Sufficient production staff to perform these activities must also be shown.~~

~~(c)(d)~~ Group 4. Highway Design – Bridges. This ~~type of work group involves is defined as~~ the production and/or review of competently engineered bridge plans which conform with acceptable design standards and which meet the specific requirements of the Florida Department of Transportation or the Federal Highway Administration. ~~Due to the broad nature of this type of work the Department has developed the following sub-categories. Consultants may be restricted to certain of these sub-categories based on the consultant's level of experience. The intent is to assure that a proper level of professional involvement is available for the responsible, expeditious, and accurate development of bridge plans with minimal participation by Department personnel.~~

1. This group includes the following sub-categories of qualification:

~~a.1. Type of Work 4.1: Group 4.1: Minor Bridge Design.~~ This ~~type of work group~~ includes the design of conventional, non-complex bridges and the structural design of other highway-related structures such as non-standard concrete box

culverts and retaining walls. Generally, this group is limited to designs utilizing conventional foundation types, simple geometry, and having total estimated bridge(s) plan area(s) no greater than 100,000 square feet (sum of the areas of multiple bridges). Typically, this includes design for the construction, rehabilitation, widening, or lengthening of box culverts, retaining walls, cast-in-place or precast prestressed short span slab type bridges, simple span prestressed concrete beam bridges, and simple span I-beam bridges. Generally, the following type of designs are included:

- a. ~~Box culverts.~~
- b. ~~Retaining walls.~~
- e. ~~Cast in place or precast prestressed short span slab type bridges.~~
- d. ~~Simple span prestressed concrete beam bridges.~~
- e. ~~Simple span steel I beam bridges.~~
- f. ~~Rehabilitation, widening or lengthening of any of the above bridges.~~

~~b.2. Type of Work 4.2: Group 4.2: Major Bridge Design.~~ This type of work group includes the design of structures that cannot be included in Type of Work Group 4.1 because of deck area or complex geometry (curvature, skew, or variable width), complexity of design (including bridges with statically indeterminate superstructure components) spans estimated to be less than 300 feet, non-conventional substructures, substructures requiring ship impact design, and railroad bridges. Typically, this includes design for the construction, rehabilitation, widening, or lengthening of bridges over navigable waters, bridges carrying rail traffic, steel box girders, structurally-continuous superstructures, longitudinally post-tensioned concrete bridges, and curved girder bridges. Generally, the following type of designs are included:

- a. ~~Bridges over navigable waters.~~
- b. ~~Bridges carrying rail traffic.~~
- e. ~~Steel box girders.~~
- d. ~~Structurally continuous superstructures.~~
- e. ~~Longitudinally post-tensioned concrete bridges.~~
- f. ~~Curved girder bridges.~~
- g. ~~Rehabilitation, widening or lengthening of any of the above bridges.~~

~~c.3. Type of Work 4.3: Group 4.3: Complex Bridge Design.~~ This type of work group includes the design of unique, specialized, and uncommon types of designs as determined by the Florida Department of Transportation. Typically, this includes design for the construction, rehabilitation, widening, or lengthening of bridges with estimated span(s) longer than 300 feet, tunnels, cable-stayed bridges, suspension bridges, steel truss spans, concrete arch bridges, and bridges requiring unique analytical methods or other design features not commonly addressed in AASHTO publications. Generally, the following type of designs are included:

- a. ~~Bridges with estimated span(s) longer than 300 feet.~~
- b. ~~Tunnels.~~
- e. ~~Cable-stayed bridges.~~
- d. ~~Suspension bridges.~~
- e. ~~Steel truss spans.~~
- f. ~~Concrete arch bridges.~~
- g. ~~Bridges requiring unique analytical methods or other design features not commonly addressed in AASHTO publications.~~

~~h. Rehabilitation, widening or lengthening of any of the above bridges.~~

~~d.4. Type of Work 4.4: Group 4.4: Movable Span Bridge Design.~~ This type of work group includes the design of bascule bridges and other movable bridges. The work includes all structural, electrical, and mechanical requirements. Typically, this includes design for the construction, rehabilitation, widening, or lengthening of bascule bridges, swing bridges, and vertical lift bridges. Generally, the following type of designs are included:

- a. ~~Bascule bridges.~~
- b. ~~Swing bridges.~~
- e. ~~Vertical lift bridges.~~
- d. ~~Rehabilitation or widening of any of the above bridges.~~

~~2.5. Qualification Requirements.~~

~~a. Type of Work 4.1: Group 4.1: Minor Bridge Design.~~ This type of work requires ~~The consultant must have~~ at least one professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having a minimum of five years structural bridge design experience; and two structural design engineers/technicians having a minimum of three years each of bridge design experience; ~~and a sufficient number of experienced drafting/technical support staff.~~ The professional engineer shall be responsible for quality assurance of all the design services.

~~b. Type of Work 4.2: Group 4.2: Major Bridge Design.~~ This type of work requires ~~The consultant must have~~ at least two professional engineers, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having a minimum of five years each of structural bridge design experience in continuous span bridges (steel plate girder and box girder), post-tensioned continuous concrete spans, and foundations subject to significant lateral loads; and three or more structural design engineers/technicians having a minimum of three years each of bridge design experience; ~~and a sufficient number of experienced drafting/technical support staff.~~ The professional engineers shall be responsible for the quality assurance of all the design services. ~~A firm qualified to do this type of work is automatically qualified to do Minor Bridge Design.~~

~~c. Type of Work 4.3: Group 4.3: Complex Bridge Design.~~ This type of work requires ~~The consultant must have~~ at least three professional engineers, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having a minimum of five

years each of structural bridge design experience in categories as listed in Major Bridge Design, as well as spans estimated to be greater than 300 feet consisting of steel truss or arch, or steel or concrete cable-stayed and suspension type structures; and four or more structural design engineers/technicians having a minimum of three years each of bridge design experience, ~~and a sufficient number of experienced drafting/technical support staff.~~ The professional engineers shall be responsible for the quality assurance of all the design services. ~~A firm qualified to do this type of work is automatically qualified to do Minor and Major Bridge Design.~~

d. ~~Type of Work 4.4: Group 4.4: Movable Span Bridge Design. This type of work requires The consultant must have~~ at least two professional engineers, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having a minimum of five years each of movable span bridge structural design experience; and one or more ~~also employ~~ professional engineers, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having appropriate experience in electrical power distribution; controls systems; hydraulic drive and control systems; and mechanical gearing, mechanism, and machinery.

~~(d)(e) Group 5. Bridge Inspection. This type of work group is defined as the on-site inspection, load rating, and preparation of bridge inspection reports in accordance with approved federal and state statutes, policies, guidelines, and standards. Due to the broad nature of this type of work, the Department has developed the following sub-categories. Consultants may be restricted to certain sub-categories based on the level of experience of their professional engineers, certified bridge inspectors and support personnel. Availability of required equipment will also be considered, along with level of experience in evaluating qualification.~~

1. This group includes the following sub-categories of qualification:

~~a.1. Type of Work 5.1: Group 5.1: Conventional Bridge Inspection. This type of work sub-category includes inspection and load rating of all types of bridges except movable bridges, box girders, bulb-tees, suspension, cable stayed, post-tensioned segmental concrete, large steel trusses, high-rise structures, and~~ or ~~other complex bridge structures.~~

~~b.2. Type of Work 5.2: Group 5.2: Movable Bridge Inspection. This type of work sub-category includes inspection and load rating of all types of movable structures (vertical lift, swing span, and bascule), utilizing specialty skills in inspection, load rating, and design of mechanical and electrical equipment.~~

~~c.3. Type of Work 5.3: Group 5.3: Complex Bridge Inspection. This type of work sub-category includes inspection and load rating of all complex bridges except the movable bridges. Typical types of structures will include box girders, bulb-tees, suspension, cable stayed, post-tensioned segmental concrete, high-rise structures, and large steel trusses.~~

d. Type of Work 5.4: Bridge Load Rating. This type of work involves the process of determining the live load capacity of a structure.

~~2.4. Qualification Requirements. Types of work Groups 5.1, 5.2, 5.3, and 5.4: Bridge Inspection. This type of work requires The consultant must have~~ at least one professional engineer registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having experience appropriate to the sub-category requested. ~~The consultant must also employ and list sufficient certified bridge inspectors, divers, and other technical personnel as required to perform the activities normally associated with each sub-category.~~

~~(e)(f) Group 6. Traffic Engineering and Operations Studies. This type of work group includes is defined as the performance of studies of existing traffic problems within an urban area; and the determination of the most effective way to improve traffic flow and safety through the application of traffic engineering techniques and other corrective measures. It includes street and signal inventories; intersection and crossing diagrams; highway lighting information at nighttime high accident locations; and analysis of accident reports, traffic counts, travel times, parking practices, and laws and ordinances affecting transportation. This type of work group is limited to generalized description and schematic layouts of the proposed improvements, including right of way requirements, and generally does not include the preparation of construction plans and the writing of specifications for traffic system projects. Due to the broad nature of this type of work the Department has developed the following sub-categories. Consultants may be restricted to certain of these sub-categories based on the consultant's level of experience.~~

1. This group includes the following sub-categories of qualification:

~~a.1. Type of Work 6.1: Group 6.1: Traffic Engineering Studies. This type category of work is defined as the study of operational problems and the determination of traffic operational improvements for efficiency and safety. This work group includes studies for the following: signing, marking, and signal inventories; traffic counts; intersection and collision diagrams; signal warrant and intersection analysis; and travel time and delay studies. Many of the traffic engineering studies require knowledge and experience with traffic engineering computer programs such as SOAP, PASSER, and TRANSYT. This type of work group requires the consultant to make specific recommendations to improve the operational efficiency at a particular location.~~

~~b.2. Type of Work 6.2: Group 6.2: Traffic Signal Timing. This type category of work is defined as the timing of traffic signals to improve traffic flow and safety. Department approved traffic engineering computerized timing programs shall be used. This type of work includes data collection,~~

intersection analysis and documentation, section analysis and documentation, timing implementation and fine tuning, and timing evaluation.

~~c.3. Type of Work 6.3: Group 6.3: Intelligent Transportation Traffic Control Systems Analysis, Design, and Implementation.~~ This ~~type category~~ of work is defined as the use of electrical engineering, electronics engineering, computer science, and traffic engineering to analyze, design, and implement real-time intelligent transportation traffic control systems. This includes system performance and cost analysis, system hardware and software design, development of management plans, system installation and operation, system testing and debugging, system documentation, and the training of operations personnel.

2.4. Qualification Requirements.

a. ~~Type of Work 6.1: Group 6.1: Traffic Engineering Studies.~~ This type of work requires a professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having demonstrated traffic studies experience.

b. ~~Type of Work 6.2: Group 6.2: Traffic Signal Timing.~~ This type of work requires a professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having demonstrated traffic signal timing experience in the application and interpretation of traffic flow and signal timing models. ~~The consultant also must employ and list sufficient personnel having experience using traffic engineering software applications, loading timings into field equipment, and loading databases into central computers for retiming.~~

c. ~~Type of Work 6.3: Group 6.3: Intelligent Transportation Traffic Control Systems Analysis, Design and Implementation.~~ This type of work requires a professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having demonstrated experience in activities associated with intelligent transportation traffic control systems. Restrictions to the type of intelligent transportation traffic control systems work may apply depending on the consultant's demonstrated proficiency or documented experience in one or more of the following defined technical skill areas:

(I) ~~Intelligent Transportation Traffic Systems Analysis and Design.~~ This type of work requires ~~Engineering/Technical staff with~~ experience in the production of competently engineered design, and preparation of construction plans and specifications for traffic control systems, freeway operations systems, dynamic message sign systems, closed circuit television camera systems, detection systems, and automatic vehicle identification systems work. The consultant must also demonstrate experience with traffic engineering software applications, freeway control software, and ~~with~~ computerized timing programs.

(II) ~~Intelligent Transportation Traffic Engineering Systems Implementation.~~ This type of work requires ~~Engineering/Technical staff having~~ documented experience with realtime traffic control systems, system installation and

testing, and knowledge of Construction Engineering Inspection (CEI) requirements for intelligent transportation signal construction projects.

(III) ~~Intelligent Transportation Traffic Engineering Systems Communications.~~ This type of work requires ~~Engineering/Technical staff with~~ documented experience proficiency in electronic engineering of system hardware, digital system design, specifications, and utilization. The applicant must show experience in electrical engineering of power and communications, including power distribution, standby power supply, lightning protection, hardware interconnect, fiber optic networks, wireless communications networks, local area networks, wide area networks, Internet communications, data recording, data transmission, modulating, and multiplexing techniques.

(IV) ~~Intelligent Transportation Traffic Engineering Systems Software Development.~~ This type of work requires documented experience in software development, specifically with intelligent transportation systems traffic engineering applications, and computer science (realtime process control software systems, including realtime executive I/O processing and priority interrupt based processing). The applicant must also show experience with system software testing and debugging, data base software, graphical user interfaces, system documentation, and training of operations personnel.

~~(f)(g) Group 7. Traffic Operations Design.~~ This ~~type of~~ work group is defined as the production of competently engineered designs, and preparation of construction plans and/or specifications for a variety of traffic operations type work. ~~Due to the broad nature of this type of work the Department has developed the following sub-categories. Applicants may be qualified only in certain of these sub-categories based on the applicant's level of experience.~~

a.1. ~~Type of Work 7.1: Group 7.1: Signing, Pavement Marking, and Channelization.~~ This type of work includes designing, preparing construction plans, and writing specifications for signing, pavement marking, and channelization. Such work involves structural support and foundation calculations, and requires a basic knowledge of traffic engineering studies.

b.2. ~~Type of Work 7.2: Group 7.2: Lighting.~~ This type of work includes designing, preparing construction plans, and writing specifications for roadway lighting improvements. Such work involves lighting calculations, ~~and~~ pole location, foundation design, electrical circuit calculations ~~and~~ power supply and ~~power~~ distribution design, and requires a basic knowledge of traffic engineering studies.

c.3. ~~Type of Work 7.3: Group 7.3: Signalization.~~ This type of work includes designing, preparing construction plans, and writing specifications for traffic signalization. Such work involves capacity calculations, signal operating plan

development, timing calculations, equipment location, pole and foundation designs, etc., and requires a basic knowledge of traffic engineering studies and traffic signal retiming.

2.4. Qualification Requirements.

a. Type of Work 7.1: ~~Group 7.1:~~ Signing, Pavement Marking, and Channelization. This type of work requires a professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having demonstrated experience in this category of work.

b. Type of Work 7.2: ~~Group 7.2:~~ Lighting. This type of work requires the consultant to demonstrate experience in the areas of illumination and electrical engineering, as well as to employ a professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having demonstrated lighting plans design and production experience.

c. Type of Work 7.3: ~~Group 7.3:~~ Signalization. This type of work requires the consultant to demonstrate experience in the area of electrical engineering, as well as to employ a professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having demonstrated experience in the design and production of traffic signalization plans.

(g)(h) Group 8. ~~Surveying and Mapping Surveys.~~ This type of work group includes land and boundary surveying and mapping, as defined in Rule Chapter 61G17-6, F.A.C., other types of surveys required for the land acquisition, design, and construction of transportation engineering projects.

1. This group includes the following sub-categories of qualification:

a. Type of Work 8.1: Control Surveying. This type of work provides horizontal and/or vertical data to a specified standard for all Department projects.

b. Type of Work 8.2: Design, Right of Way, and Construction Surveying. This type of work includes boundary surveys, right of way surveys, as-built surveys, construction layout surveys, topographic surveys, hydrographic surveys, quantity surveys, record surveys, mean high water line surveys, and special purpose surveys.

c. Type of Work 8.3: Photogrammetric Mapping. This type of work includes surveys and the preparation of maps using photogrammetric methods.

d. Type of Work 8.4: Right of Way Mapping. This type of work includes the production of right of way related maps, as well as the preparation of legal descriptions and sketches of legal descriptions based on information supported by the applicable surveys or maps defined in the preceding types of work, title searches, and other documents.

2. Qualification Requirements: To qualify to perform surveying and mapping services as defined above, the consultant must employ at least one professional surveyor and mapper, registered with the Florida Board of Professional Surveyors and Mappers, having at least one year of documented post registration experience in the specific type of work for which qualification is requested. The consultant must

also employ at least two additional technical personnel, each having at least one year of documented experience in the specific type of work for which qualification is requested. In addition, the consultant must submit a written statement of intent to use equipment and software meeting the accuracy, formatting, and other requirements defined in Department policies, procedures, manuals, or handbooks, related to the type(s) of work for which qualification is sought.

1. Group 8.1: Land and Right of Way Survey. This type of work includes determining the perimeter of a parcel or tract of land by establishing or reestablishing corners, monuments, and boundary lines for the purpose of describing; locating fixed improvements; platting or subdividing a parcel; and surveying of a strip or area of land used or proposed to be used for the construction and maintenance of a transportation facility.

2. Group 8.2: Design survey. This type of work includes preparing control surveys providing horizontal or vertical position data for the support or control of subordinate surveys or for mapping; construction layout surveys for measurements to control elevation, horizontal position and dimensions and configuration prior to or while construction is in progress; topographic surveys of the natural and selected man-made features of a part of the earth's surface by remote sensing and/or ground measurements to determine horizontal and vertical spacial relations of tracts of land; or hydrographic surveys to determine data relating to bodies of water which may consist of the determination of depth of water and configuration of the bottom at particular points; directions and force of current; heights, times and water stages; and location of fixed objects for survey and navigation purposes.

3. Qualification Requirements. Groups 8.1 and 8.2: Surveys. This group requires at least one land surveyor, registered with the Florida State Board of Land Surveyors, having at least one year of land surveying experience acting in responsible charge. The consultant must employ and list sufficient staff to undertake the requirements normally associated with this type of work, and must document the availability of proper equipment to perform this work.

(h)(i) Group 9. Soil Exploration, Material Testing, and Foundations. Due to the broad nature of this type of work, the Department has developed the following sub categories. Consultants may be restricted to certain of these sub categories based on their level of experience and ability to provide required equipment.

1. This group includes the following sub-categories of qualification:

a. ~~Type of Work 9.1: Group 9.1:~~ Soil Exploration. This type of work includes acquisition and reporting of subsurface material, hydrological, and environmental information to be used for the planning, design, construction, and performance of transportation facilities. The methodology involved includes on-site investigations by performing borings, Standard Penetration tests, Cone Penetration tests, and rock coring; the

use of specialized test equipment, such as the field vane, pressuremeter, or dilatometer; and the use of geophysical methods. Also included is the field classification of materials and acquisition of soil and rock samples.

b.2. Type of Work 9.2: ~~Group 9.2:~~ Geotechnical Classification Lab Exploration Testing. This type of work includes conducting tests on soil and rock according to Department approved specifications for the purpose of classifying materials ~~and identifying their physical properties.~~ The methodology involved includes testing moisture content, grain size, Atterberg limits, compaction, and Limerock Bearing Ratio (LBR) tests permeability, consolidation, unconfined compression, direct shear, and triaxial.

c.3. Type of Work 9.3: ~~Group 9.3:~~ Highway Materials Testing. This type of work includes sampling and testing various materials and reporting results and recommendations. Work will be performed at mines, quarries, mills, refineries, processors, producers, fabricators, constructors, laboratories, and project construction sites; some of which will be outside the State of Florida. Materials to be tested include, ~~but are not limited to,~~ aggregates; concrete products; cements and additives, including water, epoxies, and curing compounds; bituminous materials, mixtures, additives, and joint fillers; metals; galvanizing, rubber, paints, and other coatings; and soils and limerock.

d.4. Type of Work 9.4: ~~Group 9.4:~~ Foundation Studies. This type of work includes producing reports which include selection of the type (footings, piles, drilled shafts, etc.) and depth of foundation for bridges and other structures; bearing capacity and the predicted settlement of the selected foundation; slope stability; surcharge or stage construction time schedules for construction over soft ground; pile load tests; soil treatment; stabilization; and direction of field instrumentation installation, including the interpretation of data obtained and other foundation studies using the applicable Department FDOT Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, Department FDOT Soils and Foundation Manual procedures, and Federal Highway Administration guidelines and checklist.

e. Type of Work 9.5: Geotechnical Specialty Lab Testing. This type of work includes conducting tests on soil and rock according to Department approved specifications for the purpose of identifying their physical properties. The methodology involved includes testing permeability, consolidation, unconfined compression, direct shear, splitting tensile, and triaxial.

2.5. Qualification Requirements. ~~a.~~ For all sub-categories this work requires at least one professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having demonstrated experience in the activities normally associated with the category(ies) under consideration.

a.b. Type of Work 9.1: ~~Group 9.1:~~ Soil Exploration. The consultant must document the availability of equipment (in-house or subcontracted) necessary to perform the work. Documentation of availability includes equipment listings for explorations subcontractors who will be used on Department FDOT projects. It should be noted that the qualified consultant shall be solely responsible for any and all explorations work, whether performed by the consultant or its his subcontractor.

b.e. Type of Work 9.2: ~~Group 9.2:~~ Geotechnical Classification Lab Exploration Testing. The consultant must have at least one technician with a minimum of two years of experience in geotechnical testing and LBR Technician qualification under the Department's Construction Training Qualification Program (in-house) the equipment and qualified staff necessary to perform the work.

c.d. Type of Work 9.3: ~~Group 9.3:~~ Highway Materials Testing. Among the consultant's personnel, at least one individual The consultant must possess have (in-house) the equipment and qualified, certified staff necessary to perform the work. Certification requirements include at least one FDOT Limerock Bearing Ratio (LBR) Technician qualification certification, one individual must possess FDOT Asphalt Plant Level I qualification Technician certification, one individual must possess Concrete Field testing Technician Level I qualification under the Department's Construction Training Qualification Program American Concrete Institute (ACI) concrete testing certification, and one individual must possess nuclear gauge operator certification as provided by a gauge manufacturer. In addition, the consultant must have (in-house) at least the following test equipment: oven, balances, sieves, mechanical shaker, colorimetric kit, compression testing machine, moisture curing room or tanks, slump cone, air meters, gravity apparatus, thermometers, pycnometer, pulverizing apparatus, jaw crusher apparatus, splitter or quartering device, Los Angeles machine, flowmeter, water bath, vacuum extractor, muffle furnace, compaction hammer, molds LBR loading devices with penetration piston, soak tanks, superpave gatory apparatus, and ignition furnace. Procedures for certification of FDOT Limerock Bearing Ratio Technicians are provided in FDOT Limerock Bearing Ratio Technician Certification Study Guide, 1986, and procedures for certification of FDOT Asphalt Plant Technicians are provided in the FDOT Asphalt Technician Manual, 1992. These two manuals are hereby incorporated by reference herein.

e. Type of Work 9.5: Geotechnical Specialty Lab Testing. The consultant must have at least one staff member with at least four years of experience performing the tests, or an equivalent bachelor's degree. In addition, the consultant must have (in-house) at least the following test equipment: oven, balances, permeameter, consolidation load device, load frame, direct shear machine, triaxial panel, and a triaxial cell.

~~(j)(f)~~ Group 10. Construction Engineering Inspection. This type of work group involves the monitoring and inspection of the work required under various construction contracts. This type of work includes coordinating with other public agencies, utilities, and affected property owners. ~~A registered professional engineer is required to act in the capacity of resident engineer under the supervision of a representative of the Department. Other technical support personnel will be required as necessary depending on the nature, extent and complexity of the work under contract. Due to the nature of this type of work, the Department has developed the following sub-categories. Consultants may be restricted to certain of these sub-categories based on their level of professional experience and the number of experienced technical support personnel.~~

~~a.1. Type of Work 10.1: Group 10.1: Roadway Construction Engineering Inspection. This type of work includes the administration and inspection of single or multiple construction contracts on rural, municipal, urban, and interstate facilities; including necessary minor bridges as defined in Type of Work 3.1 Group 4.1.~~

~~b.2. Type of Work 10.2: Group 10.2: Major Bridge Construction Engineering Inspection. This type of work includes the administration and inspection of single or multiple construction contracts involving the construction of major bridges as defined in Types of Work Groups 4.2, 4.3, and 4.4.~~

~~c.3. Type of Work 10.3: Group 10.3: Construction Materials Inspection. This type of work includes conducting inspections and investigations of various highway materials or products, together with the proper recording, analysis, and reporting of results and recommendations. The work will be performed at mines, quarries, mills, refineries, processors, producers, fabricators, constructors, and project construction sites; some of which will be outside the State of Florida.~~

2.4. Qualification Requirements.

~~a. Type of Work 10.1: Group 10.1: Roadway Construction Engineering Inspection. This type of work requires at least one professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having at least two years of responsible charge experience as a project engineer on a roadway construction inspection project.~~

~~b. Type of Work 10.2: Group 10.2: Major Bridge Construction Engineering Inspection. This type of work requires a minimum of three professional engineers, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers. One of these engineers must have at least five years of demonstrated major bridge construction inspection experience.~~

~~c. Type of Work 10.3: Group 10.3: Construction Materials Inspection. This type of work requires a minimum of one professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having at least three years of responsible experience in bridge or roadway construction inspection.~~

~~(j)(k)~~ Group 11. Engineering Contract Administration and Management.

~~1. Type of Work: Group 11: Engineering Contract Administration and Management. This type of work is defined as the administration and management of engineering activities. Consultants applying for qualification in this type of work must be determined qualified in a number of categories under this rule chapter. Examples of assignments made to a consultant qualified for this type of work are:~~

~~a. Engineering analysis of transportation facility deficiencies; and the preparation of an engineering scope of services and manhour estimate to correct those deficiencies.~~

~~b. Project schedule development for planning, environmental, design, and construction engineering inspection activities.~~

~~c. Review and analysis of professional engineering issues contained in statements of qualification and technical proposals submitted by consultants competing for professional contracts.~~

~~d. Conducting Scope of Service meetings with professional consultants.~~

~~e. Preparation of contractual agreements for professional services in accordance with Department policies and procedures.~~

~~f. Supervision and management of engineering consultants on individual projects, responding to their technical questions, and reviewing their work in progress and completed work.~~

~~g. Representing the Department during professional service negotiations with consultants, utilities, and other entities.~~

~~h. Other professional engineering activities associated with the acquisition and management of professional consulting services.~~

~~2. Qualification Requirements. Group 11: Engineering Contract Administration and Management. To be determined qualified for this type of work, a consultant must be qualified by the Department in the following Groups and Types of Work under this rule chapter: Group 3, Types of Work Groups 4.1, and 4.2, and Group 6.1, Group 7, and Type of Work Group 10.1. Firms deemed determined qualified in these groups and requesting qualification for Group 11 will be deemed determined qualified without a requirement to submit additional qualification documentation or materials.~~

~~(l) Group 12. Right of Way Surveying and Mapping. Due to the nature of this work, the Department has developed the following sub-categories. Consultants may be restricted to certain of these sub-categories based on the level of their experience and availability of personnel.~~

~~1. Group 12.1: Right of Way Map Preparation. This type of work includes the production of competently prepared right of way maps which must conform to Rule Chapter 61G17-6, F.A.C., pursuant to Section 472.027, Florida Statutes. Included in this type of work is the alignment of the proposed facility,~~

sectional ties, depiction of the parent tract, identification of property ownership lines, complete parcel definition by distances and bearings, parcel identification numbers and tabulation of areas including those required for the facility and the remainder.

~~2. Group 12.2: Legal Description Preparation. This type of work includes the production of competently prepared legal descriptions based upon right of way maps information. Descriptions must conform to Rule Chapter 61G17-6, FAC, pursuant to Section 472.027, Florida Statutes.~~

~~3. Qualification Requirements for Groups 12.1 and 12.2: Right of Way Surveying and Mapping. These Groups require at least one professional land surveyor, registered with the Florida State Board of Land Surveyors and a minimum of two technical personnel, all having demonstrated experience in the applicable category of work.~~

~~(k)(m) Group 13. Planning. This type of work group involves is defined as the determination of future actions necessary to address the need for transportation facilities and services. The work effort may involve planning both short range (up to 10 years) and long range (more than 10 years) time periods, and may involve any or all typical activities of planning, including ~~but not limited to~~ development and refinement of processes and procedures; development and analysis of policies, goals, and objectives; data collection and analysis; issue analysis; development and use of forecasting and other models; analysis of transportation/land use relationships; assessing the impact that planning transportation improvements may have on private property; establishment of standards and performance criteria; forecasts of transportation and transportation - related data; determination and analysis of alternatives; multimodal/intermodal tradeoff analysis; analysis of alternatives; multimodal/intermodal tradeoff analysis; development of recommended plans and courses of action; financial feasibility; assessment of the impacts of growth management requirements on transportation; and public participation and coordination with other planning processes and plans. ~~Due to the nature of the type of work, the Department has developed the following sub-categories. Consultants may be restricted to certain of these sub-categories based on their level of experience.~~~~

~~1. This group includes the following subcategories of qualification:~~

~~a.1. Type of Work Group 13.1: Reserved.~~

~~b.2. Type of Work Group 13.2: Reserved.~~

~~c. 3. Type of Work Group 13.3: Policy Planning. This type of work involves deals with transportation and transportation - related planning activities in the broadest or most general way. Included in this sub-category are development and refinement of statewide transportation plans or plan components, and activities involving the impacts and implications of policies, legislative legislation issues, processes, and standards on a wide variety of subjects, including: transportation facilities and~~

services; land use; the environment; the private sector; and the public. Planning in this sub-category usually occurs at levels where difficult trade-offs in the use and allocation of resources must be made and where many people will be affected in important but often subtle ways. Hence, the ability to use judgement, both political and technical/professional, is very important, as is the ability to effectively communicate using a variety of media.

~~d.4. Type of Work Group 13.4: Systems Planning. This type of work deals with planning for entire systems (one or several modes) of transportation covering an entire geographic area. Included in this sub-category are activities involving the systematic analysis of future demand for transportation facilities and services, leading to recommendations for addressing that demand. Typical activities include: data collection and analysis, including analysis of transportation/land use relationships; estimation, forecasting, and assignment of travel demand, including modeling the characteristics and use of transportation systems; mode split and multimodal tradeoff analysis; impact analysis; evaluation and decision making; cost analysis and financial feasibility; and modal coordination and management. Although recommendations as to the type, number, and approximate location of transportation facilities are to be made, this sub-category does not include determination of the precise location or design of facilities or systems.~~

~~e.5. Type of Work Group 13.5: Subarea/Corridor Planning. This type of work deals with planning for entire or portions of systems (one or several modes) of transportation covering a portion of a geographic area. Included in this sub-category are activities involving the systematic analysis of future demand for transportation facilities and services, leading to recommendations for addressing that demand. Typical activities, usually performed at a more detailed level than with systems planning, include data collection and analysis, as well as including: analysis of transportation/land use relationships; estimation, forecasting, and assignment of travel demand, including modeling the characteristics and use of transportation systems; mode split and multimodal tradeoff analysis; impact analysis; evaluation and decision making; cost analysis; and financial feasibility; and modal coordination and management. Although recommendations as to the type, number, and approximate location of transportation facilities are to be made, this sub-category does not include determination of the precise location or design of facilities or systems.~~

~~f.6. Type of Work Group 13.6: Land Planning/Engineering. This work involves planning and engineering in support of assessing the impacts that proposed transportation improvements may have on private property. Included in this sub-category are activities involving site analysis for compliance with comprehensive plans, local ordinances, and appraisers' cost to cure; reviewing. ~~Review~~~~

and ~~providing~~ ~~provide~~ engineering opinions of site plans for feasibility and conformance with applicable codes and regulations; ~~assessing~~. ~~Assess~~ the impact to drainage and environment; and ~~preparing~~. ~~Prepare~~ site plan and studies which may encompass parking layout, vehicle use areas, and general site consideration in conformance with applicable codes, laws, and regulations.

g. Type of Work 13.7: Transportation Statistics. This type of work involves data collection, analysis, editing, processing, and reporting to support planning, design, and maintenance of the transportation network. This type of work also involves the construction, replacement, or repair of traffic monitoring equipment including sensors (either installed in, or along the roadway) and associated equipment and appurtenances. The construction of traffic monitoring sites may include design, preparing construction plans, writing specifications, and construction engineering supervision. Special traffic counts may also be performed under this activity to support production and development activities and special needs.

2.7. Qualification Requirements.

a. ~~Type of Work Group~~ 13.1: Reserved.

b. ~~Type of Work Group~~ 13.2: Reserved.

c. ~~Type of Work Group~~ 13.3: Policy Planning. This type of work requires at least one professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having training and experience in areas directly related to policy planning; or at least one professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, with at least one employed planner having training and experience in areas directly related to policy planning; or at least one planner, certified with the American Institute of Certified Planners, having training and experience in areas directly related to policy planning.

d. ~~Type of Work Group~~ 13.4: Systems Planning. This type of work requires at least one professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having training and experience in areas directly related to systems planning; or at least one professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers with at least one employed planner having training and experience in areas directly related to systems planning; or at least one planner, certified with the American Institute of Certified Planners, having training and experience in areas directly related to systems planning.

e. ~~Type of Work Group~~ 13.5: Subarea/Corridor Planning. This type of work requires at least one professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having training and experience in areas directly related to subarea/corridor planning; or at least one professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, with at least one employed planner having training and experience in areas directly related to subarea/corridor planning; or at least one planner, certified

with the American Institute of Certified Planners, having training and experience in areas directly related to subarea/corridor planning.

f. ~~Type of Work Group~~ 13.6: Land Planning/Engineering. This type of work requires at least one professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having training and experience in comprehensive planning or areas directly related to assessing impacts to private property; or at least one professional engineer, registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, with at least one employed planner having training and experience in comprehensive planning or areas directly related to assessing impacts to private property; or at least one planner, certified with the American Institute of Certified Planners, having training and experience in comprehensive planning or areas directly related to assessing impacts to private property.

g. Type of Work 13.7: Transportation Statistics. This type of work requires at least one professional engineer registered with the Florida State Board of Professional Engineers, having demonstrated experience in activities associated with the collection of traffic data of a statistical nature that can be used in the Department's data bases such as the Rail-highway Crossing Inventory (RHCI), Traffic Characteristics Inventory (TCI), and Roadway Characteristics Inventory (RCI), or used to support other Department activities such as highway design. In addition, either the same engineer, or an additional professional engineer registered with the State Board of Professional Engineers with demonstrated experience in the construction, replacement, or repair of traffic monitoring equipment, including sensors (either installed in, on, or alongside the roadway) and associated equipment and appurtenances, and maintenance of traffic is required.

~~(l)(n)~~ Group 14. Architect.

1. Type of Work. This type of work is defined as the rendering of services in connection with the design and construction of a structure or group of structures which have as their principal purpose human habitation or use, and the utilization of space within and surrounding such structures. These services include planning; providing preliminary study designs, drawings, and specifications; architectural supervision; job-site inspection; and administration of construction contracts.

2. Qualification Requirements. This type of work requires at least one architect, registered with the Florida State Board of Architecture and Interior Design, with documentation indicating five years of post registration experience in commercial design and favorable references. Additionally, the firm must employ and list sufficient project management and technical staff to provide services normally associated with this type of work; and provide documentation of past projects and favorable references.

~~(m)(o)~~ Group 15: Landscape Architect.

1. Type of Work. This type of work is defined as the rendering of services in connection with the design and construction of landscape projects. These services include planning; site planning; providing preliminary study designs, drawings, and specifications; landscape architectural supervision; job-site inspection; and administration of construction contracts.

2. Qualification Requirements. ~~Group 15: Landscape Architect.~~ This type of work requires at least one landscape architect, registered with the Florida State Board of Landscape Architecture, ~~with.~~ Additionally, the firm must employ and list sufficient project management and technical staff to provide services normally associated with this type of work; and ~~provide~~ documentation of past projects and favorable references.

~~(p) Group 20. Appraisal Services. This type of work is defined as the services provided by an appraiser to the State of Florida Department of Transportation. Appraisal Services include: "Appraisal Assignment" denoting an engagement for which a person is employed or retained to act, or could be perceived by third parties or the public as acting, as an agent or a disinterested third party in rendering an unbiased analysis, opinion, review, or conclusion relating to the nature, quality, value, or utility of specified interests in, or aspects of, identified real property; "Analysis Assignment" denoting limited appraisal services that relate to the Department's specifically identified needs such as estimates of project or parcel costs, specialized studies of project effects or influences, market activity, market conditions, trends and adjustments, financing, and feasibility as well as analyses, opinions and conclusions relating to such activities. Appraisal services require a written statement, independently and impartially prepared, which meets the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP), as incorporated by reference in Section 475.628, Florida Statutes. Due to the nature of this work, the Department has developed the following sub-categories. Consultants may be restricted to certain of these sub-categories based on the level of their experience and availability of personnel; and "Appraisal Review" denoting the act or process of critically studying an appraisal report prepared by others.~~

~~1. Group 20.1 Appraisal.~~

~~2. Group 20.2 Appraisal Review.~~

~~3. Qualification Requirements. These types of work requires a minimum of one person licensed as a State Certified General Real Estate Appraiser issued by the Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation with a minimum of three years experience in appraising for eminent domain purposes. For Group 20.2, the certifying appraiser shall, in addition to the required three years experience in appraising for eminent domain purposes, have a minimum of three years experience in appraisal review for eminent domain purposes.~~

~~(n)(q) Group 21. Acquisition, Negotiation, Closing, and Order of Taking.~~

1. Type of Work. This ~~type of~~ work involves notifying all affected parties of their rights pursuant to Section 337.271, Florida Statutes; reviewing and verifying all title work; reviewing right of way maps and construction plans and verifying that all legal descriptions, right of way maps, and appraisals correspond; conducting interviews with business owners to determine eligibility for potential business damage claims and obtaining appropriate documentation; preparing real property/personal property inventories; making purchase offers including the approved market value estimate and, when applicable, approved business damages, and conducting negotiations in accordance with state policies and procedures and all applicable laws; participating in the non-binding pre-litigation mediation process; preparing recommendations for administrative settlements; preparing and processing invoices for requesting warrants for settlements, and order of taking deposits; conducting all necessary closings ~~including but not limited to updating the title search, ensuring satisfaction of all liens and transfers, recording of all documents, and collection and payment of prorated real estate taxes; obtaining all suit information from property owners, preparing public disclosure forms for execution, obtaining Secretary of State's reports, as well as preparation, styling, and filing of lawsuit packages under the direction of the Department's attorney; providing assistance to the Department's attorneys in obtaining Orders of Taking, including providing testimony and responding to interrogatories; and maintaining complete written documentation of all contacts with property owners or property owners' representatives.~~

2. Qualification Requirements. This type of work requires registration of the consultant with the Florida Real Estate Commission and, at ~~as~~ a minimum, one real estate broker and one real estate salesperson ~~salesman~~ licensed by the State of Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation. These employees each must have at least three years of demonstrated experience in transportation acquisition projects.

~~(o)(r) Group 22. Acquisition Business Damage Estimating and Estimate Review.~~

1. Type of Work. This work is defined as the preparation of business damage estimate reports describing the impact of a right of way acquisition on the income, expenses, and profits of a particular business, in accordance with the standards established in Chapter 14-102, F.A.C. Florida Administrative Code, and all other recognized accounting and performance standards; and the critical and analytical review and evaluation of business damage estimate reports, exhibits, and other documentation submitted to the Department by the business damage estimator on behalf of the Department or business owners. ~~Performance of the estimates entail visiting each site to determine the probable impact of the taking on the business~~

operation; interviewing business owners or any other designated representatives to the extent necessary to ensure that a complete understanding of the business operation is obtained; making a preliminary determination as to whether the business meets the eligibility requirements for a business damage claim in accordance with statutory provisions; performing preliminary cost estimates; conducting research in areas such as, parking studies, and traffic studies; coordinating with the Department's appraiser, review appraiser or relocation agent to ensure that any potential for duplicate payment is removed prior to completion of the estimate; and making a presentation to the Department's Business Damage Review Committee regarding the taking, appraisal report, other pertinent studies and business damage reports, including reports submitted on behalf of the owner. Performance of estimate reviews entail the physical inspection of the business for which damages are being estimated and a determination of:

- a. Compliance with Chapter 14 102, Florida Administrative Code;
- b. The reasonableness of and consistency among the facts and circumstances of the estimators' reports;
- c. The reasonableness of the estimators' conclusions and rationale; and
- d. The estimators' compliance with Chapter 14 102, Florida Administrative Code. This work also involves a review of invoices submitted by estimators of business damages. A written report is required consisting of the reviewer's conclusions regarding items a, b, c and d above.

2. Qualification Requirements. This type of work requires a minimum of one employee, registered as a Certified Public Accountant in the State of Florida, with a minimum of three years of demonstrated professional accounting work, after registration. This type of work also requires the CPA to show demonstrated previous experience in the preparation of accepted business damage estimate reports for the Florida Department of Transportation within the last three years immediately preceding application for qualification; or service as an expert witness in the State of Florida in eminent domain cases or other legal cases regarding business valuation or damages within the last three years immediately preceding application for qualification; or a minimum of 24 hours of completed course work since January 1, 1981, directly related to business valuation. Verification of course work shall be by copies of course certificates of completion issued by the course provider which will indicate the number of hours that may be counted for continuing professional education credits.

~~(p)(s)~~ Group 24. Acquisition Relocation Assistance.

1. Type of Work. This type of work is defined as relocation planning at the conceptual stage of a transportation project and the preparation of the Relocation Needs Assessment Survey, identifying displaced persons and likely business damage candidates pursuant to the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies

Act and 49 C.F.R., Part 24. This would involve the study and evaluation of the characteristics and needs of individuals, families, business operations, non-profit organizations, outdoor advertising signs (if applicable), farming operations, and personal property to be affected by the transportation project and by what means those needs will be met. Advisory services, including personal interviews and coordination with displaced persons, must be provided to insure the timely relocation to replacement properties. Relocation assistance also involves the delivery of all required notices and offers to owners and tenants, the location and offering of comparable decent, safe, and sanitary replacement dwellings available for sale or rent, the computation of replacement housing payments, the determination of appropriate move cost payments, the monitoring of moves, the preparation of claim packages, invoicing of payment amounts and delivery of warrants. The work also entails obtaining all information pertinent to evictions and relocation appeals, and includes providing testimony. ~~The preparation and maintenance of complete written documentation of all advisory services, notice delivery, comparability and payment determinations and contacts with all persons involved in the relocation process is required.~~

2. Qualification Requirements. This type of work requires a minimum of one full time employee ~~with to have~~ a minimum of three years of demonstrated current experience in administering and providing relocation assistance for transportation projects under the provisions of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act and 49 C.F.R., Part 24.

~~(q)(t)~~ Group 25. Right of Way Clearing and Leasing.

1. Type of Work: This ~~type of~~ work involves preparing real property/personal property inventories and inventory updates up to and including final disposition of the property; performing property inspections on an ongoing basis to determine the need for rodent control, maintenance, and security; conducting negotiations for short-term leases and preparing leasing documents for real and personal property prior to construction of a project; preparing, obtaining, managing, and reviewing ~~departmental~~ contracts for consultant services to perform asbestos surveys, ~~preparing prepare~~ asbestos operation and maintenance plans, ~~preparing prepare~~ asbestos abatement specifications, and performing air and asbestos project monitoring; preparing, obtaining, and managing departmental contracts for asbestos abatement services ~~and assuring the contractor files appropriate notices, begins work on required dates and is in compliance with applicable laws and regulations;~~ preparing, obtaining, and managing departmental contracts for demolition and removal services ~~and assuring the contractor files appropriate notices, begins work on required dates and is in compliance with applicable laws and regulations;~~ inspecting demolition sites

and documenting demolition activities; and preparing, obtaining, and managing departmental contracts for removal of pollutant storage tanks.

2. Qualification Requirements. This type of work requires registration of the consultant with the Florida Real Estate Commission and, ~~at as~~ at a minimum, one real estate broker and one real estate ~~salesperson~~ salesman licensed by the Florida State Department of Business and Professional Regulation. These employees each must have at least three years of demonstrated experience in managing properties acquired for transportation purposes and managing ~~in management of~~ contracts for demolition activities. Additionally, at least one employee must be certified as an Asbestos Inspector, and as an Asbestos Management Planner, and have a minimum of three years of administrative experience in the asbestos field.

Specific Authority 287.055, 334.044(2) FS. Law Implemented 287.055, 337.105, 337.1075 FS. History--New 6-30-73, Amended 3-24-77, 5-1-77, 8-31-77, 11-13-77, 9-20-83, 10-21-85, Formerly 14-75.03, Amended 3-29-89, 1-2-91, 9-29-92, 2-22-94, 8-5-96, 6-30-98,_____.

14-75.004 Consultant Competitive Selection Process.

Selection of professional consultants by the Department shall be in accordance with the provisions enumerated below.

(1) Notice.

(a) Except when there is a public emergency certified by the Secretary of Transportation, the Department shall provide notice whenever it requires professional services for a project, the basic construction cost of which is estimated by the Department to be more than the threshold amount in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for category five or when the fee for professional services for a fixed capital outlay study or planning activity exceeds the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for category two. The Department will provide the foregoing notice at its Internet address (<http://www.dot.state.fl.us/>) ~~and, until March 1, 1998,~~ will also publish the foregoing notice in the *Florida Administrative Weekly*. A project may include the following:

1. ~~Professional services associated with a specifically identified project. A grouping of minor professional service assignments specifically identified in the project advertisement, each assignment of \$150,000 or less, with a maximum contract price of \$750,000; or a grouping of construction engineering inspection assignments specifically identified in the project advertisement, each assignment of \$250,000 or less, with a maximum contract price of \$1,000,000.~~

2. A grouping of professional service assignments for substantially similar activities where the grouping of assignments provides advantage to the Department because of the geographic proximity of the existing or proposed transportation facilities involved, or use of shared resources for multiple projects, or to allow multiple use of a single design concept. ~~A districtwide or statewide miscellaneous minor professional service contract for a specified period of time,~~

~~initially not to exceed two years, with a maximum contract price of \$750,000, in which individual minor project assignments, of no more than \$150,000 each, may be given for professional services as needed for work assignments required on a priority basis because of work program deadlines, work program schedule changes, or the necessity of complementary professional services to assist Department forces concurrently involved in other professional service assignments; or because project schedules or deadlines make it impractical to advertise the work assignment. The contract may allow extensions of the contract time if the original contract time expires and the maximum contract amount has not been reached. However, the total contract time, including all extensions, shall not exceed five years. The contract shall not be renewed, nor shall the maximum contract amount be increased over \$750,000. Projects shall not be divided for the purpose of circumventing the dollar limit on assignments.~~

3. Miscellaneous minor professional services, performed on a task assignment basis. The total contract fee may not exceed \$1,500,000 and individual assignments may not exceed \$300,000. However, these limits may be exceeded with unplanned cost increases. ~~A districtwide or statewide miscellaneous minor construction engineering inspection contract for a specified period of time, initially not to exceed two years, with a maximum contract price of \$1,000,000, in which individual minor project assignments, of no more than \$250,000 each, may be given for professional services as needed for work assignments required on a priority basis because of work program deadlines, work program schedule changes, or the necessity of complementary professional services to assist Department forces concurrently involved in other professional service assignments; or because project schedules or deadlines make it impractical to advertise the work assignment. The contract may allow extensions of the contract time if the original contract time expires and the maximum contract amount has not been reached. However, the total contract time, including all extensions, shall not exceed five years. The contract may not be renewed, nor shall the maximum contract amount be increased over \$1,000,000. Projects shall not be divided for the purpose of circumventing the dollar limit on assignments.~~

4. ~~A grouping of specifically identified major professional service assignments for substantially similar construction, rehabilitation, or renovation activities with a maximum contract price of \$3,000,000; where the grouping of assignments provides economic advantage to the Department because of the geographic proximity of the existing or proposed transportation facilities involved, or allows simultaneous use of shared manpower on multiple assignments by the consultant, or maximizes the simultaneous use on multiple assignments of the consultant's available offices or field facilities, or to allow multiple use of a single design concept. The maximum contract price of \$3,000,000 may be exceeded with prior written approval of the Secretary of the~~

Department of Transportation when two or more of the above criteria are met and it is economically advantageous or otherwise serves the best interests of the Department.

~~4.5. Professional services of a general consultant, which include the administration, support, and management of engineering, architectural, surveying, planning, or right of way acquisition and appraisal activities. These activities may involve a number of different projects in the work program. The contract time, shall not exceed five years, unless extended to complete assignments previously authorized.~~

~~6. Professional services provided to the Department on a continuing basis with no time limitation except that the contract shall provide a termination clause. Continuing contracts for professional services shall be restricted in use to services for projects which construction costs do not exceed \$500,000 each, or for each study activity when the fee for such professional service does not exceed \$25,000, or for work of a specified nature as outlined in the contract.~~

(b) The notice shall contain time frames for submittal of a letter of response, a general description of the project, including where a detailed description may be obtained, the ~~Department DOT~~ district and county where the project is located, a list of the major types of work, an indication as to whether the project is considered a minor project for qualification purposes, for which prequalification is required, and a description of the means by which interested consultants can apply for consideration. Projects that do not conform to the prequalified types of work shall be advertised requesting any interested consultant to submit a Letter of Qualification. ~~The qualifications required to be shown in a Letter of Qualification shall be determined by the Department and listed in the Advertisement.~~ Consultants responding to ~~Letter of Qualification~~ advertisements for such non-standard types of work do not need to possess previous qualification be prequalified.

(2) Response to Advertisement and Selection.

(a) Professional consultants who desire work with the Department shall timely submit a maximum of a two page letter of response, or a letter of qualification, to the Department whenever they feel qualified to perform projects for which notice has been provided in accordance with subsection (1)(a). To be considered for selection, the letter of response or letter of qualification must be received by the date specified in the advertisement and will include a list of all affiliates as defined in Section 337.165(1)(a), Florida Statutes. Only one letter of response/qualification will be considered from any consultant firm.

(b) After receipt of a letter of response, or letter of qualification, the Department shall review the submittal and verify that the consultant(s) possesses current qualification with the Department is prequalified or qualified to perform the major type(s) of work specified in the advertisement. In order to be considered for selection, any consultant which does is not

possess current qualification prequalified to perform the major type(s) of work specified in the advertisement shall submit a complete Request for Qualification Package, technical and administrative application including the required overhead audit (if applicable), ~~for prequalification~~ on or before the date letters of response are due. A prequalified consultant may use another consultant to meet the requirements of the major type(s) of work for which it is not currently prequalified. However, the qualification status of the consultant will be valid for that project only. The consultant will be required to resubmit the necessary application for qualifications for subsequent projects in that type of work. The Department will not be obligated to delay any part of the consultant selection process or the execution of a contract for a consultant who has not been qualified for the major types of work or who cannot provide the required documentation prior to the process of final selection.

(c) If fewer than three consultants respond to the advertisement, the Department shall readvertise, or alternatively shall review its list of firms prequalified for the major type(s) of work advertised, and select no fewer than ten prequalified firms (or all prequalified firms if fewer than 10 are prequalified) deemed to be the most highly qualified, based on qualification data on file, DBE/MBE status, past performance grades, location, and volume of work previously awarded. The Department shall then contact each of the listed consultants and conduct similar discussions concerning the project, until it has at least three consultants interested in the project.

~~(d)(e)~~ When the fee for professional services is less than the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for category two, or when the Department's estimated basic construction cost is less than the threshold amount provided by Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for category five, the Department may request, review, and approve ~~certify in writing to the file~~ the technical qualifications of the selected consultant if the consultant is not currently prequalified in the requested type of work.

(e) Selection of consultants will be in accordance with Section 287.055, Florida Statutes.

~~(3) Selection.~~

~~(a) The following procedures shall be utilized by the Department in the procurement of professional services:~~

~~1. Regarding the proposed project, the Department shall evaluate the letter of response or letter of qualification received from each consultant along with such factors as qualifications data on file, whether the firm is certified or utilizes other consultants certified by the Department as a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) pursuant to Rule Chapter 14-78, Florida Administrative Code, and 14 C.F.R., Part 23, or by the Minority Business Advocacy and Assistance Office as a Minority Business Enterprise (MBE), past performance grades on file, consultant location, volume of work previously awarded by the Department and distribution of work among~~

qualified consultants. The Department shall select no fewer than three consultants and shall then conduct discussions with these three consultants, and may require technical proposals and public presentations regarding their qualifications, approach to the project, availability of adequate personnel, and ability to timely furnish the required service. If fewer than three consultants respond to the advertisement, the Department shall readvertise, or alternatively shall review its list of firms prequalified for the major type(s) of work advertised, and select no fewer than ten prequalified firms (or all prequalified firms if fewer than 10 are prequalified) deemed to be the most highly qualified, based on qualification data on file, DBE/MBE status, past performance grades, location and volume of work previously awarded. The Department shall then contact each of the listed consultants and conduct similar discussions concerning the project, until it has at least three consultants interested in the project.

2. The Department shall rank, in order of preference, no fewer than three consultants deemed to be most highly qualified to perform the required services after considering such factors as the technical proposal, technical plan (including, wherever appropriate, submission of estimated hours required in sufficient detail to ensure the consultant understands the scope of services); overall management procedures, including quality control plan and resource allocation; commitment to meet time and budget requirements; location; recent, current, and projected workloads of the firms; and certification as a DBE or MBE. The Department strives for an equitable distribution of contracts among qualified firms; provided such distribution does not violate the principle of selection of the most highly qualified firms. The Department shall provide notice of the results of the Department's selection in accordance with subsection (1)(a).

3. The Department shall initiate negotiations with the number one ranked consultant. The negotiation shall include consideration of the scope and complexity of services required. The parties shall negotiate a price that the Department determines is fair, competitive, and reasonable for the services to be performed. In making such determination, the Department shall conduct a detailed analysis of the estimated number of hours by job classification to be expended on the project, direct labor rates, overhead rate, operating margin, expenses and any other costs directly attributable to the project, as detailed in an audit package and fee proposal furnished by the consultant at the request of the Department and according to its instructions.

4. Should the Department be unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with the consultant at a price the Department determines to be fair, competitive, and reasonable; negotiations with that firm shall be formally terminated. The Department shall then undertake negotiations with the next ranked firm.

5. Should the Department be unable to negotiate a satisfactory contract with any of the initially selected firms, the Department shall either select additional firms from the letters of response or letters of qualification in order of their competence and qualification and continue negotiations in accordance with this subsection until an agreement is reached or initiate a new selection process in accordance with these rules.

6. Prior to execution of a contract by both parties, the consultant shall submit a certificate of insurance which evidences professional liability insurance coverage, or submit an irrevocable letter of credit established pursuant to Chapter 675 and Section 337.106, Florida Statutes. The submission must establish coverage in the amounts required by the contract.

7. The Department may enter into Supplemental Agreement(s) during the term of the contract to add additional services, costs or time, if the intent of the original contract is not changed.

8. If, during the term of the contract, the Consultant or Department must terminate the contract for any reason, the Department shall determine whether the rankings from the original selection process, taken as a whole, still have validity with respect to the unfinished work; and if so shall begin negotiations to complete the remaining services with the next ranked consultant and continue to proceed as though the original selection process had not been interrupted; except that if the Department determines that any previously ranked consultant's qualifications or other selection factors as noted in Rule Section 14-75.004(3) have changed so that its rank should be changed, the Department shall assign a new rank or reject said consultant and continue to proceed as though the original selection process had not been interrupted. If the Department determines that the rankings produced by the original selection process are no longer appropriate for the remaining consultants, it shall initiate a new selection process according to these rules.

(b) For all professional service contracts over \$60,000, the Department shall require the firms to execute a truth in negotiation certificate stating that wage rates and other factual unit costs supporting the compensation are accurate, complete, and current at the time of contracting. Any professional service contract under which such a certificate is required shall contain a provision that the original contract price and any additions thereto shall be adjusted to exclude any significant sums by which the Department determines the contract price was increased due to inaccurate, incomplete, or noncurrent wage rates and other factual unit costs. All such contract adjustments shall be made within one year following the end of the contract.

Specific Authority 334.044(2) FS. Law Implemented 287.055, 337.105 FS. History—New 6-30-73, Amended 3-24-77, 6-30-83, 10-21-85, Formerly 14-75.04, Amended 3-29-89, 1-2-91, 9-29-92, 2-22-94, 8-5-96, 2-12-98,

14-75.0051 ~~Suspension or Revocation, Denial, or Suspension of Qualification.~~

(1) The Department will, for good cause, deny or may suspend the qualification of any professional consultant, or other provider of service, to render services to the Department. A denial or suspension for good cause pursuant to this rule shall remove the person or firm from consideration for award of professional service contracts for a particular type of work for a period not to exceed three years. Such good cause shall include paragraphs (a) through (e) below; or revoke for good cause any Notice of Qualification. Such good cause shall include the following:

(a) One of the circumstances specified under Section 337.105(1)(a) through (i), Florida Statutes. The Department determines that a consultant has willfully made a false, deceptive, or fraudulent statement in the application for qualification, in any proposal, or in any hearing;

(b) The consultant defaulted on any Department contract, or the contract of any other governmental entity. Loss or suspension of current license or registration as regulated by the State of Florida;

(c) The consultant becomes insolvent or is declared bankrupt;

(d) The consultant failed to timely furnish all contract documents required by the contract specifications, or special provisions, to be provided after the Department's offer of final payment. employs or otherwise provides compensation to any employee or officer of the Department;

(e) The consultant has an unsatisfactory work performance grade average. A consultant must maintain a final grade of 70 to remain qualified with the Department to provide services in each type of work. A composite final average grade between 60 and 69 for schedule, management, and each quality grade will result in the consultant being suspended from the qualified list for three months for each type of work graded within this range. A composite final average grade below 60 for schedule, management, and each quality grade will result in the consultant being suspended from the qualified list for six months for each type of work graded within this range. willfully offers an employee or officer of the Department any pecuniary or other benefit with the intent to influence the employee or officer's official action or judgment, or

(f) Any other substantial reason established by the factual circumstances. The consultant receives a Professional Consultant Work Performance Final Grade below 70.

(g) Failure to achieve the proposed participation by certified DBE or MBE subconsultants without acceptable justification.

(h) Failure to notify the Department of departure from the firm of personnel used to prequalify the firm in any type of work;

(i) History of debarment or suspension from consideration for work with any other governmental entity, or

(j) Loss of professional liability insurance.

(2) For any of the reasons provided in Section 14-75.0051(1), other than receipt of an unsatisfactory work performance grade, the Department will deny or suspend a consultant's qualification for a period of time based upon the seriousness of the deficiency. Factors to be considered in determining the length of the suspension or denial include, but shall not be limited to, the following:

(a) Impact on project design or construction schedules;

(b) Frequency or number of occurrences;

(c) Impact on the Department, financial or otherwise;

(d) Potential for repetition;

(e) Length of bar or suspension from consideration of work by another governmental entity; and

(f) Severity or length of noncompliance with the requirements for qualification, found in Rule Chapter 14-75.

(3) The Department shall deny or revoke the Notice of Qualification to bid of any consultant, and its affiliates, for a period of 36 months, pursuant to Section 337.165, Florida Statutes, when it is determined that the consultant has, subsequent to January 1, 1978, been convicted of a contract crime within the jurisdiction of any state or federal court.

(4) Procedure. Any decision by the Department to suspend, revoke, or deny a consultant's qualification Notice of the Department's intended action will be provided to the consultant in accordance with Rule 28-106.111, F.A.C. The Department's action will become final, unless a timely petition for a hearing is filed in accordance with Rules 28-106.104, 28-106.201, and 28-106.301, F.A.C., within 21 days after receipt of the Department's notice. Where a consultant's qualification has been denied or revoked for conviction of a contract crime, a hearing shall be held within 30 days of the receipt of the request for hearing if the request for hearing is filed within 10 days of the Department's notice of intent. All requests for hearing shall be in writing and shall be In order to be timely, the petition must be filed with the Department's Clerk of Agency Proceedings, 605 Suwannee Street, MS 58, Haydon Burns Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0458, within 21 days after receipt of the Department's notice, in accordance with Rule 28-106.111, F.A.C. A request for hearing is filed when it is delivered to, and received by, the Clerk of Agency Proceedings at the above address, and accordingly is not timely filed unless it is received by the Clerk of Agency Proceedings within the appropriate time period.

(a) Reapplication or Reinstatement. A consultant whose qualification has been denied or revoked for conviction of a contract crime may petition for reapplication or reinstatement at any time after denial or revocation.

1. The petition for reapplication or reinstatement shall be in writing and shall be filed with the Clerk of Agency Proceedings, Department of Transportation, 605 Suwannee Street, MS 58, Haydon Burns Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0458, and shall include:

- a. The name and address of the party making the request;
- b. A statement of the specific grounds upon which the petition is based and the proposed terms and conditions upon which reapplication or reinstatement is sought;
- c. A list of all witnesses and exhibits to be presented; and
- d. A statement whether the consultant requests that the hearing be held by the Division of Administrative Hearings.

2. Upon the filing of a petition for reapplication or reinstatement, the Department shall:

- a. Conduct a hearing within 30 days after receipt of the petition, unless otherwise stipulated by the parties, or
- b. Notify the Division of Administrative Hearings within five days after receipt of the petition for scheduling of the hearing in accordance with Sections 337.165(2)(d) and 120.57, Florida Statutes.

3. If the petition for reapplication or reinstatement is denied, the consultant may not petition for a subsequent hearing for a period of nine months following the date of the order of denial or revocation.

4. If the petition for reinstatement is granted, the consultant shall file a current Request for Qualification with the Procurement Office, 605 Suwannee Street, MS 20, Haydon Burns Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450, before the reinstatement shall become effective.

(b) Notification of Contract Crime. A consultant who is qualified with the Department, or who has a letter of response or qualification, or who has a request for qualification pending before the Department pursuant to this Rule Chapter, shall notify the Department within 30 days after conviction of a contract crime applicable to it or to any of its affiliates or to any officers, directors, executives, shareholders active in management, employees or agents of it or any of its affiliates. The notification shall be forwarded to the Department of Transportation, Procurement Office, 605 Suwannee Street, MS 20, Haydon Burns Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450.

~~(4) The suspension or revocation of any Notice of Qualification shall not affect obligations under any preexisting contracts.~~

Specific Authority 334.044(2), 337.105 FS. Law Implemented 287.055(3), (6), 337.105, 337.165 FS. History—New 3-29-89, Amended 1-2-91, 9-29-92, 2-22-94, 1-17-99, _____.

14-75.0052 Professional Consultant Work Performance Evaluation System.

(1) The consultant's work performance on each professional service contract must be evaluated by the Department's project manager. A minimum of one interim evaluation shall be conducted ~~made~~ for all contracts with a duration of 18 months or more ~~duration~~. A final evaluation shall be conducted ~~made~~ for all contracts within 30 days of the approval of the final invoice for the basic services. A work performance grade for each major type of work shall be based on an evaluation of Schedule, Management, and Quality. The project manager shall assign the Quality Grade to any

~~administratively or technically~~ qualified consultant named in the agreement for each major type of work ~~they~~ performed. The Department's contracted consultant shall also receive a Schedule, Management, and Quality Grade in the same type of work as any technically qualified consultant.

(2) Each interim grade shall be based upon an an evaluation of the consultant's work performance for the period of time since a previous interim evaluation was made. The Final Grade shall reflect the overall contract performance for the entire contract period. Interim grades shall be entered in the Department's Professional Services Information System until replaced by the final grade.

(3) Each professional service contract evaluation shall be based on an evaluation of contract performance using the following grading system for Schedule, Management, and Quality, except for Groups 10.1 and 10.2, Construction Engineering and Inspection, ~~which shall be developed using a similar grading system and procedure.~~

(a) The Schedule Grade. The schedule grade shall provide an indication of the consultant's compliance with performance in meeting the contract schedule. ~~The consultant is graded by selecting one of the following four tests and assigning a specific grade, within the assigned range, for the test selected:~~

Test	Score
1. Consistently met or bettered the approved schedule dates:	92-100
2. Some failure to meet scheduled dates but no adverse impact on overall project and future projects' schedule has resulted:	70-91
3. Adverse impact on the project schedule has resulted due to slow progress:	60-69
4. Consistent problems with meeting scheduled dates resulting in an adverse impact on the timely completion of the project and scheduled future projects:	0-59

(b) The Management Grade. The management grade shall provide an indication of the consultant's managerial knowledge and ability to manage all necessary resources to deliver a high quality product ~~while remaining within all contract time limits. The consultant is graded by assigning a specific score within an assigned range for the following five tests then adding these five specific scores to establish the total management grade:~~

Test	Score
1. Effectiveness of the consultant in implementing the intent and scope of the contracted services as determined from the completeness of scheduled submittals:	0-20
2. Effective application of the Department's criteria, standards and procedures (federal if applicable):	0-20
3. Effectiveness of consultant's project manager and staff to work with all involved project personnel including DOT staff, other consultants and citizens:	0-30
4. Effectiveness of the consultant in keeping to a minimum the unnecessary involvement of DOT staff:	0-20

5. Effectiveness of the consultant's management of this contract and budget, including achieving proposed DBE or MBE participation. 0-10

TOTAL 0-100

(c) The Quality Grade. The quality grade shall provide an indication of the consultant's attention and concern to the established quality control plan and a quality product. A quality grade is prepared, ~~at~~ as a minimum, for each major type of work as advertised. The quality grade for each type of work shall consider a minimum of four quality tests with a standard score range assigned to each test. The maximum grade for the summation of all quality tests for an individual quality grade is 100%.

(4) For all professional service contracts that result in the preparation of construction plans, a construction plan quality evaluation will be made by the Department's Resident Engineer within 30 days after final acceptance of the construction project. This Constructability Grade shall provide an indication of the design consultant's ability to develop practical, accurate, complete, and cost effective construction plans. The Department's CEI project manager or resident engineer shall assign a grade on the design consultant's plan quality. ~~The consultant is graded by selecting one of the following five tests and assigning a specific grade, within the assigned range, for the test selected. The Department's evaluator shall use the design contract number, WPA Number and State Project numbers and sign the document. This Constructability Grade will be reviewed when considering the consultant for future project selection.~~

Test Grade

~~(a) The construction plans were free of error and omissions, requiring no correction assistance from the consultant. No difficulty was experienced in reading and understanding the construction plans. Neither plan corrections or plans reading resulted in any construction delays. 90-100~~

~~(b) Some minor problems with the construction plans but no construction delays resulted. Minor problems in reading the construction plans but no construction delays resulted. 80-89~~

~~(c) Some problems developed with errors and omissions on the construction plans. The consultant was required for a few meetings to resolve conflicts. The consultant was timely in its responses and the required meetings did not result in any construction delays. The construction plans required some thought to interpret. 70-79~~

~~(d) Quite a few problems developed with errors and omissions on the construction plans. The consultant was required for a few meetings to resolve conflicts and redesign certain areas. The consultant was timely in its responses but need for plan corrections caused construction delays. The construction plans required more interpretation than average. 60-69~~

~~(e) An extreme number of problems developed with the construction plans. The consultant was required for many meetings to resolve conflicts and redesign many areas. The consultant was not timely in its responses and this and the need for plan corrections caused construction delays. The construction plans were difficult to read, and this caused confusion and delays also. 0-59~~

(5) Additional interim consultant work performance evaluations can be submitted by the Department's project manager as needed. Items to be considered for submitting additional interim evaluations are:

(a) Examples of extremely outstanding performance;:

(b) Examples of extremely poor performance;:

(c) Completion of critical phases of work, such as preliminary design, submittal of draft environmental documents and reports, 30%, 60%, and 90% submittals, etc.; and

(d) Requests from the consultant based on possible improved performance when its ~~their~~ most recent grade was low.

(6) Evaluation Processing. The Department's project manager will submit the completed consultant performance grade, interim or final, to the Professional Services Administrator/Contractual Services Office (PSA/CSO) for entry into the Professional Services Information System. ~~The grades will be stored in the data base for five years for departmental use in future qualification and the selection processes.~~ All final grades will be retained in the system for five years, and may be referred to by the Department for use in future qualification selection matters ~~then deleted~~. Each interim grade shall be replaced by the succeeding interim grade and eventually by the final grade for each contract. A performance grade is established for each major type of work by averaging the schedule, management, and quality grade. An average grade of 70 or more for each type of work is considered satisfactory.

(7) Within 10 days after the Procurement Office PSA/CSO receives the completed grades, a copy of the performance grades with a cover letter shall be provided to the consultant's project manager and officer who executed the agreement, as well as to any other consultant who was named in the agreement and was assigned a Quality Grade for work it performed.

Specific Authority 287.055, 334.044(2) FS. Law Implemented 287.055, 337.105 FS. History--New 3-29-89, Amended 1-2-91, 9-29-92, 2-22-94, 8-5-96, _____.

14-75.0053 Suspension Due to Poor Performance.

Specific Authority 334.044(2), 337.105(1) FS. Law Implemented 337.105(1) FS. History--New 3-29-89, Amended 2-22-94, 8-5-96, Repealed _____.

14-75.0071 Reapplication and Reinstatement.

Specific Authority 334.044(2) FS. Law Implemented 337.165 FS. History--New 3-29-89, Amended 2-22-94, Repealed _____.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULES IS:

38F-55.001 Definitions.

~~(1) "Annual case status review" is the annual review of cases involving impairment income benefits or supplemental benefits payable under Section 440.15(3), Florida Statutes, to determine whether any unemployment or underemployment is due to the injured employee's work related permanent impairment.~~

~~(1)(2) "Cooperative working agreement" means a written contractual agreement between the Division and a qualified rehabilitation provider or a public or private not for profit agency to provide comprehensive reemployment services such as on-the-job training development, job placement and follow up.~~

~~(2)(3) "Customary residence" is the injured employee's place of permanent residence.~~

~~(3)(4) "Customary vicinity" is the distance traveled by the injured employee from his customary residence to his place of employment at the time of injury.~~

~~(4)(5) "Education program" means a formal course of study or a certificate program in a training and education facility, agency or institution operating under Chapters 239 Part II, 240 Parts II and III or 246, Florida Statutes, or a career education program defined in Chapter 228.041(22)(c), Florida Statutes (1997), which states: "At the post secondary education level, courses of study that provide vocational competencies needed for entry into specific occupations or for advancement within an occupation." Outside of the State of Florida, an education program shall be approved as governed by comparable statutes of that state.~~

~~(5)(6) "Ergonomic job analysis" is the objective study of the relationship among job demands, environmental conditions and human functional characteristics.~~

~~(6) "Good cause" is termination resulting from employee conduct:~~

~~(a) Evincing such willful or wanton disregard of an employer's interests as is found in deliberate violation or disregard of standards of behavior which the employer has the right to expect of his employee; or~~

~~(b) Carelessness or negligence of such a degree or recurrence as to manifest culpability, wrongful intent, or evil design, or to show an intentional and substantial disregard of an employer's interests or of the employee's duties and obligations to his employer.~~

~~(7) "Individualized written rehabilitation program" (IWRP) is an individualized written rehabilitation program as defined in the Rehabilitation Act of 1973.~~

~~(8)(7) "Labor market" means an area not to exceed a 50 mile radius of the injured employee's customary vicinity.~~

~~(9)(8) "On-the-job training (OJT) contractor" is a qualified rehabilitation provider or employee of a public or private non-profit agency which has entered into a cooperative working agreement with the Division for the provision of on-the-job development and follow-up services.~~

~~(10)(9) "On-the-job training (OJT) contract" is a contract between an employer, injured employee and the Division in which an employer agrees to hire an injured employee subject to the same working conditions and benefits as all other similarly situated employees. Pursuant to the contract, the employer shall provide training and adequate supervision to enable the injured employee to achieve predetermined competencies to ensure a return to suitable gainful employment with the contract employer Florida Department of Labor and Employment Security developed by an approved OJT contractor in which an employer agrees to provide training to include apprenticeship training and supervision to the injured employee for a specified time period and to retain the injured employee in permanent employment at the end of the contract period.~~

~~(10) "Reemployment plan" is a written plan specifying how the qualified rehabilitation provider will return the injured employee to suitable gainful employment.~~

~~(11) through (12) No change.~~

~~(13) "Test-site" is a Division approved location that may be inspected by the Division, for which a current occupational license has been issued listing an official business address to be used by a qualified rehabilitation provider for vocational evaluation and assessment services.~~

~~(14) "Travel" is transportation costs incurred by the injured employee to the facility at the beginning of the program and for the return home upon completion of the program, or mileage reimbursement for daily commuting.~~

~~(14)(15) "Trial period of reemployment" is a period of employment to validate whether an injured employee who has been determined to be permanently and totally disabled has been rehabilitated to the extent that he has reestablished an earning capacity.~~

~~(16) "Underemployment" is employment in which the injured employee's post injury average weekly wage is less than 80% of pre injury average weekly wage.~~

~~(15)(17) "Vocational evaluator" is a qualified individual employed by the Division or who holds the designation of a certified vocational evaluator and is approved by the Division to perform vocational evaluations.~~

~~(16)(18) "Vocational specialist" means an individual who possesses:~~

~~(a) A master's degree in vocational rehabilitation (counseling, evaluation, adjustment); or~~

~~(b) Is certified by the Commission on Rehabilitation Counselor Certification, or by the Commission on Certification of Work Adjustment and Vocational Evaluation Specialists; and~~

(c) Is employed by a CARF-accredited facility.

Specific Authority 440.15(1), 440.491(5),(6),(7),(8) FS. Law Implemented 440.15, 440.491 FS. History—New 7-1-96, Amended 2-9-00, _____.

38F-55.002 Rehabilitation Provider Qualifications.

(1) The Division shall approve qualified rehabilitation providers who submit proof of meeting the following requirements:

(a) Rehabilitation nurse:

1. A current Florida license as a registered professional nurse, and

2. A current C.R.R.N. certificate as a Certified Rehabilitation Registered Nurse from the Association of Rehabilitation Nurses in Rehabilitation Nursing, or

3. A current C.O.H.N. certificate as a Certified Occupational Health Nurse from the American Board for Occupational Health Nurses, or

4. A current C.R.C. certificate as a Certified Rehabilitation Counselor from the Commission on Rehabilitation Counselor Certification, or

5. A current C.D.M.S. certificate as a Certified Disability Management Specialist from the Certification of Disability Management Specialists ~~Certified Insurance Rehabilitation Specialist~~ Commission.

(b) Rehabilitation counselor:

1. A current C.R.C. certificate as a Certified Rehabilitation Counselor from the Commission on Rehabilitation Counselor Certification, or

2. A current C.D.M.S. certificate as a Certified Disability Management Specialist from the Certification of Disability Management Specialists ~~Certified Insurance Rehabilitation Specialist~~ Commission.

(c) Vocational evaluator: A current C.V.E. certificate as a Certified Vocational Evaluator ~~vocational evaluator~~ from the Commission on Certification of Work Adjustment and Vocational Evaluation Specialists, ~~and~~

2. ~~Proof of an occupational license for each test site when requested by the Division.~~

(d) No change.

~~(e) Facilities pending CARF accreditation:~~

1. ~~Notification to the Division in writing of the pending survey dates identified by CARF for the specific rehabilitation program for which authorization is requested.~~

2. ~~Temporary approval from the Division shall not exceed two months past the CARF survey date.~~

3. ~~Carriers shall verify the status of a facility with pending CARF accreditation prior to authorizing services.~~

4. ~~A facility which fails to notify the Division of CARF accreditation or which fails to receive CARF accreditation shall not provide services to injured employees.~~

~~(e)(f) Companies:~~

1. Employ qualified rehabilitation providers and are

2. Incorporated under Chapters 607 and 617, Florida Statutes, or are a partnership under Chapter 620, Florida Statutes, ~~and possess a local occupational license.~~

(2) Applicants applying for renewal shall submit a non-refundable \$25.00 biennial renewal fee, and a signed, typed and completed qualified rehabilitation provider application on form DWC-96, and a copy of current certification and applicable licensure.

(a) Attendance at a Division sponsored or approved qualified rehabilitation provider workshop is required before the initial application and also before each renewal must be completed each two year renewal period.

(b) No change.

(3) Each applicant shall submit a signed, typed and completed ~~qualified rehabilitation provider application~~ on form DWC-96, proof of attendance at a division sponsored or approved qualified rehabilitation provider workshop, and a non-refundable check or money order in the amount of \$25.00 payable to Workers' Compensation ~~Administrative Administration~~ Trust Fund to the Division of Workers' Compensation, Bureau of Rehabilitation and Medical Services, Provider Relations Section, 2728 Centerview Drive, ~~101~~ 400 Forrest Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0664. ~~Illegible or unsigned applications and shall be returned. An applications application~~ submitted without the application fee shall be returned. Form DWC-96 is incorporated by reference into Rule 38F-55.014, Florida Administrative Code.

(4) No change.

(5) Employees of the ~~Division Department of Labor and Employment Security~~, other public agencies and private ~~not-for-profit~~ agencies receiving federal or state funds to provide reemployment services are exempt from the requirements of Rule 38F-55.002(2) and (3), ~~but shall otherwise meet the qualification requirements of Rule 38F-55.002(1), Florida Administrative Code.~~

Specific Authority 440.491(7), 440.591 FS. Law Implemented 440.491(7) FS. History—New 7-1-96, Amended _____.

38F-55.003 Annual Case Status Review.

Specific Authority 440.15(3), 440.491(5),(6),(8), 440.591 FS. Law Implemented 440.15, 440.491 FS. History—New 7-1-96, Repealed _____.

38F-55.004 Trial Period of Reemployment.

~~(1) The trial period of reemployment is applicable for all dates of accident and the carrier shall file form DWC-22, reemployment and annual case status review, with the Division within 10 days of approving the trial period of reemployment. Form DWC-22 is incorporated by reference in Rule 38F-55.014, Florida Administrative Code.~~

~~(2) The carrier shall mail a copy of the DWC-22 to the employer and injured employee within 10 business days of filing with the Division.~~

~~(1)(3) The trial period of reemployment shall:~~

(a) Automatically commence on the date indicated as the date of hire on the form ~~DWC-22~~, and

(b) Be within the physical capabilities of the injured employee, and

(c) Not be a result of coercion or intimidation, and

~~(d)(b)~~ Automatically terminate:

1. When the injured employee is unable to perform the duties as a result of the permanently disabling condition, or

2. One year 90 days from the date of hire ~~if, and~~ the injured employee is able to work 50 percent (50%) of his normal pre-injury working hours with an earning capacity of at least 80% of his previous wage.

~~(2)(4)~~ Following termination of the trial period of reemployment the carrier shall file a notice of action/change form DWC-4 with the Division to report whether the return to work was successful. Form DWC-4 is incorporated by reference in Rule 38F-3.025.

Specific Authority 440.15(1),(3), 440.491(5),(6),(8), ~~440.591~~ FS. Law Implemented 440.15, 440.491 FS. History--New 7-1-96, Amended _____.

38F-55.005 Reemployment Status Review.

(1) The carrier shall conduct a reemployment status review by completing a reemployment ~~and annual case~~ status review form on the DWC-22, which is incorporated by reference in Rule 38F-55.014, Florida Administrative Code.

(2) No change.

~~(3) After an initial form DWC 22 has been filed with the Division, the carrier may, in lieu of (1) above, report the reemployment status of an injured employee to the division using form DWC 22a, alternate carrier reemployment services activity report form, which is incorporated by reference into this rule chapter in Rule 38F 55.014, Florida Administrative Code.~~

~~(4) Form DWC-22a shall be filed with the Division by July 15 of each calendar year for all DWC-22 forms completed on or after January 1 through June 30 of that calendar year and by January 15 for all DWC-22 forms completed on or after July 1 through December 31 of the previous calendar year.~~

Specific Authority 440.15(1),(3), 440.491(3),(5),(6),(8), ~~440.591~~ FS. Law Implemented 440.15, 440.491 FS. History--New 7-1-96, Amended _____.

38F-55.006 Notice Requirements.

(1) If an injured employee remains unemployed 180 120 days after the date of accident and is receiving compensation, the carrier shall notify the injured employee in writing within 190 130 days of the date of accident of the availability of a Division screening.

(2) A carrier shall may use the following written notice: "Your continuing disability indicates you may be unable to perform the duties of the job held at the time of your work-related injury. If this is correct and you are unable to return to work in any capacity with your current employer or find other employment which would allow you to earn your pre-injury wages, you may be eligible for a screening for a

~~vocational evaluation or~~ reemployment services from the State of Florida, Division of Workers' Compensation. Upon receipt of your request, the Division will assess review your case to determine what services are necessary ~~whether a vocational evaluation is appropriate to determine your reemployment service needs, if any,~~ to return you to suitable gainful employment. Reemployment services that you may be eligible for include job seeking skills training, counseling, referrals to other agencies, job market information, transferable skills analysis, job development, job placement, job analysis, job modification, vocational testing, vocational evaluation, on-the-job training, or formal training and education. ~~If reemployment services are necessary, the Division will pay the cost of the approved reemployment plan, including the cost of lodging, board and travel if you are required to temporarily relocate to participate in the approved program.~~ Additionally, if you have reached maximum medical improvement, the carrier shall pay temporary total disability benefits for a period up to 26 weeks upon beginning a Division approved retraining program ~~or vocational service plan~~ or the carrier may elect to pay temporary partial disability/wage loss benefits if you earn wages as the result of on-the-job training or work while enrolled in a program. An additional 26 weeks may be approved if deemed necessary by the Judge of Compensation Claims. To request a screening, contact your local state Workers' Compensation Bureau of Rehabilitation and Medical Services District Office or the Central Office in Tallahassee at (850)488-3431 and ask to speak with a staff person in the Reemployment Services Section of the Bureau of Rehabilitation and Medical Services." The carrier shall send a copy of this notification to the Bureau of Rehabilitation and Medical Services, Division of Workers' Compensation, 101 Forrest Building, 2728 Centerview Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0664 within ten days of mailing the notification to the injured employee.

Specific Authority 440.15(1),(3), 440.491(5),(6),(8), ~~440.591~~ FS. Law Implemented 440.15, 440.491 FS. History--New 7-1-96, Amended _____.

38F-55.007 Reemployment Assessments.

Specific Authority 440.491(4),(5),(6),(8), 440.591 FS. Law Implemented 440.491 FS. History--New 7-1-96, Repealed _____.

38F-55.008 Carrier Referrals for Division Services.

(1) A carrier may make a referral of an injured employee at anytime to the Division to be considered for the Division provided reemployment services program. The carrier shall make referrals to the Division for reemployment services on a request for screening form DWC-23, which is incorporated by reference in Rule 38F-55.014, Florida Administrative Code.

~~(2)(4)~~ Upon discontinuation of carrier sponsored services pursuant to Section 440.491(5), Florida Statutes, the carrier shall make referrals to the Division for reemployment services

on a request for screening form DWC-23, which is incorporated by reference in Rule 38F-55.014, Florida Administrative Code.

~~(3)(2)~~ A Form DWC-23 submitted by the carrier to the Division shall not be considered complete until signed by the injured employee. The carrier shall:

~~(a) provide the injured employee with a form DWC-23 for the injured employee's signature within 15 days of discontinuation of carrier sponsored reemployment services; and~~

~~(b) forward form DWC-23, form DWC-22, and all medical, vocational, and other documents specific to the injured employee's workers' compensation case to the Division within 15 days of receipt of the signed DWC-23 from the injured employee. Form DWC-22 is incorporated by reference in Rule 38F-55.014, Florida Administrative Code.~~

Specific Authority 440.491(5),(6),(8); ~~440.591~~ FS. Law Implemented 440.15(1), 440.491 FS. History--New 7-1-96, Amended _____.

38F-55.009 Division Screening Process.

(1) A request for screening is made using a form DWC-23. Before the Division will consider a request complete and initiate a screening, the injured employee must sign the form DWC-23.

~~(2)(1)~~ The screening process shall consist of:

(a) a review of all available medical and vocational documentation relevant to the compensable injury to determine whether the injured employee is able to perform the duties of the pre-injury occupation; and

(b) a review of the documentation which supports the payment of temporary partial disability and wage loss benefits to determine the injured employee's inability to obtain suitable gainful employment because of his injury; and

(c) an interview with the injured employee.

~~(3)(2)~~ The carrier shall provide, within 10 business days of receipt of a request from the Division, any medical, vocational, and other requested documents or reports related to the injured employee's workers' compensation case.

~~(4)(3)~~ If the carrier is unable to or fails to provide the requested information within 10 business days as required by this rule, The the Division may shall request the information directly from the authorized treating physician(s), or qualified rehabilitation provider(s), or obtain the services of an expert medical adviser to identify the injured employee's ability to return to work, permanent impairment rating, and permanent work restrictions.

~~(5)(4)~~ The Division shall not provide a vocational evaluation or any reemployment services when form DWC-23, which is signed by the injured employee, is received by the Division more than one (1) year from the date of last payment of indemnity benefits or the furnishing of remedial treatment, care, or attendance from the employer or carrier.

~~(6)(5)~~ Following a Division screening the Division shall not provide any additional reemployment services or refer the injured employee for a vocational evaluation:

(a) if the injured employee has filed a claim for permanent total disability benefits under Section 440.15(1), Florida Statutes, which the carrier has denied, wherein either the injured employee's medical condition or vocational capabilities are in dispute, until such time as an Office of the Judge of Compensation Claims adjudicates the injured employee's claim; or

(b) If the injured employee's medical condition is unresolved or unstable, until such time as the medical condition becomes stable; or

(c) If the injured employee has reached maximum medical improvement and returned to and maintained suitable gainful employment for at least 90 calendar days; or

(d) If the injured employee refuses to accept reemployment services from the Division.

~~(7)(6)~~ The Division shall not refer the injured employee for a vocational evaluation if the injured employee:

(a) Has returned to suitable gainful employment as a result of placement services provided by the Division; or

(b) Has no documented permanent physical restrictions related to the injury; or

(c) Has transferable skills which would allow return to work in suitable gainful employment; or

(d) Was terminated by the employer for good cause unrelated to the injury or any restrictions or limitations resulting therefrom; or

(e) Terminated suitable gainful employment for reasons unrelated to the injury.

Specific Authority 440.491(5),(6),(8); ~~440.591~~ FS. Law Implemented 440.491 FS. History--New 7-1-96, Amended _____.

38F-55.010 Division Sponsored Vocational Evaluations.

(1) through (2) No change.

Specific Authority 440.491(5),(6),(8); ~~440.591~~ FS. Law Implemented 440.491 FS. History--New 7-1-96.

38F-55.011 Division Sponsored Reemployment Services and Programs.

(1) The Division shall approve sponsorship of reemployment services provided through an on-the-job training program, vocational assessment, job placement or training and an educational-retraining program when recommended and approved as part of a Division reemployment plan.

(2) The Division will approve and sponsor retraining services if:

(a) The vocational evaluation is completed by a division approved vocational evaluator, and

(b) The vocational evaluation contains the information identified in 38F-55.013(2)(e), Florida Administrative Code; and

(c) The vocational evaluation demonstrates that the injured employee:

1. Has no ~~transferable~~ ~~transferrable~~ skills which would allow for return to suitable gainful employment with the same employer, same job; same employer, different or modified job; new employer, same job; new employer, modified or different job; or

2. Requires additional Division sponsored reemployment services to enable the injured employee to return to suitable gainful employment.

(3) The Division shall sponsor retraining programs which exceed 52 weeks only when there is no program shorter than 52 weeks which would enable the injured employee to return to suitable gainful employment, the injured employee provides a financial plan for living expenses maintenance during the period in excess of 52 weeks, and one of the following conditions apply:

(a) The injured employee has no formal marketable vocational training and education; or

~~(b) The injured employee has an average weekly wage equal to or greater than \$500; or~~

~~(b)(e) The injured employee has a documented permanent impairment rating equal to or greater than 5% of the body as a whole and has permanent physical restrictions as a result of the injury.~~

(4) No change.

(5) The Division shall not, ~~under any circumstance,~~ transfer its sponsorship of reemployment services outside the range of the labor market survey unless a labor market survey for the new area which supports the specific recommendation of the vocational evaluation.

~~(6) The Division shall not pay or expend any funds from the Workers' Compensation Administration Trust Fund for any remedial course work necessary to meet the entrance or exit requirements of a training program.~~

~~(7) The Division shall not reinstate sponsorship of reemployment service plans interrupted for reasons other than medical necessity as specified in Rule 38F-55.012, Florida Administrative Code.~~

~~(6)(8)~~ The Division shall not sponsor reemployment services if the vocational evaluation does not recommend reemployment services.

Specific Authority 440.491(5),(6) FS. Law Implemented 440.491 FS. History--New 7-1-96, Amended 2-9-00, _____.

38F-55.012 Employee Responsibilities.

Upon approval of Division sponsored reemployment services, the injured employee and Division staff shall sign and date an agency and student agreement for sponsorship of training and education ~~retraining~~ form DWC-24, which is incorporated by reference in Rule 38F-55.014, Florida Administrative Code.

~~(2) The Division shall permanently withdraw sponsorship of any reemployment service plan if:~~

~~(a) The injured employee is able and fails to attend the program on a full-time, continuous basis, or~~

~~(b) The injured employee's participation is interrupted for reasons other than a medical exacerbation documented according to the terms agreed upon in form DWC-24, or~~

~~(c) The injured employee fails to maintain the minimum standards of the program, or~~

~~(d) The injured employee fails to abide by the terms agreed upon in form DWC-24.~~

Specific Authority 440.491(5),(6), 440.591 FS. Law Implemented 440.491 FS. History--New 7-1-96, Amended _____.

38F-55.013 Reporting Services and Costs: Qualified Rehabilitation Provider and Employer or Carrier Responsibilities.

(1) A qualified rehabilitation provider providing employer or carrier sponsored reemployment services shall:

(a) Submit a properly completed ~~form DWC-20,~~ individualized written rehabilitation program ~~reemployment plan,~~ within 30 days of referral which specifies the recommended services and associated costs necessary to return the injured employee to suitable gainful employment, using terminology consistent with division service code descriptions to the employer or carrier for approval when recommending:

1. Reemployment services as a result of a reemployment assessment, or

2. Three or more counseling sessions, or

3. A vocational evaluation, or

4. A work evaluation, or

5. Training and education, including on-the-job training,

or

6. Placement services, or

7. Changes to the initial individualized written rehabilitation program ~~DWC-20.~~

(b) Maintain a copy of the properly completed individualized written rehabilitation program ~~DWC-20~~ in the injured employee's file.

(2) A certified vocational evaluator providing division sponsored vocational evaluations shall:

(a) through (d) No change.

(e) Submit to the Division, within 30 calendar days of division approval of services, a written report which shall:

1. Include an interpretation of testing instruments and work samples used, specifying the form and level of tests, percentile scores, norm groups, grade levels, standard scores and stanine scores as applicable to the test instrument when available; and

2. Identify the injured employee's physical and intellectual capabilities, aptitudes, achievements, work related behaviors, and interests. The interests of the injured employee alone cannot be the only basis for the vocational evaluator's recommendation; and

3. Identify residual or transferable ~~transferrable~~ skills; and

4. Identify the most appropriate vocational objectives; and

5. Identify which reemployment ~~vocational~~ service(s) are necessary for the injured employee to return to suitable gainful employment; and

6. through 7. No change.

8. Include an individualized labor market survey which supports the injured employee's ability to compete for employment in the identified vocational goal(s) and shall include information documenting:

a. The potential wage earning capacity, ~~including potential overtime wages and monetary fringe benefits,~~

b. through (f) No change.

(3) Any qualified rehabilitation provider providing any employer or carrier or Division sponsored reemployment services, reemployment assessments or medical care coordination ~~except a vocational evaluation~~, shall submit with each DWC-21 a written report which reports services provided and expected outcomes, covering the following points:

(a) through (d) No change.

(e) Justification for change or modification of current plan; ~~and~~

~~(f) Professional hours and costs to date.~~

(4) through (5) No change.

(6) A qualified rehabilitation provider providing either employer or carrier or division sponsored reemployment services, ~~including~~ reemployment assessments, medical care coordination and vocational evaluations, shall:

(a) Report on form DWC-21, ~~Division of Workers' Compensation reemployment services reporting form~~, only those services provided by or through the authorized qualified rehabilitation provider. Services not rendered by or through the qualified rehabilitation provider may not be billed or reimbursed.

(b) Submit a properly completed form DWC-21 listing the specific service(s) services provided, utilizing only valid service codes and descriptors for and techniques and tests utilized to report and bill only for reemployment assessments ~~and~~ those direct services rendered to the injured employee. Direct services are those services provided or required by an individualized written rehabilitation program ~~form DWC 20.~~

Other services are to be billed in the manner agreed upon by the employer or carrier and the qualified rehabilitation provider.

1. No change.

2. An interim DWC-21 shall be submitted at 30-day ~~30 day~~ intervals thereafter during which the authorized services are provided. The DWC-21 should not be filed if services are not provided within any 30-day ~~30-day~~ period.

3. No change.

(c) No change.

(7) Any qualified rehabilitation provider or employee of the Division Department of Labor and Employment Security or other public or agencies ~~and private not for profit~~ agencies administering, scoring and interpreting testing instruments shall have the training and education required by the publisher of the testing instrument.

(8) No change.

(9) The employer or carrier shall:

(a) Ensure that the information required in this rule is provided on the form DWC-21 prior to payment and filing with the Division, and

(b) Approve or deny the provision of services recommended as part of an individualized written rehabilitation program ~~on form DWC-20~~ within 15 calendar days of receipt of the same ~~DWC-20~~; and pay or deny form ~~DWC-21~~ bills for reemployment services ~~within 45 calendar days after receipt of a bill for reemployment services provided to an injured employee, and~~

(c) Complete items ~~18 24, 19 25~~ and ~~23 27~~ on every form DWC-21 filed with the Division. In item ~~18 24~~ it is necessary to legibly enter the date the form DWC-21 was received. In item ~~19 25~~ it is necessary to legibly enter the date the form DWC-21 was reimbursed. In item ~~23 27~~ it is necessary to enter the amount reimbursed only if it is different from the amount billed by the qualified rehabilitation provider or facility, and

(d) No change.

(e) Be responsible for the legibility, accuracy and completeness of the social security number, date of accident, the employer or carrier's and servicing company/TPA's Division assigned four digit carrier code number and Federal Employer Identification Number (FEIN), and those areas that the employer or carrier completes on form DWC-21, ~~and~~

~~(f) Report costs and services to the Division on a form DWC 21 when reemployment services or reemployment assessments are provided by an in house employee or subsidiary of the employer or carrier and such services are not billed separately for each injured employee. The costs and services must be reported by injured employee's social security number and date of accident within 30 days after such in house services are first provided and within 30 day periods thereafter, unless no services are provided.~~

(10) through (11) No change.

(12) Forms ~~DWC-20~~ and DWC-21 ~~is are~~ incorporated by reference in Rule 38F-55.014, Florida Administrative Code.

Specific Authority 440.491(5),(6),(7),~~440.591~~ FS. Law Implemented 440.15(1), 440.491 FS. History—New 7-1-96, Amended _____.

38F-55.014 List of Forms.

(1) Forms ~~DWC-20~~, DWC-21, DWC-22, ~~DWC-22a~~, DWC-23, DWC-24 and DWC-96 and accompanying instructions are incorporated by reference as part of this rule chapter. Each form shall be typed or legibly completed in order for the form to be considered properly filed or submitted with the Division.

(a) ~~Individualized written reemployment plan (IWRP) shall be submitted to the Division on form DWC-20, dated 8/30/95.~~

(a)(b) Division reemployment services billing reporting form shall be submitted to the Division on form DWC-21, dated _____ 8/30/95.

(b)(c) Reemployment and annual case status review form shall be submitted to the Division on form DWC-22, dated _____ 8/30/95.

(d) ~~Alternate carrier reemployment services activity report form shall be submitted to the Division on form DWC-22a, dated 8/30/95.~~

(c)(e) Request for screening form shall be submitted to the Division on form DWC-23, dated _____ 8/30/95.

(d)(f) Agency and student agreement for sponsorship of training and education ~~retraining~~ form shall be completed on form DWC-24, dated _____ 8/30/95.

(e)(g) Qualified rehabilitation provider application shall be submitted to the Division on form DWC-96, dated _____ 9/20/95.

(2) A copy of the forms and accompanying instructions incorporated by Rule 38F-55.014(1) may be obtained from the Division of Workers' Compensation, Bureau of Rehabilitation and Medical Services, 2728 Centerview Drive, Suite ~~101~~ 400, Forrest Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0664. Copies of the forms are also available on the Division's web page on the Internet.

Specific Authority 440.15(1), 440.491(5),(6),(7),(8),~~440.591~~ FS. Law Implemented 440.15(1), 440.491 FS. History—New 7-1-96, Amended _____.

38F-55.015 Expenditures from the Workers' Compensation ~~Administrative Administration~~ Trust Fund.

(1) through (5) No change.

(6) The Division shall reimburse travel associated with the provision of reemployment services at a rate not to exceed one-half (1/2) the professional rate at which the services were contracted, ~~or \$27.50, whichever is greater.~~

(7) through (8) No change.

Specific Authority 440.491(5),(6),(7),(8) FS. Law Implemented 440.15(1), 440.491 FS. History—New 7-1-96, Amended 12-2-98, _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Reginald Watkins, Chief, Bureau of Rehabilitation and Medical Services

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Charles Williams, Director, Division of Workers' Compensation

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: March 9, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: March 23, 2001, Vol. 27, No. 12, Page 1318

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

South Florida Water Management District

RULE TITLE: Publications, Rules and Interagency Agreements RULE NO.:

Incorporated by Reference 40E-4.091

PURPOSE AND EFFECT: The rulemaking is required to adopt and incorporate by reference the Delegation Agreement among the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, South Florida Water Management District and Broward County regarding the delegation to Broward County, and the implementation by Broward County's Department of Planning and Environmental Protection, of certain environmental resource, wetland resource, and surface water management permitting, compliance and enforcement responsibilities pursuant to Part IV, Chapter 373, F.S.

SUMMARY: The South Florida Water Management District ("District") proposes to adopt by reference a "Delegation Agreement among the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, the South Florida Water Management District, and Broward County" ("Delegation Agreement") which the District and the Department of Environmental Protection ("Department") have developed with Broward County's Department of Planning and Environmental Protection ("DPEP") regarding delegating the authority to Broward County to implement certain environmental resource, wetland resource, and surface water management permitting, compliance and enforcement responsibilities under Part IV, Chapter 373, F.S., and the rules promulgated thereto. This delegation is in accordance with Sections 373.441 and 403.182, F.S., and Chapter 62-344, F.A.C. The intent of the Delegation Agreement is to provide streamlined environmental resource, wetland resource, and surface water management permit processing for proposed development activities within the geographical extent of Broward County excluding the geographical areas in Broward County that are subject to the jurisdiction of special taxing districts, independent drainage districts, water control districts, community development districts, the Everglades Buffer Strip, and the Water Conservation Areas. The Delegation Agreement provides that Broward County will be responsible for certain permitting, compliance and enforcement activities under the

environmental resource, wetland resource, and surface water management permitting programs; perform formal determinations of wetlands and other surface waters under Section 373.421, F.S.; process and issue or deny requests for variances for mixing zones for turbidity and dissolved oxygen under Sections 373.414(17) and 403.201, F.S., when such variances are required as part of an environmental resource, wetland resource, or surface water management permit; and compliance and enforcement of the environmental resource, wetland resource, and surface water management permits issued by the Department and the District. The Delegation Agreement excludes the authority for permitting, compliance, or enforcement of certain activities that will be reserved to the Department and the District, including the processing of authorizations to use sovereign submerged lands as well as the authority to grant or deny petitions for variances and waivers under Section 120.542, F.S.

As publications, rules, and interagency agreements are incorporated by reference in Rule 40E-4.091, F.A.C., the District is amending Rule 40E-4.091, F.A.C. to incorporate by reference the subject Delegation Agreement.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COSTS: No statement of estimated regulatory costs has been prepared.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 373.441 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 373.441 FS.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 8:30 a.m., May 10, 2001

PLACE: South Florida Water Management District Headquarters, Auditorium, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, FL 33406

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Penelope Bell, South Florida Water Management District, 3301 Gun Club Road, MSC 1410, West Palm Beach, FL 33406, telephone 1(800)432-2045, extension 6320, Suncom 229-6320 or (561)682-6320 or via email: pbell@sfwmd.gov. Although Governing Board meetings, hearings and workshops are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including testimony and evidence upon which any appeal is to be based. Persons with disabilities or handicaps who need assistance may contact Tony Burns, District Clerk, (561)682-6206, at least two business days in advance to make appropriate arrangements.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

40E-4.091 Publications, Rules and Interagency Agreements Incorporated by Reference.

(1) The following publications, rules and interagency agreements are incorporated by reference into this chapter, Chapters 40E-40, 40E-41 and 40E-400, F.A.C.:

(a) through (j) No change.

(k) Delegation Agreement among the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, the South Florida Water Management District, and Broward County, effective [insert date].

(2) No change.

Specific Authority 373.044, 373.113, 373.171, 373.413 FS. Law Implemented 373.413, 373.4135, 373.4137, 373.414, 373.4142, 373.416, 373.418, 373.421, 373.426 FS. History--New 9-3-81, Amended 1-31-82, 12-1-82, Formerly 16K-4.035(1), Amended 5-1-86, 7-1-86, 3-24-87, 4-14-87, 4-21-88, 11-21-89, 11-15-92, 1-23-94, 4-20-94, 10-3-95, 1-7-97, 12-3-98, 5-28-00, 8-16-00, 1-17-01,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Robert Robbins, Director, Natural Resources Management Department

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Governing Board of the South Florida Water Management District

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: March 15, 2001

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: Vol. 26, No. 41, October 13, 2000

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

DOCKET NO.: 97-69R

RULE CHAPTER TITLE: Delegations **RULE CHAPTER NO.:** 62-113

RULE TITLE: Purpose **RULE NO.:** 62-113.100

PURPOSE, EFFECT AND SUMMARY: The Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) proposes to revise subsection 62-113.100(2) to adopt by reference a "Delegation Agreement among the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, the South Florida Water Management District, and Broward County." The delegation would be implemented by Broward County's Department of Planning and Environmental Protection (DPEP). This delegation is in accordance with section 373.441 of the Florida Statutes and chapter 62-344 of the Florida Administrative Code.

The delegation would provide DPEP with the authority and responsibility to: review and take agency action on certain environmental resource (ERP), wetland resource, and surface water management (SWM) permitting, compliance and enforcement activities under part IV of chapter 373 of the Florida Statutes; perform formal determinations of wetlands and other surface waters under section 373.421 of the Florida Statutes; and process and issue or deny requests for variances

for mixing zones for turbidity and dissolved oxygen under sections 373.414(17) and 403.201 of the Florida Statutes when such variances are required as part of an ERP, wetland resource, or SWM permit; and conduct compliance and enforcement of the ERP, wetland resource, and SWM permits issued by the DEP or the SFWMD prior to the effective date of the delegation.

The intent of the delegation is to provide an effective, efficient, and streamlined program under part IV of chapter 373, implemented by DPEP within the geographical extent of Broward County, excluding areas in Broward County that are subject to the jurisdiction of special taxing districts, independent drainage districts, water control districts, community development districts, the Everglades Buffer Strip, the Water Conservation Areas, and the Seminole Tribe of Florida Reservation and Tribal Trust Lands.

Within the geographical extent of Broward County where DPEP otherwise would have delegated authority, additional permitting, compliance, and enforcement activities will be reserved to the Department and the South Florida Water Management District, and will not be delegated to DPEP. These include: processing and agency action on joint coastal permits; activities that are on sovereign submerged lands; activities that require separate domestic wastewater, hazardous waste, industrial waste, or certain solid waste permits from the Department; mining activities; mitigation banks; activities proposed by the Florida Department of Transportation, the U.S. Coast Guard, or the Department of Defense; electric distribution and transmission lines; natural gas and petroleum exploration; aquaculture; projects owned, operated, or controlled by Broward County; activities located in part outside the geographical areas covered by the agreement; and the authority to grant or deny petitions for variances and waivers under section 120.542 of the Florida Statutes.

In separate but concurrent rulemaking, the SFWMD also proposes to adopt the Delegation Agreement by reference in its rules.

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: DEP has prepared a Statement of Estimated Regulatory Cost (SERC) for the proposed delegation to Broward County. DEP collected data from its Southeast District office on costs, completion times, and staff requirements for ERP activities in Broward County. Based on DEP's best estimates of cost and time requirements associated with its ERP, WR, and SWM regulatory responsibilities in Broward County, the delegation should reduce duplication of work effort for Broward County and reduce DEP's environmental resource permitting, compliance and enforcement workload.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory cost, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 373.026, 373.046 FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 373.026, 373.046, 373.441 FS.

A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW:

TIME AND DATE: 1:30 p.m., May 2, 2001 (Wednesday)

PLACE: Broward County Department of Planning and Environmental Protection, Cypress Room, 218 S. W. 1st Avenue, Fort Lauderdale, Florida

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Alice Heathcock, Division of Water Resource Management, Florida Department of Environmental Protection, 2600 Blair Stone Road-MS 2500, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400; telephone (850)921-9899; e-mail Alice.Heathcock@dep.state.fl.us. A draft of the proposed Operating Agreement may be obtained by contacting Alice Heathcock.

If accommodation for a disability is needed to participate in this activity, please notify the Personnel Services Specialist in the Bureau of Personnel at (850)488-2996 or (800)955-8771 (TDD), at least seven days before the meeting.

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

62-113.100 Purpose.

(1) No change.

(2) Delegations to political subdivisions.

(a) through (o) No change.

(p) #01-1: Operating Agreement Between the Florida Department of Environmental Protection, the South Florida Water Management District, and Broward County Regarding Implementation of Environmental Resource Permitting, Compliance, and Enforcement, under part IV, chapter 373, F.S., [insert date of execution].

(3) No change.

Specific Authority ~~120.54(1), 373.026, 373.043, 373.046, 373.103, 373.309, 373.418, 373.441, 403.061, 403.704~~ FS. Law Implemented 373.026, 373.046, 373.103, 373.308, 373.309, 373.413, 373.4135, 373.416, 373.418-439, 373.441, 403.061, 403.092, 403.182, 403.814, 403.862 FS. History—New 1-5-93, Amended 11-16-93, 3-14-94, Formerly 17-113.100, Amended 7-4-95, 4-3-96, 3-24-98, 12-3-98,_____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE: Mimi Drew, Director, Division of Water Resource Management

NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Eric Bush, Chief, Bureau of Submerged Lands and Environmental Resources

DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: May 3, 1999

DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: October 23, 1998

with the evaluation criteria contained in the Service Proposal Request. Award, if any, shall be made to the offeror(s) whose BAFO presents the greatest value to the state.

SPECIFIC AUTHORITY: 402.73(3) FS.

LAW IMPLEMENTED: 402.73(3) FS.

SUMMARY OF THE STATEMENT OF ESTIMATED REGULATORY COST: An estimate of the regulatory cost was not prepared for this rule.

Any person who wishes to provide information regarding the statement of estimated regulatory costs, or to provide a proposal for a lower cost regulatory alternative must do so in writing within 21 days of this notice.

IF REQUESTED WITHIN 21 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE, A HEARING WILL BE HELD AT THE TIME, DATE AND PLACE SHOWN BELOW (IF NOT REQUESTED, THIS HEARING WILL NOT BE HELD):

TIME AND DATE: 9:00 a.m., April 30, 2001

PLACE: 1317 Winewood Blvd., Building 5, Room 117, Tallahassee, FL 32399

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Joy Neves, Policies and Publications Team Leader, (850)413-7464 or Suncom 293-7464

THE FULL TEXT OF THE PROPOSED RULE IS:

65-28.001 Alternate Service Procurement Method (ASPM).

(1) Definitions. For the purposes of this rule, the following definitions shall apply:

(a) "Advertisement" means an announcement designed to give notice of a procurement opportunity.

(b) "Alternate Service Procurement Method" or "ASPM" means a method of procurement that allows the department to solicit statements of qualification from offerors and to assess such statements before requesting service proposals.

(c) "Best And Final Offer" or "BAFO" means the last substantial concession made by a qualified offeror which conveys the message that there is no further room for movement--that the present offer is the final one and the provisions contained therein are the most advantageous provisions that will be offered to the department.

(d) "Call" means a formal published document requesting information about a person's or firm's qualifications including resumes, personnel information, organizational structures or histories, individual or organizational descriptions and financial information from prospective providers of contractual services.

(e) "Department" means the Department of Children and Families.

(f) "Evaluation Team" means a group that includes at least three department employees who have been selected or appointed for their experience and knowledge of the program or service area(s) for which client services are sought, and who

shall evaluate statements of qualification and service proposals submitted by potential providers to aid in the determination of contract award.

(g) "Offeror" means any person or firm that timely responds to all applicable provisions of any procurement of contractual services conducted pursuant to this rule.

(h) "Project" means the entire body of contractual services and associated or implied requirements described in any solicitation issued pursuant to this rule.

(i) "Qualified offeror" means a person or firm that is deemed to have described the capability to fully perform the project requirements and has provided evidence that it possesses the integrity and reliability to successfully complete the project.

(j) "Service Proposal Request" means a document requesting information from persons or firms regarding their detailed plans for delivering the services necessary under the project.

(k) "Statement of Qualification" means a document submitted by an offeror in response to a Call.

(2) The ASPM consists of a two-phase process. In the first phase prospective offerors will be required to submit statements of qualification to the department's evaluation team as required by the Call issued by the department. In the second phase the department's evaluation team will receive and evaluate service proposals from qualified offerors who have been identified as a result of the Phase I submissions. Following the evaluation of the service proposals, the department will conduct negotiations with one or more qualified offerors to determine which service proposal or combination of service proposals best meets the needs of the state. At any time during the conduct of the ASPM, the department may reject any or all statements of qualification or service proposals, and may modify its statement of services sought, tasks to be performed, or project description to meet the needs of the department. The department may negotiate with more than one prospective offeror at a time, but is under no obligation to do so.

(a) Phase I, Qualification Phase. The department shall prepare a Call for statements of qualification containing the general description, purpose, and scope of the project(s) and will advertise the department's desire to receive statements of qualification from prospective offerors. Any potential offeror may submit a statement of qualification for assessment by the department's evaluation team. The department's evaluation team shall assess the statements of qualification according to the criteria stated in the Call, and in accordance with applicable laws or administrative rules, Chapters 28 and 60, Florida Administrative Code, and Section 402.73(3), F.S., and will determine which of the prospective offerors to invite to submit service proposals.

(b) Phase II, Solicitation and Evaluation Phase. The department will invite the offerors deemed to be the most highly qualified as a result of Phase I to submit service proposals. The invitation will be made through the issuance of a Service Proposal Request, which describes the required contents of the service proposal, a description of the evaluation and selection process, and the basis for contract award, if any. The department's evaluation team will evaluate all responsive service proposals in accordance with the criteria set forth in the Service Proposal Request.

(3) Qualification Phase and Procedure.

(a) To start Phase I, the department shall advertise the project(s). The advertisement shall appear in the Florida Administrative Weekly publication or on the Florida Communities Network. The department may advertise the project in newspapers of general circulation, professional journals, or in other publications or in electronic format. The advertisement shall run for a period of no less than 10 days and shall include the project's general description and the name and location from which further information of the solicitation may be obtained;

(b) The Call shall contain the assessment criteria that will be used to determine qualified potential offerors. The assessment criteria will include:

1. The professional qualifications of offerors or offerors' staff, including appropriate licensure and certification.

2. The offeror's professional experience.

3. Business information demonstrating that the offeror is capable of providing the required service or services.

(c) The department shall assess the statements of qualification submitted in accordance with the criteria set forth in the Call, and shall give notice of the results of its decision by posting at the location at which the statements of qualification were opened. The department shall prepare a list of the most highly qualified offerors that are selected to participate in Phase II.

(d) The statements of qualification submitted will remain valid for a period of one hundred and eighty (180) days, and the department may issue one or more Service Proposal Requests against a single Call.

(4) Solicitation and Evaluation Phase.

(a) The department will invite those offerors selected to participate in Phase II to provide service proposals. The department may limit the firms invited to submit service proposals to only those firms that have demonstrated the highest level of professional capability to provide the services under consideration, in accordance with Section 402.73(3), F.S. The department may invite no fewer than *three* firms to submit service proposals, unless fewer than three firms submit satisfactory statements of qualification. If *two* firms submit satisfactory statements of qualification, the department shall review the facts and circumstances in order to determine the reason, if any, that fewer than three satisfactory statements of

qualification were submitted. The department shall document the reason that requesting service proposals from fewer than three firms is in the best interest of the state, and proceed with the issuance of the Service Proposal Request.

(b) If only one satisfactory statement of qualification is received, the department shall review the facts and circumstances in order to determine the reason, if any, that only one statement of qualification was submitted. If the department determines that re-solicitation would *not* be in the best interest of the state, the department shall explain in writing the basis for its determination and the documentation shall be maintained in the department's contract files. Thereafter, the department may proceed directly to negotiations with the offeror who submitted the satisfactory statement of qualification to determine the best contract terms and conditions.

(c) The invitation for the submission of service proposals will be made through the issuance of a Service Proposal Request, which shall contain the following:

1. The service requirements;

2. The general terms and conditions that will apply to the resultant contract;

3. The instructions for submission of service proposals, including formats and a listing of required contents;

4. A description of the evaluation process;

5. The evaluation criteria, along with their relative importance;

6. The schedule of significant events and deadlines;

7. The methods and timing of allowable communications between the department and entities remaining in the competition; and

8. The date, time, and location for service proposal submission.

(d) The department shall perform an evaluation of each responsive service proposal according to the evaluation methodology described in the Service Proposal Request, and in accordance with the criteria included in, but not limited to, Section 402.73(3), F.S.

At the conclusion of the evaluation, the department may negotiate with one or more offerors sequentially or simultaneously to determine contract award. However, an award may be made without negotiation based upon the evaluation of the responsive service proposals.

(e) A written record of any negotiations which may be held shall be maintained and shall include the following:

1. A description of the major issues addressed;

2. A summary of the negotiations;

3. Copies of any documentation provided;

(f) In accordance with Chapter 287.057(4), if fewer than two responsive service proposals are received, the department may negotiate on the best terms and conditions that are in the

best interest of the state. The department shall document the reasons that such action is in the best interest of the state in lieu of re-solicitation.

(5) The department may terminate negotiations at any time with any or all qualified offerors. When the department determines in writing that it is in the best interest of the state, it shall request that each qualified offeror submit a BAFO which takes into consideration all of the information contained in the original Service Proposal Request as well as that provided through the negotiations. In those cases where negotiations generated a need for further clarification or restatement of the department's requirement, such clarification shall be clearly stated in the request for the BAFO. The department shall review the BAFOs submitted in accordance with the evaluation criteria contained in the Service Proposal Request. The award, if any, shall be made to the qualified offeror whose BAFO represents the best value to the state.

(6) When it is in the best interest of the state, the department may award multiple contracts. The contract(s) resulting from this procurement process may cover all or part of the requirement described in the Service Proposal Request. The department may split the service procurement requirements into smaller components and may award different components to different qualified offerors.

Specific Authority 402.73(3) FS. Law Implemented 402.73(3) FS. History--New _____.

NAME OF PERSON ORIGINATING PROPOSED RULE:
Joy Neves
NAME OF SUPERVISOR OR PERSON WHO APPROVED THE PROPOSED RULE: Richard Chatel
DATE PROPOSED RULE APPROVED BY AGENCY HEAD: October 3, 2000
DATE NOTICE OF PROPOSED RULE DEVELOPMENT PUBLISHED IN FAW: October 15, 1999

Section III
Notices of Changes, Corrections and Withdrawals

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

DOCKET NO. 001521-EU

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
25-6.035 Adequacy of Supply
NOTICE OF RESCHEDULING

The date for the hearing, if requested, has been rescheduled to:
TIME AND DATE: 9:30 a.m., April 26, 2001
PLACE: Room 152, Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, FL

DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
33-602.203 Control of Contraband
NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL

Notice is hereby given that the above rule, as noticed in Vol. 27, No. 3, January 19, 2001, Florida Administrative Weekly has been withdrawn.

COMMISSION FOR THE TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED

RULE NO.: RULE TITLE:
41-2.006 Insurance, Safety Requirements and Standards
NOTICE OF CHANGE

Pursuant to subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule published in Vol. 27, No. 5, February 2, 2001, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. Based on comments received from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee, the Commission has voted to change the rule as follows:

Subsection (4)(i) now reads:

(i) Billing requirements of the Community Transportation Coordinator to subcontractors shall be determined locally by the local Coordinating Board and provided in the local Transportation Disadvantaged Service Plan. All bills shall be paid within 7 working days to subcontractors, after receipt of said payment by the Community Transportation Coordinator, in accordance with Chapter 287.0585, F.S.;

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Jo Ann Hutchinson, Executive Director, Commission for the Transportation Disadvantaged, 60 Suwannee Street, MS-49, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0450

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

Board of Architecture and Interior Design

RULE NOS.: RULE TITLES:
61G1-25.001 General Responsibility
61G1-25.003 Qualification Program for Special Inspectors of Threshold Buildings

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Pursuant to subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rules, as published in Vol. 27, No. 6, February 9, 2001, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The changes are based upon written comments submitted by the staff of the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee and comments provided by the Board at its regularly scheduled board meeting held on March 8, 2001. The Board voted to change Rules 61G1-25.001 and 61G1-25.003.

The changes are as follows:

The last sentence in the rule text of 61G1-25.001 will be deleted and the rule shall now read:

61G1-25.001 General Responsibility.

Architects offering Threshold Building Inspection services pursuant to Section 553.79, F.S. shall provide inspections in accordance with the structural inspection plan provided by the engineer or architect of record to insure compliance with permitted documents.

The Board voted to amend Subsection (3)(d) of Rule 61G1-25.003 and shall now read as follows:

61G1-25.003 Qualification Program for Special Inspectors of Threshold Buildings.

(3)(d) Upon a determination that the application contains all of the information requested by these rules, review of the application shall be scheduled for consideration by the Board. Such applications shall be approved, rejected or deferred for further information by the Board. If the Board defers an application for additional information, it shall notify the applicant of the information needed. Applicants shall be notified in writing of the Board's actions as soon as practicable and, in the case of rejected applications, the Board shall set forth the reasons for such rejection.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Sherry Landrum, Executive Director, Board of Architecture and Interior Design, Northwood Centre, 1940 N. Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0751

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Clinical Laboratory Personnel

RULE NO.: 64B3-5.003
 RULE TITLE: Technologist

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S. published in the Vol. 26, No. 38, September 22, 2000, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The changes are in response to comments received from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee and from the Board Meeting held on February 15, 2001 in Jacksonville Florida.

The rule shall now read as follows:

64B3-5.003 Technologist.

(1) Technologist Qualifications. Degrees or semester hours of academic credit required in this section shall be obtained at a regionally accredited college or university or, if foreign education, equated pursuant to Rule 64B3-6.002(6). All associate degrees used to qualify shall include, at a minimum, 60 semester hours of academic credit including eight semester hours each of academic biological and chemical science. Applicants for technologist licensure in the categories of microbiology, serology/immunology, chemistry,

hematology, immunochemistry, radioassay, histocompatibility, blood banking and blood gas analysis shall have four hours of Board approved HIV/AIDS continuing education and at a minimum have one of the following:

(a) A baccalaureate degree in clinical laboratory, chemical or biological science, or medical technology and have successfully completed a technologist level, accredited medical technology program which may be part of the degree.

(b) A baccalaureate degree in clinical laboratory, chemical or biological science, or medical technology and have successfully completed a Board approved training program at the technician or technologist level.

(c) A baccalaureate degree in clinical laboratory, chemical or biological science, or medical technology and three years of pertinent clinical laboratory experience of which one year shall be in the category for which licensure is sought.

(d) Ninety semester hours of academic credit and have successfully completed an accredited medical technology program at the technologist level.

(e) An associate degree, a Florida technician license and have successfully completed a technician level, accredited medical laboratory technology program which may be part of the degree.

(f) An associate degree, a Florida technician license and have successfully completed a military clinical laboratory training program of at least 1500 clock hours.

(g) An associate degree and have five years of pertinent clinical laboratory experience with one year of experience in each category for which licensure is sought.

(h) If applying for the category of radioassay, an associate degree and have successfully completed a nuclear medicine program, which may be part of the degree.

(i) If applying for the category of blood gas analysis, an associate degree and have successfully completed a cardiopulmonary function or a cardiovascular technologist program which may be part of the degree.

(j) If applying for the category of blood banking, must qualify under (a), (b) or (c) above.

(k) Individuals with a baccalaureate degree in a chemical or biological science, Florida licensure as a technician, and proof of completion of an accredited and/or Board approved clinical laboratory training program at the technician level, may qualify for a technologist license.

(2) Qualifications for Cytology Technologist. For the specialty of cytology, applicants for technologist shall have earned a baccalaureate degree with coursework including at least 16 semester hours of academic science, and shall have successfully completed an accredited training program in cytology. Applicants who were nationally certified prior to 1985 by the American Society of Clinical Pathologists must have an associates degree or the equivalent. Applicants shall

have four hours of Board approved HIV/AIDS continuing education as stated in Rule 64B3-11.005 or in subsequent rule of the Department.

(3) Qualifications for Histology Technologist. For the category of histology, applicants for technologist licensure shall have four hours of Board approved HIV/AIDS continuing education as stated in Rule 64B3-11.005 or in subsequent rule of the Department, a minimum of 60 semester hours of academic credit including 16 semester hours of science, and have one of the following:

(a) Board certification gained by examination in histology through the Board of Registry of the American Society of Clinical Pathologist certification at the Histotechnologist (HTL) level.

(b) Board certification gained by examination in histology through the Board of Registry of the American Society of Clinical Pathologist certification at the Histotechnician (HT) level, 48 contact hours of continuing education in immunohistochemistry/advanced histologic techniques and five years of pertinent clinical laboratory experience post certification.

(c) Graduation from a NAACLS approved associate degree histotechnology program and Board certification gained by examination in histology through the Board of Registry of the American Society of Clinical Pathologist certification at the Histotechnician (HT) level.

(d) Board certification gained by examination in histology through the Board of Registry of the American Society of Clinical Pathologist certification at the Histotechnician (HT) level and Qualification in Immunohistochemistry (QIHC).

(e) Florida licensure as a histology technician, 48 contact hours of continuing education in immunohistochemistry/advanced histologic techniques and 10 years of pertinent clinical laboratory experience post licensure.

(4) through (6) No change.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Joe Baker, Jr., Board Executive Director, Board of Clinical Laboratory Personnel, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C07, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3257

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Clinical Laboratory Personnel

RULE NO.: 64B3-11.004
RULE TITLE: Procedures for Approval of Provider Programs

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S. published in the Vol. 26, No. 38, September 22, 2000, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The changes are in response to comments received

from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee and from the Board Meeting held on February 15, 2001 in Jacksonville Florida.

The rule shall now read as follows:

64B3-11.004 Procedures for Approval of Provider Programs.

Programs approved by the Board are defined as those from providers whose courses meet the standards set forth in Rule 64B3-11.002. The provider seeking program approval:

(1) Shall apply to the Department using form DH 1052, (7/97), incorporated by reference herein and available by request to the Board Executive Director, and submit the application fee set forth in Rule 64B3-9.001 prior to the first course being offered.

(2) Shall be granted approval for a period of 24 months.

(3) Shall be subject to periodic review. Approval may be withdrawn if the Board determines that adherence to standards outlined in rule chapter 64B3-11 is not maintained or if information submitted to the Board by the provider is found to be a material misrepresentation of fact.

(4) Shall use the program approval numbers, if applicable.

(5) Shall be granted authority to give continuing education courses without additional Board approval once they are offered by a program with approval status.

(6) Shall demonstrate continued compliance with the requirements of Rules 64B3-11.002, and 64B3-11.003 through periodic review and random audits of continuing education offerings. Audits shall be conducted for cause and randomly during renewal of the continuing education program.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Joe Baker, Jr., Board Executive Director, Board of Clinical Laboratory Personnel, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C07, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3257.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Medicine

RULE NO.: 64B8-9.009
RULE TITLE: Standard of Care for Office Surgery

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Board of Medicine hereby gives notice that the Surgical Care Committee of the Board will hold a public hearing on the above-referenced rule in response to a written request. The hearing will be held on May 19, 2001, at 9:30 a.m., or as soon thereafter as can be heard, at the Tampa Airport Marriott, Tampa International Airport, Tampa, Florida 33607.

THE PERSON TO BE CONTACTED REGARDING THE PROPOSED RULE IS: Tanya Williams, Executive Director, Board of Medicine, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin #C03, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3253.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this hearing because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the Board's Executive Director at least five calendar days prior

to the hearing. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Board office using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Economic Self-Sufficiency Program

RULE NO.: 65A-4.205
 RULE TITLE: Penalties for Nonparticipation in Work Requirements

NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the cited proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., published in Vol. 27, No. 4, January 26, 2001, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The specific changes were made in response to comments received from Florida Legal Services, Inc. requesting clarification on proposed rule terminology and form provisions incorporated by reference.

Specific changes in rule text are as follows:

(1) Penalty Requirements. The provisions for receipt of temporary cash assistance (TCA) include the requirement of individuals who do not meet exemptions to participate in work activities or alternative requirement plans. For the purposes of this rule "work activities" include alternative requirement plans. Failure to do so, without good cause, will result in penalties being applied in accordance with s. 414.065(1), F.S. Individuals who also receive food stamps and fail to meet TCA work requirements will be considered noncompliant with Food Stamp work requirements in accordance with 7 CFR Part 273, section 273.7(f)(6). Individuals will be notified at program entry of the work activities requirement and possible penalties for noncompliance without good cause using the CF-ES 2097, Participation and Information Notice, Mar 01 Sep 00, incorporated by reference.

(2) Compliance with work requirements and determination of good cause for failure to comply with work requirements will be determined by the regional workforce board (RWB) designee in accordance with s. 414.065(1) and (4), F.S. Other good cause reasons for failure to comply include the temporary inability to participate due to circumstances beyond the participant's control such as:

- (a) A family emergency due to the inability to find suitable child care for a sick child under age 12;
- (b) Hospitalization, medical emergency or death of an immediate family member;
- (c) Natural disaster;
- (d) Lack of transportation;
- (e) Court appearance; or
- (f) Caring for a disabled family member when the need for care has been verified and alternative care is not available.

(3) Individuals failing to comply with work activities will be mailed notification of the failure and possible sanction by the RWB designee within two working days of the failure. The notification must inform the individuals they have shall be allowed ten calendar days from the date the notification is mailed to contact the RWB designee to have a report good cause determination made or to comply with the work requirement or penalty action will be imposed. During the ten-day period, the RWB designee is required to make both oral and written attempts to contact and to counsel the participant to:

- (a) Determine if the participant had good cause for failing to meet the work requirement;
- (b) Refer to or provide services, if appropriate, to assist with the removal of barriers to participation;
- (c) Understand the consequences for failure to comply with work or alternative requirement plan activity requirements without good cause;
- (d) Provide information regarding transitional benefits in accordance with ss. 445.028(2), F.S., if the participant subsequently obtained employment; and
- (e) Understand that compliance with the work activity during the ten-day period will avoid the imposition of a sanction. The RWB designee must provide the participant with another work activity within the ten-day period if it is impossible for the participant to comply with the original assigned activity.

(4) Upon failure of the individual to respond by the date indicated, the RWB designee will notify the department to impose a sanction in accordance with s. 414.065(1)(a), F.S. Upon receipt of the sanction request, the department will notify the individual of the penalty action using the CF-ES 4192, Notice of Work Penalties, Mar 01 Sep 00, incorporated by reference. An individual who provides verification of good cause for failure to respond within the 10-day time frame will not be penalized.

(5)(2) Temporary cash assistance groups, who are receiving food stamps at the time of the disqualification for failure to perform a required TCA work activity, will also be disqualified for food stamps in accordance with federal food stamp policy at 7 CFR sections 273.7(f)(6) and 273.11(j)(4) and (k) 7 U.S.C. 2015(6)(i)(d) and 7 U.S.C. 2015(6)(i). Food stamp penalty periods are to be applied in accordance with 7 CFR section 273.7(f)(2). If the non-compliant individual is the head of household, the entire household will be disqualified from receipt of food stamps in accordance with 7 CFR section 273.7(f)(4). The department must determine if the non-compliant individual meets a food stamp work exemption before imposing a food stamp penalty. The food stamp penalty is not to be imposed if the individual meets a food stamp exemption. Individuals who are penalized

for food stamps due to noncompliance with TCA work requirements cannot have a penalty lifted by opting not to receive TCA.

(6) Temporary cash assistance penalties are to be applied in accordance with s. 414.065(1)(a), F.S. (b) The fourth and each subsequent penalty prior to reinstatement as being in full compliance with TCA program requirements will be applied pursuant to s. 414.065(1)(a)3, F.S.

(7)(2) No change.

(8)(4) Reinstatement of Benefits. Reinstatement of benefits requires the filing of a Request for Assistance, CF-ES Form 2066 Jun. 98, incorporated by reference in administrative rule 65A-1.400, FAC., and a face-to-face interview, unless the individual demonstrates compliance and action is being taken to reinstate benefits within 30 days from the beginning date of the penalty. Cash assistance benefits will be reinstated in accordance with s. 414.065(1)(a), F.S., as determined by the RWB designee, as long as all other factors of eligibility are met and any minimum penalty period has been served. Food stamp benefits will be reinstated in accordance with 7 CFR section 273.7(g) of the food stamp requirements. If at the end of the food stamp penalty period the head of household is still in noncompliance, the head of household remains ineligible, but other members of the assistance group may reapply. If the other assistance group members are re-approved for food stamps, the pre-sanctioned TCA grant amount must be included in the food stamp benefit calculation.

(9)(4) No change.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

Economic Self-Sufficiency Program

RULE NO.: 65A-4.212
 RULE TITLE: Up-front Diversion
 NOTICE OF CHANGE

Notice is hereby given that the following changes have been made to the cited proposed rule in accordance with subparagraph 120.54(3)(d)1., F.S., published in Vol. 27, No. 2, January 12, 2001, issue of the Florida Administrative Weekly. The specific changes were made in response to comments received from the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee and Florida Legal Services, Inc. requesting clarification on proposed rule language and form provisions that appeared to be in conflict with statutory authority or that needed clarification.

Specific changes are as follows:

Paragraph (1) is amended to read: Pre-screening. Individuals applying for temporary cash assistance (TCA) or up-front diversion will complete the CF-ES 2066, Request for Assistance, Jun 98, incorporated by reference in Administrative Rule 65A-1.400, FAC, and will be pre-screened to determine if they meet the criteria for a due to an unexpected circumstance or emergency situation they have

short-term barriers to obtain and maintain employment or child support that could be addressed through up-front diversion or if ongoing TCA is needed in accordance with s. 445.017, F.S. Screening for up-front diversion may be done by the department or the regional workforce board (RWB) designee to determine if the family is interested and likely to meet eligibility criteria for TCA and up-front diversion using the: Pre-screening includes a determination that all requirements for TCA eligibility would most likely be met; the applicant has an unexpected circumstance or emergency situation that may be addressed through short-term assistance such as up-front diversion instead of ongoing TCA assistance; and the applicant may be interested in Up-Front Diversion.

(a) If the pre-screening information indicates that the applicant meets TCA eligibility criteria, but is not appropriate for up-front diversion or does not want it, the applicant will complete the application process for the receipt of ongoing TCA through the department 2073B CF ES, Diversion Services Worksheet, Sep 00, incorporated by reference, and CF ES 2066, Request for Assistance (RFA), Jun 98, incorporated by reference in Administrative Rule 65A-1.400, FAC, to determine potential TCA and up-front diversion eligibility.

(b) If the pre-screening information indicates that the applicant meets TCA eligibility criteria; upfront diversion may address the applicant's needs; and, the applicant wants to pursue up-front diversion, the applicant will complete the up-front diversion eligibility determination process through the regional workforce board (RWB) designee. CF-ES 2073A, Up-front Diversion Screening Form, Sep 00, incorporated by reference, to determine potential up-front diversion eligibility that includes:

1. The applicant has a child(ren) under age 19 residing in the home or a pregnant woman in the family;
2. The family has an emergency situation that can be resolved by up-front diversion assistance; and
3. Whether or not the up-front intervention will eliminate barriers to employment and the need for applying for TCA.

Paragraph (2) is amended to read: Referral to the RWB. The RWB designee is responsible for determining final up-front diversion eligibility and approval on a case-by-case basis for the receipt of up-front diversion services, payment, or both in accordance with s. 445.017, F.S. Applicants, who are pre-screened by the department as potentially TCA eligible, appear to have short-term barriers to obtain and maintain employment or child support, and want to apply for up-front diversion, are to be referred to the RWB designee using the completed CF-ES 2073A, CF-ES 2073B, and CF-ES 2066 for up-front diversion eligibility determination and approval. Eligibility criteria for up-front diversion includes:

(a) The applicant has a child(ren) under age 19 residing in the home or a pregnant woman in the family and meets TCA eligibility criteria;

(b) An explanation by the family of the unexpected circumstance or emergency situation and what may be needed to resolve it; and

(c) A determination by the RWB designee and the applicant whether or not the up-front diversion intervention will assist the family to overcome ~~eliminate~~ barriers to employment or child support and eliminate the need for ongoing TCA assistance.

Paragraph (3) is amended to read: Unexpected Circumstances or Emergency Situations. ~~Emergency situations that would be barriers to obtaining or continuing employment are determined on a case-by-case basis by the RWB designee.~~ Some examples of unexpected circumstances or emergency situations that may be considered short-term barriers to obtain and maintain employment or child support ~~emergency situations~~ in this regard are: automobile repairs; catching up on shelter payments to prevent evictions; catching up on utility bills, except for cable television and long distance telephone charges, to prevent interruption of services; medical services; replacement of lost income due to medical leave without pay; emergency child care while seeking permanent child care; and, clothing, shoes, tools or equipment necessary for employment.

Paragraph (5), in the first sentence, following "Payment/Service," is amended to read, "Feb 01, Oct 00 incorporated by reference, to notify applicants that receipt of up-front diversion will restrict application for TCA for three months unless an emergency is demonstrated to the RWB designee."

Paragraph (6), the second sentence is amended to read, "Up-front Diversion ~~One-time~~ services such as child care or transportation cannot exceed four months in accordance with 45 CFR Part 260, s. 260.31(b)." In the same paragraph, a new third sentence is inserted to read, "Families who are diverted from the receipt of ongoing TCA assistance through Up-front Diversion may be eligible to receive transitional support services such as child care and transportation as specified in section (11) of this rule."

Paragraph (11) Transitional Child Care and Transitional Services. Individuals who receive up-front diversion may be eligible for transitional child care or transitional services to accept, maintain, actively seek employment, or to upgrade skills if their income does not exceed 200 percent of the federal poverty level and they meet eligibility criteria in accordance with ss. 445.029, 445.030, 445.031, and 445.032, F.S.

Paragraph (12) is amended to read, "The following forms ~~is are~~ incorporated by reference: ~~CF-ES 2073A, CF-ES 2073B, and CF-ES 2075~~ and may be obtained from the Department of Children and Family Services, Economic Self-Sufficiency, 1317 Winewood Boulevard, Building 3, Room 423, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0700."

Section IV
Emergency Rules

NONE

Section V
Petitions and Dispositions Regarding Rule
Variance or Waiver

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on October 3, 2000, the State Board of Independent Colleges and Universities (SBICU) received a petition for waiver from the Academy for Five Element Acupuncture pursuant to Section 120.542, Florida Statutes. The petition seeks temporary relief from the Rule 6E-2.002(2)(f), Fla. Admin. Code, as it pertains to the awarding of degrees while the Academy received accreditation but had not been awarded a Level II provisional license by SBICU.

A copy of the petition may be obtained from: Cindy Bellia, (850)488-8695.

The SBICU will accept comments concerning the petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received by the end of business on the 14th day at the State Board of Independent Colleges and Universities, Koger Center, Turner Building, Suite 200, 2586 Seagate Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32301.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on February 5, 2001, the State Board of Independent Colleges and Universities (SBICU) received a petition for waiver from the Atlantic Institute of Oriental Medicine pursuant to Section 120.542, Florida Statutes. The petition seeks temporary relief from the Rule 6E-2.002(2)(f), Fla. Admin. Code, as it pertains to the awarding of degrees while the Institute received accreditation but had not been awarded a Level II provisional license by SBICU.

A copy of the petition may be obtained from: Cindy Bellia, (850)488-8695.

The SBICU will accept comments concerning the petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received by the end of business on the 14th day at the State Board of Independent Colleges and Universities, Koger Center, Turner Building, Suite 200, 2586 Seagate Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32301.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Department of Community Affairs has issued a Final Order Granting Petition for Waiver in response to the request received January 24,

2001, from Charlotte County. Notice of this petition appeared in the February 29, 2001, edition of the Florida Administrative Weekly. It is ordered that the Petition for Waiver by Petitioner Charlotte County be, and by this Final Order is, hereby granted with respect to the Frankenberger and Halas parcels for Florida Communities Trust Project number 00-027-P10.

A copy of the Final Order, which has been assigned the number DCA01-WAI-003, may be obtained by writing: Paula P. Ford, Agency Clerk, Department of Community Affairs, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Public Service Commission has received a petition from Tampa Electric Company, filed March 19, 2001, in Docket No. 010334-EI, seeking waiver from Rule 25-17.0832(4)(e)7., Florida Administrative Code. The rule addresses the minimum specifications that must be included in a standard offer contract between a public utility and small qualifying facility for the purchase of firm capacity and energy. Comments on the petition should be filed with the Commission's Division of Records and Reporting, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850, within 14 days after publication of this notice.

A copy of the petition can be obtained from the Division of Records and Reporting. For additional information, please contact Marlene Stern, Division of Legal Services, at the above address or telephone (850)413-6199.

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on March 26, 2001 (date) the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) received a petition for variance from The School District of Osceola County for a project known as Celebration High School, Osceola County. The petition seeks relief from Section 6.10(e), Basis of Review for Environmental Resource or Surface Water Management Permit Applications Within the South Florida Water Management District, incorporated by reference in Rule 40E-4.091(1)(a), Fla. Admin. Code, pertaining to requirement to preserve site groundwater recharge characteristics.

A copy of the petition may be obtained from: Dee Maeyens, (561)682-6794 or e-mail: dmaeyens@sfwmd.gov.

The SFWMD will accept comments concerning the petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received by the end of business on the 14th day at the South Florida Water Management District, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, FL 33401, Attn: District Clerk.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on March 15, 2001, the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) received a petition for waiver from Michael Azzizzi, for utilization of works or land of the SFWMD known as the C-17, Palm Beach County. The petition seeks relief from the Rule 40E-6.221(2)(j), Fla. Admin. Code, and the Basis of Review for Use or Occupancy of the Works or Lands of the District Permit Applications within the South Florida Water Management District, incorporated by reference in Rule 40E-6.091(1), Fla. Admin. Code, which establishes the minimum elevation requirement for docking facilities and prohibits the placement of above-ground permanent or semi-permanent encroachments within 40' of the top of the canal bank, within the Works or Lands of the District.

A copy of the petition may be obtained from: Jan Sluth, (561)682-6299 or e-mail: jsluth@sfwmd.gov.

The SFWMD will accept comments concerning the petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received by the end of business on the 14th day at the South Florida Water Management District, 3301 Gun Club Road, MSC 1410, West Palm Beach, FL 33406, Attn: Jan Sluth, Office of Counsel.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on March 23, 2001, the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) received a petition for waiver from Bruce E. Shields, for utilization of works or land of the SFWMD known as the C-51, Palm Beach County. The petition seeks relief from the Rule 40E-6.221(2)(j), Fla. Admin. Code, and the Basis of Review for Use or Occupancy of the Works or Lands of the District Permit Applications within the South Florida Water Management District, incorporated by reference in Rule 40E-6.091(1), Fla. Admin. Code, which establishes a minimum elevation requirement for docking facilities, within the Works or Lands of the District.

A copy of the petition may be obtained from Jan Sluth, (561)682-6299 or e-mail: jsluth@sfwmd.gov.

The SFWMD will accept comments concerning the petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received by the end of business on the 14th day at the South Florida Water Management District, 3301 Gun Club Road, MSC 1410, West Palm Beach, FL 33406, Attn: Jan Sluth, Office of Counsel.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on March 26, 2001, the South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) received a petition for waiver from Jose Antonio Alvarez, for utilization of works or land of the SFWMD known as the C-100C, Dade County. The petition seeks relief from the Rule 40E-6.221(2)(j), Fla. Admin. Code, and the Basis of Review for Use or Occupancy of the Works or Lands of the District Permit Applications within the South Florida Water Management District, incorporated by reference in Rule

40E-6.091(1), Fla. Admin. Code, which prohibits placement of above-ground permanent or semi-permanent encroachments within 40' of the top of the canal bank, within the Works or Lands of the District.

A copy of the petition may be obtained from Jan Sluth, (561)682-6299 or e-mail at jsluth@sfwmd.gov.

The SFWMD will accept comments concerning the petition for 14 days from the date of publication of this notice. To be considered, comments must be received by the end of business on the 14th day at the South Florida Water Management District, 3301 Gun Club Road, MSC 1410, West Palm Beach, FL 33406, Attn: Jan Sluth, Office of Counsel.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

The Florida Real Estate Commission hereby gives notice that it has received a Petition for Waiver, filed on March 23, 2001, by Christopher C. Skambis, Esquire, on behalf of Petitioner, Dianne Marie Schoenthaler. Petitioner is seeking a waiver from Rule 61J2-3.020, F.A.C., relating to post-licensing for brokers. The Petition specifically requests that the Commission reinstate her broker's license notwithstanding her failure to complete the required 60-hour post-license course prior to, or on the date of, expiration of the first renewal.

Comments on this Petition should be filed with: Florida Real Estate Commission, Lori Crawford, Deputy Clerk, Division of Real Estate, 400 West Robinson Street, Hurston Building – North Tower, Suite N308, Orlando, Florida 32801.

For additional information, or for a copy of the Petition, please contact Ms. Crawford at the above address.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Department of Environmental Protection gives notice of its intent to grant a variance (File No. 0129368-003-EV) to Martin County, from 62-4.244(5)(c), F.A.C. to allow a temporary mixing zone for turbidity extending 4,000 ft. down current from the point of excavation. The variance is associated with Permit No. 0129368-002-JC to dredge approximately 100,000 cy of sand overburden and approximately 200,000 cy of limestone rock during construction of a sand impoundment basin at St. Lucie Inlet. Given the inlet tidal currents and the direct discharge into these waters, the permittee has determined that turbidity levels in excess of 29 NTUs above background would be expected to occur occasionally at the edge of the standard 150 meter mixing zone. The activity is located at St. Lucie Inlet, Martin County, Sections 16 and 17, Township 38 south, Range 42 East, Atlantic Ocean, Class III Waters.

A person whose substantial interests are affected by the Department's proposed action may petition for an administrative hearing in accordance with sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes. The petition must contain the information set forth below and must be filed (received by the

clerk) in the Office of General Counsel of the Department at 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station 35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000.

Because the administrative hearing process is designed to redetermine final agency action on the application, the filing of a petition for an administrative hearing may result in a modification of the variance or even a denial of the application. Under rule 62-110.106(4), Florida Administrative Code, a person whose substantial interests are affected by the Department's action may also request an extension of time to file a petition for an administrative hearing. The Department may, for good cause shown, grant the request for an extension of time. Requests for extension of time must be filed with the Office of General Counsel of the Department at 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station 35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, before the applicable deadline. A timely request for extension of time shall toll the running of the time period for filing a petition until the request is acted upon. If a request is filed late, the Department may still grant it upon a motion by the requesting party showing that the failure to file a request for an extension of time before the deadline was the result of excusable neglect.

In the event that a timely and sufficient petition for an administrative hearing is filed, other persons whose substantial interests will be affected by the outcome of the administrative process have the right to petition to intervene in the proceeding. Any intervention will be only at the discretion of the presiding judge upon the filing of a motion in compliance with rule 28-106.205, F.A.C.

In accordance with rules 28-106.111(2) and 62-110.106(3)(a)(1), F.A.C., petitions for an administrative hearing by the applicant must be filed within 21 days of receipt of this written notice. Petitions filed by any persons other than the applicant, and other than those entitled to written notice under section 120.60(3), F.S., must be filed within 21 days of publication of the notice or within 21 days of receipt of the written notice, whichever occurs first. Under section 120.60(3), F.S., however, any person who has asked the Department for notice of agency action may file a petition within 21 days of receipt of such notice, regardless of the date of publication.

The petitioner shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the address indicated above at the time of filing. The failure of any person to file a petition for an administrative hearing within the appropriate time period shall constitute a waiver of that person's right to request an administrative determination (hearing) under sections 120.569 and 120.57, F.S.

In accordance with rule 28-106.201, F.A.C., a petition that disputes the material facts on which the Department's action is based must contain the following information: (a) The name and address of each agency affected and each agency's file or identification number, if known; (b) The name, address, and telephone number of the petitioner; the name, address, and

telephone number of the petitioner's representative, if any, which shall be the address for service purposes during the course of the proceeding; and an explanation of how the petitioner's substantial interests are or will be affected by the agency determination; (c) A statement of when and how the petitioner received notice of the agency decision; (d) A statement of all disputed issues of material fact. If there are none, the petition must so indicate; (e) A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, including the specific facts that the petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the agency's proposed action; (f) A statement of the specific rules or statutes that the petitioner contends require reversal or modification of the agency's proposed action; and (g) A statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action that the petitioner wishes the agency to take with respect to the agency's proposed action.

A petition that does not dispute the material facts on which the Department's action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise shall contain the same information as set forth above, as required by rule 28-106.301, F.A.C. Under sections 120.569(2)(c) and (d), F.S., a petition for administrative hearing must be dismissed by the agency if the petition does not substantially comply with the above requirements or is untimely filed.

This intent to grant variance constitutes an order of the Department. The applicant has the right to seek judicial review of the order under section 120.68, F.S., by the filing of a notice of appeal under rule 9.110 of the Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure with the Clerk of the Department in the Office of General Counsel, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station 35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000; and by filing a copy of the notice of appeal accompanied by the applicable filing fees with the appropriate district court of appeal. The notice of appeal must be filed within 30 days from the date when the final order is filed with the Clerk of the Department. The applicant, or any party within the meaning of section 373.114(1)(a), F.S., may also seek appellate review of this order before the Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission under section 373.114(1), F.S. Requests for review before the Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission must be filed with the Secretary of the Commission and served on the Department within 20 days from the date when the final order is filed with the Clerk of the Department.

The application is available for public inspection during normal business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, except legal holidays, at the Department of Environmental Protection, Office of Beaches and Coastal Systems, 5050 West Tennessee Street, Building B, Tallahassee, Florida 32304-9201.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Department of Environmental Protection received, on March 13, 2001, a petition from Harding ESE, Inc., seeking a variance under

section 120.542 of the Florida Statutes from the prohibition of a zone of discharge under rule 62-522.300(3), Florida Administrative Code, for the use of in-situ chemical oxidation using potassium permanganate to clean up a site that is contaminated with dense non-aqueous phase liquid solvent. The petition has been assigned OGC File No.: 01-0450. Copies may be received from, and written comments submitted to, Department of Environmental Protection, Underground Injection Control Section, Mail Station 3530, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Twin Towers Office Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400; Attn: Cathy McCarty. Comments must be received no later than 14 days from the date of publication of this notice.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Department of Environmental Protection received, on March 16, 2001, a petition from HSA Engineers & Scientists, Inc., seeking a variance under section 120.542 of the Florida Statutes from the prohibition from a zone of discharge under rule 62-522.300(3), Florida Administrative Code, for the use of chemical oxidation using potassium permanganate to clean up sites that are contaminated with petroleum compounds, chlorinated solvents, other hydrocarbon-based contaminants, cyanide, or organo-metallic compounds. The petition has been assigned OGC File No.: 01-0469. Copies may be received from, and written comments submitted to, Department of Environmental Protection, Underground Injection Control Section, Mail Station 3530, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Twin Towers Office Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400; Attn: Cathy McCarty. Comments must be received no later than 14 days from the date of publication of this notice.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the State of Florida, Department of Health, Bureau of Emergency Medical Services, received a Petition for Variance on January 22, 2001 from Escambia County Department of Public Safety.

APPLICABLE RULE: Section 64E-2.003(8)(b), Florida Administrative Code

NATURE OF RULE: Rule provides, pertinent part, "A permitted advanced life support non-transport vehicle may operate as a basic life support emergency vehicle when the vehicle is not staffed by a certified paramedic or licensed physician and only in lieu of placing the unit completely out of service. When such advanced life support non-transport vehicle is operating under this section, the vehicle must be staffed with at least one person who must be an emergency medical technician."

DATE AND PLACE OF NOTICE: Notice was published on February 9, 2001 in the Florida Administrative Weekly.

Date of Order: March 6, 2001

BASIS FOR AGENCY DECISION: The Department denied the petition on the basis that the petitioner did not establish that the purpose of the underlying statute could be achieved by other means, that principles of fairness would be violated or that substantial hardship would result if the petitioner complied with the current rule.

A copy of the Order may be obtained by submitting a written request to: Pam Lesley, Senior Management Analyst, Bureau of Emergency Medical Services, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, Bin C18, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1738.

P.O. FOO396

Section VI Notices of Meetings, Workshops and Public Hearings

The following state governmental agencies, boards and commissions announce a public meeting to which all persons are invited:

State Board of Administration
 Department of Veterans' Affairs
 Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles
 Department of Law Enforcement
 Department of Revenue
 Department of Education
 Administration Commission
 Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission
 Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund
 Department of Environmental Protection

DATE AND TIME: April 24, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Cabinet Meeting Room, Lower Level, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: Regular scheduled meeting of the Governor and Cabinet

The State Board of Administration will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda, which may include such matters as Executive Director's reports; approval of fiscal sufficiency of state bond issues; approval of sale of local bonds at an interest rate in excess of statutory interest rate limitation; report on investment performance; designation of banks as depositories for state funds; adoption of rules and regulations; investment of state funds pursuant to Chapter 215, F.S.; and consideration of other matters within its authority pursuant to Chapters 215 and 344, F.S., and Section 16 of Article IX of the Florida Constitution of 1885, as continued by subsection 9(c) of Article XII of the Florida Constitution of 1968. The Division of Bond Finance of the State Board of Administration will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda, which will deal with the issuance of State bonds, arbitrage compliance and related matters.

The Department of Veterans' Affairs will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda which may include the administration of the Department as well as actions taken to further the Department's mission of providing assistance to veterans and their dependents, pursuant to Section 292.05, F.S. The Information Resource Commission will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda, which may include administrative procedures matters, adoption of rules, approval of agency plans for the use of information technology resources, adoption of policies for the use of such resources, and other matters under the commission's authority pursuant to law.

The Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda, which may include such matters as approval of agency policies, taking agency action with regard to administrative procedure matters, and considering other matters within its authority pursuant to Florida Statutes.

The Department of Law Enforcement will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda which may include but not be limited to such matters as transfer of agency funds or positions, formulation of Departmental Rules, administrative procedure matters, submittal of reports as required, enter into contracts as authorized and to consider other matters within its authority pursuant to Chapters 20, 23, 120 and 943, F.S.

The Department of Revenue will act on matters duly presented on its agenda which may include approval of rules, legislative concept proposals, contracts over \$100,000, Departmental budgets, taking final action on formal and informal hearings under Chapter 120, F.S., and consideration of other matters within its authority.

The Department of Education will finalize agency action on the business of the Florida Department of Education.

The Administration Commission will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda which may include such matters as to create or transfer agency funds or positions, approve Career Service rules, administrative procedure matters, environmental matters arising under Chapter 380, F.S., comprehensive planning issues pursuant to Section 163.3184, F.S., determine sheriffs' budget matters, and consider other matters within its authority pursuant to Chapters 110, 215 and 216, F.S.

The Florida Land and Water Adjudicatory Commission will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda including appeals of local government development orders in areas of critical state concern or of developments of regional impact under Section 380.07, F.S.; and review of water management matters under Chapter 373, F.S. The Commission will also review Department of Environmental Protection's rules and orders which, prior to July 1, 1993, the Governor and Cabinet, sitting as the head of the Department of Natural Resources, had authority to issue or promulgate.

The Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund will take action on matters duly presented on its agenda which may include such matters as mineral leases or sales, state or sovereign land leases, sales, exchanges, dedications, and easements, Conservation And Recreation Lands (CARL) and other land purchases; land planning matters and other matters within its authority. Additionally, the Board will take action on matters presented by the Marine Fisheries Commission as set forth in Sections 370.025, 370.026 and 370.027, F.S., and matters pertaining to the Office of Greenways Management, the Office responsible for the management of lands which formerly fell within the Cross Florida Barge Canal project corridor.

The Department of Environmental Protection, while not a Cabinet agency, will present for consideration on its agenda those matters required by law to be reviewed by the Governor and Cabinet and those pertaining to the siting of power plants, electric and natural gas transmission lines and hazardous waste facilities; coastal zone management consistency and standards adopted by the Environmental Regulation Commission.

A copy of any of the above agendas (when applicable) may be obtained by contacting each agency.

Accommodations can be made for persons with disabilities provided several days' notification is received. Please notify the Governor's Cabinet Office, (850)488-5152.

The Governor and Cabinet will proceed through each agenda, item by item, in the order given above.

CABINET AIDES BRIEFING: On the Wednesday of the week prior to the above meeting, there will be a meeting of the aides to the Governor and Cabinet Members at 9:00 a.m., Cabinet Meeting Room, Lower Level, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida. The purpose of this briefing is to review and gather information regarding each agenda to be considered by the Governor and Cabinet.

DEPARTMENT OF STATE

The **Department of State, Division of Cultural Affairs** announces the following public meeting to which all persons are invited.

COMMITTEE: Art Selection Committee

DATE AND TIME: April 24, 2001, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Caples Sculpture Room, USF Sarasota Campus, 5700 N. Tamiami Trail, Sarasota, FL 34234

PURPOSE: Art-in-State Buildings Meeting, BR-523, BR-563.

For more information, please contact: Vincent Ahern, Coordinator of Public Art, University of South Florida Contemporary Art Museum, 4202 E. Fowler Avenue, CAM 101, Tampa, FL 33620, (813)974-4333.

Should any person wish to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered in the above-referenced meeting, he/she may need to ensure verbatim recording of the proceedings to provide a record for judicial review. This meeting will not be taped by the Division of Cultural Affairs.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans With Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting Vincent Ahern, at the above listed phone number. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency.

The Department of State, Division of Cultural Affairs announces the application deadline and panel meeting for the Sister Cities Special Project Grant. The application deadline is a postmark deadline of April 30, 2001. Applications must be submitted to the Division of Cultural Affairs, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida, 32399-0250. The panel meeting where these applications will be reviewed will be held on:

DATE AND TIME: May 31, 2001, 9:00 a.m. – conclusion

PLACE: R. A. Gray Building, Room 307, 500 S. Bronough Street, Tallahassee, FL

PURPOSE: Application deadline and panel meeting for the Sister Cities Special Project Grant.

For a copy of the application guidelines, please contact the Division directly, (850)487-2980.

For more information, please contact: Peg A. Richardson, Director, Division of Cultural Affairs, The Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250 or (850)487-2980.

Should any person wish to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at the above-referenced meeting, he/she may need to ensure a verbatim recording of the proceedings in order to provide a record for judicial review.

To request special aids or services, contact the Division staff 72 hours prior to the above stated schedule, (850)487-2980 or (TT) (850)488-5779. Applicants may participate in the panel meeting by telephone. Applicants must submit a written request for telephone participation, which must be received by the Division no later than 4:00 p.m. (Eastern Time), on the last business day preceding the scheduled panel meeting. The request must contain the organization name and application number, the name and date of the panel meeting, the name of the person or persons designated to speak to the panel and the complete telephone number including the area code and extension. The request must be signed by an authorized official of the organization, with the name and title typed below the signature.

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS

The Legislative Advocacy Committee of the **Florida Commission on the Status of Women** will hold a telephone conference on:

DATE AND TIME: April 27, 2001, 10:00 a.m.
 PLACE: Please call (850)414-3300 for instructions on participation
 PURPOSE: To discuss general issues.
 If you need an accommodation because of disability in order to participate, please notify FCSW in writing at least five days in advance at Office of the Attorney General, The Capitol, Tallahassee, FL 32399-1050.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

The State of Florida, **Education Practices Commission** announces a Teacher Hearing Panel to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: April 27, 2001, 8:30 a.m. or as soon thereafter as can be heard
 PLACE: The Sheraton Suites, Tampa Airport, 4400 West Cypress Street, Tampa, Florida 33607, (813)873-8675
 PURPOSE: A Teacher Hearing Panel of the Education Practices Commission will consider final agency action in matters dealing with the disciplining teachers.

Additional information may be obtained by writing: Education Practices Commission, 325 W. Gaines Street, 224-E Turlington Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0400.

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Commission with respect to any matter considered at this hearing, he or she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION: Any person requiring a special impairment accommodation should contact Kathleen M. Richards, (850)488-0547, at least five calendar days prior to the hearing. Persons who are hearing or speech impaired can contact the Commission using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) or 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The public is invited to a telephone conference call meeting of the Florida **Board of Regents**.

DATE AND TIME: April 20, 2001, 9:00 a.m.
 PLACE: Conference Room, 15th Floor, Florida Education Center, Tallahassee, Florida
 PURPOSE: Consideration of: Sublease of Property, FAMU; 2001-2002 Operating Budgets and Building Repair and Renovation Reserve Reports for Auxiliary Facilities that have Bond Covenants that Require Board of Regents Action, UF, FSU, FAMU, USF, FAU, UCF, FIU; Legislative Update; and other matters pertaining to the State University System.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Mary-Anne Bestebreurtje, Corporate Secretary, Florida Board of Regents, 325 West Gaines Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1950.

Persons with disabilities who require assistance to participate in the meeting are requested to notify the Office of Equal Opportunity and Diversity, (850)201-7160 (Voice), (850)201-7164 (TDD), at least 7 days in advance, so that their needs can be accommodated.

The Board of Trustees Endowment Investment Committee of the **Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, April 19, 2001, 2:00 p.m.
 PLACE: Walker Hall Board Room, FSDB Campus, St. Augustine, Florida
 GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Matters pertaining to the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Elmer Dillingham, President, Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind, 207 N. San Marco Avenue, St. Augustine, FL 32084-2799 or by calling (904)827-2200.

Should any person wish to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at the above-referenced meeting, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings be made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Special accommodations for persons with disabling conditions should be requested in writing at least 48 hours in advance from the aforementioned address.

The Board of Trustees of the **Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, April 20, 2001, 9:00 a.m.
 PLACE: Wilson Music Building Auditorium, FSDB campus, St. Augustine, Florida
 GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: Matters pertaining to the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Elmer L. Dillingham, President, Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind, 207 N. San Marco Avenue, St. Augustine, FL 32084-2799 or by calling (904)827-2200.

Should any person wish to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at the above referenced meeting, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings be made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Special accommodations for persons with disabling conditions should be requested in writing at least 48 hours in advance from the aforementioned address.

NOTICE OF CHANGE – The Florida **Department of Education, State Board of Independent Colleges and Universities** announces a series of public telephonic meetings in which all interested parties are invited to participate. (Please note the time of this meeting has changed from 2:00 p.m. to 3:00 p.m.)

DATES AND TIME: Friday, April 13, 2001, 3:00 p.m. (Eastern Time), recessing at 3:30 p.m. or until business is concluded; reconvening every subsequent Friday during the Legislative Session, 3:00 p.m. (Eastern Time) or other such time as posted on the SBICU website (www.firm.edu/doe/sbicu) and by e-mail on the Board's listserve. The series of meetings shall last until Friday, May 4, 2001, or until the Legislative Session updates are concluded.

PLACE: Telephone Number: The "Meet Me" telephone number is (850)410-0960 or Suncom 210-0960. Dial this number at the designated time and dates to participate in the meetings.

PURPOSE: The purpose of the series of telephonic meetings is to update the Board members and other interested parties in the progress of the Education Reorganization legislation and related developments, especially as it affects the SBICU and the colleges under its purview.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Wanda Bailey, State Board of Independent Colleges and Universities, 2586 Seagate Drive, Suite 200, Tallahassee, FL 32301-5009. Ms. Bailey may be reached by telephone, (850)488-8695.

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he or she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is requested to advise the Board at least five calendar days before the meeting.

The **Florida Rehabilitation Council** announces the following meeting to which all interested persons are invited.

MEETING: Florida Rehabilitation Council Quarterly Meeting

DATES AND TIMES: Thursday, April 19, 2001, 9:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m.; Friday, April 20, 2001, 9:00 a.m. – 12:00 Noon

PLACE: Doubletree Hotel Tallahassee, 101 South Adams St., Tallahassee, FL 32301, (850)224-5000

PURPOSE: To conduct the Quarterly Meetings of the Council.

COMMITTEE MEETINGS: Please note that committees of the Florida Rehabilitation Council will meet at various times throughout the year to carry out the work of the council; the meeting dates and times will be posted at the above address at least seven days prior to the meeting. Persons who want to be notified of such meeting may request to be put on mailing list for such notices by writing to Shawnee T. Sumpter at the Council address.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Florida Rehabilitation Council, 2002 Old St. Augustine Road, Building A, Tallahassee, FL 32399-0696, (850)488-6210.

Notices of meetings and hearing must advise that a record is required to appeal. Each board, commission or agency of this state or of any political subdivision thereof shall include in the notice of any meeting or hearing, if notice of the meeting or hearing is required, of such board, commission or agency, conspicuously on such notice, the advise that, if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. (Florida Statutes, 286.0105)

Any interested parties that need further information may contact Vicki Welch, Extension 150 or her Assistant, Shawnee Sumpter, Extension 128.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

The **Department of Community Affairs** announces a meeting of the State Energy Program (SEP) Clean Fuel Florida Advisory Board (CFF) to which all interested parties are invited.

SEP CFF MEETING

DATE AND TIME: April 18, 2001, 10:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Holiday Inn Capital, 1355 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

ACTIONS TO BE TAKEN: The CFF will consider the following items:

- 1) DOE's Strategic Plan
- 2) Status of Legislative Activities
- 3) Alternative Fuel Long Range Plan Development
- 4) Future Strategies for Alternative Fuel Policy

Anyone who wants a copy of the agenda or additional information on this meeting may write or call: Emily Cook, Administrative Assistant, Department of Community Affairs, 2255 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100, (850)488-2475.

APPEAL INFORMATION: If a person decides to appeal any decision of the Department of Community Affairs with respect to any matter considered at this public meeting he or she may need a record or transcript of the proceeding, and for such purposes he or she may need to ensure that a record of the proceeding is made, which record may include testimony and evidence relevant to the appeal.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the SEP, (850)488-2475, at least five calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing impaired, please contact the SEP, (850)488-2475, at least five calendar days prior to the meeting.

If you are hearing impaired, please contact the SEP using the Florida Dual Party System which can be reached at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT

The **Department of Law Enforcement, Medical Examiners Commission** announces a Medical Examiners Commission Meeting.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, May 1, 2001, 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: Embassy Suites Hotel, 555 North Westshore Boulevard, Tampa, Florida 33609, (813)875-1555

PURPOSE: Medical Examiners Commission Meeting.

Additional information or a copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Mr. Dale H. Heidman, Forensic Coordinator, Criminal Justice Professionalism Services, Medical Examiners Commission, Post Office Box 1489, Tallahassee, Florida 32302, (850)410-8600.

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Commission with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, such person is responsible for ensuring that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of disability or physical impairment should contact the Medical Examiners Commission Office, (850)410-8600, at least five (5) working days prior to the meeting.

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

The Florida **Department of Transportation**, District 7 announces a Public Hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, April 24, 2001, 4:30 p.m. – 7:30 p.m. (with formal presentation beginning, 6:00 p.m.)

PLACE: St. Joseph's Catholic Church Parish Center, 38750 5th Avenue, Zephyrhills, Florida 33540

PURPOSE: The Hearing is being held to afford interested persons the opportunity to express their views concerning the location, conceptual design, social, economic and environmental effects of Work Program Item Segment Number: 256422 1; FAP No. 1455-001-U; the U.S. 301 Project Development and Environment (P D & E) Study.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing to Kenneth A. Hartmann, P. E., District Seven Secretary, Florida Department of Transportation, 11201 N. McKinley Drive, Tampa, Florida 33612-6456.

The City of Ft. Lauderdale and Broward County, in cooperation with the Florida **Department of Transportation** announce a public hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: May 3, 2001, 7:00 p.m.

PLACE: City of Fort Lauderdale, City Hall, Commission Chambers, 100 North Andrews Avenue, Fort Lauderdale, Florida

PURPOSE: This hearing is being held to afford interested persons the opportunity to express their views concerning the location, conceptual design, social, economic and environmental effects of State Project Number 86000-1692, Federal Aid Project Number 33C-9040-049 and Work Program Item Number 4120356, otherwise known as the 7th and 9th Connector in Broward County, Florida.

Project limits are from Broward Boulevard to N. W. 13th Street.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Mr. Dennis Girisgen, Project Manager, City of Fort Lauderdale Engineering Department, 100 North Andrews Avenue, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33301.

Anyone needing project or Public Hearing information or special accommodations under the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 should write to the address given below or call telephone number (954)828-5055.

Special accommodation requests under the Americans With Disabilities Act should be made at least seven days prior to the public hearing.

STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the **State Board of Administration** of a joint meeting of the Investment Advisory Council (IAC) and the Public Employee Optional Retirement Advisory Committee (PEORPAC) to which all persons are invited. Note that both these groups will meet concurrently.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, April 18, 2001, 9:00 a.m. – 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Hermitage Room, The Hermitage Centre, 1801 Hermitage Blvd., Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: This is a joint business meeting of the IAC and PEORPAC. The two groups will discuss recommendations regarding the asset transition broker, the initial unbundled product managers, recommendations on the public relations, communications or advertising vendor and other issues relating to the implementation of the Public Employee Optional Retirement Program. Although this meeting will be primarily in person, anyone wishing to participate by telephone is free to use the following conference call number: (850)414-1711 or Suncom 994-1711.

Anyone wishing further information should contact: Joan Lazar, Defined Contribution Program, P. O. Drawer 13300, Tallahassee, FL 32317-3300 or via e-mail at: lazar_joan@fsba.state.fl.us.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, anyone needing special accommodation to attend the meeting is requested to call Joan Lazar, (850)413-1492, five days prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the **State Board of Administration** of a public meeting of the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, May 22, 2001, 9:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. (Eastern Standard Time)

PLACE: Hyatt Regency Orlando International Airport, 9300 Airport Blvd., Orlando, Florida 32827

PURPOSE: To provide insurers who participate in the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund with an update on the 2001 Data Call and Reimbursement Contract changes, to provide a review of the audit process, to provide an overview of the loss reimbursement process and other general business of the Florida Hurricane Catastrophe Fund.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, anyone needing special accommodations to attend the meeting is requested to call Donna Sirmons, (850)413-1349, five days prior to the meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made.

The **Florida Prepaid College Program Board** announces a public meeting of the Evaluation Committee for Request for Proposal #00-02 to which all interested parties are invited to attend.

DATES AND TIMES: Wednesday, April 11, 2001, 8:30 a.m. (Eastern Time); recessing at the end of each session, reconvening as necessary the next business day or such other time and date as is posted outside the offices of the Florida Prepaid College Program by 5:00 p.m., the day preceding the day of the meeting, until business has been concluded

PLACE: The Hermitage Centre, Hermitage Room, First Floor, 1801 Hermitage Blvd., Tallahassee, Florida 32308

PURPOSE: The evaluation committee for RFP #00-02 shall meet regarding the evaluation of timely submitted proposals and to formulate its recommendations to the Board.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Committee with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which will include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION: Any person requiring special accommodations at the meeting because of a disability should fax a written request for same to Thomas J. Wallace, Executive Director, Florida Prepaid College Board, (850)488-3555, no later than five (5) days prior to the meeting.

DEPARTMENT OF CITRUS

The **Department of Citrus** announces two public meetings to which all persons are invited.

Florida Citrus Commission

DATE AND TIME: April 17, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

Regular Monthly Meeting

DATE AND TIME: April 18, 2001, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: Florida Department of Citrus, 1115 East Memorial Blvd., Lakeland, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Commission will convene for the purposes of a strategic planning session, standing committee meetings and for the regular monthly meeting. It is anticipated that the regular monthly meeting will convene no sooner than 9:30 a.m., April 18, 2001.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the Department at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting Mr. Art Johnson at the above address or by telephone, (863)499-2510.

The **Department of Citrus** announces a public meeting of the Medical and Nutritional Research Advisory Council to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, April 23, 2001, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: Florida Department of Citrus, 1115 East Memorial Blvd., Lakeland, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: There will be a meeting to address all grant proposals for 2001-2002 and make recommendations. The Council will also discuss any other issues that may properly come before the Council.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the Department at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting Mr. Art Johnson at the above address or by telephone, (863)499-2510.

The **Department of Citrus** announces a public meeting of the Florida Citrus Commission to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: April 24, 2001, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Florida Department of Citrus, 1115 East Memorial Blvd., Lakeland, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Commission will convene for the purposes of addressing legislative issues regarding changes to Chapter 601, Florida Statutes. Please note this meeting may not be necessary, but is being noticed due to time restraints. Information regarding the status of the meeting may be obtained by contacting: Mia McKown, (863)499-2500.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the Department at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting Mr. Art Johnson at the above address or by telephone, (863)499-2510.

The **Department of Citrus** announces a public meeting of the Florida Citrus Commission to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: May 8, 2001, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Florida Department of Citrus, 1115 East Memorial Boulevard, Lakeland, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The Commission will convene for the purposes of addressing legislative issues regarding changes to Chapter 601, Florida Statutes. Please note this meeting may not be necessary, but is being noticed due to time restraints. Information regarding the status of the meeting may be obtained by contacting: Mia McKown, (863)499-2500.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the Department at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting Mr. Art Johnson at the above address or by telephone, (863)499-2510.

FLORIDA PAROLE COMMISSION

The **Florida Parole Commission** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, April 18, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Florida Parole Commission, 2601 Blairstone Road, Bldg. C, Third Floor, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: Regularly Scheduled Meeting for all Parole, Conditional Release, Conditional Medical Release and Control Release Matters.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Florida Parole Commission, 2601 Blairstone Road, Building C, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2450.

Any person who decides to appeal a decision of the Florida Parole Commission with respect to a matter considered at this meeting may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made. Chapter 80-150, Laws of Florida (1980).

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the agency sending the notice not later than two working days prior to the proceeding at the address given on the notice, telephone (850)488-3417.

PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces a hearing to be held in the following docket, to which all interested persons are invited.

Docket No. 010142-EM – Joint petition for determination of need for proposed Stanton Energy Center Combined Cycle Unit A by Orlando Utilities Commission, Kissimmee Utility Authority, Florida Municipal Power Agency and Southern Company-Florida, LLC.

DATES AND TIME: April 23-24, 2001, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: The Betty Easley Conference Center, Commission Hearing Room 148, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: To permit parties to present testimony and exhibits relative to the joint petition for determination of need for proposed Stanton Energy Center Combined Cycle Unit A by Orlando Utilities Commission, Kissimmee Utility Authority, Florida Municipal Power Agency, and Southern Company-Florida, LLC., and for such other purposes as the Commission may deem appropriate. All witnesses shall be subject to cross-examination at the conclusion of their testimony on the issues identified by the parties at the prehearing conference held on April 10, 2001. The proceedings will be governed by the provisions of Chapter 120, F.S., and Chapter 25-28, FAC.

Any person requiring some accommodation at this hearing because of a physical impairment should call the Division of Records and Reporting, (850)413-6770, at least 48 hours prior to the hearing. Any person who is hearing or speech impaired should contact the Commission by using the Florida Relay Service, which can be reached at 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces a hearing to be held in the following docket, to which all interested persons are invited.

Docket No. 000121-TP – Investigation into the establishment of operations support systems permanent performance measures for incumbent local exchange telecommunications companies.

DATES AND TIME: April 25-27, 2001, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: Commission Hearing Room 148, The Betty Easley Conference Center, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: To permit parties to present testimony and exhibits relative to the investigation into the establishment of operations support systems permanent performance measures for incumbent local exchange telecommunications companies, and for such other purposes as the Commission may deem appropriate. All witnesses shall be subject to cross-examination at the conclusion of their testimony on the issues identified by the parties at the prehearing conference held on April 13, 2001. The proceedings will be governed by the provisions of Chapter 120, F.S., and Chapter 25-28, FAC.

Any person requiring some accommodation at this hearing because of a physical impairment should call the Division of Records and Reporting, (850)413-6770, at least 48 hours prior

to the hearing. Any person who is hearing or speech impaired should contact the Commission by using the Florida Relay Service, which can be reached at 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

NOTICE OF CHANGE – The Florida **Public Service Commission** announces the rescheduling of a prehearing from April 16, 2001 in Docket No. 991378-TL – Initiation of show cause proceedings against BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc. for violation of service standards.

DATE AND TIME: June 11, 2001, 1:30 p.m.

PLACE: The Betty Easley Conference Center, Commission Hearing Room 148, 4075 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida

REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCILS

The **North Central Florida Regional Planning Council** announces the following meeting to which all persons are invited.

MEETING: Regional Hazardous Materials Response Team

DATE AND TIME: April 16, 2001, 1:30 p.m.

PLACE: North Central Florida Regional Planning Council Office, 2009 N. W. 67th Place, Gainesville, Florida

PURPOSE: To conduct the regular business of the Regional Hazardous Materials Response Team.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Charles F. Justice, Executive Director, North Central Florida Regional Planning Council, 2009 N. W. 67th Place, Suite A, Gainesville, FL 32653.

Any persons deciding to appeal any decision of the Team with respect to any matter considered at the meetings may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance may contact us, (352)955-2200, at least two business days in advance to make appropriate arrangements.

The **Southwest Florida Regional Planning Council** announces a public hearing to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: April 19, 2001, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: Southwest Florida Regional Planning Council Conference Room, 4980 Bayline Drive, 4th Floor, North Fort Myers, FL 33917

PURPOSE: Regular meeting of the Regional Planning Council.

A copy of the proposed agenda may be obtained by writing: Mr. Wayne E. Daltry, Executive Director, Southwest Florida Regional Planning Council, Post Office Box 3455, North Fort Myers, FL 33918-3455.

Please note that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Council with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting or hearing, he will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, he may need to ensure that

a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

All Council Subcommittee meetings will immediately follow the Council meeting.

Any person requiring special accommodation due to disability or physical impairment should contact Mr. Wayne Daltry, (941)656-7720, at least five calendar days prior to the meeting. Persons who are hearing impaired should contact Mr. Daltry using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The District XI, **Local Emergency Planning Committee** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, April 18, 2001, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Fire Fighters Memorial Hall, Fire Tower Building, 8000 N. W. 21st Street, Miami, Florida 33122-1605

PURPOSE: To discuss the LEPC's ongoing regional hazardous materials training and planning activities for FY 2000/01.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: South Florida Regional Planning Council, 3440 Hollywood Blvd., Suite 140, Hollywood, FL 33021 or by calling (954)985-4416 in Broward, Suncom 473-4416 and 1(800)985-4416 for area codes 305, 561 and 407.

The District XI, **Local Emergency Planning Committee**, Training Technical Advisory Committee announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, April 18, 2001, 9:00 a.m. – 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Fire Fighters Memorial Hall, Fire Tower Building, 8000 N. W. 21st Street, Miami, FL 33122-1605

PURPOSE: To implement FY 2000-01 USDOT HMEP Training Grant by reviewing training courses conducted and requested and the FY 2000-01 planning project.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: South Florida Regional Planning Council, 3440 Hollywood Blvd., Suite 140, Hollywood, FL 33021 or by calling (954)985-4416 in Broward, Suncom 473-4416 and 1(800)985-4416 for area codes 305, 561 and 407.

The **Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council** announces a meeting of the Council's Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Committee to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: April 12, 2001, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council, 301 E. Ocean Boulevard, Suite 300, Stuart, FL 34994

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct a meeting of the Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Committee.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council, 301 E. Ocean Boulevard, Suite 300, Stuart, Florida 34994.

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council with respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he will need a record of proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record indicates the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

The **Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: April 20, 2001, 9:30 a.m.

PLACE: Howard Johnson's Motor Lodge, 950 U.S. Highway One, Stuart, Florida

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct the monthly meeting of the Council.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council, 301 E. Ocean Boulevard, Suite 300, Stuart, Florida 34994.

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council with respect to any matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he will need a record of proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record indicates the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

The District II, **Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC)** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited. In addition to its regular business, the agenda will include the review of any Local Government Plan Amendment(s) received in a timely manner.

DATE AND TIME: April 18, 2001, 10:00 a.m. (Eastern Time), 9:00 a.m. (Central Time)

PLACE: Capital Area Chapter, American Red Cross, 187 Office Plaza Drive, Tallahassee, Florida 32304

PURPOSE: To hold the regularly scheduled LEPC meeting.

An agenda may be obtained by writing: Apalachee Regional Planning Council, 314 East Central Avenue, Blountstown, FL 32424 or calling (904)674-4571.

If any person desires to appeal any decision with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting, such person will need a record of the proceedings. For such purpose, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made to include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

If special accommodations at the meeting are required because of a disability or impairment, please contact Council Offices, (850)674-4571, prior to the meeting.

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITIES

The **Metropolitan Planning Organization** for the Orlando Urban Area announces the following public meeting of its Governing Board to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, April 11, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Metroplan Orlando Boardroom, 315 East Robinson Street, Suite 355, Orlando, FL 32801

PURPOSE: Regularly Scheduled Board Meeting.

AGENDA/GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED:

1. Call to Order
2. Agenda Review
3. Approval of Minutes
4. Consent Items
5. Action Items
6. Presentations, if any
7. Other Business
8. Chairman's Report
9. Executive Director's Report
10. Legislative Report

A copy of the detailed agenda may be obtained by contacting: Virginia Lewis-Whittington, Manager of Board Services, Metroplan Orlando, 315 East Robinson Street, Suite 355, Orlando, FL 32801, (407)481-5672, Extension 314.

Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, states that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by a board, agency or commission with respect to any matter considered at a meeting or hearing, he will need a record of the proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, persons needing a special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Metroplan Orlando, (407)481-5672, at least 48 hours before the meeting.

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

NOTICE OF CHANGE – The **Suwannee River Water Management District** announces a change in the date and place for the public hearing scheduled for March 13, 2001, 9:00 a.m., to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: April 10, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: District Headquarters, 9225 CR 49, Live Oak, FL 32060

PURPOSE: Public Hearing in accordance with Section 373.59, F.S., concerning the proposed acquisition of the California Swamp Tract, 31,960 acres +/-, Dixie County, Florida, with funds from Preservation 2000 Trust Fund.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: SRWMD, 9225 CR 49, Live Oak, Florida 32060.

If any person decides to appeal any decision with respect to any matter considered at the above cited meeting, such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made to include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

The Suwannee River Water Management District does not discriminate upon the basis of any individual's disability status. This non-discrimination policy involves every aspect of the District's functions including one's access to, participation, employment or treatment in its programs or activities. Anyone requiring reasonable accommodation as provided for in the Americans With Disabilities Act should contact Lisa M. Cheshire, Administrative Assistant, (904)362-1001 or 1(800)226-1066 (Florida only), Fax (904)362-1056.

The **St. Johns River Water Management District** announces a Public Hearing to which all persons are invited. The meeting is scheduled for:

MEETING: Public Hearing to amend Save Our Rivers Five-Year Plan

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, April 11, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: District Headquarters, 4049 Reid Street, Palatka, Florida 32177

PURPOSE: To receive public testimony concerning proposed amendments to the District Five-Year Land Acquisition and Management Plan for acquisition and management lands funded by the "Save Our Rivers", Section 373.59, Florida Statutes, Water Management Lands Trust Fund.

If any person decides to appeal any decision with respect to any matter considered at the above listed meeting such person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made to include testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

If, due to disability, you require a special accommodation to participate in this public meeting, contact Linda Lorenzen, (904)329-4262 or (904)329-4450 (TDD), at least five work days before the date of the meeting.

The **South Florida Water Management District** announces an emergency meeting that was held in accordance with Section 120.525(3), F.S. Rule 28-102.003, F.A.C. This meeting was held for the purpose of acting upon emergency matters presenting an immediate danger to the public health, safety or welfare. A news release was issued regarding this meeting and was distributed to approximately 200 newspapers,

television and radio stations on March 16, 2001. Additionally, notice was given to interested parties via direct contact, phone calls and e-mails.

DATE AND TIME: March 21, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: South Florida Water Management District, B-1 Auditorium, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, FL 33406

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The purpose of the meeting was to receive input from affected parties on the development and implementation of a strategy for imposing Phase III water shortage restrictions in portions of the Lower East Coast (Palm Beach, Broward, Miami-Dade and Monroe Counties) and portions of the Lake Okeechobee Service Area (Lee, Hendry, Glades, Highlands, Martin and Okeechobee Counties). These restrictions are scheduled to go into effect on March 28, 2001, after a scheduled Governing Board meeting on March 27, 2001.

The **South Florida Water Management District** announces a public meeting which may be conducted by means of or in conjunction with communications media technology, specifically by telephonic conference to which all interested parties are invited.

DATE AND TIME: May 10, 2001, 8:50 a.m.

PLACE: South Florida Water Management District Headquarters, B-1 Building, Conference Room 3A, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Florida

PURPOSE: The acquisition of certain lands contained within the Save Our Rivers Land Acquisition and Management.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: South Florida Water Management District, P. O. Box 24680, West Palm Beach, Florida 33416-4680.

Appeals from any South Florida Water Management District Board decision require a record of the proceedings. Although Governing Board meetings and hearings are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons with disabilities who need assistance may contact Tony Burns, District Clerk, (561)682-6206, at least two business days in advance of the meeting to make appropriate arrangements.

Those who desire more information or those wishing to submit written or physical evidence may contact Patti Nicholas, Budget Department, District Headquarters, 3301 Gun Club Road, West Palm Beach, Florida 33416-4680.

REGIONAL UTILITY AUTHORITIES

The **Tampa Bay Water**, Board of Directors held a Special Board Meeting on Monday, March 26, 2001, 8:45 a.m. The meeting was deemed necessary in order to act on matters

essential to meeting the December 31, 2002, schedule for the Seawater Desalination Facility in keeping with the Partnership Agreement with the Southwest Florida Water Management District.

The Board reviewed and approved the following elements of the Seawater Desalination I Project:

- a. EPC and O & M Contracts
- b. Water Purchase Agreement – approved amendments
- c. Power Purchase Agreement – reported on status
- d. Pipeline Corridor Agreement – approved consistency with the Water Purchase Agreement
- e. Interim Financing - approved
- f. Limited Notice to Proceed – authorized General Manager to issue

The **Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority** announces that the Authority will hold its regular April meeting as scheduled. This is a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, April 18, 2001, 4:30 p.m.

PLACE: Sumter County Courthouse, Commission Meeting Room 222, 209 N. Florida Street, Bushnell, FL 33513

GENERAL MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: To conduct regular business of the Authority.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Withlacoochee Regional Water Supply Authority, P. O. Drawer 190, Tallahassee, FL 32302.

Although these board meetings are normally recorded, affected persons are advised that it may be necessary for them to make their own arrangements if a verbatim record of the meeting is needed, including testimony and evidence upon which any appeal is to be based.

DEPARTMENT OF ELDER AFFAIRS

The **Statewide Public Guardianship Office** announces a meeting of the Statewide Public Guardianship Curriculum Committee.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, April 20, 2001, 10:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: University of South Florida Campus, MHF 104, 13301 Bruce B. Downs Blvd., Tampa, FL 33612

PURPOSE: Meeting of the Guardianship Curriculum Committee pursuant to Section 744.7021(2)(f), Florida Statutes.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Gloria Mitchell, (813)974-1649.

DEPARTMENT OF MANAGEMENT SERVICES

The **Department of Management Services** announces a meeting of the Commission for Purchase from the Blind or Other Severely Handicapped to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: April 18, 2001, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Division of Blind Services, 2551 Executive Center Circle, West, Suite 200, Lafayette Building, Tallahassee, FL

PURPOSE: Industry Impact Review and Fair Market Price Determination and assignment of the following service contracts and products to qualified agencies for persons with disabilities through the provisions of Section 413.035, Florida Statutes: Trash Can Liners; Department of Management Services, Suncom Directory Services; Miami-Dade Justice Center Janitorial Services Contract; Temporary Employment Services; antiseptic hand cleanser; atomic clocks; batteries; computer accessories; disposable cups; drug testing kits; easels and tripods; feminine products; floor maintenance pads; gun cleaning kits; hurricane preparation kits; paper cutters and trimmers; bold professional safety glasses kit; trash can liners; vehicle maintenance items; weed-eater string, and writing instruments. Price adjustments of various service contracts, products and other matters related to the business of the Commission are also on the agenda.

Written public comments relative to the above items are invited. Please mail comments to the address below prior to the scheduled meeting. A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: RESPECT of Florida, 2475 Apalachee Parkway, Suite 205, Tallahassee, Florida 32301-4946, (850)942-0905.

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION: Any person requiring a special accommodation at the meeting because of a disability should call RESPECT, (850)942-0905, at least five (5) workdays prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact RESPECT by using the Florida Relay Service which can be reached at 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The **State Retirement Commission** announces public hearings to which all persons are invited.

DATES AND TIME: April 16-17, 2001, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: Embassy Suites Tampa Airport Westshore, 555 North Westshore Boulevard, Tampa, Florida

PURPOSE: To conduct hearings pursuant to Section 121.23, Florida Statutes, and to consider other matters related to the business of the Commission.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: State Retirement Commission, 2424 Allen Road, Suite 230, Tallahassee, Florida 32312 or by telephoning (850)487-2410.

A party who decides to appeal any decision made at such hearings will need a verbatim record of the hearing and may need to ensure that one is made, including the testimony and evidence, upon which the appeal is to be based.

Persons requiring accommodation because of a physical, visual, auditory or speech impairment should contact the Commission Clerk at least ten days prior to the hearing. If you

are hearing or speech impaired, call by using the Florida Relay Service which can be reached at 1(800)955-8771 (TDD). Hearing rooms and facilities are wheelchair accessible.

The **State Technology Office** announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: April 18, 2001, 10:00 a.m. – 11:30 a.m.

PLACE: Capital Circle Office Complex, Room 225A, 4030 Esplanade Way, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: Regular Meeting of the Chief Information Officers' Council.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained upon request to: State Technology Office, Room 327, Carlton Building, 501 S. Calhoun Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0001, (850)488-7241

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS: Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Marguriete Belyeu, (850)488-7241.

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

The **Department of Business and Professional Regulation**, Hospitality Education Program announces the following teleconferences.

Meeting: The **Division of Hotels and Restaurants** Advisory Council Teleconference

DATES AND TIMES: April 13, 2001, 2:00 p.m.; April 27, 2001, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Florida Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Division of Hotels and Restaurants, Hospitality Education Program, One Champion Way, Florida State University, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2542

PURPOSE: To approve grant applications for the 2001-2002 School-to-Career Transition Program. Only that portion of the meeting wherein cases are presented for consideration by the committee will be open to the public.

Any person deciding to appeal a decision made with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made. Such record must include testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Angel Gonzalez at the Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Hospitality Education Program, (850)644-8248, at least five (5) working days prior to the meeting.

The **Construction Industry Licensing Board** will hold the following meetings to which all interested parties are invited.

DATES AND TIMES: Wednesday, May 9, 2001, 4:00 p.m.; Thursday, May 10, 2001, 8:00 a.m.; Friday, May 11, 2001, 8:00 a.m.

PLACE: Sheraton Ft. Lauderdale Airport, 182 Griffin Road, Dania, Florida 33004

PURPOSE: Committee, Disciplinary Actions and General Session meetings of the Board.

Additional information and a final agenda may be obtained by writing: Construction Industry Licensing Board, 7960 Arlington Expressway, Suite 300, Jacksonville, Florida 32211-7467.

Any person who decides to appeal any decision made by the board with respect to any matter considered at these meetings may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Cathleen E. O'Dowd, (904)727-3689, at least seven calendar days prior to the meeting. Hearing or speech impaired please use the Florida Relay System, 1(800)955-8771 (TDD) or 1(800)955-8770 (Voice).

The Florida **Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board** announces Official Board Meetings to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: May 23, 2001, 10:00 a.m. or soon thereafter

PURPOSE: Legislative and Rules Workshop and Official Board Meeting.

DATE AND TIME: May 24, 2001, 8:00 a.m. or soon thereafter

PURPOSE: Probable Cause Panel Meeting (closed to the public)

DATE AND TIME: May 24, 2001, 10:30 a.m. or soon thereafter

PURPOSE: Official Board Meeting

DATE AND TIME: May 25, 2001, 8:30 a.m. or soon thereafter

PURPOSE: Official Board Meeting.

PLACE: Casa Monica, 95 Cordova Street, St. Augustine, FL 32084, (904)827-1888 or 1(800)648-1888

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Board Office, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0771.

For further information, contact: Florida Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board, 1940 North Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0771.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he/she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which will include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Any persons requiring special accommodations at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Jessica Koon, Electrical Contractors' Licensing Board at least five calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please call Jessica Koon using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Florida **Board of Pilot Commissioners** announces the following meetings to which all persons are invited to attend.

DATE AND TIME: April 18, 2001, 1:00 p.m.

PURPOSE: Finance committee meeting, immediately followed by Rules committee meeting, immediately followed by Probable Cause Panel meeting, which portions may be closed to the public. Committee agenda available on request.

DATE AND TIME: April 19, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PURPOSE: General Board and Business meeting.

PLACE: Department of Business and Professional Regulation, Board Room 130, 1940 N. Monroe Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399, (850)922-8074

To obtain a copy of the agenda, further information or submit written or other physical evidence, contact in writing: Board of Pilot Commissioners, 1940 N. Monroe St., Tallahassee, Florida 32399.

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he/she will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose he/she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the Board office, (850)922-8074, at least five calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Board office using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Probable Cause Panel of the **Florida Real Estate Commission** announces a meeting to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: May 15, 2001, 1:30 p.m. or the soonest thereafter (Portions of the probable cause proceedings are not open to the public)

PLACE: Suite 301, North, Tower, 400 West Robinson Street, Orlando, Florida

Any person who desires a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the Division of Real Estate, (407)245-0800 (between the hours of 9:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.), at least five calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired,

please call the Real Estate Division using the Florida Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The **Florida Real Estate Commission** (FREC) announces a meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: May 16, 2001, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: Division of Real Estate, Commission Meeting Room 301, North Tower, 400 West Robinson Street, Orlando, Florida
PURPOSE: Official business of Commission – among topics included, but not limited to, are proposed legislation affecting Chapter 475, Part I, F.S., rule development workshops, Florida Administrative Code 61J2 rule amendments, budget discussions, escrow disbursement requests, Recovery Fund Claims, education issues, petitions for declaratory statement and disciplinary actions.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Deputy Clerk, Florida Real Estate Commission, Administration Office, P. O. Box 1900, Orlando, Florida 32802-1900.

If a person decides to appeal a decision made by the Commission, with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, a record of the proceedings for such purpose, upon which the appeal is based, may be required. Probable Cause Panel(s) may also meet during this session. Portions of the Probable Cause are not open to the public.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact the Department of Business and Professional Regulation, (407)245-0800, at least five (5) calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please call the Division of Real Estate using the Florida Dual Party Relay System, 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The **Department of Environmental Protection**, as staff to the Board of Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust Fund, announces public workshops to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Friday, April 20, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Department of Environmental Protection, 3900 Commonwealth Blvd., Carr Building, Room 170M, Tallahassee, Florida

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, April 25, 2001, 1:00 p.m.

PLACE: Department of Environmental Protection, Southeast District Office, 400 N. Congress Avenue, Public Meeting Room, 2nd Floor, West Palm Beach, Florida

PURPOSE: To discuss and receive public comments on recommendations for the establishment of corridors and fees for the placement of fiber optic cables on the sovereign submerged lands of Florida.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by contacting: Phil Coram, Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Water Facilities, 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #2500, Tallahassee, FL 32399-2400, (850)921-9870, e-mail: Phil.Coram@dep.state.fl.us or Fax (850)921-2443.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this public meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting the Personnel Service Specialist, Bureau of Personnel, (850)488-2996. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Department of Environmental Protection and the St. Johns River Water Management District announces a public meeting to which all interested persons are invited to discuss a draft plan of study related to the development of pollution reduction goals (PLRGs) and total maximum daily loads (TMDLs) for the Lower St. Johns River.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, April 23, 2001, 4:00 p.m. – 7:00 p.m.

PLACE: DEP Northeast District Office Building, Suite B200, Conference Rooms A and B, 7825 Baymeadows Way, Jacksonville, Florida 32256

PURPOSE: To receive public input on the draft plan of study for the development of pollution load reduction goals and total maximum daily loads for the Lower St. Johns River.

A copy of the draft plan of study may be obtained by writing: Mr. Jim Maher, P. E., Department of Environmental Protection, 7825 Baymeadows Way, Industrial Waste Section, Jacksonville, Florida 32256-7577 or by calling him, (904)448-4330, Ext. 309.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the meeting by contacting the Personnel Specialist, Bureau of Personnel, (850)488-2996. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Department of Environmental Protection announces a public hearing of the Governor and Cabinet, sitting as the Power Plant Siting Board, to consider the Administrative Law Judge's Recommended Order in the case of Calpine Construction Finance Company, L.P. Osprey Energy Center, Power Plant Siting Application PA00-41, DOAH Case No. 00-1288EPP.

DATE AND TIME: April 24, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Cabinet Hearing Room, Lower Level, State Capitol, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: The Governor and Cabinet, sitting as the Power Plant Siting Board, will consider, pursuant to the Florida Electrical Power Plant Siting Act, Section 403.501, et seq.,

Florida Statutes, the Recommended Order dated December 30, 1999, from the Administrative Law Judge, finding that Calpine Construction Finance Company, L.P.'s Osprey Energy Center is in compliance with existing land use plans and zoning ordinances.

For a copy of the agenda please contact: Judy Brooks, Department of Environmental Protection, Marjory Stoneman Douglas Building, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, (850)922-3766.

CABINET AIDES BRIEFING: The Cabinet Aides will meet and discuss the item on April 18, 2000, 9:00 a.m., in the same location. The purpose of the briefing is to review and gather information regarding this item for consideration by the Siting Board.

The Department of Environmental Protection announces a public meeting of the State Revolving Fund (SRF) Technical Advisory Committee (TAC). All persons are invited to attend the meeting, but public comments will not be accepted.

DATE AND TIME: May 3, 2001, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: Department of Environmental Protection, Twin Towers Office Building, Room 611, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: The TAC will consider revisions to the SRF Program in order to expand its uses and accommodate additional capitalization. Program requirements and loan terms will be reevaluated. Expanded uses may include funding for wastewater and stormwater management facilities and nonpoint source pollution control activities. Additional capitalization may be realized as a result of cash management and the issue of bonds.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Department of Environmental Protection, Bureau of Water Facilities Funding, 2600 Blair Stone Road, MS #3505, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400 or by calling Dick Smith, (850)488-8163.

If an accommodation is needed for a disability in order to participate in this activity, please call 1(800)955-8771 or call Dick Smith, (850)488-8163, no later than April 27, 2001.

The Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Recreation and Parks announces a public workshop to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, April 12, 2001, 7:00 p.m. (EDT)

PLACE: Gasparilla Island State Park, Amory Memorial Chapel (located at the park), 880 Belcher Road, Boca Grande, Florida 33921

PURPOSE: To receive comments from the public regarding management and land uses for Gasparilla Island State Park before the development of a new park management plan.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Florida Department of Environmental Protection, Division of Recreation and Parks, Office of Park Planning, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station #525, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting is asked to advise the agency at least 48 hours before the meeting by calling Reggie Norman, Park Manager, Gasparilla Island State Park, (941)964-2965. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the agency by calling 1(800)342-1335.

The **Department of Environmental Protection**, Office of Greenways and Trails announces a meeting of the Florida's Greenways and Trails Council's Outreach/Recognition/Corporate Sponsorship subcommittee to which all interested parties are invited.

DATE AND TIME: April 17, 2001, 2:00 p.m.

PLACE: The meeting will take place using teleconferencing. To participate in the conference call, contact Dianne Redd or Rachel Goodson at the Department of Environmental Protection, Office of Greenways and Trails, DEP MS 795, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3000, (850)488-3701, email address: dianne.redd@dep.state.fl.us, prior to 10:00 a.m., April 17, 2001.

PURPOSE: To discuss future plans and goals for public outreach.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

The **Department of Health, Board of Clinical Social Work, Marriage and Family Therapy and Mental Health Counseling** announces an official Board meeting. All interested parties are invited to attend at the address listed below, which is normally open to the public.

DATES AND TIME: April 26-27, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Embassy Suites, 3974 N. W. South River Dr., Miami, FL 33142, (305)634-5000

PURPOSE: General Business Meeting.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Sue Foster, Executive Director, Department of Health, Clinical Social Work, Marriage and Family Therapy and Mental Health Counseling, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN #C08, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3258.

If any person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he/she will need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceeding is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be made. Those who are hearing impaired, using TDD equipment can call the Florida Telephone Relay System at 1(800)955-8771. Persons requiring

special accommodations due to disability or physical impairment should contact Sue Foster, (850)245-4474, by April 10, 2001.

The **Department of Health, Board of Clinical Social Work, Marriage and Family Therapy and Mental Health Counseling** announces a telephone conference call in which reconsiderations will be heard.

DATE AND TIME: May 4, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Telephone Number: (850)245-4474 to inquire about call-in number

PURPOSE: Probable Cause Panel Meeting.

All interested parties should contact the board by writing: Sue Foster, Executive Director, Board of Clinical Social Work, Marriage and Family Therapy and Mental Health Counseling, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN #C08, Tallahassee, FL 32399-3258 or call (850)245-4474.

Any person requiring special accommodations for this conference call due to disability or physical impairment should call (850)488-0595, at least five (5) calendar days prior to the conference call. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the office using the Florida Dual Party Relay System at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The **Board of Massage Therapy** announces a meeting to which all interested persons are invited to attend.

DATE AND TIME: April 25, 2001, 6:00 p.m. or soon thereafter

PLACE: Radisson Bay Harbor, 7700 Courtney Campbell Causeway, Tampa, Florida 33607, (813)281-8900

PURPOSE: A public meeting of the Probable Cause Panel for reconsiderations. Agenda available upon request.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Board of Massage Therapy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN #C06, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3256.

Please note, that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting due to disability or physical impairment should contact the Board of Massage Therapy, (850)488-0595, at least five (5) calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Board office using the Florida Dual Party Relay System at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The **Board of Massage Therapy** announces a meeting to which all interested persons are invited to attend.

DATES AND TIMES: Thursday, April 26, 2001, 9:00 a.m. or soon thereafter; Friday, April 27, 2001, 9:00 a.m., if necessary
 PLACE: Radisson Bay Harbor, 7700 Courtney Campbell Causeway, Tampa, Florida 33607, (813)281-8900

PURPOSE: Regular Board Business and Disciplinary Matters. A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Board of Massage Therapy, 4052 Bald Cypress Way, BIN #C06, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3256.

Please note, that if a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, he will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

Any person requiring special accommodations at this meeting due to disability or physical impairment should contact the Board of Massage Therapy, (850)488-0595, at least five (5) calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Board office using the Florida Dual Party Relay System at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The **Correctional Medical Authority** announces a Budget and Personnel Committee conference call to which all persons are invited to participate.

DATE AND TIME: April 19, 2001, 10:00 a.m. – 1:00 p.m.
 PLACE: Telephone Number (850)488-5778, Suncom 278-5778, Suite 120, 2585 Merchants Row Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida

PURPOSE: Continued discussion of correctional health care budget and personnel issues.

Pursuant to Chapter 286.26, Florida Statutes, any handicapped person wishing to attend this meeting should contact staff at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to request any special assistance.

DEPARTMENT OF CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES

The Florida **Department of Children and Family Services** announces a meeting of the Hernando County Community Alliance to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, April 11, 2001, 9:00 a.m.
 PLACE: Hernando County Sheriff's Office, 18900 Cortez Blvd., Brooksville, FL

PURPOSE: To provide participation and governance of community based services, Chapter 20.19(6), F.S.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Mona Terry, Box 80-O, 1601 W. Gulf-Atlantic Hwy., Wildwood, FL 34785.

Persons needing special accommodations to participate in this proceeding should contact the agency no later than five working days prior to the meeting, (352)330-2177.

NOTICE OF CHANGE – The Florida **Department of Children and Family Services** announces that the Marion County Community Alliance meeting scheduled for April 4, 2001 to which all persons are invited, has been rescheduled to the following date and time.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, April 11, 2001, 12:00 Noon
 PLACE: Marion County Sheriff's Office, 692 N. W. 30th Ave., Ocala, FL

PURPOSE: To provide participation and governance of community based services, Chapter 20.19(6), F.S.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Mona Terry, Box 80-O, 1601 W. Gulf-Atlantic Hwy., Wildwood, FL 34785. Persons needing special accommodations to participate in this proceeding should contact the agency no later than five working days prior to the meeting, (352)330-2177.

The Florida **Department of Children and Family Services** announces a meeting of the Sumter County Community Alliance to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Wednesday, April 11, 2001, 12:00 Noon
 PLACE: Wildwood City Hall, 100 N. Main St., Wildwood, FL
 PURPOSE: To provide participation and governance of community based services, Chapter 20.19(6), F.S.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Mona Terry, Box 80-O, 1601 W. Gulf-Atlantic Hwy., Wildwood, FL 34785. Persons needing special accommodations to participate in this proceeding should contact the agency no later than five working days prior to the meeting, (352)330-2177.

The Florida **Department of Children and Family Services** announces a meeting of the Lake County Community Alliance to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: The third Wednesday of each month, 12:00 Noon
 PLACE: Lake Technical Center, 2001 Kurt St., Eustis, FL
 PURPOSE: To provide participation and governance of community based services, Chapter 20.19(6), F.S.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Mona Terry, Box 80-O, 1601 W. Gulf-Atlantic Hwy., Wildwood, FL 34785. Persons needing special accommodations to participate in this proceeding should contact the agency no later than five working days prior to the meeting, (352)330-2177.

The Florida **Department of Children and Family Services** announces a meeting of the Citrus County Community Alliance to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, April 26, 2001, 8:30 a.m.

PLACE: Citrus County School Board Office, 1007 W. Main Street, Inverness, FL

PURPOSE: To provide participation and governance of community based services, Chapter 20.19(6), F.S.

A copy of the agenda may be obtained by writing: Mona Terry, Box 80-O, 1601 W. Gulf-Atlantic Hwy., Wildwood, FL 34785.

Persons needing special accommodations to participate in this proceeding should contact the agency no later than five working days prior to the meeting, (352)330-2177.

The Shared Services Alliance of Okeechobee and the Treasure Coast of the **Department of Children and Family Services**, District 15 announces the following public meeting to which all persons are invited.

ITN SUB-COMMITTEE

DATES AND TIME: April 11 and 25, 2001, 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Benton Regional Service Center, 337 North 4th Street, Room 316, Fort Pierce, FL

For more information, please contact: Betty Robinson, CBC Liaison, 337 North 4th Street, Room 327, Fort Pierce, Florida 34950, (561)467-4174

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATION: Any person requiring special accommodation for this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact, Pearlie Clark, ADA Coordinator, (561)467-4184, at least five days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Agency using the Florida Dual Party Relay System 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

The Florida **Department of Children and Family Services** announces the next scheduled conference call meetings of the following workgroups of the Governor's Task Force on Domestic Violence. All interested people are invited to participate.

Faith Committee

DATE AND TIME: April 18, 2001, 8:30 a.m. – 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Conference Call: (850)488-0979, Suncom 278-0979

SUBJECT: Committee Issues

Governor's Task Force on Domestic Violence Meeting

DATE AND TIME: May 11, 2001, 10:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m.

PLACE: Conference Call: (850)921-6433, Suncom 291-6433

SUBJECT: Conclude Committee Work/Annual Report Draft Education Advisory Committee

DATE AND TIME: May 10, 2001, 12:00 Noon – 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Conference Call: (850)488-5778, Suncom 278-5778

SUBJECT: Review of Curriculum for Website

To participate in the conference calls simply dial the conference call number at the designated time. First, you will hear a tone and then will be connected to the conference call. Please identify yourself once you are connected. If you do not hear any participants' voices, it simply means no one has called in. Stay on the line to allow others to call in and connect.

If you have any trouble, call (850)488-1234 and tell the operator the trouble you are experiencing and reference confirmation number 20G0129. This is not a toll-free call.

Further information may be obtained by contacting: Prevention of Domestic and Sexual Violence Section, Florida Department of Children and Family Services, (850)414-8316, Mary Lay or Bonnie M. Flynn, (850)414-8317.

The **Department of Children and Family Services**, Mental Health Program Office announces a public meeting to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: April 18, 2001, 4:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. (CST)

PLACE: Chappie James Bldg., Room 501 C & D, 160 Governmental Center, Pensacola, FL

GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER TO BE CONSIDERED: The department is seeking public input and information regarding the re-designation of the following facilities: West Florida Regional Medical Center – The Pavilion as a private Baker Act receiving facility; and West Florida Community Care Center as a public Baker Act receiving facility.

AGENDA:

4:00 p.m. – 4:10 p.m., Chairperson of ADM Planning Coalition; 4:10 p.m. – 4:20 p.m., Representative of The Pavilion; 4:20 p.m. – 4:30 p.m., Representative of West Florida Community Care Center; 4:30 p.m. – 5:00 p.m., Public Comments; 5:00 p.m., Adjourn

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Diovelis D. Stone, (850)595-8369 or Suncom 695-8369.

Comments may be forwarded earlier to: District One Alcohol, Drug Abuse and Mental Health Program Office, 160 Governmental Center, Suite 713, Pensacola, Florida 32501 or turned in at the meeting or brief presentations may be made.

The District 14, **Department of Children and Family Services** announces the following meetings to which all persons are invited.

Tri-County Community-Based Care Steering Council meeting

DATES AND TIME: Thursday, April 26, 2001; Thursday, May 31, 2001; Thursday, June 28, 2001, 3:00 p.m.

PLACE: Fort Meade Community Center, 10 S. W. Third Street, Fort Meade, FL

PURPOSE: Community-Based Care system of care plan for District 14.

For copies of the agenda, further information, or persons needing accommodation to participate in these conference call please contact: Patty Harrison, (941)619-4100, Extension 157, 1(800)342-0825 or (941)648-3337 (TDD).

The **Department of Children and Family Services**, District Ten (Broward County), Mental Health Program Office announces public meetings in May to which all persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: May 15, 2001, 9:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: Imperial Point Medical Center, Auditorium C, First Floor, 6401 North Federal Highway, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33308

DATE AND TIME: May 18, 2001, 9:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: Broward General Medical Center, Auditorium C, 2nd Floor, 1600 S. Andrews Avenue, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33316

DATE AND TIME: May 21, 2001, 9:00 a.m. – 11:00 a.m.

PLACE: Memorial Regional Hospital, The Cafeteria Annex, 1st Floor, 3501 Johnson Street, Hollywood, FL 33021

THE GENERAL SUBJECT MATTER AND AGENDA IS:

The department is seeking public input and information in consideration of the designation or re-designation of the above listed facilities as public or private Baker Act receiving facilities.

Persons desiring additional information may call (954)713-3024 or (954)467-4509 (TDD).

FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION

Notice is hereby given that the **Florida Housing Finance Corporation** ("Florida Housing") will conduct a public hearing in accordance with the Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act of 1982 ("TEFRA") to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, April 24, 2001, 10:00 a.m. (EST)

PLACE: Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

PURPOSE: To conduct a TEFRA hearing concerning the potential future issuance of bonds by Florida Housing to finance the acquisition of land and new construction of the following multifamily residential rental development in the aggregate face amount, not to exceed the amount listed below.

Stuart Pointe Apartments, a 192 unit multifamily residential rental development to be located at the northwest corner of Sunset Boulevard and U.S. 1 and continues to the county line, Jensen Beach, Martin County, Florida 34994. The prospective owner of the proposed development is Stuart Pointe Partners, Ltd., c/o Regency Development Associates, Inc., 2700 Wycliff Road, Suite 312, Raleigh, North Carolina 27607 or such successor in interest in which Regency Development Associates, Inc., or an affiliate thereof, is a managing member, general partner and/or controlling stockholder. The total tax exempt bond amount is not to exceed \$8,000,000.

All interested parties may present oral comments at the public TEFRA hearing or submit written comments regarding the potential bond issuance for the development being financed. Written comments should be received by Florida Housing by 5:00 p.m. (EST), Monday, April 23, 2001, and should be

addressed to the attention of Esrone McDaniels, Multifamily Bond Program Administrator. Any persons desiring to present oral comments should appear at the hearing.

If requested in writing, a fact-finding hearing will be held in the county where the property is located. When possible, the local hearing will be held before the formal TEFRA hearing and comments received at the local hearing will be placed on record at the TEFRA hearing.

Any person who decides to appeal any decision made by Florida Housing with respect to any matter considered at this hearing, will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings be made, which will include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Esrone McDaniels, Multifamily Bond Program Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, (850)488-4197, at least five calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing impaired, please contact the Florida Housing using the Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

Notice is hereby given that the **Florida Housing Finance Corporation** ("Florida Housing") will conduct a public hearing in accordance with the Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act of 1982 ("TEFRA") to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, April 24, 2001, 10:00 a.m. (EST)

PLACE: Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

PURPOSE: To conduct a TEFRA hearing concerning the potential future issuance of bonds by Florida Housing to finance the acquisition of land and new construction of the following multifamily residential rental development in the aggregate face amount, not to exceed the amount listed below.

Noah's Landing Apartments, a 264 unit multifamily residential rental development to be located on the east side of State Road S-951, Naples, Collier County, Florida 33999. The prospective owner of the proposed development is Vestcor Fund XV, Ltd., c/o Vestcor Development Corporation, Inc., 3020 Hartley Road, Suite 300, Jacksonville, Florida 32257 or such successor in interest in which Vestcor Development Corporation, Inc. or an affiliate thereof, is a managing member, general partner and/or controlling stockholder. The total tax exempt bond amount is not to exceed \$10,370,000.

All interested parties may present oral comments at the public TEFRA hearing or submit written comments regarding the potential bond issuance for the development being financed. Written comments should be received by Florida Housing by 5:00 p.m. (EST), Monday, April 23, 2001, and should be

addressed to the attention of Esrone McDaniels, Multifamily Bond Program Administrator. Any persons desiring to present oral comments should appear at the hearing.

If requested in writing, a fact-finding hearing will be held in the county where the property is located. When possible, the local hearing will be held before the formal TEFRA hearing and comments received at the local hearing will be placed on record at the TEFRA hearing.

Any person who decides to appeal any decision made by Florida Housing with respect to any matter considered at this hearing, will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings be made, which will include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Esrone McDaniels, Multifamily Bond Program Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, (850)488-4197, at least five calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing impaired, please contact the Florida Housing using the Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

Notice is hereby given that the **Florida Housing Finance Corporation** ("Florida Housing") will conduct a public hearing in accordance with the Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act of 1982 ("TEFRA") to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, April 24, 2001, 10:00 a.m. (EST)

PLACE: Florida Housing Finance Corporation, 227 North Bronough Street, Suite 5000, Tallahassee, Florida 32301

PURPOSE: To conduct a TEFRA hearing concerning the potential future issuance of bonds by Florida Housing to finance the acquisition of land and new construction of the following multifamily residential rental development in the aggregate face amount, not to exceed the amount listed below.

Heritage Apartments, a 320 unit multifamily residential rental development to be located at the south east corner of Green Boulevard and Sunshine Boulevard, Naples, Collier County, Florida 34116. The prospective owner of the proposed development is Worthwhile Development III, Ltd., c/o Worthwhile Development III, Inc., 2949 West State Road 434, Suite 400, Longwood, Florida 32779 or such successor in interest in which Worthwhile Development III, Inc. or an affiliate thereof, is a managing member, general partner and/or controlling stockholder. The total tax exempt bond amount is not to exceed \$13,805,000.

All interested parties may present oral comments at the public TEFRA hearing or submit written comments regarding the potential bond issuance for the development being financed. Written comments should be received by Florida Housing by 5:00 p.m. (EST), Monday, April 23, 2001 and should be

addressed to the attention of Esrone McDaniels, Multifamily Bond Program Administrator. Any persons desiring to present oral comments should appear at the hearing.

If requested in writing, a fact-finding hearing will be held in the county where the property is located. When possible, the local hearing will be held before the formal TEFRA hearing and comments received at the local hearing will be placed on record at the TEFRA hearing.

Any person who decides to appeal any decision made by Florida Housing with respect to any matter considered at this hearing, will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings be made, which will include the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is based.

Any person requiring a special accommodation at this meeting because of a disability or physical impairment should contact Esrone McDaniels, Multifamily Bond Program Administrator, Florida Housing Finance Corporation, (850)488-4197, at least five calendar days prior to the meeting. If you are hearing impaired, please contact the Florida Housing using the Dual Party Relay System which can be reached at 1(800)955-8770 (Voice) and 1(800)955-8771 (TDD).

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

The Florida **Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission** announces a Public Hearing for the Joe Budd Wildlife Management Area, located south of Quincy in Gadsden County, Florida to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Thursday, April 12, 2001, 7:00 p.m. – 9:00 p.m.

PLACE: Edward J. Butler Building, Gadsden County Governmental Complex, 9 East Jefferson Street, Room 101, Quincy, Florida 32351

PURPOSE: To receive public comments regarding considerations for the FWC's five-year Conceptual Management Plan for the Joe Budd Wildlife Management Area.

Participants in this hearing should understand that the purpose for this hearing does not include the opportunity to discuss public use and/or hunting regulations for the Joe Budd Wildlife Management Area. There is a separate public process for this purpose. This hearing is designed exclusively for discussion of the draft conceptual management plan.

A copy of the Joe Budd Wildlife Management Area Management Prospectus is available upon request from the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, Land Management Planning Section, 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600, (850)922-8777.

MIAMI-DADE COMMUNITY COLLEGE

The **Region XIV, Advisory Council** announces a meeting to which all interested parties are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, April 9, 2001, 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: School of Justice and Safety Administration, Miami-Dade Community College, North Campus, Room 8205, Miami, FL, contact person is Mary Greene, Secretary of the Region XIV Advisory Council, (305)237-1329

CRIMINAL JUSTICE STANDARDS AND TRAINING REGIONAL COUNCIL

The **Criminal Justice Standards and Training Regional Council**, Region X announces a meeting to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Tuesday, April 10, 2001, 9:45 a.m.

PLACE: Smugglers Inn Restaurant, Fisherman's Village, 1200 W. Retta Esplanada, Punta Gorda, Florida 33950

AGENDA

- Review the minutes from the last meeting.
- Election of new Council Members.
- Review budget expenditures and classes offered.
- Review the Region's needs for future planning.
- Additional submissions for Training Council discussion.
- FDLE Report from Mr. Tim Day.
- Other items of interest.

STATEWIDE NOMINATING COMMISSION FOR JUDGES OF COMPENSATION CLAIMS

The **Statewide Nominating Commission for Judges of Compensation Claims** announces a public hearing to which all interested persons are invited.

DATE AND TIME: Monday, May 7, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

PLACE: Hyatt Regency Orlando International Airport, 9300 Airport Boulevard, Orlando, Florida

PURPOSE: The purpose of the hearing is to conduct the interviews of, and entertain public commentary on, the following applicants for reappointment as Judges of Compensation Claims: The Honorable Diane Beck, District M-North; The Honorable Michael J. DeMarko, Division A-West; The Honorable Kathryn Pecko, Division K; and The Honorable Ivy C. Harris, Division C.

Written commentary, pro or con, concerning any applicant by any person may be submitted to the Commission chairperson and a copy to each Commission member. Commission member address lists are available from the Commission chair. All written commentary must be received five days prior to the hearing date.

Any questions concerning the upcoming Commission public hearing should be directed to: G. Bart Billbrough, Commission chairperson, 1390 Brickell Avenue, Third Floor, Miami, FL 33131, (305)350-5358, Fax (305)373-2294.

**Section VII
Notices of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding Declaratory Statements**

FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC) dismissed a request for Declaratory Statement, from Leo Amos, with regard to Section 370.12(2)(f)1., Florida Statutes. The request was dismissed by order dated March 21, 2001, as being insufficient to be considered as a valid petition under Section 120.565(2), Florida Statutes, and Chapter 28-105, Florida Administrative Code.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC) dismissed a request for Declaratory Statement, from Leo Amos, with regard to Section 370.12(2)(m), Florida Statutes. The request was dismissed by order dated March 21, 2001, as being insufficient to be considered as a valid petition under Section 120.565(2), Florida Statutes, and Chapter 28-105, Florida Administrative Code.

**Section VIII
Notices of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding the Validity of Rules**

Notice of Petition for Administrative Determination has been filed with the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

Florida Hospital Association, Inc. vs. Agency for Health Care Administration; Case No.: 01-1109RP; Rule Nos.: 59E-5.101, 59E-5.102

Notice of Disposition of Petition for Administrative Determination have been filed by the Division of Administrative Hearings on the following rules:

Florida Minerals Association Inc. vs. Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission; Case No.: 01-0746RU; Dismissed

Section IX
Notices of Petitions and Dispositions
Regarding Non-rule Policy Challenges

NONE

Section X
Announcements and Objection Reports of
the Joint Administrative Procedures
Committee

NONE

Section XI
Notices Regarding Bids, Proposals and
Purchasing

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

REQUEST FOR BID

The University of Florida, Purchasing Division will receive sealed bids for the following: 01L-139, W/O 534679, Architecture, Renovation to Various Rooms, estimated budget: \$350,000-\$400,000, to be opened May 8, 2001, 1:30 p.m. (Local Time), in Purchasing, Elmore Hall, Radio Road, Gainesville, FL. Scope of work: Removal of the existing storefront in selected rooms and relocation of the lower sections in combination with a new sloped glazing top section. Additive Alternate One is a complete new storefront system with sloped glazing. The demolition of three interior non-loadbearing masonry walls, the installation of a window in a masonry wall and infill of an opening in a masonry wall. Additional demolition includes non-loadbearing steel stud walls, removal of steel lockers, removal of wood fiber display boards, acoustical ceiling tile and grid and other work shown on the drawings. Some electrical and mechanical demolition and new work is included. Miscellaneous carpentry, sheet metal, stucco, veneer plaster, painting and lockers (steel and wood) are included. Specifications and Plans will be available in Purchasing, Elmore Hall, Radio Road, Gainesville, FL, (352)392-1331.

A Mandatory Pre-bid Meeting will be held April 19, 2001, 10:00 a.m., in the Physical Plant Division Architecture/Engineering Conference Room, Building 700, Radio Road, Gainesville, FL.

All questions should be directed to: A. J. Sontag, Assistant Director, UF Purchasing, (352)392-1331, Ext. 306.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITY ACT OF 1991 – If special accommodations are needed in order to attend the Pre-bid or Bid opening, contact Emily J. Hamby, (352)392-1331, Ext. 303, within three (3) days of the event.

NOTICE TO PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANTS

This notice is being published in accordance with the guidelines set forth in the World Trade Organization Government Procurement Agreement. The University of Florida, for and on behalf of the Board of Regents, a public corporation of the State of Florida, hereby notifies all interested parties that the contract for the following project has been awarded within the past 72 days:

Project No.: BR-142
 Project Name: Weil Hall Remodeling.
 Type of Service: Construction Manager At-Risk
 Guaranteed Maximum Price.
 Date of Award: February 2, 2001
 Name and Address of successful firm:
 Ajax Building Corporation
 2209 N. W. 40th Terrace
 Suite B
 Gainesville, FL 32605

NOTICE TO CONSTRUCTION MANAGERS

The University of Florida, for and on behalf of the Board of Regents, a public corporation of the State of Florida, announces that construction management services will be required for the project listed below:

Project No.: BR-120, Project and Location: Bookstore and Visitor Welcome Center Addition at the J. Wayne Reitz Union, University of Florida Campus, Gainesville, FL. The project consists of the construction of a parking facility of about 450 spaces and approximately 70,000 GSF of building space including a bookstore, visitor welcome center and administrative offices. The estimated construction cost is \$15,000,000.

The contract for construction management services will consist of two phases. Phase one is pre-construction services, for which the construction manager will be paid a fixed fee. Phase one services include value engineering, constructability analyses, development of a cost model, estimating and the development of a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) at 50% Construction Document phase. If the GMP is accepted, phase two, the construction phase, will be implemented. In phase two of the contract, the construction manager becomes the single point of responsibility for performance of the construction of the project and shall publicly bid trade contracts. Failure to negotiate an acceptable fixed fee for phase one of the contract or to arrive at an acceptable GMP within the time provided in the agreement may result in the termination of the construction manager's contract. Selection of finalists for interviews will be

made on the basis of construction manager qualifications, including experience and ability; past experience; bonding capacity; record-keeping/administrative ability, critical path scheduling expertise; cost estimating; cost control ability; quality control capability; and qualification of the firm's personnel, staff and consultants. Finalists will be provided with a copy of the building program and the latest documentation prepared by the project architect/engineer, a description of the final interview requirements and a copy of the standard University of Florida construction management agreement. The Selection Committee may reject all proposals and stop the selection process at any time. The construction manager shall have no ownership, entrepreneurial or financial affiliation with the selected architect/engineer involved with this project.

Firms desiring to provide construction management services for the project shall submit a letter of application and a completed project specific "Construction Manager Qualifications Supplement." Proposals must not exceed 80 pages, including the Construction Manager Qualifications Supplement and letter of application. Pages must be numbered consecutively. Submittals which do not comply with these requirements or do not include the requested data will not be considered. No submittal material will be returned. All applicants must be licensed to practice as general contractors in the State of Florida at the time of application. Corporations must be registered to operate in the State of Florida by the Department of State, Division of Corporations, at the time of application. As required by Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a construction management firm may not submit a proposal for this project if it is on the convicted vendor list for a public entity crime committed within the past 36 months. The selected construction management firm must warrant that it will neither utilize the services of, nor contract with, any supplier, subcontractor or consultant in excess of \$15,000.00 in connection with this project for a period of 36 months from the date of their being placed on the convicted vendor list. The Board of Regents Construction Manager Qualifications Supplement forms and the Construction Manager Project Fact Sheet may be obtained by contacting:

Marsha Brewton, Office Manager
Campus Planning and Construction Management
232 Stadium, P. O. Box 115050
Gainesville, FL 32611-5050
Telephone: (352)392-1256
FAX: (352)392-6378
Internet: www.facilities.ufl.edu

Five (5) bound copies of the required proposal must be received in the Facilities Planning and Construction Division office by 3:00 p.m. (Local Time), Thursday, May 17, 2001. Facsimile (FAX) submittals are not acceptable and will not be considered.

NOTICE TO PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANTS

The University of Florida, for and on behalf of the Board of Regents, a public corporation of the State of Florida, announces that Professional Services in the discipline of architecture will be required for the project listed below:

Project No.: BR-120, Project and Location: Bookstore and Visitor Welcome Center Addition at the J. Wayne Reitz Union, University of Florida Campus, Gainesville, FL. The project consists of a two + level parking garage of approximately 450 spaces and approximately 70,000 GSF of space including bookstore, visitor welcome center and offices. The selected firm will provide design, construction documents and construction administration services for the referenced project. Blanket professional liability insurance will be required for this project in the amount of \$1,000,000, and will be provided as a part of Basic Services.

INSTRUCTIONS

Firms desiring to apply for consideration shall submit a letter of application. The letter of application should have attached:

1. A completed "Professional Qualifications Supplement". Applications on any other form will not be considered.
2. A copy of the applicant's current Professional Registration Certificate from the appropriate governing board. An applicant must be properly registered at the time of application to practice its profession in the State of Florida. If the applicant is a corporation, it must be chartered by the Florida Department of State to operate in Florida.

Submit five (5) copies of the above requested data bound in the order listed above. Applications, which do not comply with the above instructions, may be disqualified. Application materials will not be returned. The plans and specifications for University of Florida projects are subject to reuse in accordance with the provisions of Section 287.055, Florida Statutes. As required by Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a consultant may not submit a proposal for this project if it is on the convicted vendor list for a public entity crime committed within the past 36 months. The selected consultant must warrant that it will neither utilize the services of, nor contract with, any supplier, subcontractor or consultant in excess of \$15,000.00 in connection with this project for a period of 36 months from the date of their being placed on the convicted vendor list. Professional Qualifications Supplement forms, descriptive project information and selection criteria may be obtained by contacting:

Marsha Brewton, Office Manager
Facilities Planning and Construction Division
232 Stadium, P. O. Box 115050
Gainesville, FL 32611-5050
Telephone: (352)392-1256
FAX: (352)392-6378
Internet: www.facilities.ufl.edu

Submittals must be received in the Facilities Planning and Construction Division office by 3:00 p.m. (Local Time), Thursday, May 17, 2001. Facsimile (FAX) submittals are not acceptable and will not be considered.

NOTICE TO PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANTS

The University of South Florida announces that continuing professional services are required for the following discipline: Mechanical, Electrical and Plumbing Engineer (1): All Campuses

Projects included in the scope of this agreement will be specific projects for renovations, alterations and additions that have a basic construction budget estimated to be \$1,000,000 or less or studies for which the fee for professional services is \$100,000 or less. Campus Service contracts for these projects provide that the consultant will be available on an as-needed basis for the upcoming fiscal year, July 1, 2001 to June 30, 2002. Award of contract is for an initial period of one (1) year with an Owner's option to renew for one (1) additional year. The consultant receiving the award will not have an exclusive contract to perform services for these projects. The university may have additional campus service professionals under contract during the same time period.

Firms desiring to provide professional services shall submit a letter of interest specifying the discipline for which they are applying and a completed Board of Regents "Professional Qualifications Supplement." Proposals must not exceed 40 pages, including the Professional Qualifications Supplement and letter of interest. Pages must be numbered consecutively. Submittals that do not comply with these requirements or do not include the requested data will not be considered. No submittal material will be returned.

Attach to each letter of interest:

1. The most recent version of the Board of Regents "Professional Qualifications Supplement" completed by the applicant. Applications on any other form will not be considered.
2. A copy of the applicant's current Professional Registration Certificate from the appropriate governing board. An applicant must be properly registered at the time of application to practice its profession in the State of Florida. If the applicant is a corporation, it must be properly chartered by the Florida Department of State to operate in Florida.

Selection of finalists for interview will be made on the basis of professional qualifications, including experience and ability; past experience; design ability; minority participation; volume of work; and distance from project.

All applicants must be properly registered at the time of application to practice its profession in the State of Florida. If the applicant is a corporation, it must be chartered by the

Florida Department of State to operate in Florida. Applications which do not comply with the above instructions may be disqualified. Application materials will not be returned.

The plans and specifications for State University System projects are subject to reuse in accordance with the provisions of Section 287.055, Florida Statutes. As required by Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a consultant may not submit a proposal for this project if it is on the convicted vendor list for a public entity crime committed within the past 36 months. The selected consultant must warrant that it will neither utilize the services of, nor contract with, any supplier, subcontractor or consultant in excess of \$25,000.00 in connection with this project for a period of 36 months from the date of their being placed on the convicted vendor list.

Professional Qualifications Supplement forms, descriptive project information and selection criteria may be obtained by contacting: Vanessa Poole, Facilities Planning and Construction, University of South Florida, FPC 110, 4202 East Fowler Avenue, Tampa, Florida 33620-7550, (813)974-0891, (813)974-2625 or Fax (813)974-3542.

Interest firms are invited to attend a Pre-submittal Meeting at the University of South Florida, Tampa Campus, to be held at 1:30 p.m. (Local Time), Tuesday, April, 24, 2001, Conference Room FPC109, 4202 East Fowler Avenue, Tampa, Florida, to review the scope and requirements of this project. All interested firms are encouraged to attend. Requests for meetings by individual firms will not be granted.

It shall be noted that no verbal communication shall take place between the shortlisted applicants and the State University System. Requests for any project information must be in writing to the above address.

Six (6) bound copies of the above required proposal data shall be submitted to: Toufic Mounne, Engineer/Project Manager, Facilities Planning and Construction, University of South Florida, FPC 110, 4202 East Fowler Avenue, Tampa, Florida 33620-7550.

Submittals must be received at the above campus address (FPC 110) by 2:00 p.m. (Local Time), Tuesday, May, 8, 2001. Facsimile (FAX) submittals are not acceptable and will not be considered. The Selection Committee may reject all proposals and stop the selection process at any time.

NOTICE TO PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANTS

The University of South Florida announces that continuing professional services are required for the following discipline: Architects (2): All Campuses

Projects included in the scope of this agreement will be specific projects for renovations, alterations and additions that have a basic construction budget estimated to be \$1,000,000 or less or studies for which the fee for professional services is \$100,000 or less. Campus Service contracts for these projects provide that the consultant will be available on an as-needed basis for the upcoming fiscal year, July 1, 2001 to June 30,

2002. Award of contract is for an initial period of one (1) year with an Owner's option to renew for one (1) additional year. The consultant receiving the award will not have an exclusive contract to perform services for these projects. The university may have additional campus service professionals under contract during the same time period.

Firms desiring to provide professional services shall submit a letter of interest and a completed Board of Regents "Professional Qualifications Supplement." Proposals must not exceed 40 pages, including the Professional Qualifications Supplement and letter of interest. Pages must be numbered consecutively. Submittals that do not comply with these requirements or do not include the requested data will not be considered. No submittal material will be returned.

Attach to each letter of interest:

1. The most recent version of the Board of Regents "Professional Qualifications Supplement" completed by the applicant. Applications on any other form will not be considered.
2. A copy of the applicant's current Professional Registration Certificate from the appropriate governing board. An applicant must be properly registered at the time of application to practice its profession in the State of Florida. If the applicant is a corporation, it must be properly chartered by the Florida Department of State to operate in Florida.

Selection of finalists for interview will be made on the basis of professional qualifications, including experience and ability; past experience; design ability; minority participation; volume of work; and distance from project.

All applicants must be properly registered at the time of application to practice its profession in the State of Florida. If the applicant is a corporation, it must be chartered by the Florida Department of State to operate in Florida. Applications that do not comply with the above instructions may be disqualified. Application materials will not be returned.

The plans and specifications for State University System projects are subject to reuse in accordance with the provisions of Section 287.055, Florida Statutes. As required by Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a consultant may not submit a proposal for this project if it is on the convicted vendor list for a public entity crime committed within the past 36 months. The selected consultant must warrant that it will neither utilize the services of, nor contract with, any supplier, subcontractor or consultant in excess of \$25,000.00 in connection with this project for a period of 36 months from the date of their being placed on the convicted vendor list.

Professional Qualifications Supplement forms, descriptive project information and selection criteria may be obtained by contacting: Vanessa Poole, Facilities Planning and Construction, University of South Florida, FPC 110, 4202 East Fowler Avenue, Tampa, Florida 33620-7550, (813)974-0891, (813)974-2625 or Fax (813)974-3542.

Interest firms are invited to attend a Pre-submittal Meeting at the University of South Florida, Tampa Campus, to be held at 2:30 p.m. (Local Time), Wednesday, April 25, 2001, Conference Room FPC109, 4202 East Fowler Avenue, Tampa, Florida, to review the scope and requirements of this project. All interested firms are encouraged to attend. Requests for meetings by individual firms will not be granted.

It shall be noted that no verbal communication shall take place between the shortlisted applicants and the State University System. Requests for any project information must be in writing to the above address.

Six (6) bound copies of the above required proposal data shall be submitted to: Rick Lyttle, AIA, Project Manager, Facilities Planning and Construction, University of South Florida, FPC 110, 4202 East Fowler Avenue, Tampa, Florida 33620-7550.

Submittals must be received at the above campus address (FPC 110) by 2:00 p.m. (Local Time), Tuesday, May 8, 2001. Facsimile (FAX) submittals are not acceptable and will not be considered. The Selection Committee may reject all proposals and stop the selection process at any time.

NOTICE TO CONSTRUCTION MANAGERS

The University of South Florida announces that continuing professional services are required for the following discipline: construction management.

Projects included in the scope of this agreement will be specific projects for renovations, alterations and additions that have a basic construction budget estimated to be \$1,000,000 or less or studies for which the fee for professional services is \$100,000 or less. Campus Service contracts for these projects provide that the consultant will be available on an as-needed basis for the upcoming fiscal year, July 1, 2001 to June 30, 2002. Award of contract is for an initial period of one (1) year with an Owner's option to renew for one (1) additional year. The consultant receiving the award will not have an exclusive contract to perform services for these projects. The university may have additional campus service professionals under contract during the same time period.

Firms desiring to provide construction management services shall submit a letter of application and a completed Board of Regents "Construction Manager Qualifications Supplement." Proposals must not exceed 80 pages, including the Construction Manager Qualifications Supplement and letter of application. Pages must be numbered consecutively. Submittals that do not comply with these requirements or do not include the requested data will not be considered. No submittal material will be returned. Proximity of location will be a prime factor in the selection of the firm.

Attach to each letter of application:

1. The most recent version of the Board of Regents "Construction Manager Qualifications Supplement" completed by the applicant. Applications on any other form will not be considered.

2. A copy of the applicant's current Professional Registration Certificate from the appropriate governing board. An applicant must be properly registered at the time of application to practice its profession in the State of Florida. If the applicant is a corporation, it must be properly chartered by the Florida Department of State to operate in Florida.

All applicants must be licensed to practice as general contractors in the State of Florida at the time of application. Corporations must be registered to operate in the State of Florida by the Department of State, Division of Corporations, at the time of application. As required by Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a construction management firm may not submit a proposal for this project if it is on the convicted vendor list for a public entity crime committed within the past 36 months. The selected construction management firm must warrant that it will neither utilize the services of, nor contract with, any supplier, subcontractor or consultant in excess of \$25,000.00 in connection with this project for a period of 36 months from the date of placement on the convicted vendor list.

Construction Manager Qualifications Supplements, descriptive information and selection criteria may be obtained by contacting: Vanessa Poole, Facilities Planning and Construction, University of South Florida, FPC 110, 4202 East Fowler Avenue, Tampa, Florida 33620-7550, (813)974-0891, (813)974-2625 or Fax (813)974-3542.

Interest firms are invited to attend a Pre-submittal Meeting at the University of South Florida, Tampa Campus, to be held at 9:00 a.m. (Local Time), Thursday, April 26, 2001, Conference Room Number FPC109, 4202 East Fowler Avenue, Tampa, Florida, to review the scope and requirements of this project. All interested firms are encouraged to attend. Requests for meetings by individual firms will not be granted.

It shall be noted that no verbal communication shall take place between the shortlisted applicants and the State University System. Requests for any project information must be in writing to the above address.

Six (6) bound copies of the above required proposal data shall be submitted to: Ray Gonzalez, R. A., Project Manager, Facilities Planning and Construction, University of South Florida, FPC 110, 4202 East Fowler Avenue, Tampa, Florida 33620-7550.

Submittals must be received at the above campus address (FPC 110) by 2:00 p.m. (Local Time), Wednesday, May 9, 2001. Facsimile (FAX) submittals are not acceptable and will not be considered. The Selection Committee may reject all proposals and stop the selection process at any time.

NOTICE TO PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANTS

The University of South Florida announces that continuing professional services are required for the following discipline:

Professional Consultant (Engineer) to perform as a Commissioning Agent.

Commissioning is a quality assurance, quality control process that provides the essential documentation, testing and training required to assure that the building systems meet both its design intent and operational needs. Commissioning practices may be implemented in various degrees for a particular project depending on its specific needs and requirements.

Projects included in the scope of this agreement will be specific projects for renovations, alterations and additions that have a basic construction budget estimated to be \$1,000,000 or less or studies for which the fee for professional services is \$100,000 or less. Campus Service contracts for these projects provide that the consultant will be available on an as-needed basis for the upcoming fiscal year, July 1, 2001 to June 30, 2002. Award of contract is for an initial period of one (1) year with an Owner's option to renew for one (1) additional year. The consultant receiving the award will not have an exclusive contract to perform services for these projects. The university may have additional campus service professionals under contract during the same time period.

Firms desiring to provide professional services shall submit a letter of application and a completed Board of Regents "Professional Qualifications Supplement." Proposals must not exceed 40 pages, including the Professional Qualifications Supplement and letter of application. Pages must be numbered consecutively. Submittals that do not comply with these requirements or do not include the requested data will not be considered. No submittal material will be returned.

Attach to each letter of application:

1. The most recent version of the Board of Regents "Professional Qualifications Supplement" completed by the applicant. Applications on any other form will not be considered.
2. A copy of the applicant's current Professional Registration Certificate from the appropriate governing board. An applicant must be properly registered at the time of application to practice its profession in the State of Florida. If the applicant is a corporation, it must be properly chartered by the Florida Department of State to operate in Florida.

Selection of finalists for interview will be made on the basis of professional qualifications, including experience and ability; past experience; design ability; minority participation; volume of work; and distance from project.

All applicants must be properly registered at the time of application to practice its profession in the State of Florida. If the applicant is a corporation, it must be chartered by the Florida Department of State to operate in Florida. Applications which do not comply with the above instructions may be disqualified. Application materials will not be returned.

The plans and specifications for State University System projects are subject to reuse in accordance with the provisions of Section 287.055, Florida Statutes. As required by Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a consultant may not submit a proposal for this project if it is on the convicted vendor list for a public entity crime committed within the past 36 months. The selected consultant must warrant that it will neither utilize the services of, nor contract with, any supplier, subcontractor or consultant in excess of \$25,000.00 in connection with this project for a period of 36 months from the date of their being placed on the convicted vendor list.

Professional Qualifications Supplement forms, descriptive project information and selection criteria may be obtained by contacting: Vanessa Poole, Facilities Planning and Construction, University of South Florida, FPC 110, 4202 East Fowler Avenue, Tampa, Florida 33620-7550, (813)974-0891, (813)974-2625 or Fax (813)974-3542.

Interest firms are invited to attend a Pre-submittal Meeting at the University of South Florida, Tampa Campus, to be held at 9:00 a.m. (Local Time), Thursday, May 3, 2001, Conference Room FPC109, 4202 East Fowler Avenue, Tampa, Florida, to review the scope and requirements of this project. All interested firms are encouraged to attend. Requests for meetings by individual firms will not be granted.

It shall be noted that no verbal communication shall take place between the shortlisted applicants and the State University System. Requests for any project information must be in writing to the above address.

Six (6) bound copies of the above required proposal data shall be submitted to: Steven Warren, R. A., Project Manager, Facilities Planning and Construction, University of South Florida, FPC 110, 4202 East Fowler Avenue, Tampa, Florida 33620-7550.

Submittals must be received at the above campus address (FPC 110) by 2:00 p.m. (Local Time), Wednesday, May 16, 2001. Facsimile (FAX) submittals are not acceptable and will not be considered. The Selection Committee may reject all proposals and stop the selection process at any time.

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

BID REQUEST FOR: FRUIT SMOOTHIE DRINK

BID NO. 5918 OPENING DATE: April 11, 2001, 2:00 p.m.
 Request a bid package by: Phone (941)479-4250; Fax (941)337-8200; In Person or Mail: 3308 Canal Street, Fort Myers, Florida 33916-6594

Requests must be received by April 3, 2001, 2:00 p.m.

Complete bid package available only upon request.

By: Linda Owen, Senior Buyer

LEGAL ADVERTISEMENT

RFP NO. 54031203

PROFESSIONAL ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

THE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF PUTNAM COUNTY IS REQUESTING SEALED PROPOSALS FOR PROFESSIONAL ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES UNDER THE STATE OF FLORIDA CONSULTANTS COMPETITIVE NEGOTIATIONS ACT. CONSULTANTS INTERESTED IN PROVIDING THEIR SERVICES TO THE BOARD SHALL SUBMIT LETTERS OF INTEREST AND STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS NO LATER THAN 2:00 P.M. (LOCAL TIME), THURSDAY, APRIL 26, 2001 TO: DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF PUTNAM COUNTY, PURCHASING OFFICE, 1207 WASHINGTON STREET, PALATKA, FL 32177 IN A SEALED ENVELOPE MARKED REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS, PROFESSIONAL ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES, RFP NO. 54031203. MINORITY FIRMS ARE ENCOURAGED TO OFFER THEIR SERVICES. QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS RFP MAY BE REFERRED TO MR. MICHAEL D. PRESTON, DIRECTOR MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES, (386)329-0551. COPIES OF THE RFP MAY BE OBTAINED FROM THE PURCHASING OFFICE, 1207 WASHINGTON STREET, PALATKA, FL 32177, (386)329-0525.

LEGAL ADVERTISEMENT

RFP NO. 54031207

PROFESSIONAL ROOF ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

THE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF PUTNAM COUNTY IS REQUESTING SEALED PROPOSALS FOR PROFESSIONAL ROOF ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES UNDER THE STATE OF FLORIDA CONSULTANTS COMPETITIVE NEGOTIATIONS ACT. CONSULTANTS INTERESTED IN PROVIDING THEIR SERVICES TO THE BOARD SHALL SUBMIT LETTERS OF INTEREST AND STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS NO LATER THAN 2:00 P.M. (LOCAL TIME), THURSDAY, APRIL 26, 2001 TO: DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF PUTNAM COUNTY, PURCHASING OFFICE, 1207 WASHINGTON STREET, PALATKA, FL 32177 IN A SEALED ENVELOPE MARKED REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS, PROFESSIONAL ROOF ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES, RFP NO. 54031207. MINORITY FIRMS ARE ENCOURAGED TO OFFER THEIR SERVICES. QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS RFP MAY BE REFERRED TO MR. MICHAEL D. PRESTON, DIRECTOR MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES, (386)329-0551. COPIES OF THE RFP MAY BE OBTAINED FROM THE PURCHASING OFFICE, 1207 WASHINGTON STREET, PALATKA, FL 32177, (386)329-0525.

LEGAL ADVERTISEMENT

RFP NO. 54031204

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES

THE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF PUTNAM COUNTY IS REQUESTING SEALED PROPOSALS FOR PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES UNDER THE STATE OF FLORIDA CONSULTANTS COMPETITIVE NEGOTIATIONS ACT. CONSULTANTS INTERESTED IN PROVIDING THEIR SERVICES TO THE BOARD SHALL SUBMIT LETTERS OF INTEREST AND STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS NO LATER THAN 2:00 P.M. (LOCAL TIME), THURSDAY, APRIL 26, 2001 TO: DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF PUTNAM COUNTY, PURCHASING OFFICE, 1207 WASHINGTON STREET, PALATKA, FL 32177 IN A SEALED ENVELOPE MARKED REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS, PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES, RFP NO. 54031204. MINORITY FIRMS ARE ENCOURAGED TO OFFER THEIR SERVICES. QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS RFP MAY BE REFERRED TO MR. MICHAEL D. PRESTON, DIRECTOR MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES, (386)329-0551. COPIES OF THE RFP MAY BE OBTAINED FROM THE PURCHASING OFFICE, 1207 WASHINGTON STREET, PALATKA, FL 32177, (386)329-0525.

LEGAL ADVERTISEMENT

RFP NO. 54031205

PROFESSIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES

THE DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF PUTNAM COUNTY IS REQUESTING SEALED PROPOSALS FOR PROFESSIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES UNDER THE STATE OF FLORIDA CONSULTANTS COMPETITIVE NEGOTIATIONS ACT. CONSULTANTS INTERESTED IN PROVIDING THEIR SERVICES TO THE BOARD SHALL SUBMIT LETTERS OF INTEREST AND STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS NO LATER THAN 2:00 P.M. (LOCAL TIME), THURSDAY, APRIL 26, 2001 TO: DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD OF PUTNAM COUNTY, PURCHASING OFFICE, 1207 WASHINGTON STREET, PALATKA, FL 32177 IN A SEALED ENVELOPE MARKED REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS, PROFESSIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES, RFP NO. 54031205. MINORITY FIRMS ARE ENCOURAGED TO OFFER THEIR SERVICES. QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS RFP MAY BE REFERRED TO MR. MICHAEL D. PRESTON, DIRECTOR MAINTENANCE/FACILITIES, (386)329-0551. COPIES OF THE RFP MAY BE OBTAINED FROM THE PURCHASING OFFICE, 1207 WASHINGTON STREET, PALATKA, FL 32177, (386)329-0525.

CALL FOR BIDS

BID FOR SNACK PRODUCTS BID NO. 22-005

BID FOR GROCERIES, FROZEN FOODS AND NON-FOOD SUPPLIES BID NO. 22-003

BID FOR MILK AND ICE CREAM (DAIRY) PRODUCTS BID NO. 22-001

SEALED BIDS TO BE RECEIVED NOT LATER THAN SNACKS, BID NO. 22-005 – Tuesday, May 1, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

ESTIMATED VALUE: \$20,000.00

GROCERY BID NO. 22-003 – Monday, May 7, 2001, 2:00 p.m.

ESTIMATED VALUE: \$300,000.00, ALL-OR-NONE BID

DAIRY PRODUCTS, BID NO. 22-001 – Tuesday, May 8, 2001, 9:00 a.m.

ESTIMATED VALUE: \$100,000.00

ALL BIDS WILL BE OPENED AT THE: District Building, Purchasing Office, Conference Room, Baker County School District, 392 South Boulevard, East, Macclenny, Florida 32063 The performance period is July 1, 2001 – June 30, 2002 for all bids listed.

For further information or a bid package, contact: Cindy Ball or Cathy Golon, (904)259-4330

EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

NOTICE TO PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS

The Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority requires the services of a Professional Engineering Consultant in connection with the Final Design for widening, resurfacing and safety improvements of S.R. 408 (East-West Expressway) from west of Kirkman Road to Tampa Avenue. The project also includes design of a mainline toll plaza with express lanes, four 2-lane ramp plazas and demolition of existing toll plaza facilities. Shortlist consideration will be given to only those firms who are qualified pursuant to law, and as determined by the Authority based on information provided by the firms, and who have been prequalified by FDOT to perform the indicated Types of Work.

TYPES OF WORK: Group 3.3, Complex Highway Design; Group 4.1, Minor Bridge Design; and Group 14, Architect.

ADDITIONAL TYPES OF WORK THAT MAY BE REQUIRED: Group 7, Traffic Operations Design; Group 8, Surveys; Group 9, Soil Exploration, Material Testing and Foundations; and Group 12, Right of Way Surveying and Mapping.

DESCRIPTION: The project consists of final design, preparation of construction drawings and specifications for roadway and bridge widening from four to six basic lanes, auxiliary lanes, and resurfacing of S.R. 408 (East West Expressway) from west of Kirkman Road to Tampa Avenue, a distance of approximately 3.7 miles.

The work will involve widening of bridges at Kirkman Road, Pine Hills Road, Old Winter Garden Road, Ortman Drive, Ferguson Drive and John Young Parkway.

Toll plaza work will include the design and preparation of construction documents for a mainline toll plaza with express lanes to be located between Pine Hills Road and Old Winter Garden Road, two 2-lane ramp plazas at John Young Parkway (to and from the west) and two 2-lane ramp plazas at Mercy Drive (to and from the east). Demolition and maintenance of traffic plans will be required for the demolition of the existing Holland West mainline toll plaza and the ramp plazas at John Young Parkway.

LETTERS OF INTEREST SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS: Consultants wishing to be considered shall submit six (6) sets of a Letter of Interest package. The letter shall be a maximum of ten (10) pages exclusive of attachments and resumes. The packages shall include the following:

- Experience – Details of specific experience for at least three (3) projects, similar to that described above that involve limited access highway reconstruction, completed by the consultant’s Project Manager and other key project team members including the name of client contact person, telephone number and physical address;
- Personnel Experience – Resumes of the consultant’s proposed Project Manager and other key personnel presently employed by the consultant who will be assigned to the project. The Project Manager shall have a minimum of five (5) years of specific experience in complex highway and/or bridge design projects;
- Project Team – Anticipated subconsultants shall be identified and the roles that each will play in providing the required services. Resumes should be provided for subconsultants that may be involved in key roles;
- Prequalification Documentation – A copy of the Notice of Qualification issued by the FDOT showing current qualification in the Types of Work specified above;
- Office Location – The office assigned responsibility and its physical address shall be identified. It is required that the consultant have an office and key staff located within the Orlando area.

Failure to submit any of the above required information may be cause for rejection of the package as non-responsive.

SELECTION/NEGOTIATIONS: The Authority may shortlist up to five (5) firms based on its evaluation of the Letters of Interest and qualifications information received. Shortlisted firms will proceed to the next step in the process which includes preparation and submittal of a Technical Proposal and an oral presentation or interview. The Authority will provide the shortlisted firms with a comprehensive outline of the Scope of Services for use in preparing the Technical Proposal. Each firm will be evaluated and ranked by the Authority’s Consultant Recommendation Committee based on the Technical Proposal and oral presentations/interview. As part if

its evaluation process, the Committee will also consider the consultant’s willingness to meet time requirements, consultant’s projected workload and consultant’s use of Minority/Women Owned Businesses.

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY STATEMENT: The Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, hereby notifies all firms and individuals that it will require affirmative efforts be made to ensure participation by minorities.

MINORITY/WOMEN/DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION: Minority/Women/Disadvantaged Business Enterprises will not be discriminated against on the basis of race, color, sex or national origin in consideration for qualification or an award by the Authority.

LETTER OF RESPONSE DEADLINE: April 27, 2001, 3:00 p.m. (Orlando Local Time)

AUTHORITY CONTACT PERSON:

Mr. Joseph A. Berenis, P. E.
Deputy Executive Director
Telephone: (407)316-3800

LETTER OF RESPONSE ADDRESS:

Orlando-Orange County Expressway Authority
525 S. Magnolia Avenue
Orlando, FL 32801
Re: SR 408 Widening
Project No. 252B

ORLANDO-ORANGE COUNTY EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITY

Harold W. Worrall, P. E.
Executive Director

**NOTICE TO DESIGN-BUILD FIRMS
REQUEST FOR STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS
MDX PROJECT #ITS-002**

The Miami-Dade Expressway Authority (“MDX”) is seeking the services of a design-build firm or team of firms (“Firm”) with the necessary expertise to implement an Advanced Traffic Management System (“ATMS”) to actively manage traffic on State Road (“SR”) 836 in Miami-Dade County, Florida, prior to the construction of capacity-building improvements for MDX Project No. ITS-002 (the “Project”). MDX’s objective is to provide an opportunity to the Design-Build Firms to be innovative in design and construction methods, while delivering the desired end result in a cost effective manner.

FEDERAL AND STATE DEBARMENT: By signing and submitting a Statement of Qualification (SOQ) package, the Firm certifies that no principal (which includes officers, directors or executives) is presently suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal or state or local department or agency.

SYSTEM: The Miami-Dade Expressway System is comprised of SR 112, SR836, SR 874, SR 878 and SR 924.

WORK DESCRIPTION: The selected Firm shall design, furnish, install, integrate, test and document a fully operational ATMS enabling Incident Management, Network Surveillance and Informational dissemination in accordance with the Project's functional specifications.

NATURE OF THE PROPOSED WORK AND SCOPE OF SERVICES: Work anticipated under the Project may consist of any of the following:

The Firm shall implement ATMS to actively manage traffic and incidents on SR 836 (East-West Expressway) in Miami-Dade County. The ATMS shall include, but not be limited to, closed circuit television, traffic detection, highway advisory radio, communications between SR 836 field devices and the Florida Department of Transportation ("FDOT") District 6 SunGuide Control Center ("SGCC"), either by fiber and/or other communication system, all necessary central hardware and software, and a remote terminal at the MDX Headquarters Building including all hardware, software and communications.

SELECTION PROCEDURE: At least three (3) Firms will be shortlisted using the Evaluation Criteria shown below, and requested to provide written Technical Proposals and submit a sealed Price Proposal based on the Scope of Services contained in the Request For Proposals ("RFP's") to be issued by MDX. The Technical Proposal shall include data about each Firm's approach to the Project and the Price Proposal shall include all costs to MDX in providing the required Work for the Project. An oral presentation may be required.

RESPONSE PROCEDURE: Qualified firms are encouraged to submit a SOQ package to MDX. One original (unbound) SOQ, and nine (9) copies (ten (10) in total), MUST be received by the Miami-Dade Expressway Authority, 3790 N. W. 21 Street, Miami, Florida 33142, Attn.: Ms. Helen M. Cordero, MDX Procurement Officer, by April 12, 2001, 12:00 Noon (Eastern Time) (the "Deadline Date").

After reviewing the documentation submitted, evaluating the SOQ's using the Evaluation Criteria shown herein, and ranking the firms, MDX will notify all these firms in writing by April 20, 2001, if they have been shortlisted and will mail one (1) copy of the Request For Technical and Price Proposal to each shortlisted firm. A copy of the score sheet for evaluating the SOQ's is available upon request.

NOTE: In order to be shortlisted and invited to submit a response to the RFP, a Firm submitting a Statement of Qualifications must satisfy all of the Evaluation Criteria.

SUBMITTAL OF STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS: The Statement of Qualifications shall be in writing, submitted on the letterhead of the Firm. The SOQ MUST include at a minimum contain the information set out in the Evaluation Criteria.

EVALUATION CRITERIA: The SOQ shall contain the following Evaluation Criteria:

1. Project name.
2. Firm's name and address and a statement indicating a Joint Venture between the contractor and the design firm. MDX will not consider any letters from Firms that are not a design consultant/contractor joint venture.
3. Documentation acceptable to MDX that the Firm's contractor is prequalified under Rule 14-22, Florida Administrative Code, by the FDOT Contracts Administration Office, in the following types of work: Traffic Signals, and Computerized Traffic Signal Systems.
4. Documentation acceptable to MDX that the Firm involved in this professional service, as identified in Section 287.055, Florida Statutes, is prequalified by Section 14-75, Florida Administrative Code and the Florida Department of Transportation in all of the following: Group 3.1, Minor Highway Design; Group 6.32, Traffic System Analysis and Design; Group 6.32, Traffic Engineering System Implementation; Group 6.33, Traffic Engineering System Communication; Group 6.34, Traffic Engineering System Software Development; Group 7.1 Signing, Pavement Markings and Channelization; Group 7.3, Signalization; Group 8.2, Design Survey; Group 9.1, Soil Exploration; Group 9.2, Geotechnical Exploration Testing.
5. Contact person, phone number, fax number and Internet Email address. The contact person shall be a single person who can be contacted to discuss contents or questions regarding references, listed projects or other matters contained in the SOQ's.
6. Proposed key personnel of the Firm, their qualifications and their roles (including resumes).
7. Sub-consultant(s) and/or sub-contractors that may be used for the Project, with their respective qualifications including resumes and proposed roles for the Project.
8. An estimate of the Firm's current workload and available resources.
9. Letter of Recommendation (at least 2).
10. A list of similar projects completed NOT EARLIER THAN January 1, 1996, with references and phone numbers, including a general description of each of the projects and the Firm's role in each of the projects.
11. Any appropriate local, state and federal permits, certifications and/or licenses to perform work relevant to the Project.
12. An executed Vendor's Certificate. The certificate is available by calling MDX. It is the Firm's responsibility to obtain the certificate.

COMMUNICATION: Communications between any respondent and any member of MDX or its staff is strictly prohibited from the date of publication of the Request for Statement of Qualifications through the date of final MDX

action with respect to the selection of the successful Firm for the Project. The only exceptions to this are communications at a pre-proposal conference or a publicly noticed meeting of MDX or its Operations Committee and written communications regarding questions about either the Request for Statements of Qualifications or the RFP. Any violation of the requirements set forth in this paragraph shall constitute grounds for immediate and permanent disqualification of the offending respondent.

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES PROGRAM: MDX, in accordance with the provisions of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §200c et seq., the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992, as amended, §760.10 et. seq., Fla. Stat. (1996) and other federal and state discrimination statutes, prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, sex, age, national origin, religion and disability or handicap. MDX notifies all bidders and individuals that it requires and encourages equal employment opportunities for minorities and women as employees in the work force.

MDX encourages small, minority and women-owned business to have full opportunity to submit bids and proposals in response to solicitation documents issued by MDX, and bidders and proposers will not be discriminated against on the basis of sex, race, color, national origin, religion or disability or other protected status. The overall goal of MDX is to obtain an M/WBE participation of twenty-five percent (25%) for the aggregate of its projects. However, compliance with MDX's overall goal is not a pre-requisite for bidders or proposers on MDX projects.

MDX RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REJECT ANY OR ALL STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS RECEIVED. Any Proposer may file a written protest with the Secretary of the MDX Board within seventy-two (72) hours, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, after receipt of the response to this Request for Statement of Qualifications, if the protest is directed towards this Request for Statement of Qualifications, or within seventy-two (72) hours after the posting of the "Notice of Shortlisted Firms", if the protest is directed towards the shortlisting of the Firms. Failure to comply with these requirements shall constitute a waiver of any right to initiate any protest proceedings regarding the Project. A protest bond in the amount of \$10,000.00 will be required for any protest. The protest bond must meet the same surety requirements as those required for Payment and Performance Bonds. These requirements are available from MDX upon request.

**NOTICE OF INVITATION TO BID
MDX PROJECT NO. 924-003**

The Miami-Dade Expressway Authority ("MDX") is seeking the services of a contractor ("Bidder") for construction related to the installation of two (2) SunPass™ dedicated lanes at the

Gratigny Parkway (SR 924) Toll Plaza (the "Project"). The Work for the Project consists of, but is not limited to, providing all labor, Materials, Equipment and incidentals necessary for the installation of roadway and toll plaza signage, electrical work, roadway pavement markings, miscellaneous concrete work, attenuator installation and maintenance of traffic operations. The Bidder should be aware that the majority of the installation work associated with the Project shall be done during off-peak hours (9:30 a.m. – 3:30 p.m. and 9:00 p.m. – 6:00 a.m.).

Sealed Bids will be received in the Headquarters Building of the Miami-Dade Expressway Authority ("MDX" or the "Authority"), located at 3790 N. W. 21st Street, Miami, Florida 33142, until 2:00 p.m., Thursday, May 10, 2001. A Bidder must be prequalified by the State of Florida Department of Transportation in accordance with Rule Chapter 14-22, FAC. or certified with the Miami-Dade County on the date of the Bids submittal in order to submit a Bid. A Bidder that is not prequalified in accordance with Rule Chapter 14-22, FAC. or certified with Miami-Dade County on the date of the Bids submittal, shall be declared "NON RESPONSIVE" and the Bid will be REJECTED.

Copies of the Plans, Specifications and the Bid Blank book will be available on Wednesday, April 25, 2001 after 12:00 Noon at MDX Headquarters Building located at 3790 N. W. 21st Street, Miami, Florida. The cost of these documents is \$20.00 per set. Make checks payable to the Miami-Dade Expressway Authority. No refunds will be made for the above charges for any of the documents.

The construction cost estimate for the Project is \$125,000 (One Hundred and Twenty Five Thousand Dollars) and Contract time for this Project is set for 60 calendar days from the Notice to Proceed.

MDX has scheduled a Mandatory Pre-bid Conference to discuss the Project with interested Bidders on Tuesday, May 1, 2001, 2:00 p.m., at the MDX Headquarters Building located at 3790 N. W. 21st Street, Miami, Florida. Please be advised that this is a Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference. Any Bidder not attending the Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference will be declared "Non-Responsive".

If you have any questions regarding this notice, or would like to additional information, please contact:

Ms. Helen M. Cordero
MDX Procurement Officer
Ph. (305)637-3277
Fax (305)637-3283

All sealed bids must be received by MDX at 3790 N. W. 21st Street, Miami, Florida 33142, no later than 2:00 p.m., Thursday, May 10, 2001.

Equal Employment Opportunities. The Miami-Dade Expressway Authority prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, sex, age, national origin, religion and disability or handicap in accordance with the Provisions of Title VII of the

Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §2000c et seq., the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992, as amended, §760.10 et seq., Fla. Stat. (1996), and other Federal and State discrimination statutes. MDX notifies all bidders and individuals that it requires and encourages equal employment opportunities for minorities and women.

MDX encourages small, minority and women-owned business to have full opportunity to submit bids and proposals in response to solicitation documents issued by MDX, and bidders and proposers will not be discriminated against on the basis of sex, race, color, national origin, religion or disability or other protected status. The overall goal of MDX is to obtain an M/WBE participation of twenty-five percent (25%) for the aggregate of its projects. However, compliance with MDX's overall goal is not a pre-requisite for bidders or proposers on MDX projects.

**NOTICE TO QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS
REQUEST FOR STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS
MDX PROJECT NO. 000-014**

Miami-Dade Expressway Authority ("MDX") seeks the services of a firm or team of firms ("Firm") with the necessary expertise to manage and perform all routine maintenance activities associated with Roadway, Structures, Drainage, Roadside, Vegetation and Aesthetics, Traffic Services, Structures Inspection, Toll Facilities and Incident Management, MDX Project No. 000-014, (the "Project") on the MDX system (the "System").

DEBARMENT: By signing and submitting a statement of qualifications ("SOQ"), the Firm certifies that no principal (which includes officers, directors, or executives) is presently suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal or state or local department or agency.

SYSTEM: The System presently consists of 31.2 centerline miles of highway, 177.8 lane-miles, and 4 mainline toll plazas. One road section, Snapper Creek Expressway (State Road 878) is a toll free facility. The four facilities, which include toll plazas are as follows: Airport Expressway (State Road 112), East-West Expressway (State Road 836), South Dade Expressway (State Road 874) and Gratigny Expressway (State Road 924).

PROJECT: In an effort to provide the traveling public of the State of Florida a cost effective, high quality transportation infrastructure, the Miami-Dade Expressway Authority (hereinafter "MDX") is preparing for fully undertaken all related Infrastructure maintenance programs. The Project will focus on the transition of the various infrastructure maintenance components. The first phase will entail the transition of the Toll Facilities Service Contracts maintenance from FDOT/OTO to MDX. Expansion of the number of toll lanes is anticipated in the future years. The second phase will entail the transition of the roadway maintenance from FDOT to

MDX as they expire. The work for the Project includes, but is not limited to, addressing the maintenance activities associated with Roadway, Structures, Drainage, Roadside, Vegetation and Aesthetics, Traffic Services, Structure Inspection, Toll Facilities and Incident Management.

SELECTION: The required information, including the qualifications and relevant past experience of each Firm submitting an SOQ, shall be evaluated to shortlist at least three (3) qualified Firms. MDX shall distribute a Request for Proposals ("RFP") package to the shortlisted Firms. MDX shall commence negotiations with all the shortlisted firms and shall award the contract based on the best combination of proposal, qualifications and price, as determined solely by MDX.

After reviewing the submitted SOQs, MDX anticipates that it will notify all Firms in writing on or about Monday, April 23, 2001, as to whether they have been shortlisted and will mail one (1) copy of the Request for Proposal package to each shortlisted firm.

RESPONSE PROCEDURE: Qualified Firms are encouraged to submit SOQs to MDX. One unbound original and fourteen (14) copies, a total of fifteen (15) of SOQs MUST be received by the Miami-Dade Expressway Authority at 3790 N. W. 21st Street, Miami, Florida 33142, Attn.: Sam Gonzalez, P. E., Engineering Director, by Thursday, April 12, 2001, on or before 12:00 Noon (Eastern Time) (the "Deadline Date").

SUBMITTAL OF SOQ's: The SOQ shall be in writing, and submitted on the letterhead of the Firm. The SOQ MUST include, at a minimum, the required information listed below in order for the Firm to be considered for shortlisting.

REQUIRED INFORMATION: The SOQ shall contain the following information:

1. Project name.
2. Firm's name, address, telephone and fax number and contact person.
3. The Firm must be registered with the Secretary of State to do business in the State of Florida.
4. Proposed responsible officer for the Firm.
5. Contact person, phone number, fax number and Internet Email address. The contact person shall be a single person who can be contacted to discuss contents or questions regarding references, listed projects or other matters contained in the SOQ.
6. Proposed key personnel for the Firm's team with qualifications and their proposed roles for the Project, including resumes.
7. Organizational charts showing the Firm's team members.
8. Location of the Firm's team members.
9. Sub-contractors for procurement of equipment, material and services with their qualifications, including resumes and proposed roles for the Project.

10. An estimate of the Firm's current workload and available resources.
11. Letters of Recommendation (at least 2).
12. A list of similar projects completed NOT EARLIER THAN January 1, 1996, with references and phone numbers, including a general description of each of the projects and the Firm's role in each of the projects.'
13. An executed Vendor's Certificate. The certificate is available from MDX and will be the Firms' responsibility to obtain.

COMMUNICATION: Communications between any respondent and any member of MDX or its staff is strictly prohibited from the date of publication of the Request for Qualifications through the date of final MDX action with respect to the selection of the Firm. The only exception to this is any communication at a publicly noticed meeting of MDX or its Operations Committee or contract negotiations with the Executive Director and the Engineering Director. Any violation of the requirements set forth in this paragraph shall constitute grounds for immediate and permanent disqualification of the offending respondent.

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES PROGRAM: MDX, in accordance with the provisions of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §200c et seq., the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992, as amended, §760.10 et. seq., Fla. Stat. (1996) and other federal and state discrimination statutes, prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, sex, age, national origin, religion and disability or handicap. MDX notifies all bidders and individuals that it requires and encourages equal employment opportunities for minorities and women as employees in the work force.

MDX encourages small, minority and women-owned business to have full opportunity to submit bids and proposals in response to solicitation documents issued by MDX, and bidders and proposers will not be discriminated against on the basis of sex, race, color, national origin, religion or disability or other protected status. The overall goal of MDX is to obtain an M/WBE participation of twenty-five percent (25%) for the aggregate of its projects. However, compliance with MDX's overall goal is not a pre-requisite for bidders or proposers on MDX projects.

MDX RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REJECT ANY OR ALL STATEMENTS OF QUALIFICATIONS RECEIVED. Any Proposer may file a written protest with the Secretary of the MDX Board within seventy-two (72) hours, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, after receipt of the response to this Request for Statement of Qualifications, if the protest is directed towards this Request for Statement of Qualifications, or within seventy-two (72) hours after the posting of the "Notice of Shortlisted Firms", if the protest is directed towards the shortlisting of the Firms. Failure to comply with these requirements shall constitute a waiver of

any right to initiate any protest proceedings regarding the Project. A protest bond in the amount of \$10,000.00 will be required for any protest. The protest bond must meet the same surety requirements as those required for Payment and Performance Bonds. These requirements are available from MDX upon request.

SPACEPORT FLORIDA AUTHORITY

Notice of Solicitation for Bids Fabrication and Installation of Rocket Launcher Rail Spacer

The Spaceport Florida Authority (SFA) is requesting bids for fabrication and installation of a steel spacer to provide extended clearance between the launch rail and supporting boom of the "50K" rocket launcher at Launch Complex 20, CCAFS. A bidder may be selected based on estimated time required to complete the work and total cost of the project.

This work will consist of the following:

1. Removal and cleaning of two steel rails, each consisting of 4 ten-foot long sections.
2. Procurement of a 40-foot W12x87 I-beam and specified fasteners.
3. Processing of the I-beam to produce the spacer per existing design drawings to be provided by SFA.
4. Installation of the spacer and rails to existing specifications.
5. Application of corrosion protection to the spacer and rails.
6. Participation in a load test of the final configuration. An existing base contractor will perform this test.

While the spacer has already been designed to meet certain requirements, the bidder is free to propose and execute the best method for fabrication and installation to meet the existing rail alignment requirements. The basic requirements are to maintain linearity of the rail gap to within +/- 0.031 inches over its 40-foot length and to keep the rail faces planar within +/- 15 arcminutes over their 40-foot length. Possible options the bidder might consider would include whether to mill either or both surfaces of the spacer, whether to shim the rails while installing, and whether to perform various aspects of the work in a shop or on site.

SFA will supply a Request for Bid package containing design drawings and specifications upon request during the week of April 9, 2001.

When written sealed bids are required, the procedure to be followed is:

- (a) One invitation to Bid form is prepared and mailed to each qualified vendor requesting forms along with specifications required, allowing them at least 10 days to respond. The Invitation to Bid is completed by the vendors with price quotations and signatures, and returned to the Authority office.

- (b) At the designated time, bid packages are opened and reviewed by the Authority office to determine the best bid, and then reviewed by the Executive Director or Board Chairman if appropriate, for approval prior to the issuance of a purchase order. After approval, the bidder is notified of the award.
- (c) Vendors must be advised of the decisions regarding bid awards. The following wording must be included in all bid solicitations:

“All bids accepted by the Authority are subject to the Authority terms and conditions and any and all additional terms and conditions submitted by bidders are rejected and shall have not force and effect. Bid tabulation with recommended award will be available for review by interested parties at the location where bids were opened and will remain available for a period of 72 hours.

Requests for this package should be submitted to: Mr. Greg Popp, Spaceport Florida Authority, 100 Spaceport Way, Cape Canaveral, Florida 32920-4003, (321)730-5301, Extension 1110. Quotes will be due by April 23, 2001. Future procurement or other actions will be taken at SFA’s sole discretion pursuant to its policies and procedures. The Spaceport Florida Authority reserves the right to reject all bids.

FLORIDA SUPREME COURT

Performance Contracting Request For Qualifications

The Florida Supreme Court (hereinafter referred to as “Owner”) is requesting qualification statements from interested performance contractors to implement energy conservation measures. The Owner intends to select the most qualified performance contractor and enter into a Guaranteed Energy Savings Contract pursuant to Section 489.145, Florida Statutes.

The objective of this project is to upgrade the Owner’s facilities and infrastructure utilizing a comprehensive performance contracting approach, including but not limited to energy audits, design and installation of energy efficient equipment and measures, maintenance services, energy cost monitoring, project financing, and a guarantee that total program costs will be 100% covered by program energy and operational savings. Following a thorough review of all written responses, the Owner will rank the respondents and begin negotiating with the top-ranked performance contractor. If negotiations are unsuccessful, the Owner will move to the next-ranked firm and continue down the ranks until a contract is successfully executed. However, the Owner reserves the right to reject any and all responses.

Firms will be ranked based upon performance contracting experience within the State of Florida, corporate financial stability, project team qualifications, uniqueness of proposed solutions and any other criteria deemed important by the Owner. In order to receive consideration for this project, respondent must have completed a minimum of five

performance contracts using Section 235.215 or 489.145, F.S. No other project references will be accepted. Respondents shall clearly indicate their firm’s experience and qualifications and describe their approach to this project.

Written responses shall be limited to no more than 20 pages not including Corporate Annual Reports. Pages printed on both front and back will count as two pages. If the response exceeds 20 pages, the pages will be numbered and all pages above 20 will be removed and not evaluated. Responses will be evaluated in light of the material and substantiating evidence presented and not on the basis of what is inferred. Respondent will be required to assume total responsibility for all services offered and will be considered the sole point of contact regarding all contractual matters such as warranties, maintenance, and guarantee.

A mandatory pre-proposal conference will be held at 10:00 a.m., May 8, 2001 at the owner’s site. Interested firms shall submit five copies of their written response no later than 2:00 p.m., May 28, 2001 to the address listed below, after which they will no longer be accepted. Late responses will be returned unopened and will receive no further consideration. The Owner reserves the right to waive minor informalities. Responses may be mailed or delivered to the following address:

Mr. Wilson E. Barnes, Marshal
 500 South Duval Street
 Tallahassee, FL 32399-1928

**Section XII
 Miscellaneous**

DEPARTMENT OF BANKING AND FINANCE

NOTICE OF FILINGS

Notice is hereby given that the Department of Banking and Finance, Division of Banking, has received the following applications and/or other notice. Comments may be submitted to the Director, Division of Banking, 101 East Gaines Street, Suite 636, Fletcher Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0350, for inclusion in the official record without requesting a hearing; however, any person may request a public hearing by filing a petition with the Clerk, Legal Division, Department of Banking and Finance, 101 East Gaines Street, Suite 526, Fletcher Building, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0350, pursuant to provisions specified in Chapter 3C-105.100, Florida Administrative Code. Petition must be received by the Clerk within twenty-one (21) days of publication of this notice (by 5:00 p.m., April 27, 2001):

EXPANDED FIELD OF MEMBERSHIP

Name and Address of Applicant: FAA Credit Union, P. O. Box 5487, Miami Lakes, Florida 33014

Expansion Includes: Anyone who lives in the Moors Subdivision, Miami, Florida. Anyone who lives or works in The City of Miami Lakes, Florida.

Received: March 23, 2001

Correspondent: Mr. William A. Gregg, Jr.

IN RE:

PCM SECURITIES, LTD.

CRD No. 28761

Hoshedar Mehta,

Administrative Proceeding
No. 3081-S-2/01

Respondent.

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ENTER A FINAL
ORDER GRANTING RECOVERY
FROM THE SECURITIES GUARANTY FUND

The State of Florida Department of Banking and Finance, Division of Securities and Investor Protection (“Department”), being authorized and directed to administer and to accept and pay claims against the Securities Guaranty Fund (“Fund”), codified in Sections 517.131, 517.141 and 517.151, Florida Statutes, does hereby give Notice of its intention to enter a Final Order granting the application of the claimant for payment from the Fund for alleged violations of the Florida Securities and Investor Protection Act by Respondent, PCM Securities, Ltd.

The Securities Guaranty Fund is disbursed as provided in Section 517.141, Florida Statutes, to a person who is adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction to have suffered monetary damages as a result of a dealer, investment advisor or associated person having violated Sections 517.07 or 517.301, Florida Statutes.

STATEMENTS OF FACTS

1. The Florida Securities and Investor Act (“Act”) charges the Department with the responsibility and duty to administer the Fund, this includes the duty to approve or deny applications for payment from the Fund in accordance with Section 517.141(3)(a) of the Florida Statutes.
2. Section 517.131 and 517.141, F.S. sets forth the requirements for perfecting a claim to the Fund.
3. On February 14, 2001, the Department received a letter from Russel L. Forkey, attorney for Hoshedar Mehta (“Claimant”), informing the Department that his client is seeking payment from the Fund. Accompanying the letter was a copy of the N.A.S.D. Regulation, Inc. Award, which found that PCM has violated Section 517.301, Florida Statutes, and a copy of the Final Default Judgement Confirming Arbitration Award entered by the Circuit Court of the Seventeenth Judicial Circuit awarding damages.

4. The final default judgement entered by the seventeenth circuit awarded compensatory damages in the amount of \$100,000 to Hoshedar Mehta at the highest interest rate allowed by law.
5. PCM Securities, Ltd. has been dissolved and no longer exists. There are no known assets to satisfy this judgement.
6. PCM Securities, Ltd. was registered pursuant to Chapter 517, Florida Statutes at all relevant times.
7. Hoshedar Mehta held an individual account with PCM Securities, Ltd.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. Based on the foregoing Statement of Facts, the Department concludes as a matter of law that the Claimant satisfied the requirements of Section 517.131, Florida Statutes, in that:
 - a. Claimant has been adjudged by the Circuit Court of the Seventeenth Circuit in and for Broward County, Florida to have suffered monetary damages being actual or compensatory in nature:
 - b. Claimant has suffered injury as a result of PCM Securities’ violation of Section 517.301, Florida Statutes.
 - c. Claimant has researched the records of the Florida Secretary of State’s office which reflect that the company has been administratively dissolved and, there are not any assets from which satisfaction of the subject Final Judgement may be obtained.
 - d. The acts for which the Claimant seeks recovery occurred after 1979.
2. Pursuant to Section 517.141(1), Florida Statutes, Claimant is limited to the amount equal to the unsatisfied portion of his judgement or \$10,000, whichever is less.
3. Pursuant to Section 517.141(2), Florida Statutes, total claims against PCM Securities, Ltd. may not exceed \$100,000, and Claimant’s claim will be prorated based upon the ratio of his claim to the total of all claims filed.
4. Pursuant to Section 517.141(3), Florida Statutes, no payment shall be made from the Fund until two years after that claim or any prior claim against the same party has been determined by the Department to be eligible for payment from the Fund. Accordingly, the Department concludes as a matter of law that no payment shall be made in connection with this claim until two years from the date of entry of the first Final Order regarding PCM Securities, Ltd. Further, any additional or potential claims submitted to or approved by the Department as against PCM Securities, Ltd. during the two year period shall be cause for further proration in accordance with Section 517.141(2), Florida Statutes.

PROPOSED FINAL ORDER

Upon consideration of the factual statement set forth above and applicable law, NOTICE is hereby given that the Department intends to and will issue a Final Order substantially as follows, subject only to the attached notice of rights:

1. No payment from the Fund shall be made until after the expiration of two years from the date of the Final Order.
2. Upon expiration of such two year period, provided that no further claims are received or approved by final order by the Department alleging violations of the Act by PCM Securities, Ltd. and subject to further proration and limitation as may be required by Section 517.141, Florida Statutes, the Department shall pay Hoshedar Mehta the sum of \$10,000.

NOTICE OF RIGHTS

Notice is hereby given that Respondents may request a hearing on the NOTICE OF INTENT TO ENTER A FINAL ORDER GRANTING RECOVERY FROM THE SECURITIES GUARANTY FUND to be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 120.57, Florida Statutes. Requests for such a hearing must comply with the provisions of Rule 28-106.201 or Rule 28-106.301, Florida Administrative Code (2000), and must be filed with:

Clerk
 Department of Banking and Finance
 Suite 526, The Fletcher Building
 101 East Gaines Street
 Tallahassee, FL 32399-0350
 (850)488-9896

Requests for hearing must be filed within twenty-one (21) days after claimants' receipt of a copy of this notice of intent. Should the respondent request such a hearing, they have the right to be represented by counsel or other qualified representative; to offer testimony, either written or oral; to call and cross-examine witnesses; and to have subpoenas and subpoenas duces tecum issued on their behalf. The failure to timely request a hearing shall be deemed a waiver of all rights to such hearing and the Department shall issue a final order without a hearing. Pursuant to Section 120.573, Florida Statutes (2000), claimants are further advised that mediation is not available.

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that on the 21st day of March, 2001, true and correct copy(ies) of this Notice of Intent to Enter A Final Order Granting Recovery From the Securities Guaranty Fund were sent by U. S. Mail (U.S. Certified Mail) to the individual(s) listed below.

Russell L. Forkey, P. A.
 Attorney for Hoshedar Mehta
 2888 East Oakland Park Blvd.
 Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33306
 PCM Securities, Ltd.
 2170 Jog Rd.
 Green Acres, FL 33415

 Roland Cherasard
 Certified Legal Extern

Department of Banking and Finance
 Fletcher Building, Suite 526
 101 Gaines St.
 Tallahassee, FL 32399-0350

 Jo Schultz
 Deputy Counsel
 Department of Banking and Finance
 Fletcher Building, Suite 526
 101 Gaines St.
 Tallahassee, FL 32399-0350

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Division of Community Planning, Department of Community Affairs received the following petitions for binding letters of Development of Regional Impact, Vested Rights and Modification Determinations, pursuant to subsection 380.06(4)(a), Florida Statutes.

FILE NO.: BLID-0401-009
 DATE RECEIVED: March 26, 2001
 DEVELOPMENT NAME: COBBLESTONE
 DEVELOPER/AGENT: CBL & Associates
 DEVELOPMENT TYPE: 28-24.031, F.A.C.
 COUNTY LOCATION: St. Johns
 LOCAL GOVERNMENT: St. Johns County
 FILE NO.: BLID-0801-010
 DATE RECEIVED: March 26, 2001
 DEVELOPMENT NAME: ST. JOSEPH'S BAPTIST
 HEALTH CARE CENTER
 DEVELOPER/AGENT: St. Joseph's Health Care Center,
 Inc.
 DEVELOPMENT TYPE: 28-24.017, F.A.C.
 COUNTY LOCATION: Hillsborough
 LOCAL GOVERNMENT: Hillsborough County

DCA Final Order No. DCA01-OR-057
 In re: LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS
 ADOPTED
 BY CITY OF LAKE ALFRED
 ORDINANCE NO. 910-99

FINAL ORDER
 The Department of Community Affairs (the "Department") hereby issues its Final Order, pursuant to §380.05(6) and (11), Fla. Stat., §380.0551, Fla. Stat. (2000), and Rule 28-26.003, FAC., approving land development regulations adopted by a local government within the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern as set forth below.

FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The City of Lake Alfred intends to annex overtime, approximately 4,680 acres of land located within the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern. The City Commission adopted Ordinance 910-99 (“Ord. 910-99”) which is intended to serve as land development regulations for the portion of the City located within the Green Swamp Area.
2. The Department received Ord. 910-99 for review on June 5, 2000. Since land development regulations for annexed areas cannot become effective until the municipality adopts a comprehensive plan amendment for the annexed area, §171.062(2), Fla. Stat. (2000), the Department did not commence review of Ord. 910-99 until publication of the Notice of Intent for the City’s plan amendment for the annexed area.
3. Ord. 910-99 adopts new land development regulations that apply to land located within the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern. The new land development regulations contains a new section 3.08.00, “Development Standards for the Lake Alfred Green Swamp ACSC,” which protects the resources described by the Green Swamp Area Principles for Guiding Development, except:
 - a. Paragraph 3.08.01(A) allows “Residential development... on uplands designated in the Plans at a gross density not greater than three (3) dwelling units per acre.” This density is inappropriate in the Green Swamp unless the development is served by paved roads, municipal water and sanitary sewer systems.
 - b. Paragraph 3.08.04 allows institutional and utility uses in the Green Swamp as conditional uses. Many institutional and utility uses, such as hospital, airport/aviation, correctional facility, electric power plant, jail and sewage disposal facility, are not appropriate uses in the Green Swamp.
4. The paragraphs cited above are not consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

5. The Department is required to approve or reject land development regulations that are enacted, amended or rescinded by any local government in an area of critical state concern. §380.05(6) and (11), Fla. Stat., (2000).
6. A portion of the City of Lake Alfred is located within the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern. §380.0551, Fla. Stat. (2000) and Rule 28-26.002 (superseding Chapter 27F-5, FAC.), FAC.
7. “Land development regulations” include local zoning, subdivision, building and other regulations controlling the development of land. §380.031(8), Fla. Stat. (2000). The regulations adopted by Ord. 910-99 are land development regulations.

8. All land development regulations enacted, amended or rescinded within an area of critical state concern must be consistent with the principles for guiding development of the area. §380.05(6) and (11), Fla. Stat., (2000). The Green Swamp Area Principles for Guiding Development (“the Principles”) are found in Rule 28-26.003, FAC.
9. Ordinance 910-99 is not consistent with:
 - Principle (a): Minimize the adverse impacts of development on resources of the Floridan Aquifer, wetlands and flood-detention areas.
 - Principle (b): Protect the normal quantity, quality and flow of ground water and surface water which are necessary for the protection of resources of state and regional concern.
 - Principle (c): Protect the water available for aquifer recharge.
 - Principle (g): Protect or improve existing ground and surface-water quality.
 - Principle (j): Protect the natural flow regime of drainage basins.

Allowing higher density residential development in the Green Swamp without requiring paved roads, municipal water and sanitary sewer and allowing the above described institutional and utility uses in the Green Swamp, will not protect the above described resources.

WHEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED that Ord. 910-99 is found to be inconsistent with the Principles for Guiding Development of the Green Swamp Area of Critical State Concern, and is hereby REJECTED.

This Order becomes effective 21 days after publication in the Florida Administrative Weekly unless a petition is filed as described below.

DONE AND ORDERED in Tallahassee, Florida.

J. THOMAS BECK, DIRECTOR
 Division of Community Planning
 Department of Community Affairs
 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard
 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2100

NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE RIGHTS

ANY PERSON WHOSE SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS ARE AFFECTED BY THIS ORDER HAS THE OPPORTUNITY FOR AN ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING PURSUANT TO SECTION 120.569, FLORIDA STATUTES, REGARDING THE AGENCY’S ACTION. DEPENDING UPON WHETHER YOU ALLEGE ANY DISPUTED ISSUE OF MATERIAL FACT IN YOUR PETITION REQUESTING AN ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING, YOU ARE ENTITLED TO EITHER AN INFORMAL PROCEEDING OR A FORMAL HEARING.

IF YOUR PETITION FOR HEARING DOES NOT ALLEGE ANY DISPUTED ISSUE OF MATERIAL FACT CONTAINED IN THE DEPARTMENT’S ACTION, THEN

THE ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING WILL BE AN INFORMAL ONE, CONDUCTED PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 120.569 AND 120.57(2) FLORIDA STATUTES, AND CHAPTER 28-106, PARTS I AND III, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. IN AN INFORMAL ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING, YOU MAY BE REPRESENTED BY COUNSEL OR BY A QUALIFIED REPRESENTATIVE, AND YOU MAY PRESENT WRITTEN OR ORAL EVIDENCE IN OPPOSITION TO THE DEPARTMENT'S ACTION OR REFUSAL TO ACT; OR YOU MAY EXERCISE THE OPTION TO PRESENT A WRITTEN STATEMENT CHALLENGING THE GROUNDS UPON WHICH THE DEPARTMENT HAS CHOSEN TO JUSTIFY ITS ACTION OR INACTION.

IF YOU DISPUTE ANY ISSUE OF MATERIAL FACT STATED IN THE AGENCY ACTION, THEN YOU MAY FILE A PETITION REQUESTING A FORMAL ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING BEFORE AN ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE OF THE DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS, PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 120.569 AND 120.57(1), FLORIDA STATUTES, AND CHAPTER 28-106, PARTS I AND II, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. AT A FORMAL ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING, YOU MAY BE REPRESENTED BY COUNSEL OR OTHER QUALIFIED REPRESENTATIVE, AND YOU WILL HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO PRESENT EVIDENCE AND ARGUMENT ON ALL THE ISSUES INVOLVED, TO CONDUCT CROSS-EXAMINATION AND SUBMIT REBUTTAL EVIDENCE, TO SUBMIT PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT AND ORDERS, AND TO FILE EXCEPTIONS TO ANY RECOMMENDED ORDER.

IF YOU DESIRE EITHER AN INFORMAL PROCEEDING OR A FORMAL HEARING, YOU MUST FILE WITH THE AGENCY CLERK OF THE DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AFFAIRS A WRITTEN PLEADING ENTITLED, "PETITION FOR ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDINGS" WITHIN 21 CALENDAR DAYS OF PUBLICATION OF THIS NOTICE. A PETITION IS FILED WHEN IT IS RECEIVED BY THE AGENCY CLERK, IN THE DEPARTMENT'S OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL, 2555 SHUMARD OAK BOULEVARD, TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-2100.

THE PETITION MUST MEET THE FILING REQUIREMENTS IN RULE 28-106.104(2), FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. IF AN INFORMAL PROCEEDING IS REQUESTED, THEN THE PETITION SHALL BE SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH RULE 28-106.301, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. IF A FORMAL HEARING IS REQUESTED, THEN THE PETITION SHALL BE SUBMITTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH RULE 28-106.201(2), FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE.

A PERSON WHO HAS FILED A PETITION MAY REQUEST MEDIATION. A REQUEST FOR MEDIATION MUST INCLUDE THE INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 28-106.402, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE. CHOOSING MEDIATION DOES NOT AFFECT THE RIGHT TO AN ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING.

YOU WAIVE THE RIGHT TO AN INFORMAL ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDING OR A FORMAL HEARING IF YOU DO NOT FILE A PETITION WITH THE AGENCY CLERK WITHIN 21 DAYS OF PUBLICATION OF THIS FINAL ORDER.

CERTIFICATE OF FILING AND SERVICE

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the original of the foregoing Final Order has been filed with the undersigned designated Agency Clerk, and that true and correct copies have been furnished to the persons listed below by the method indicated this 28th day of March, 2001.

Paula Ford, Agency Clerk

By U.S. Mail:

Honorable John Dame, Mayor

City of Lake Alfred

155 East Pomelo Street

Lake Alfred, FL 33850

James D. Drumm, City Manager

City of Lake Alfred

120 East Pomelo Street

Lake Alfred, FL 33850

Jan Shockley, City Clerk

City of Lake Alfred

120 East Pomelo Street

Lake Alfred, FL 33850

R. Douglas Leonard, Executive Director

Central Florida Regional Planning Council

555 East Church Street

Bartow, FL 33830-3931

By Hand Delivery:

Michael McDaniel, Growth Management Administrator, DCA Tallahassee

Brenda Winningham, Community Program Administrator, DCA Tallahassee

Bob Dennis, Planning Manager, DCA Tallahassee

David Jordan, Deputy General Counsel, DCA Tallahassee

NOTICE OF APPROVAL FOR PRESERVATION 2000 FUNDS

The Florida Communities Trust (Trust) reviewed and approved project plans for land acquisition projects submitted under the Trust Preservation 2000 Program P8A and P9A funding cycles. The project plans listed below were approved by the Executive Director under authority delegated from the

governing body. The Executive Director is authorized to execute the agreements for acquisition of the project sites and all other documents necessary to close the projects and release funds as follows:

Project: 98-053-P8A/Cypress Lakes Preserve Addition (Little and Horan parcels)

Grantee: Hernando County

Amount of Approved Funds: the lesser of 50.0% of the final total project costs or \$59,675.00.

Project: 99-007-P9A/Sunset Vista Trailhead Park (TPL parcel)

Grantee: City of Treasure Island

Amount of Approved Funds: the lesser of 99.09% of the final total project costs or \$1,200,000.00.

NOTICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING RIGHTS

Any person with substantial interests that are or may be determined by the approval of funds for projects by the Trust has a right to an informal administrative proceeding pursuant to Section 120.57(2), F.S., if the person does not dispute issues of material fact raised by this decision. If an informal proceeding is held, the petitioner will have the opportunity to be represented by counsel, to present to the agency written or oral evidence in opposition to the Trust action or to present a written statement challenging the legal grounds upon which the Trust is justifying its actions.

Alternatively, any person with substantial interests that are or may be determined by the approval of funds for projects by the Trust has a right to a formal administrative hearing pursuant to Section 120.57(1), F.S., if the person disputes any issues of material fact stated in this decision. At a formal hearing the petitioner may be represented by counsel and will have the opportunity to present evidence and argument on all the issues involved, to conduct cross-examination and submit

rebuttal evidence, to submit proposed findings of fact and orders and to file exceptions to any order or hearing officer's recommended order.

If a person with a substantial interest desires either an informal proceeding or a formal hearing, the person must file with the Trust Clerk a written response or pleading entitled "Petition for Administrative Proceedings" within 21 calendar days of the publication date of this notice of final agency action. The petition must be in the form required by Rule 18-106.201, FAC. A petition is filed when it is received by the Trust Clerk, 2555 Shumard Oak Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399-2100. A petition must specifically request an informal proceeding or a formal hearing, it must admit or deny each material fact contained in this decision, and it must state any defenses upon which the petitioner relies. If the petitioner lacks knowledge of a particular allegation of fact, it must so state and that statement will operate as a denial.

Any person with substantial interests that are or may be determined by the approval of funds for projects by the Trust waives the right to an informal proceeding or a formal hearing if a Petition for Administrative Proceeding is not filed with the Trust Clerk within 21 days of the date of publication of the notice of final agency action.

DEPARTMENT OF HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES

Notice of Publication for a New Point Franchise Motor Vehicle Dealer in a County of More than 300,000 Population

Pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes, DaimlerChrysler Motors Corporation, intends to allow the establishment of T.T. of Commercial, Inc., as a dealership for the sale of Chrysler and Jeep motor vehicles, at a location on the south side of Commercial Blvd., Sunrise (Broward County), Florida, on or after May 14, 2001. The location is 530

feet east of the southeast corner of the intersection of Nob Hill Rd. and Commercial Blvd. as is more particularly described in the legal description which is attached hereto as Exhibit I.

Exhibit "I" Legal Description Of The Realty; [Tract B of Sunrise Prospect Plaza, according to the Plat thereof, recorded in Plat Book 154, Page 25, of the Public Records of Broward County, Florida, said lands situate, lying and being in Broward county, Florida.]

The name and address of the dealer operator(s) and principal investor(s) of T.T. of Commercial, Inc. are: dealer operator: Cory Fairbanks, 515 East Las Olas Blvd., Suite 900, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301; principal investor (s): Terry Taylor, 515 East Las Olas Blvd., Suite 900, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33301.

The notice indicates an intent to establish the new point location in a county of more than 300,000 population, according to the latest population estimates of the University of Florida, Bureau of Economic and Business Research.

Certain dealerships of the same line-make may have standing, pursuant to Section 320.642, Florida Statutes to file a petition or complaint protesting the application.

Written petitions or complaints must be received by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles within 30 days of the date of publication of this notice and must be submitted to: Mr. Ronald D. Reynolds, Administrator, Dealer License Section, Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles, Room A-312, Neil Kirkman Building, 2900 Apalachee Parkway, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0635.

A copy of such petition or complaint must also be sent by US Mail to: C. L. Young, Assistant Zone Manager, DaimlerChrysler Motors Corporations, 8000 South Orange Blossom Trail, Orlando, FL 32809.

If no petitions or complaints are received within 30 days of the date of publication, a final order will be issued by the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles approving the establishment of the dealership, subject to the applicant's compliance with the provisions of Chapter 320, Florida Statutes.

WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS

Notice of Approval of Priority Water Bodies and

Schedule for Establishment of Minimum Flows and Levels
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to Section 373.042, Florida Statutes, the Department of Environmental Protection has approved the priority water bodies list and schedule for establishment of Minimum Flows and Levels by the Northwest Florida Water Management District as follows: Minimum flows for the Apalachicola River are being scheduled for September 2001 and being established in conjunction with the interstate coordination efforts to negotiate a water allocation formula under the Apalachicola-Chattahoochee-Flint River Basin Commission pursuant to Section 373.71, Florida Statutes, and Public Law No. 105-104. The priority list also includes minimum aquifer levels for the Floridan Aquifer in coastal Okaloosa, Santa Rosa and Walton counties. The effort to establish minimum levels for the Floridan Aquifer in this area will consider the potential migration of saline water into fresh groundwater supplies and is scheduled for completion in January 2005.

The person to be contacted regarding the above notice is: Ron Bartel, Director, Resource Management Division, NFWFMD, 81 Water Management Drive, Havana, Florida 32333.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

NOTICE OF INTENT TO GRANT WATER QUALITY EXEMPTION

The Department of Environmental Protection gives notice of its intent to grant a water quality exemption for the aesthetically based secondary drinking water standards for color (standard 15 color units, exemption limit 150 color units), odor (standard unit 3 TON, exemption limit 10 TON), and iron (standard 0.3 mg/L, exemption limit 4 mg/L), to Tropicana Products, Inc., Attn.: Donald Antenore, 1001 13th Avenue, East, Bradenton, Florida 34206. The water quality exemption is for the injection of Tropicana wastewater from its treatment plant. The exemptions are granted for the duration of the Tropicana Class V well construction permit. Future

exemptions must be petitioned for by the applicant in conjunction with an operation permit for any project at this site.

A person whose substantial interests are affected by the Department's proposed exemption decision may petition for an administrative proceeding (hearing) under Sections 120.569 and 120.57 of the Florida Statutes. The petition must contain the information set forth below and must be filed (received) in the Office of General Counsel of the Department at 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Mail Station #35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, within 21 days of publication of this notice. The petitioner must mail a copy of the petition to the applicant Mr. Donald Antenore, Vice President of Manufacturing, Tropicana Products, Inc., 1001 13th Avenue, East, Bradenton, Florida 34206 at the time of filing. The failure of any person to file a petition within the appropriate time period shall constitute a waiver of that person's right to request an administrative determination (hearing) under Sections 120.569 and 120.57, Florida Statutes, or to intervene in this proceeding and participate as a party to it. Any subsequent intervention (in a proceeding initiated by another party) will only be at the discretion of the presiding officer upon the filing of a motion in compliance with Rule 28-106.205, Florida Administrative Code.

A petition that disputes the material facts on which the Department's action is based must contain the following information:

- (a) The name, address and telephone number of each petitioner; the name, address and telephone number of the petitioner's representative, if any; the Department case or identification number and the county in which the subject matter or activity is located;
- (b) A statement of when and how each petitioner received notice of the Department action;
- (c) A statement of how each petitioner's substantial interests are affected by the Department action;
- (d) A statement of all disputed issues of material fact. If there are none, the petition must so indicate;
- (e) A statement of facts that the petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the Department action;
- (f) A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged, as well as the rules and statutes which entitle the petitioner to relief; and
- (g) Demand for relief (sought by the petitioner, stating precisely the action that the petitioner wants the Department to take).

A petition that does not dispute the material facts on which the Department's action is based shall state that no such facts are in dispute and otherwise contain the same information as set forth above, as required by Rule 28-106.301, FAC.

Because the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate final agency action, the filing of a petition means that the Department final action may be different from the position taken by it in this notice. Persons whose substantial interests will be affected by any such final decision of the

Department on the petitions have the right to petition to become a party to the proceeding, in accordance with the requirements set forth above.

Mediation is not available for this proceeding.

The application is available for public inspection during normal business hours, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, except legal holidays, at the Tallahassee Office, 2600 Blair Stone Road, Room 212E, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400.

NOTICE OF PUBLIC OPPORTUNITY
TO INSPECT AND COMMENT ON A PLAN
OF EXPLORATION PROPOSED IN THE
EASTERN GULF OF MEXICO PLANNING AREA

Interested persons are hereby given notice that an Initial Plan of Exploration (POE) and a Site Specific Hydrocarbon Spill Contingency Plan by Marathon Oil Company were

received by the State of Florida. The POE describes activities proposed on Block 927 Desoto Canyon, about 160 miles south of Pensacola, Florida in the Eastern Gulf of Mexico Planning Area. The proposed activities include drilling four exploration wells over seven months in approximately 8,540 feet of water.

These documents are available for inspection at the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), Office of Intergovernmental Programs, Room 953, Douglas Building, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000, (850)487-2231. Written comments regarding this activity and its consistency with the Florida Coastal Management Program are being solicited and will be included as part of the state's review if submitted to FDEP, at the address listed above, by May 6, 2001.

This public notice fulfills the requirements of 15 CFR 930.

Section XIII
Index to Rules Filed During Preceding Week

RULES FILED BETWEEN March 19, 2001
 and March 23, 2001

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
----------	-----------	----------------	-------------------	------------------

DEPARTMENT OF INSURANCE

4-211.006	3/19/01	4/8/01		26/52
-----------	---------	--------	--	-------

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
----------	-----------	----------------	-------------------	------------------

**COMMISSION FOR THE TRANSPORTATION
 DISADVANTAGED**

41-2.010	3/19/01	4/8/01	27/5	
41-2.012	3/19/01	4/8/01	27/5	

**DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL
 REGULATION**

Board of Auctioneers

61G2-5.004	3/20/01	4/9/01	27/7	
------------	---------	--------	------	--

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
----------	-----------	----------------	-------------------	------------------

Board of Funeral Directors and Embalmers

61G8-17.0037	3/20/01	4/9/01	27/6	
--------------	---------	--------	------	--

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Board of Clinical Laboratory Personnel

64B3-7.001	3/21/01	4/10/01	27/5	
64B3-7.004	3/21/01	4/10/01	27/5	
64B3-12.002	3/21/01	4/10/01	27/5	
64B3-13.003	3/21/01	4/10/01	27/5	

Rule No.	File Date	Effective Date	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.
----------	-----------	----------------	-------------------	------------------

Board of Medicine

64B8-30.015	3/20/01	4/9/01	26/51	27/8
-------------	---------	--------	-------	------

Board of Osteopathic Medicine

64B15-6.011	3/20/01	4/9/01	26/51	27/8
-------------	---------	--------	-------	------

Section XIV
List of Rules Affected

				Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.				
This "List of Rules Affected" is a cumulative list of all rules which have been proposed but not filed for adoption. Beginning with the February 2, 1996 issue, the list will be published monthly for the period covering the last eight weeks. w – Signifies Withdrawal of Proposed Rule(s) c – Rule Challenge Filed v – Rule Declared Valid x – Rule Declared Invalid d – Rule Challenge Dismissed dw – Dismissed Upon Withdrawal				3F-7.013	27/10						
				3F-7.017	26/47		27/9				
				3F-8.003	26/47		27/9				
				3F-10.002	27/10						
				3F-10.003	26/47						
					27/10c						
				3F-11.002	26/51		27/11				
				INSURANCE							
					4ER00-5			26/51			
					4-1			26/39c	27/10d		
				26/44c							
Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	4-121.035	21/5c		27/7d				
				4-137.001	27/2		27/13				
				4-137.002	26/50	27/6	27/13				
STATE											
1B-2.011	27/4		27/8w	4-141.0016	21/2c						
	27/6		27/8w	4-149	24/3c						
1B-24.001	26/43	26/51	27/7	4-149.001	23/45	26/22					
1B-24.002	26/43				24/46	26/22					
	26/51		27/7	4-149.002	23/45	26/22					
1B-24.003	26/43	26/51	27/7	4-149.003	24/46	26/22					
1B-24.004	26/51		27/7		23/45	26/22					
1B-24.005	26/51		27/7	4-149.004	24/46	26/22					
1B-24.006	26/51		27/7		23/45	26/22					
1B-24.007	26/51		27/7	4-149.005	24/46	26/22					
1B-24.008	26/51		27/7		23/45	26/22					
1B-24.009	26/51		27/7	4-149.006	24/46	26/22					
1B-24.010	26/51		27/7		23/45	26/22					
1B-24.011	26/51		27/7	4-149.007	24/46	26/22					
1B-24.012	26/51		27/7		23/45	26/22					
1C-3.134	27/3			4-149.008	24/46	26/22					
1C-3.138	27/3				23/45	26/22					
1C-3.140	27/3			4-149.009	24/46	26/22					
BANKING AND FINANCE											
3-1	26/43c			4-149.010	23/45	26/22					
	27/2c				24/46	26/22					
3A-10.083	27/5		27/12	4-149.020	23/45	26/22					
3C-1.022	21/25				24/46	26/22					
3C-140.018	27/3		27/10	4-149.021	23/45	26/22					
3C-560.704	27/7				24/46	26/22					
3C-560.803	27/7			4-149.022	23/45	26/22					
3C-560.805	27/7				24/46	26/22					
3D-85.300	27/9			4-149.023	23/45	26/22					
3E-600.004	27/14				24/46	26/22					
3E-600.008	27/14			4-149.024	23/45	26/22					
3E-600.009	27/14				24/46	26/22					
3F-7.011	27/10			4-149.035	23/45	26/22					
3F-7.012	27/10				24/46	26/22					
3F-7.0125	26/47		27/9	4-149.101	23/45	24/31					
					24/3c						
					24/3c						
					24/46	26/22					

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
4-149.102	23/45	24/31 26/12 26/22		4-149.1105	23/45 24/3c	24/31	
	24/3c 24/3c			4-149.111	23/45	24/31 26/12 26/22	
4-149.103	24/46 23/45	26/22 24/31 26/12 26/22			24/3c 24/3c 24/46		
	24/3c 24/3c			4-149.112	23/45	26/22 24/31 26/12 26/22	
4-149.104	24/46 23/45	26/22 24/31 26/12 26/22			24/3c 24/3c 24/46		26/22
	24/3c 24/3c			4-149.113	24/3c 24/3c		
4-149.105	24/46 23/45	26/22 24/31 26/12 26/22		4-149.114	24/3c		
	24/3c 24/3c			4-149.115	24/3c		
	24/46			4-149.116	24/3c		
4-149.106	24/46 23/45	26/22 24/31 26/12 26/22		4-149.117	24/3c		
	24/3c 24/3c			4-149.118	24/3c		
	24/46			4-149.119	24/3c		
	23/45			4-149.120	23/45	24/31 26/12 26/22	
					24/3c 24/3c 24/46		
4-149.107	24/46 23/45	26/22 24/31 26/12 26/22		4-149.121	23/45	24/31 26/12 26/22	
	24/3c 24/3c						
	24/46				24/3c 24/3c 24/46		
4-149.108	24/46 23/45	26/22 24/31 26/12 26/22		4-149.122	23/45	26/22 24/31 26/12 26/22	
	24/3c 24/3c						
	24/46				24/3c 24/3c 24/46		
4-149.109	23/45	26/22 24/31 26/12 26/22		4-149.123	23/45	24/31 26/12 26/22	
	24/3c 24/3c						
	24/46				24/3c 24/3c 24/46		
4-149.110	23/45	26/22 24/31 26/12 26/22		4-149.124	24/3c		
	24/3c 24/3c			4-149.125	24/3c		
	24/46			4-149.126	24/3c		
	23/45			4-149.127	24/3c		
				4-149.128	24/3c		
	24/3c			4-149.129	24/3c		
	24/3c			4-149.130	24/3c		
	24/46	26/22			24/3c		

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
4-149.131	24/3c			4-157.001	23/10	23/42	
	24/3c			4-157.002	23/10	23/42	
4-149.132	24/3c			4-157.002(2)	23/19c		
	24/3c			4-157.004	23/10	23/42	
4-149.1325	24/20	24/20		4-157.004(2)(b)	23/19c		
4-149.133	24/3c			4-157.004(4)	23/19c		
	24/3c			4-157.017	23/10	23/42	
4-149.190	23/45	26/22		4-157.022	23/10	23/42	
	24/3c			4-157.022(1)(b)	23/19c		
	24/46	26/22		4-157.022(1),(2)(c),(4)	23/52c		
4-149.201	27/2		27/13	4-157.022(2)	23/19c		
4-149.202	27/2		27/13	4-157.022(3)	23/19c		
4-149.203	27/2		27/13	4-157.022(4)	23/19c		
4-149.204	27/2		27/13	4-157.022(5)	23/19c		
4-149.205	27/2		27/13	4-157.023	23/10	23/42	
4-149.206	27/2		27/13	4-157.023(1)(b)	23/52c		
4-149.207	27/2		27/13	4-167.002	27/14		
4-154	27/3			4-176.022	25/33	26/24	
4-154.402	26/25			4-191.036	27/7		
4-154.403	26/25			4-191.043	27/14		
4-154.404	26/25			4-191.046	27/7		
4-154.405	26/25			4-191.048	27/7		
4-154.406	26/25			4-191.073	27/7		
4-154.407	26/25			4-192.013	27/9		
4-154.4071	26/25			4-192.023	27/9		
4-154.408	26/25			4-192.033	27/9		
4-154.411	26/25			4-193.065	26/41		
4-154.412	26/25			4-196.009(2)	20/43c		27/10d
4-154.502	26/25			4-211.0031	27/11		
4-154.503	26/25			4-211.006	26/52		27/14
4-154.504	26/25			4-223.001	27/9		
4-154.506	26/25			4-223.002	27/9		
4-154.507	26/25			4-223.003	27/9		
4-154.508	26/25			4-223.004	27/9		
4-154.511	26/25			4-223.005	27/9		
4-154.512	26/25			4-223.006	27/9		
4-154.513	26/25			4-223.007	27/9		
4-154.515	26/25			4-223.008	27/9		
4-154.516	26/25			4-223.009	27/9		
4-154.517	26/25			4-223.010	27/9		
4-154.518	26/25			4-223.011	27/9		
4-154.5181	26/25			4-223.019	27/9		
4-154.520	24/3c			4-223.020	27/9		
4-154.530	26/36	26/50	27/10	4-223.021	27/9		
		27/3	27/10	4-223.022	27/9		
	26/43c		27/7d	4-223.023	27/9		
	26/51c		27/7d	4-223.024	27/9		
4-155.001	27/9			4-223.025	27/9		
4-155.003	27/9			4-223.026	27/9		
4-156.002	26/47		27/9	4-223.027	27/9		
4-156.003	26/47		27/9	4-223.028	27/9		
4-156.006	26/47		27/9	4-223.029	27/9		
4-156.007	26/47		27/9	4-223.030	27/9		
4-156.0095	26/47	27/3	27/9	4-223.031	27/9		
4-156.011	26/47		27/9	4-223.032	27/9		
4-156.012	26/47	27/3	27/9	4-223.033	27/9		

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
4-223.034	27/9			4A-21.302	27/14		
4-223.035	27/9			4A-21.303	27/14		
4-223.036	27/9			4A-21.304	27/14		
4-223.037	27/9			4A-28.003	27/12		
4-228.010	26/35	27/9		4A-28.006	27/12		
4-228.020	26/35	27/9		4A-28.007	27/12		
4-228.030	26/35	27/9		4A-28.009	27/12		
4-228.040	26/35	27/9		4A-28.016	27/12		
4-228.050	26/35	27/9		4A-36.100	27/12		
4-228.055	26/35			4A-36.101	27/12		
4-228.060	26/35	27/9		4A-36.102	27/12		
4-228.070	26/35			4A-36.103	27/12		
4-228.080	26/35	27/9		4A-36.105	27/12		
4-228.090	26/35	27/9		4A-36.106	27/12		
4-228.100	26/35	27/9		4A-36.107	27/12		
4-228.110	26/35			4A-36.108	27/12		
4-228.120	26/35			4A-38.020	27/12		
4-228.130	26/35			4A-38.021	27/12		
4-228.140	26/35			4A-38.023	27/12		
4-228.150	26/35	27/9		4A-38.024	27/12		
4-228.160	26/35	27/9		4A-38.026	27/12		
4-228.170	26/35			4A-38.028	27/12		
4-228.180	26/35	27/9		4A-38.030	27/12		
4-228.190	26/35	27/9		4A-41.001	27/12		
4-228.210	26/35	27/9		4A-41.002	27/12		
4-228.220	26/35	27/9		4A-41.003	27/12		
		27/11		4A-41.007	27/12		
4-228.230	26/35	27/9		4A-41.011	27/12		
4-228.240	26/35			4A-41.012	27/12		
4-228.250	26/35			4A-41.013	27/12		
4A-2.024	26/31	27/10		4A-41.014	27/12		
	27/10c		27/10d	4A-41.016	27/12		
	27/10c		27/10d	4A-41.017	27/12		
4A-3.002	27/12			4A-41.019	27/12		
4A-3.009	27/12			4A-41.020	27/12		
4A-3.011	27/12			4A-41.024	27/12		
4A-3.012	27/12			4A-41.025	27/12		
4A-21.102	27/14			4A-41.026	27/12		
4A-21.103	27/14			4A-42.002	27/12		
4A-21.104	27/14			4A-42.003	27/12		
4A-21.106	27/14			4A-42.005	27/12		
4A-21.107	27/14			4A-43.001	27/12		
4A-21.108	27/14			4A-43.003	27/12		
4A-21.109	27/14			4A-43.009	27/12		
4A-21.110	27/14			4A-43.009 ⁵	27/12		
4A-21.113	27/14			4A-43.011	27/12		
4A-21.114	27/14			4A-43.014	27/12		
4A-21.203	27/14			4A-43.015	27/12		
4A-21.238	27/14			4A-43.017	27/12		
4A-21.240	27/14			4A-43.018	27/12		
4A-21.241	27/14			4A-46.015	27/14		
4A-21.242	27/14			4A-46.016	27/14		
4A-21.245	27/14			4A-46.017	27/14		
4A-21.249	27/14			4A-46.035	27/14		
4A-21.251	27/14			4A-46.040	27/14		

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
4A-46.041	27/14			4K-1.002	26/23		27/8w
4A-47.001	27/12				27/8		
4A-47.002	27/12			4K-1.003	26/23		27/8w
4A-47.003	27/12				27/8	27/12	
4A-47.004	27/12			4K-1.004	26/23		27/8w
4A-47.005	27/12				27/8		
4A-47.006	27/12			AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES			
4A-47.008	27/12			5-1	27/10c		27/10d
4A-47.009	27/12			5B-58.001	26/45		27/7
4A-47.010	27/12			5C-22.002	27/6		
4A-47.011	27/12			5C-22.003	27/6		
4A-48.002	27/12			5C-22.004	27/6		
4A-48.004	27/12			5C-22.005	27/6		
4A-48.005	27/12			5C-22.009	27/6		
4A-48.006	27/12			5C-22.011	27/6		
4A-48.008	27/12			5E-1.023	26/49		27/10w
4A-49.003	27/12				27/10		
4A-49.004	27/12			5J-11.006	26/49		27/8
4A-52.003	27/12			5K-4.020	26/49		27/9
4A-52.004	27/12			EDUCATION			
4A-53.003	27/12			6-1	26/39c		
4A-54.003	27/12				27/10c		
4A-54.004	27/12			6A-1.0503	27/8		
4A-54.006	27/12			6A-1.09412	27/8		
4A-54.007	27/12			6A-1.09441	27/8		
4A-55.002	27/12			6A-1.0996	25/27	25/34	
4A-55.003	27/12			6A-6.080	16/30		
4A-55.004	27/12			6A-14.030	27/8		
4A-56.004	27/12			6A-20.012	27/8		
4A-56.006	27/12			6A-20.0131	27/8		
4A-60.001	27/6			6A-20.025	27/8		
4A-60.002	27/6			6A-20.05281	26/1		
4A-60.003	27/6			6C-4.001	27/3		
4A-60.004	27/6			6C-6.0103	27/3		
4A-60.005	27/6			6C-6.0105	27/3		
4A-60.006	27/6			6C-6.011	27/3		
4A-60.007	27/6			6C-6.019	27/3		
4A-60.008	27/6			6C-6.020	27/3		
4A-62.001	26/47			6C-6.021	27/3		
4A-62.002	26/47			6C-9.006	27/3		
4A-62.003	26/47			6C-9.012	27/3		
	27/6c			6C-600.002	26/33		
4A-62.004	26/47			6C4-3.021	Newspaper		27/13
4H-1.001	26/43			6C4-14.002	Newspaper		27/13
4H-1.003	26/43			6C6-3.029	Newspaper		27/9
4H-1.007	26/43	27/11		6D-5.003	26/39	26/52	27/8
4H-2.001	26/43			6D-6.003	26/46		27/8
4H-2.003	26/43	27/11		6S-16.026	26/2		
4H-2.004	26/43			COMMUNITY AFFAIRS			
4H-2.005	26/43			9-1	27/10c		27/10d
4H-2.007	26/43			9B-1.002	27/12		
4H-2.008	26/43						
4H-2.009	26/43	27/11					
4K-1.001	26/23	26/51	27/8w				
	27/8						

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
9B-1.003	27/12			9J-2.046	26/42		27/7
9B-1.004	27/12			9J-2.048	26/42		27/7
9B-1.0055	27/12			9J-5.001	26/42		27/8
9B-1.006	27/12			9J-5.002	26/42		27/8
9B-1.007	27/12			9J-5.003		18/48	27/8
9B-1.0085	27/12					18/51	27/8
9B-1.009	27/12					19/19	27/8
9B-1.0095	27/12					19/19	27/8
9B-1.010	27/12					19/20	27/8
9B-1.011	27/12					19/49	27/8
9B-1.014	27/12					25/2	27/8
9B-1.016	27/12				26/42		27/8
9B-1.020	27/12			9J-5.004	26/42	26/52	27/8w
9B-1.021	27/12			9J-5.005		19/20	27/8
9B-1.022	27/12					19/25	27/8
9B-1.023	27/12				26/42		27/8
9B-1.026	27/12			9J-5.0053		25/2	27/8
9B-1.027	27/12				26/42		27/8
9B-1.028	27/12			9J-5.0055	18/40		
9B-1.030	27/12				26/42		27/8
9B-3.047		26/43	27/10d	9J-5.006		19/19	27/8
	26/15c		27/7d		26/42		27/8
	26/51c			9J-5.010	26/42		27/8
	27/10c		27/10d	9J-5.015	26/42		27/8
9C-600.002	26/33			9J-5.016	26/42		27/8
9G-6.002		26/50		9J-5.019	26/42		27/8
9G-6.0023		26/50		9J-8.004	22/39		
9G-6.0025		26/50		9J-8.006	22/39		
9G-6.006		26/50		9J-9.011	21/39c		27/10d
9G-6.0095		26/50		9J-9.012	21/39c		27/10d
9G-6.010		26/50		9J-14.017	19/44c		27/10d
9G-21.002	26/37		27/7	9J-14.027	21/13	22/42	27/7w
9G-21.004	26/37	26/52	27/7		25/43c		27/10d
9I-31.005	16/35			9J-28.001	26/42		27/8
9I-35.006	19/31	19/43		9J-28.002	26/42		27/8
9I-47.035	23/25			9J-28.003	26/42		27/8
9J-2.001	26/42		27/7	9J-28.004	26/42		27/9
9J-2.010	26/42		27/7	9J-28.005	26/42	26/52	27/8
9J-2.016	26/42		27/7	9J-28.006	26/42		27/8
9J-2.0185	26/42		27/7	9J-28.009	26/42		27/8
9J-2.021	26/42		27/7	9J-28.011	26/42		27/8
9J-2.022	26/42		27/7	9J-28.014	26/42		27/8
9J-2.023	26/42		27/7	9J-28.015	26/42		27/8
9J-2.024	26/42		27/7	9J-28.016	26/42		27/8
9J-2.025	26/42		27/7	9J-28.017	26/42		27/8
9J-2.0251	26/42		27/7	9J-28.018	26/42		27/8
9J-2.0252	26/42		27/7	9J-28.019	26/42		27/8
9J-2.0256	26/42		27/7	9J-28.020	26/42		27/8
9J-2.0257	26/42		27/7	9J-28.021	26/42		27/8
9J-2.026	26/42		27/7	9J-28.022	26/42		27/8
9J-2.0275	26/42		27/7	9J-28.023	26/42		27/8
9J-2.040	26/42		27/7	9J-41.003	20/47		
9J-2.043	26/42		27/7	9J-200.146	26/42		
9J-2.044	26/42	26/52	27/7	9K-7.001	27/14		
9J-2.045	26/42		27/7	9K-7.002	27/14		

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
12A-12.0011	27/7			14B-1.005	26/3	26/24	
12A-12.004	27/7			14B-1.006	26/3	26/24	
12A-15.002	27/7			14B-1.007	26/3	26/24	
12A-15.003	27/7			HIGHWAY SAFETY AND MOTOR VEHICLES			
12A-15.010	27/7			15-3.001	21/47c		27/10d
12A-15.011	27/7			NATURAL RESOURCES			
12A-15.012	27/7			16B-33.00525	19/41c		27/10d
12A-15.015	27/7				19/41c		27/10d
12A-16.003	27/7			ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION			
12A-16.004	27/7			17-3	15/14c		27/10d
12A-16.005	27/7			17-3.021	15/14c		27/10d
12A-16.008	27/7			17-4	15/14c		27/10d
12B-8	23/8c			17-4.244	15/14c		27/10d
12B-8.001	19/39c		27/10d	17-4.246	15/14c		27/10d
	19/39c		27/10d	17-40	19/49c		27/10d
	19/39c		27/10d		19/49c		27/10d
12B-8.003	23/7c		27/10d	17-106.010	26/52		27/10
12B-8.016	23/7c		27/10d	17-106.020	26/52		27/10
12C-1.011(1)(v)	19/50c		27/10d	17-106.030	26/52		27/10
	19/50c		27/10d	17-106.040	26/52		27/10
	19/50c		27/10d	17-106.050	26/52		27/10
12C-1.051	27/7			17-106.060	26/52		27/10
12D-51.003	25/45c		27/10d	17-106.070	26/52		27/10
TRANSPORTATION				17-106.080	26/52		27/10
14-15.002	26/46	27/11		17-106.090	26/52		27/10
14-15.003	26/46			17-106.100	26/52		27/10
14-15.010	27/5		27/12	17-106.110	26/52		27/10
14-15.013	26/50		27/7	17-106.120	26/52		27/10
14-22.0011	27/12			17-106.130	26/52		27/10
14-22.003	27/12			17-106.140	26/52		27/10
14-22.008	27/12			17-503.420	16/15		
14-22.009	27/12			17-503.430	16/15		
14-22.012	26/44c			17-503.500	16/15		
	27/12			17-660.300	15/50	16/8	
14-22.0141	27/12			17-671.100	15/32		
14-22.015	27/12			17-671.200	15/32		
14-43.001	27/13			17-671.300	15/32		
14-75.0022	27/14			17-671.310	15/32		
14-75.003	27/14			17-701	20/13c		27/10d
14-75.004	27/14			BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE INTERNAL IMPROVEMENT TRUST			
14-75.0051	27/14			18-1	27/10c		
14-75.0052	27/14			18-21.004	25/48	25/50	
14-75.0053	27/14			STATE BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION			
14-75.0071	27/14			19-8.010	20/13c		27/10d
14-75.008	27/14				27/7		
14-78	25/21c		27/10d	19-8.029	27/7		
14-96	21/2c		27/10d				
14-102.0011	26/49		27/7				
14-102.0037	26/49		27/7				
14B-1.001	26/3	26/24					
14B-1.002	26/3	26/24					
14B-1.003	26/3	26/24					
14B-1.004	26/3	26/24					

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
19-9.001	26/44 26/51c 26/51c 27/6c 27/10 27/10c 27/10c 27/10c	26/52	27/7w 27/10d 27/10d 27/10d 27/10d 27/10d 27/10d	21M-50.003 21M-50.007 21M-50.009	19/6c 19/6c 19/6c		
				PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION			
19-10.001	27/5	27/12		25-6.035 25-6.049(5)(a) 25-7.063 25-12.005	27/13 26/21c 27/9 27/9		27/7dw
CITRUS				EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR			
20-14.001	26/41	27/3 27/4	27/10 27/10	27E-4.001 27E-4.002	20/11 20/11		
20-39.003	26/50		27/7	27E-4.003	20/11		
20-40.005	26/50	27/4	27/10	27E-4.004	20/11		
20-49.001	26/41	26/49 27/3	27/10 27/10	27E-4.005 27E-4.006	20/11 20/11		
20-49.002	26/41	26/49 27/3	27/10 27/10	27E-4.007 27E-4.008	20/11 20/11		
20-49.003	26/41	26/49 27/3	27/10 27/10				
20-49.004	26/41	26/49 27/3	27/10 27/10				
20-49.005	26/41	26/49 27/3	27/10 27/10	33-1 33-2.001	27/10c 23/25		
20-49.006	26/41	26/49 27/3	27/10 27/10	33-3.0051 33-3.0081	24/18 25/35	25/43	
20-49.007	26/41	26/49 27/3	27/10 27/10	33-3.0082 33-3.0084	25/35 25/35	25/43	
20-49.009	26/41	26/49 27/3	27/10 27/10	33-3.0085 33-3.015	25/35 21/43	25/43	
20-49.010	26/41	26/49	27/10	33-3.018	17/14		
20-64.0081	27/4	27/11		33-5.008	24/18		
20-64.0082	27/4	27/11		33-6.005	23/34		
20-64.020	27/4	27/11		33-6.006	24/18		
20-71.001	27/7			33-8.0142	19/43		
20-71.002	27/7			33-11.0065	24/18		
20-71.003	27/7			33-22.003	17/12		
20-71.004	27/7			33-22.009	17/12		
20-71.005	27/7			33-22.011	17/12		
20-71.006	27/7			33-25.031	20/11c		
20-72.009	27/7			33-32.021	19/5		
20-94.005	26/50		27/7	33-32.022	19/5		
20-111.001	27/10			33-38.001	25/35	25/43	
20-111.0021	27/10			33-38.003	25/35	25/43	
20-111.003	27/10			33-38.005	25/35	25/43	
20-111.004	27/10			33-38.006	25/35	25/43	
20-111.007	27/10			33-38.009	25/35	25/43	
20-111.008	27/10			33-38.010	25/35	25/43	
PROFESSIONAL REGULATION				33-38.011	25/35	25/43	
21B-11.0017	19/31c		27/10d	33-38.012	25/35	25/43	
21G-17.011	18/43c		27/10d	33-102.101	27/3		
21M-49.002	19/6c			33-102.202	26/39		
21M-50.002	19/6c			33-208.101	27/4		
				33-208.506	26/43		
				33-208.507	26/16		

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
33-302.101	26/35		27/9	33-601.734	26/48		
33-302.102	26/35		27/9	33-601.735	26/48		
33-302.104	26/35	26/46 26/52	27/9 27/9	33-601.736	26/48		
33-302.105	26/46	26/52		33-601.737	26/48		
33-302.106	27/3			33-601.738	26/48		
33-506.100	26/47		27/10	33-602.203	27/3		27/14w
33-506.103	26/47		27/10	33-602.210	27/5		
33-506.106	26/47	26/50	27/10	33-602.401(2)(b)	26/39c		
33-506.203	26/47	27/3	27/10	33-602.403(2)(a)2.	26/39c		
33-506.204	26/47	27/3	27/10	COMMISSION ON ETHICS			
33-506.206	26/47	26/50	27/10	34-5.001	24/18		
33-506.207	26/47		27/10	34-5.026	24/19		
33-506.208	26/47		27/10	LABOR AND EMPLOYMENT SECURITY			
33-506.211	26/47		27/10	38-1	26/43c		
33-506.212	26/47		27/10		27/10c		27/10d
33-507.201		26/15 27/5	27/13 27/13	38E-106.401	24/1		
33-601	26/31c		27/11d	38F-7.522	27/10		
33-601.602	26/36	26/37 26/49 27/3	27/10 27/10 27/10	38F-7.523	27/10		
33-601.606	26/36	26/37	27/10	38F-8.055	22/4		
33-601.701	26/48			38F-55.001	27/14		
33-601.702	26/48			38F-55.002	27/14		
33-601.703	26/48			38F-55.003	27/14		
33-601.704	26/48			38F-55.004	27/14		
33-601.705	26/48			38F-55.005	27/14		
33-601.706	26/48			38F-55.006	27/14		
33-601.707	26/48			38F-55.007	27/14		
33-601.708	26/48			38F-55.008	27/14		
33-601.709	26/48			38F-55.009	27/14		
33-601.710	26/48			38F-55.011	27/14		
33-601.713	26/48			38F-55.012	27/14		
33-601.714	26/48			38F-55.013	27/14		
33-601.714(3)	27/10c			38F-55.014	27/14		
33-601.715	26/48			38F-55.015	27/14		
33-601.716	26/48			38I-60.200	20/7		
33-601.717	26/48			38K-1.0045	23/27		
33-601.718	26/48			GAME AND FRESH WATER FISH COMMISSION			
33-601.719	26/48			39-25.0031	19/48c		27/10d
33-601.720	26/48			39-25.004	19/48c		27/10d
33-601.721	26/48			39-25.031	20/11c		27/10d
33-601.722	26/48			39-27.005	19/33c		27/10d
33-601.723	26/48				19/33c		27/10d
33-601.724	26/48			39-27.005(26),(27)	19/33c		27/10d
33-601.725	26/48			WATER MANAGEMENT DISTRICTS			
33-601.726	26/48			40BER01-1			27/9
33-601.727	26/48			40C-1	21/47c		27/10d
33-601.728	26/48			40C-1.1009	27/3		
33-601.729	26/48			40C-1.181	20/18		
33-601.730	26/48			40C-2	21/47c		27/10d
33-601.731	26/48			40C-4	27/10c		
33-601.732	26/48						
33-601.733	26/48						

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
40C-4.021	27/3			40D-2.091	20/48	20/52	
40C-4.041	27/3					21/13	
40C-4.051	24/52					21/15	
	27/3					21/17	
40C-4.051(12)(b)	25/12c					21/44	
40C-4.091	24/52	25/8				24/7	
	25/12c				22/48		
	27/3				27/8		
40C-4.331	27/3			40D-2.101	20/48		
40C-9.021	27/1			40D-2.301	22/48		
40C-9.031	27/1			40D-2.321	20/48		
40C-9.041	27/1			40D-2.331	20/48		
40C-9.045	27/1			40D-2.381	20/48		
40C-9.061	27/1			40D-2.501	20/48		
40C-9.071	27/1			40D-2.601	20/48		
40C-9.081	27/1			40D-2.621	20/48		
40C-9.101	27/1			40D-2.801	20/48	21/44	
40C-9.110	27/1					24/7	
40C-9.115	27/1			40D-4.051(12),(13)	27/8		
40C-9.120	27/1			40D-4.051(3),(4),(5),(6)	27/8		
40C-9.130	27/1			40D-4.091	22/48		
40C-9.170	27/1				24/36	24/53	
40C-9.180	27/1				25/3		
40C-9.210	27/1			40D-4.091(1)	26/43c		
40C-9.270	27/1			40D-4.201	21/22		
40C-9.280	27/1			40D-6.521	24/50		
40C-9.300	27/1			40D-8.624	23/38	24/48	
40C-9.320	27/1			40D-8.6240	23/38	24/48	
40C-9.340	27/1			40D-45.341	19/42	20/3	
40C-9.350	27/1			40E-1.510	20/18	21/36	
40C-9.360	27/1			40E-1.603	19/4c		
40C-9.370	27/1			40E-1.606	19/4c		
40C-9.400	27/1			40E-1.607	19/43		
40C-9.410	27/1			40E-1.6105	19/4c		27/10d
40C-20	21/47c		27/10d	40E-1.612	20/18	21/36	
40C-22	21/47c		27/10d	40E-1.614	20/18	21/36	
40C-40.302	27/3			40E-1.659	19/4c		
	27/10c				25/18		
40C-40.381	27/3			40E-2	26/38c		
40C-41	27/10c			40E-2.091	27/13		
40C-41.063	27/3			40E-2.301	27/13		
40C-42	27/10c			40E-2.381	27/13		
40C-42.022	27/3			40E-4.091	25/18		
40C-42.0225	27/3				27/14		
40C-42.026	27/3			40E-6	20/26c		
40C-42.029	27/3			40E-7.639	22/23	22/37	
40C-400.201	21/48	21/48		40E-8.011	27/13		
40C-400.447	27/3			40E-8.021	27/13		
40D-0.201	20/3			40E-8.221	27/13		
40D-1.202	19/36	19/42		40E-8.231	27/13		
40D-1.607	27/3		27/10	40E-8.321	27/13		
40D-2.031	20/48			40E-8.331	27/13		
40D-2.041	20/48			40E-8.421	27/13		

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
40E-8.431	27/13			COMMISSION FOR THE TRANSPORTATION DISADVANTAGED			
40E-8.441	27/13			41-2.006	27/5	27/14	
40E-20.011	27/13			41-2.010	27/5		27/14
40E-20.112	27/13			41-2.012	27/5		27/14
40E-20.302	27/13			FLORIDA LAND AND WATER ADJUDICATORY COMMISSION			
40E-20.381	27/13			42-196.010	26/42		
40E-21.051	27/13			42C-1.002	27/5		
40E-21.221	27/13			42EE-1.001	27/9		
40E-21.231	27/13			42EE-1.002	27/9		
40E-21.271	27/13			42EE-1.003	27/9		
40E-21.521	27/13			42W-1.002	27/9		
40E-21.531	27/13			EXPRESSWAY AUTHORITIES			
40E-21.541	27/13			45A-2.001	21/49		
40E-22.312	27/13			MARINE FISHERIES COMMISSION			
40E-22.322	27/13			46-4.002	16/48c		27/10d
40E-22.332	27/13			46-4.003(1)(e),(o)4.,7.	19/44c		27/10d
40E-63.011	27/2			46-4.0031	19/50c		27/10d
40E-63.091	27/2	27/9		46-4.006	16/48c		27/10d
40E-63.101	27/2			46-4.013	19/50c		27/10d
40E-63.102	27/2			46-15.002	21/35		
40E-63.104	27/2			46-21.007(1)	18/2		
40E-63.106	27/2			46-24.003	21/27		
40E-63.108	27/2			46-29.0035	19/8c		27/10d
40E-63.110	27/2	27/9		46-29.0036	19/8c		27/10d
40E-63.120	27/2			46-29.004	19/8c		27/10d
40E-63.130	27/2			46-37.001	20/18		
40E-63.134	27/2			46-37.002	20/18	20/25	
40E-63.136	27/2			46-37.003	20/18		
40E-63.138	27/2			46-37.004	20/18	20/25	
40E-63.140	27/2			46-37.005	20/18		
40E-63.141	27/2			46-37.006	20/18	20/25	
40E-63.142	27/2			46-42.003	20/35		
40E-63.143	27/2			46-47.007	22/27		
40E-63.145	27/2			REGIONAL UTILITY AUTHORITIES			
40E-63.150	27/2			49B-1.007	27/12		
40E-63.152	27/2			49B-3.005	27/12		
40E-63.154	27/2			LOTTERY			
40E-63.156	27/2			53ER00-52			26/50
40E-63.158	27/2			53ER00-53			26/50
40E-63.160	27/2			53ER00-54			26/52
40E-63.161	27/2			53ER00-55			26/52
40E-63.162	27/2			53ER00-56			27/2
40E-63.163	27/2			53ER00-57			27/2
40E-63.165	27/2			53ER00-58			27/1
40E-63.223	27/2	27/9					
40E-63.302	27/2						
40E-63.310	27/2						
40E-63.312	27/2						
40E-63.314	27/2						
40E-601.314	26/9						
	26/9						
	26/9						

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
53ER00-59			27/1	59A-8.008	27/13		
53ER01-1			27/4	59A-8.0086	27/13		
53ER01-2			27/4	59A-8.0095	27/13		
53ER01-3			27/7	59A-8.0185	27/13		
53ER01-4			27/7	59A-8.020	27/13		
53ER01-5			27/7	59A-8.0215	27/13		
53ER01-6			27/7	59A-8.0218	27/13		
53ER01-7			27/9	59A-8.022	27/13		
53ER01-8			27/9	59A-8.024	27/13		
53ER01-9			27/11	59A-8.027	27/13		
53ER01-10			27/11	59A-10.032	26/44		27/13
53ER01-11			27/11	59A-12.020	26/32	26/36	
53ER01-12			27/12		26/38c		
53ER01-13			27/13	59A-12.030	26/49		27/12
53ER01-14			27/13	59A-18.003	26/25		
53-19.0035	25/43			59A-23.003	26/50	27/10	
				59AA-17.004	21/46		
INTERLOCAL AGENCIES				59B-7.020	19/30		
54C-1.001	27/8			59B-7.021	19/30		
				59B-7.022	19/30		
				59B-7.022(5)	19/36c		27/10d
				59B-7.023	19/30		
				59B-7.024	19/30		
				59B-7.024(1)	19/36c		27/10d
				59B-7.025	19/30		
				59B-7.026	19/30		
				59B-7.027	19/30		
					19/36c		27/10d
				59B-7.028	19/30		
					19/36c		27/10d
				59B-7.029	19/30		
				59B-9.011	27/10		
				59B-9.013	27/10		
				59B-9.015	27/10		
				59B-9.016	27/10		
				59B-9.017	27/10		
				59B-9.018	27/10		
				59B-9.019	27/10		
				59B-9.020	27/10		
				59B-9.021	27/10		
				59C-1.002	26/51		
				59C-1.002(41)	27/7c		
					27/7c		
					27/7c		
					27/10c		
					27/10c		
					27/10c		
				59C-1.002(43)	26/30c		27/10d
				59C-1.003	26/30c		
				59C-1.005	26/35	26/51	27/13
				59C-1.008	26/42		27/12w
					26/51		27/13
				59C-1.010	26/51		27/13
				59C-1.023	26/51		27/13

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
59C-1.031	26/51		27/13	59G-4.197	26/47		27/9
59C-1.033	26/30c		27/10d	59G-4.210	27/12		
	26/51			59G-4.220	27/12		
	27/7c			59G-4.250	27/7		
	27/7c			59G-4.270	27/12		
	27/7c			59G-5.020	27/7		
	27/10c			59G-6.010	20/49c		27/7d
	27/10c			59H-1.00352	26/3	26/17	
	27/10c			59M-3.005	21/25		
59C-1.044	19/44c		27/10d	59O-2.002	22/34	24/49	
	19/44c		27/10d	59O-2.003	22/34	24/49	
	19/44c		27/10d	59O-3.002	22/34	24/49	
	19/44c		27/10d	59O-9.003	22/34	24/48	
59D-1.004(4)	19/47c		27/10d	59Q-9.002	20/39		
59D-1.004(5)	19/47c		27/10d	59R-62.010	21/5		
59D-1.007(1)(d)	19/47c		27/10d	59R-62.040	21/5		
59D-2.003(10)(b)	19/48c		27/10d	59T-11.013	23/22	23/35	
59D-2.003(12),(15),(16)	19/48c		27/10d	59T-14.004	23/22	23/35	
59D-2.011(1),(2)	19/48c		27/10d	59T-15.002	23/22	23/35	
59E-1.001	20/27			59T-16.001	23/22	23/35	
59E-1.002	20/27			59T-16.002	23/22	23/35	
59E-1.003	20/27			59U-11.019	20/51	21/7	
59E-1.004	20/27			59U-14.002	23/24	23/35	
59E-1.005	20/27			59V-3.007	20/34	20/48	
59E-1.006	20/27			59X-28.150	21/2c		27/10d
59E-1.007	20/27			59Y-5.001	23/11		
59E-5.101	27/4			MANAGEMENT SERVICES			
59E-5.102	27/4			60-4.020	27/4		27/12
59E-5.103	27/4			60A-1.001(2)	26/39c		
59E-5.201	27/4			60Q-2.004	22/25c		27/7d
59E-5.205	27/4			60T-25.001	18/41	18/44	
59E-5.605	27/4			60T-25.002	18/41	18/44	
59E-7.011	27/10			60Y-3.001	26/15	26/33	
59E-7.012	27/10			60Y-5.004	26/34		
59E-7.014	27/10			BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION			
59E-7.016	27/10			61-11.001	26/41	26/51	27/8
59E-7.201	19/50c		27/10d	61-11.002	26/41	26/51	27/8
59E-7.202	19/50c		27/10d	61-11.004	26/41	26/51	27/8
59E-7.203	19/50c		27/10d	61-11.005	26/41		27/8
59E-7.204	19/50c		27/10d	61-11.006	26/41	26/51	27/8
59E-7.205	19/50c		27/10d	61-11.007	26/41		27/8
59E-7.206	19/50c		27/10d	61-11.008	26/41		27/8
59E-7.207	19/50c		27/10d	61-11.009	26/41		27/8
59E-7.208	19/50c		27/10d	61-11.010	26/41	26/51	27/8
59F-1.002	20/33			61-11.012	26/41	26/51	27/8
59G-3.010	24/7			61-11.013	26/41	26/51	27/8
59G-4.035	27/10			61-11.014	26/41		27/8
59G-4.040	27/12			61-11.015	26/41	26/51	27/8
59G-4.055	21/39	21/45		61-11.016	26/41	26/51	27/8
59G-4.060	27/7			61-11.017		22/33	27/8
	27/12			61-11.018	26/41		27/8
59G-4.070	27/6				26/41	26/51	27/8
59G-4.110	27/12						
59G-4.160	26/51		27/11				
59G-4.190	27/4						

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
61-11.019	26/41		27/8	61F6-50.007	18/53	20/24	
61-20.508	26/52		27/7	61F8-3.001	20/3c		27/10d
61-20.5081	27/4		27/11		20/3c		27/10d
61-20.5082	27/4		27/11		20/3c		27/10d
615-30.004	27/11			61F8-3.003	20/3c		27/10d
61A-4.0271	22/47				20/3c		27/10d
61B-23.0021	26/47		27/7	61F8-3.008	20/3c		27/10d
61B-23.0027	26/47		27/7		20/3c		27/10d
61B-23.0028	26/47		27/7		20/3c		27/10d
61B-30	20/26c		27/10d	61F9-6.0035	19/36		
61B-30.004	20/19			61F9-6.011	19/36		
61B-30.006	22/45			61F9-6.013	19/36		
61B-31	20/26c		27/10d	61F14-3.016	19/36		
61B-31.001	23/2			61G-1.256	27/5		27/14w
61B-31.002	23/2			61G-3.5082	27/4		
61B-32.001	21/30			61G1-12.001	26/38	27/6	27/13
61B-39.001	22/33			61G1-16.005	26/6		
61B-39.002	22/33			61G1-25.001	27/6	27/14	
61B-75.005	26/47		27/7	61G1-25.002	27/6		
61B-75.007	26/47		27/7	61G1-25.003	27/6	27/14	
61B-75.008	26/47		27/7	61G1-25.004	27/6		
61C-1.002	22/23	22/36		61G2-3.005	21/33		
61C-3.002	22/23	22/36		61G2-3.0055	23/38	24/6	
61C-5.001	26/24			61G2-4.001	21/29		
61C-5.006	27/12			61G2-5.004	27/7		27/14
61C-76.0061	21/35			61G3-15.006	27/4		
61C-76.0062	21/35			61G3-16.009	27/4		
61D-2.002	22/11c		27/7d	61G3-16.0091	27/11		
61D-3.003	23/36	23/44		61G3-16.0092	27/11		
61D-3.004	23/36	23/44		61G3-20.009	27/11		
61D-4.001	22/11c		27/10d	61G3-20.017	27/4		
61D-4.002(1)	22/11c		27/10d	61G3-21.009	27/4		
61D-6	22/11c		27/7d	61G3-21.011	27/4		
61D-6.002(1)	26/12c			61G4-12.006	26/34	27/6	27/12
	26/39c			61G4-12.019	27/8		
	26/39c			61G4-17.001	19/29		
61D-7	22/11c		27/7d	61G4-18.001	27/5		27/12
	22/25c		27/10d	61G4-18.002	27/5		27/12
61D-7.001(1)	22/11c		27/10d	61G4-18.003	27/5		27/12
61D-7.002	22/12c		27/10d	61G4-18.004	27/5		27/12
61D-7.020(13)(a),(b)	22/11c		27/10d	61G4-18.007	27/5		27/12
61D-7.022(5)(b)2.	22/11c		27/10d	61G4-18.009	27/5		27/12
61D-8	22/11c		27/7d	61G4-18.011	19/38		
	22/25c		27/10d	61G4-18.012	19/38		
61D-8.001(1)	22/11c		27/10d	61G4-18.013	27/5		27/12
61D-8.003		22/35		61G4-19.001	27/8		
	22/11c		27/10d	61G5-17.006	27/11		
61D-9	22/11c		27/7d	61G5-18.011	27/11		
	22/25c		27/10d	61G5-30.001	27/11		
61D-9.001(1)	22/11c		27/10d	61G5-30.004	27/11		
61D-11.010	24/3			61G5-32.001	27/11		
61E8-2.004	19/46c		27/10d	61G6-7.001	27/9		
61F3-8.002	20/27	20/32		61G6-9.002	27/8		
61F5-16.001	19/44c		27/10x	61G6-9.004	27/8		
61F6-27.003(3)	19/41c		27/10d	61G6-9.005	27/3		
61F6-34.001	20/7			61G6-9.006	27/5		

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
61G6-9.0105	26/51	27/13	27/13	61G18-16.003	26/29		
61G6-9.015	26/51	27/13	27/13	61G18-16.0035	26/29		
61G7-5.001(4)	19/44c		27/10d	61G18-16.005	26/47	27/4	27/12
61G7-6.001	26/33	27/3		61G18-30.001	26/35	26/51	27/7
61G7-10.011	26/13			61G19-6.012	26/15	27/11	
61G8-14.006	27/9			61G19-7.002	26/41		
61G8-16.005	26/16	27/8		61G19-7.003	26/41		
61G8-17.001	26/6	27/8		61G19-7.004	26/41		
61G8-17.0034	27/9			61G19-7.005	26/41		
61G8-17.0035	27/9			61G19-7.008	26/41		
61G8-17.0036	27/9			61G19-7.009	26/41		
61G8-17.0037	27/6		27/14	61G19-7.010	26/41		
61G8-17.004	27/9			61G19-9.001	27/6		
61G8-17.0041	27/9			61G19-9.002	27/6		
61G8-17.0044	27/9			61G19-9.003	27/6		
61G8-28.001	26/39			61G19-9.004	27/6		
61G8-32.004	26/16		27/8w	61G19-9.005	27/6		
61G8-32.005	27/8			61G19-9.006	27/6		
61G10-11.003	26/24		27/7w	61G19-9.007	27/6		
61G10-12.001	26/24			61G19-9.009	27/6		
61G11-25.001	20/22			61G19-9.011	27/6		
61G15-18.011	26/51	27/8		61H-20.0053	26/28		
61G15-19.004	27/12			61H1-29.003	26/28		
61G15-20.001	26/49			61H1-54.002	21/29		
61G15-20.0010	26/49			61J1-4.002	26/45		
61G15-20.0015	26/49			61J1-4.003	26/45		
61G15-20.0017	26/49			61J1-4.005	26/45		
61G15-21.007	27/12			61J1-4.006	26/45		
61G15-21.008	26/51		27/7	61J1-4.008	26/45		
61G15-22.001	26/51		27/7	61K1-1.0011(3)(c)	26/18c		27/10d
61G15-23.002	26/51		27/7	61K1-1.0011(3)(g)	26/18c		27/10x
61G15-24.003	27/12						
61G15-31.003	26/51		27/11				
61G15-32.002	27/3						
61G15-32.003	27/3			62-1	26/44c		
61G15-32.004	27/3				27/10c		27/10d
61G15-35.001	27/3		27/11		27/10c		27/10d
61G15-35.002	27/3		27/11		27/12c		
61G15-35.003	27/3	27/8		62-4.050	20/21	21/22	
61G15-35.004	27/3		27/11		27/13		
61G16-1.009	26/51		27/9	62-4.070(5)	25/45c		27/10d
61G16-2.001	23/12			62-4.120	27/7		
61G16-2.005	26/51		27/9	62-4.510	27/7		
61G16-5.003	21/43	21/50		62-17.151	24/45	24/45	
61G17-0.0051	27/5			62-17.161	24/45	24/45	
61G17-1.006	21/6			62-33.0051	27/11		
61G17-2.0013	27/5		27/12	62-113.100	27/14		
61G17-3.001	27/5		27/12	62-210.200	27/7		
61G17-6.002		23/24	27/12	62-210.300	27/7		
		23/41	27/12	62-210.360	27/7		
	27/5		27/12	62-210.900	27/7		
61G17-6.0031	27/5		27/12	62-210.990	20/36		
61G17-6.005	27/5		27/12	62-213.205	27/7		
61G17-7.003	27/5		27/12	62-213.300	27/7		
61G18-16.002	26/29			62-213.410	27/7		
				62-213.415	27/7		

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
62-213.420	27/7			62-342.470	24/36	24/45	
62-213.430	20/52	21/7		62-342.500	24/36		
	27/7			62-342.550	24/36		
62-213.440	27/7			62-342.600	24/36		
62-214.320	27/7			62-342.650	24/36		
62-214.340	27/7			62-342.700	24/36	24/45	
62-214.360	27/7			62-342.750	24/36		
62-214.370	27/7			62-342.800	24/36		
62-296.401	22/32	22/38		62-342.850	24/36		
62-302.600	21/2c		27/10d	62-342.900	24/36		
62-302.600(3)(b)62.	21/2c		27/10d	62-343.010	21/22		
62-302.700	21/17c		27/10d	62-343.020	21/22		
		22/8	27/13	62-343.030	21/22		
	25/34	27/7	27/13	62-343.040	21/22		
62-302.700(9)(i),(38)	21/49c		27/7d	62-343.050	21/22		
62-303.100	27/12			62-343.060	21/22		
62-303.150	27/12			62-343.070	21/22		
62-303.200	27/12			62-343.080	21/22		
62-303.300	27/12			62-343.090	21/22		
62-303.310	27/12			62-343.100	21/22		
62-303.320	27/12			62-343.110	21/22		
62-303.330	27/12			62-343.120	21/22		
62-303.340	27/12			62-343.130	21/22		
62-303.350	27/12			62-343.140	21/22		
62-303.351	27/12			62-343.900	21/22		
62-303.352	27/12			62-524.400	20/45		
62-303.353	27/12			62-550.310	20/47		
62-303.360	27/12			62-550.730	20/19		
62-303.370	27/12			62-561.100	24/52		
62-303.380	27/12			62-610.814	24/52		
62-303.400	27/12			62-620.100	27/13		
62-303.410	27/12			62-620.370(7)	25/45c		27/10d
62-303.420	27/12			62-620.910	27/13		
62-303.430	27/12			62-621.200	21/52		
62-303.440	27/12			62-701	22/42c		
62-303.450	27/12			62-701.100	27/8		
62-303.460	27/12			62-701.200	27/8		
62-303.470	27/12			62-701.210	27/8		
62-303.480	27/12			62-701.220	27/8		
62-303.500	27/12			62-701.300	27/8		
62-303.600	27/12			62-701.310	27/8		
62-303.700	27/12			62-701.315	27/8		
62-303.710	27/12			62-701.320	27/8		
62-303.720	27/12			62-701.330	27/8		
62-303.810	27/12			62-701.340	27/8		
62-304.200	27/10			62-701.400	27/8		
62-304.700	27/10			62-701.410	27/8		
62-312.122	24/18			62-701.430	27/8		
	24/18			62-701.500	27/8		
62-330.2001	26/9			62-701.510	27/8		
62-341.602	21/22	21/22		62-701.520	27/8		
62-342.100	24/36			62-701.530	27/8		
62-342.200	24/36			62-701.600	27/8		
62-342.300	24/36			62-701.610	27/8		
62-342.400	24/36			62-701.620	27/8		
62-342.450	24/36	24/45		62-701.630	27/8		

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
62-701.640	27/8			62S-2.072	26/38	27/10	
62-701.700	27/8			62S-2.073	26/38	27/10	
62-701.710	27/8			62S-2.074	26/38		
62-701.730	27/8			62S-2.075	26/38	27/10	
62-701.801	27/8			62S-2.076	26/38	27/10	
62-701.803	27/8						
62-701.900	27/8						
62-707.500	22/30						
62-710	21/18c		27/10d	64B1-3.001	26/51c		
62-712.100	21/34			64B1-3.010	26/49		27/7
62-712.200	21/34			64B1-4.001	26/47	27/7	27/13
62-712.300	21/34			64B1-4.0015	26/47		27/8
62-712.400	21/34			64B1-4.010	26/39	26/48	
62-712.410	21/34					26/50	
62-712.420	21/34					27/7	
62-712.430	21/34				27/6c		
62-712.440	21/34			64B1-4.011	26/39	26/47	
62-712.450	21/34					26/49	
62-712.460	21/34					26/50	
62-712.500	21/34					27/7	
62-712.800	21/34				27/6c		
62-712.810	21/34			64B1-4.012	26/39	26/47	27/7
62-712.900	21/34					26/50	
62-730.050	23/7			64B1-6.005	26/50		
62-761.891	24/14			64B1-7.0015	26/50	27/7	27/13
62-771.300	21/52			64B1-8.001	26/51		27/8
62-775.500	21/52	22/15		64B1-8.002	26/51		27/8
62-788.400	25/5			64B1-8.006	26/21	26/39	27/7
62B-26.011	26/51	27/11				27/1	
62B-33.002	27/11				26/30c		27/7d
62B-33.005	27/11			64B1-10.001	26/47		27/8
62D-2.014	21/52	22/13		64B2-12.005	27/6		
62D-2.014(18)	27/10c			64B3-1.008	27/2		27/11
62N-3.002	21/43			64B3-2.001	23/51		
62N-36.004	21/43			64B3-2.002	22/34	24/49	
62R-7.002	21/17			64B3-2.003	22/34	24/49	
62R-7.010	23/34			64B3-3.003	23/51		
62R-7.020	21/17			64B3-3.004	23/51		
62R-7.022	21/17			64B3-5.002	27/1		27/10
62R-7.025	21/17			64B3-5.003	26/38	27/14	
62R-7.026	21/17			64B3-5.007(2)(a)	26/35c		
62R-7.028	21/17			64B3-6.001	27/5		
	22/47			64B3-7.001		25/19	27/14
62R-7.032	21/17				27/5		27/14
62R-9.001	27/13			64B3-7.004	27/5		27/14
62R-9.002	27/13			64B3-11.001	27/3		27/11
62R-9.003	27/13			64B3-11.003	27/3	27/9	
62R-9.004	27/13			64B3-11.004	26/38	27/14	
62R-9.005	27/13			64B3-12.002	27/5		27/14
62R-9.006	27/13			64B3-13.003	27/5		27/14
62R-9.007	27/13			64B4-3.001	25/22		
62R-9.008	27/13			64B4-4.017	25/32		
62R-9.009	27/13			64B4-4.018	25/32		
62S-2.070	26/38	27/10		64B4-5.007	25/32		
62S-2.071	26/38	27/10		64B4-6.0013	25/32		
				64B4-6.0045	25/32		

HEALTH

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
64B5-1.025	27/11			64B15-6.011	26/51	27/8	27/14
64B5-2.0144	27/11			64B15-12.007	26/51		
64B5-2.0146	27/11			64B15-19.002	27/11		
64B5-4.002	27/11			64B16-26.100	27/7		
64B5-7.007	27/11			64B16-26.101	27/4		27/11
64B5-9.011	27/11			64B16-26.102	27/4		27/11
64B5-10.005	27/11			64B16-26.300	27/12		
64B5-10.007	27/11			64B16-26.401	27/4	27/8	
64B5-12.013	27/11			64B16-27.105	27/4		
64B5-12.016	27/11			64B16-28.140	24/38		
64B5-12.017	27/11			64B16-28.902	27/9		
64B5-12.020	27/11			64B18-23.001	25/27		
64B5-14.003	27/11			64B19-16.003	26/34	27/12	
64B5-14.010	27/11			64B20-2.002	25/45	26/30	
64B5-15.009	27/11			64B24-6.005	26/2		
64B5-15.010	26/49		27/9w	64B24-7.005	27/13		
	27/11			64B32-3.005	26/6	26/15	27/7w
64B5-15.012	27/11					26/16	27/7w
64B5-25.002	27/11					26/43	27/7w
64B7-27.012	24/12			64B32-6.004	27/7		
64B7-30.002	26/19			64B33-1.005	26/25		
64B7-32.001	26/6			64C-7.008	26/49	27/9	
64B8-1.001	27/3		27/12	64C-7.010	26/49		
64B8-1.007	26/15	27/9		64C-7.011	26/49		
64B8-9.009		25/24	27/8	64C-13.018	24/22		
		25/33	27/8	64E-2.003	27/2	27/9	
		26/7	27/8	64E-2.004	27/2		
	26/12c		27/7d	64E-2.005	27/2	27/9	
	26/49		27/8	64E-2.008	27/2	27/9	
	27/7			64E-2.009	27/2		
64B8-10.002	26/47		27/9	64E-2.0095	27/2		
64B8-10.004	26/47		27/7	64E-2.013	27/2		
64B8-30.015	26/51	27/8	27/14	64E-2.026	27/2		
64B8-45.006	26/37			64E-2.035	27/2		
64B8-51.006	27/3		27/12	64E-2.036	27/2	27/9	
64B8-55.001	27/13			64E-2.038	27/2		27/9w
64B8-56.002	26/24	26/43		64E-6.007	25/48		
	26/24	26/51		64E-10.001	26/43		
	27/10c			64E-10.002	26/43		
64B9-3.002	26/36	26/51		64E-21.001	27/14		
64B9-3.007	25/9			64F-12.001	26/51		
64B9-3.008	26/36	26/51		64F-12.002	26/51		
64B9-4.009	25/29			64F-12.003	26/51		
64B11-5.001	27/9			64F-12.004	26/51		
64B11-5.003	27/9			64F-12.005	26/51		
64B11-6.001	27/6			64F-12.006	26/51		
64B12-8.020	27/11			64F-12.008	26/51		
64B12-8.021	27/11			64F-12.009	26/51		
64B12-9.003	27/11			64F-12.011	26/51		
64B12-12.008	26/40			64F-12.012	26/51		
64B12-19.002	27/11			64F-12.013	26/51		
64B13-15.009	27/8			64F-12.015	26/51	27/8	
64B14-2.002	27/4		27/11	64F-12.016	26/51		
64B14-2.003	27/4		27/11	64F-12.017	26/51		
64B14-2.004	27/4		27/11	64F-12.018	26/51		
64B14-2.005	27/4		27/11	64F-12.019	26/51		

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
64F-12.023	26/51			66B-2.004	26/47		27/11
64F-12.024	26/51			66B-2.005	26/47	27/4	27/11
CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES				66B-2.006	26/47		27/11
65-28.001	27/5		27/11w	66B-2.008	26/47		27/11
	27/14			66B-2.009	26/47		27/11
65A-1.205	27/3			66B-2.010	26/47		27/11
65A-1.400	25/21c			FLORIDA HOUSING FINANCE CORPORATION			
65A-1.602	27/3			67-1	27/6c		
65A-2.022	26/45	26/51	27/7w		27/6c		
65A-2.023	26/45	26/51	27/7w	67-4.011	27/6c		
65A-2.024	26/45		27/7w	67-21.019	24/46	24/46	
65A-2.031	26/45		27/7w	67-32.009	24/28		
65A-2.032	26/45	26/51	27/7w	67-37.011	25/37		
65A-2.033	26/45	26/51	27/7w	67-48.001	26/44		27/7
65A-2.034	26/45		27/7w	67-48.002	26/44	26/51	27/7
65A-2.035	26/45		27/7w	67-48.002(11)	27/6c		27/10d
65A-2.036	26/45	26/51	27/7w	67-48.003	26/44	26/51	27/7
65A-4.201	26/52	27/12				26/52	27/7
65A-4.202	27/9					27/1	27/7
65A-4.205	27/4	27/14		67-48.004	26/44	26/51	27/7
	27/10c			67-48.005	26/44	26/51	27/7
65A-4.212	27/2	27/14		67-48.006	26/44		27/7
65A-4.213	25/32			67-48.007	26/44		27/7
65A-4.216	25/32			67-48.008	26/44	26/51	27/7
65A-4.218	27/2			67-48.009	26/44	26/51	27/7
65A-15.0095	26/4			67-48.0095	26/44	26/51	27/7
65C-19.001	26/40	26/52		67-48.010	26/44		27/7
		27/6		67-48.0105	26/44		27/7
65C-19.002	26/40	27/6		67-48.012	26/44	26/51	27/7
		27/12		67-48.013	26/44		27/7
65C-19.003	26/40			67-48.014	26/44		27/7
65C-19.004	26/40	26/52		67-48.015	26/44		27/7
65C-19.005	26/40	26/52		67-48.017	26/44		27/7
65C-19.006	26/40	26/52		67-48.018	26/44		27/7
65C-19.007	26/40			67-48.019	26/44		27/7
65C-19.008	26/40			67-48.020	26/44		27/7
65C-19.009	26/40	27/12		67-48.0205	26/44		27/7
65C-19.010	26/40			67-48.021	26/44	26/51	27/7
65C-21.001	23/20			67-48.022	26/44		27/7
65C-26.001	27/9			67-48.023	26/44		27/7
65C-26.002	27/9			67-48.025	26/44	26/51	27/7
65C-26.003	27/9			67-48.026	26/44	26/51	27/7
65E-2.003	26/20	26/28		67-48.027	26/44		27/7
NAVIGATION DISTRICTS				67-48.028	26/44	26/51	27/7
						26/52	27/7
66B-1.003	26/47		27/11	67-48.029	26/44		27/7
66B-1.004	26/47		27/11	67-48.030	26/44		27/7
66B-1.005	26/47	27/4	27/11	67-48.031	26/44		27/7
66B-1.006	26/47		27/11	67-48.032	26/44		27/7
66B-1.008	26/47		27/11	FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION			
66B-1.009	26/47		27/11	68A-1.004	27/8		
66B-1.010	26/47		27/11	68A-2.005	27/8		
66B-2.003	26/47		27/11				

Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.	Rule No.	Proposed Vol./No.	Amended Vol./No.	Adopted Vol./No.
68A-9.004	27/8			68C-22.005	26/7	26/25	
68A-12.010	27/8			68C-22.005(2)(d)8.	26/13c		
68A-15.005	27/8			68C-22.005(2)(i)	26/13c		
68A-15.061	27/8			68D-1.001	27/4		
68A-15.062	27/8			68D-23.003	27/4		
68A-15.063	27/8			68D-23.101	27/4		
68A-15.064	27/8			68D-23.102	27/4		
68A-15.065	27/8			68D-23.103	27/4		
68A-16.005	27/8			68D-23.104	27/4		
68A-17.005	27/8			68D-23.105	27/4		
68A-20.005	26/51		27/8	68D-23.106	27/4		
	27/8			68D-23.107	27/4		
68A-23.002	27/8			68D-23.108	27/4		
68A-23.005	27/8			68D-23.109	27/4		
68A-23.008	27/8			68D-23.110	27/4		
68A-27.0021	27/8			68D-23.111	27/4		
68A-27.005	26/51		27/8	68D-23.112	27/4		
	27/8			68E-2.001	27/6		
68B-4.012	27/8			68E-2.002	27/6		
68B-6.002	27/8			68E-2.003	27/6		
68B-6.003	27/8			68E-2.004	27/6		
68B-14.0036	27/3		27/9	68E-2.005	27/6		
68B-14.0045	27/3		27/9	68E-2.006	27/6		
68B-19.001	26/51		27/11	68E-2.007	27/6		
68B-19.002	26/51		27/11	68E-2.008	27/6		
68B-19.004	26/51	27/6	27/11	68E-2.009	27/6		
68B-31.010	27/8						
68B-39.0047	27/8						